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ALLEGATION OR SUBJECT

APPLICATION OF DIRECT ENERGY SERVICES, LLC D/B/A DIRECT ENERGY OR DIRECT
ENERGY BUSINESS SERVICES FOR APPROVAL TO OFFER, RENDER, FURNISH NATURAL GAS
SUPPLY SERVICES AS A BROKER/MARKETER & AGGREGATOR ENGAGED IN THE BUSINESS OF
SUPPLYING NATURAL GAS SUPPLY SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA.




212 Locust Street, Suite 300, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101
Tel: (717) 237-7160 O Fax: (717) 237-7 161 O www.WolfBlock.com

Daniel Ciearfield
Direct Dial: (717) 237-7173

Direct Fax: (717) 237-7161 = I
E-mail: dclearfield@wolfblock.com j ﬁ I7

October 13, 2004

James McNuley 5 =
Secretary = 5
PA Public Utility Commission D9
Commonwealth Keystone Building j‘{l -
Second Floor, Room N201 ;t -
400 North Street : ‘—-‘:}.r =
P.O. Box 3265 = @
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 3C>_ o

Re:  Direct Enerpy Services, LLC

Dear Secretary McNulty: q - \ a 6 \ 66

On behalf of Direct Energy Services, LLC, enclosed for filing is an original and three
copies of its Application along with a check in the amount of $350 to cover the filing fee.

W
Daniel Clearfield
For WOLF, BLOCK, SCHORR and SOLISAOHEN LLP

0CUMENT

DC/lww

Enclosure

DSH:54979.1/DIR023-216494

Cherry Hill, N] m Harrisburg, PA m New York, NY ® Norristown, PA m Philadelphia, PA m Roseland, N] m Wilmington, DE

WolfBlock Government Relations: Harrisburg, PA and Washington, DC
Woli, Block, Schorr and Salis-Cohen LLR. a Pennsylvania Limited Liability Partnership

3‘,



-
=
'
i

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true copy of the foregoing document upon

the participants, listed below, in accordance with the requirements of § 1.54 (relating to service

by a participant).

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL

Irwin A. Popowsky

Office of Consumer Advocate
5th Floor, Forum Place

555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921

Bemard A. Ryan, Jr.

Office of Small Business Advocate
Commerce Building, Suite 1102
300 North Second Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101

Office of the Attorney General
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Strawberry Square, 14th Fl.
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Dated: October 13, 2004

DSH:55001.2/DIR023-2164%4

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Revenue

Bureau of Compliance
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946

Erich Evans ‘

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc. & =

200 Civic Center Drive & :?3

Columbus, OH 43215 i 3
Sl ow
vz
m il
S @
m —_—
(3_:"_ 2]

m@@@m

Daniel Clearfield, Esq.
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BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY UM J/[M

Appllcatlon of _Direct Energy Services, LLC_, d/b/a _Direct Energy or Direct Energy Business Serwces
approval to offer, render, furnish, or as a(n) Ias specified in item #8 below] to the public in the Commonwealth o
nnsylvama )

To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: Q\ - \’a 6 \ —2)6

1. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the
Applicant are;

Direct Energy Serwces LLC
263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901
(T)(203) 328-3540

(F){203) 328-3545

Please identify any predecessor(s) of the Applicant and provide other names under which the Applicant has
operated within the preceding five (5) years, including name, address, and telephone number.

N/A

2.a.° CONTACT PERSON: The name, title, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the person to whom
’ *questions about this Application should be addressed are: . :

Jim Steffes
. Vice President, Government & Regulatory Affairs
263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901
(T)203) 328-3556
(F)(203) 328-3545

b.' CONTACT PERSON-PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY: The name, title, address
telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should be made by PEMA:

Tim Ray

s Vice President, Gas — Operations
12 Greenway Plaza, Suite 600
Houston, TX 77046
{T){713) 877-3644
(F)(713) 877-3552

3a  ATTORNEY: If applicable, the name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the Agplicant;s2
attorney are: <

]

03

(=Ald

=3
Dan Clearfield, Esq. . —i
Wolf, Block, Schorr and Solis-Cohen LLP i:;? 5 e
212 Locust Street . :
Suite 300 f:_ .
Harrisburg, PA 17101 = -
(TW717) 237-7173 = o
(F)(717) 237-7161 = =

(e

Naziural Gas Supplier License Application bl
PA PUC Document #: 139346
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b. REGISTERED AGENT: If the Applicant does not maintain a principal office in the Commonwealth, the
required name, address, telephone number and FAX number of the Applicant's Registered Agent in the
Commonwealth are:

CT Corporation
. 1515 Market Street
Suite 1210
Philadelphia, PA 19102
{215) 563-7750
(215)563-7771 (fax)
4, FICTITIOUS NAME: (select and complete appropriate statement)

x The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as {“d/b/a"):
We intend to operate under the names Direct Energy or Direct Energy Business Services.

Aftach to the Application a copy of the Applicant’s filing with the Commonwealth’'s Department of State
pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-853

or

0 The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name.

5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: (select and complete appropriate
statement)

. J The Applicant is a sole proprietor.

If the Applicant is located outside the Commonwealth, provide proof of compliance with 15 Pa. C.S. §4124
relating to Department of State filing requirements.

or

d The Applicant is a:

domestic general partnership (*}

domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.5. §8511)

foreign general or limited partnership (15 Pa. C.5. §4124)
domestic limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201)
foreign iimited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211)
foreign limited liability limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211)

) .

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated
above.

Give name, d/b/a, and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify the business nature of
the parther entity and identify its partners or officers.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 3
PA PUC Document #: 139346



1 *ifa corporate partner in the Applicant's domestic partnership is not domiciled in Pennsylvania, attach
a copy of the Applicant’s Department of State filing pursuant to 15 Pa. C.S. §4124.

or
l:l The Applicant is a :

[ domestic corporation (none)
[ foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124)

domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913)
X foreign limited lizbility company {15 Pa. C.S. §8981)

O other

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above.
Additionally, provide a copy of the Applicant’s Articles of Incorporation.

Give name and address of officers.

Deryk King
Chairman

Lois Hedg-peth
Director,
President & CEQ

Phil Tonge
Senior VP,
Southern Region

Jay Heilums
Senior VP,
Energy Procurement

Bill Cronin
Director,
Senior VP

David Clarke
Senior VP
Financial Control

Clinton Roeder
VP, Finance

Jim Steffes
VP

Thomas Boehlert
Executive VP
CFO

Gordon Currie
Secretary

Natural Gas Supplier License Application
PA PUC Document #: 139346

25 Sheppard Avenue West
Suite 1500
Toronto, Ontario M2N 686

263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor
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12 Greenway Plaza
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12 Greenway Plaza
Houston, TX 77046
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Toronto, Ontario M2N 686
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The Applicant is incorporated in the state of __ Delaware

‘ AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: (select and complete appropriate
statement)

X Affiliate(s) of the Applicant doing business in Pennsylvania are:

Give name and address of the affiliate(s) and state whether the affiliate(s) are jurisdictional public
utilities.

Energy America, LLC

263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901
(TH203) 328-3540
(F)(203) 328-3545

Energy America, LLC is not a jurisdictional public utility.

X Does the Applicant have any affiliation with or ownership interest in:
(a8) any other Pennsylvania retail naturai gas supplier licensee or licensee applicant,
(b) any other Pennsylvania retail licensed electric generation supplier or license applicant,
(c) any Pennsylvania natural gas producer and/or marketer,
(d) any natural gas wells or
(e) any local distribution companies (LDCs) in the Commonweaith

If the response to parts a, b, ¢, or d above is affirmative, provide a detailed description and explanation of the
affiliation and/or ownership interest.

,ect Energy Services, LLC is owned by Direct Energy Marketing, Inc., which also owns Energy America, LLC.
Irect Energy Marketing, Inc. is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Centrica plc. (See organization chart attached
to Question 17).

X Provide specific details concerning the affiliation andfor ownership interests involving.
(@) any natural gas producer and/or marketers,
(b) any wholesale or retail supplier or marketer of natural gas, electricity, oil, propane or other
energy sources.

Direct Energy Services, LLC is owned by Direct Energy Marketing, Inc., which also owns Energy America, LLC.
Direct Energy Marketing, Inc. is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Centrica plc. (See organization chart attached
to Question 17).

[J Provide the Pa PUC Docket Number if the applicant has ever applied:
(a) for a Pennsylvania Natural Gas Supplier license, or
(b) for a Pennsylvania Electric Generation Suppiier license.

X If the Applicant or an affiliate has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give
name and address of the predecessor(s) and state whether the predecessor(s) were jurisdictional
public utilities.

Energy America, LLC
263 Tresser Bivd., 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901

. (T)(203) 328-3540
(F)(203) 328-3545

Energy America, LLC is not a jurisdictional public utility.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 5
PA PUC Document #: 139346



o or

d The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done
business in Pennsylvania.

7. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate statement)

[ The Applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a

natural gas interstate pipeline.

municipal providing service outside its municipal limits.
local gas distribution company

retail supplier of natural gas services in the Commonweaith
a natural gas producer

Other. (Identify the nature of service being rendered.)

Looood

or

. X The Applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania.

B. APPLICANT’S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a:

X supplier of natural gas services.
Municipal supplier of natural gas services.

Cooperative supplier of natural gas services.
X Broker/Marketer engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services.
X Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services.

Other (Describe):

Nutural Gas Supplier Lizense Application: 6
PA PUC Dogumem #: 139346~



9. PROPOSED SERVICES: Generally describe the natural gas services which the Applicant proposes to offer.

Direct Energy Services, LLC seeks to provide natural gas supplies and other related services to residential
and commaercial customers.

!0. SERVICE AREA: Generally describe the gecgraphic area in which Applicant proposes to offer services.
Direct Energy Services, LLC proposes to offer services in the territory served by Columbia Gas of PA, Inc.

11, CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to initially provide services to:

Residential Customers

Commercial Customers - (Less than 6,000 Mcf annually)
Commercial Customers - {6,000 Mcf or more annually)
Industrial Customers

Governmental Customers
All of above

Other (Describe):

L>0dooo

12 START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin delivering services on _January 1, 2005___
{approximate date).

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 7
PA PUC Documens #: 139346



13. NOTICE: Pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14, serve a copy of the

signed and verified Application with attachments on the following:

Irwin A. Popowsky

Office of Consumer Advocate
5th Floor, Forum Place

555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921

Bernard A. Ryan, Jr.
Commerce Building, Suite 1102
Small Business Advocate

300 North Second Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101

Office of the Attorney General
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor
Harfisburg, PA 17120

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Revenue

Bureau of Compliance
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946

Any of the following Natural Gas Distribution Companies through whose transmission and distribution

facilities the applicant intends to supply customers:

NUI Valley Cities Gas (NUI Transportaticn Services)
Mike Vogel

PO Box 3175

Union, NJ 07083-1975

PH: 908.289.5000 ext. 5441 FAX: 908.2868.6444

National Fuel Gas Distribution Corp.
Paul R. Mundy

10 Lafayette Square

Buffalo, NY 14203

PH: 716.857.7756

e-mail. mundyp@natfuel.com

FAX: 716.857.7479

Penn Fuel [North Penn Gas Company & Penn Fuel Gas]
Jim Evans or Tom Olsen
2 North. 9th Street
GENA94
Allentown, PA 18101
PH: 810.774.7981
FAX: 610.774.5694
ail: jevans@papl.com or

610.774.4975
610.774.4975
teolson@papl.com

The Peoples Natural Gas Company

Joe Gregorini or Bill McKeown
625 Liberty Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 15222

e-mail: jgregorini@png.cng.com
PH: 412.497.6851

FAX: 412.497.6630

or 412.497.6840

. Phillips Gas and Oil Company
Robert M. Hovanec
205 North Main Street
Butler, PA 16001
PH: 724.287.2725 FAX: 724.287.5021
e-mail:_rhovanec@twphillips.com

UGl
David Beaston or Bob Krieger
PO Box 12677 or 225 Morgantown Rd

Reading, PA 15222
PH: 610.756.3425
FAX: 610.796.3559

Reading, PA 15222
PH: 610.796.3516

PG Energy

Richard N. Marshall or
One PEI Center

Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0601
e-mail: marshall@pgenergy.com or saxe@pgenergy.com
PH: 570.829.8795 FAX: 570.829.8652

Wendy K. Saxe

Equitable Gas Company

Antionette Litchy

200 Allegheny Center Mall

Pittsburgh, PA 15212-5352

PH: 412.395.3117 FAX: 412.395.3156

Carnegie Naturai Gas Company
Donald A. Melzer

800 Regis Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 19236

PH: 412.655.8510 ext. 331 FAX: 412.655.0335

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc.

Erich Evans or Heather Bauer
200 Civic Center Drive
Columbus, OH 43215
PH: 614.460.6254
FAX: 614.460.4291

or 614.460.5554

Philadelphia Gas Works

Eric Burgis

800 West Montgomery Avenue

Philadelphia, PA 19122

email: eric.burgis@pgworks.com

PH: 215.684.6907 FAX: 215.684.6564

PECO

Kevin Carrabine

300 Front Street Building 2
Conshohocken, PA 19428
PH: 610.832.6413

.;uant to Sections 1.57 and 1.58 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1.57 and 1.58, attach Proof of
Service of the Application and attachments upon the above named parties. Upon review of the Application, further
notice may be required pursuant o Section 5.14 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 8
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14.

16.

18.

TAXATION: Complete the TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT attached as Appendix B to this application.

COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person
identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all
proceedings, by name, subject and citation, dealing with business operations, in the last five (5) years,
whether before an administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor
of either, or a person identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as tothe
resolution or present status of any such proceedings.

STANDARDS, BILLING PRACTICES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROVIDING SERVICE AND
CONSUMER EDUCATION: All services should be priced in clearly stated terms to the extent possible.
Common definitions should be used. All consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain
language with any exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, package offers, limited time offers ar other deadlines
prominently communicated. Penaities and procedures for ending contracts should be clearly communicated.

a. Contacts for Consumer Service and Complaints: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and
FAX number of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints.
These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints filed with Applicant,
the Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or other agencies.

b. Pravide a copy of all standard forms or contracts that you use, or propose to use, for service provided to
residential customers.

c. If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial customers, provide a disclosure statement.

A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix B to this Application.

FINANCIAL FITNESS:

A. Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate financial fitness commensurate with the
service proposed o be provided. Examples of such information which may be submitted include the
foliowing:

» Actual (or proposed) organizational structure including parent, affiliated or subsidiary companies.

e Published parent company financial and credit information.

* Applicant's balance sheet and income statement for the most recent fiscal year. Published financial
information such as T10K’'s and 10Q’s may be provided, if available.

» Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and Bradstreet Credit
Report and Robert Morris and Asscciates financial form or other independent financial service reports.

» A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are specifically intended
to provide for or support its financial fitness to perform its obligations as a licensee.

*» Audited financial statements

e Such other information that demonstrates Applicant's financial fitness.

B. Applicant must provide the following information:
« Identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes.

* Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and FAX number of Applicant's custodian for its
accounting records.

»

TECHNICAL FITNESS: To ensure that the present quality and availability of service provided by natural gas

utilities does not deteriorate, the Applicant shall provide sufficient infarmation to demonstrate technical fitness

Natura| Gas Supplier License Application 9
PA PUC Document #: 139346



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

commensurate with the service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information which may be
submitted include the following:

e The identity of the Applicant's officers directly responsible for operations, including names and' their
professional resumes.

» A copy of any Federal energy license currently held by the Applicant.
« Proposed staffing and employee training commitments.

+ Business plans.

TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license to another entity,
it is required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to transferring the license. See 66
Pa. C.S. Section 2208(D). Transferee will be required to file the appropriate licensing application.

UNIFORM STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of receiving a license,
Applicant agrees to conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and Disclosure as set forth by the
Commission.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information to the Commission or
the Department of Revenue, as appropriate;

a. Reporis of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsyivania intrastate gross receipts to the
Commission on an annual basis no later than 30 days following the end of the calendar year.

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the
Commission to fulfill the Commission's duty under Chapter 22 pertaining to reliability and to inform
the Governor and Legislature of the progress of the transition to a fully competitive natural gas
market.

FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Applicant is under a continuing obligation to amend its application if
substantial changes occur in the information upon which the Commission relied in approving the original
filing.

FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s} herein may be grounds
for denying the Application or, if fater discovered, for reveking any authority granted pursuant to the
Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and faisification in
official matters.

FEE: The Applicant has enclosed the required initial licensing fee of $350.00 payable to the Commonwealth

of Pennsylvania.
Applica?ji:’e.ct Energy Services, LLC
By: ﬂ:ﬂ%

Title: ﬂﬁce President ﬂ

NMatural Gas Supplier License Application . 1 0
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AFFIDAVIT

State of _Connecticut

SS.

County of _Fairfield

_James Steffes_, Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that:
He is the _Vice President__ of _Direct Energy Services, LLC_(*DES, LLC") :

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;

That DES,LLC__ . the Applicant herein, acknowledges that DES, LLC may have obligations pursuant to this
Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 66 of the Pennsylvania
Consolidated Statutes; or with other applicable statutes or regulations including Emergency Orders which may be issued
verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly develop from time to time in the course of
doing business in Pennsylvania.

That DES, LLC , the Applicant herein, asserts that it possesses the requisite technical, managerial,
and financial fitness to render natural gas supply service within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the
Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission.

That _ DES, LLC , the Applicant herein, certifies to the Commission that it is subject to and will pay,
the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles I1 and XI of the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, No. 2 ), known as the Tax
Reform Act of 1971 and any tax imposed by Chapter 22 of Title 66. The Applicant acknowledges that failure to pay
such taxes or otherwise comply with the taxation requirements of, shall be cause for the Commission to revoke the
license of the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the Commissicon its jurisdictional natural gas
sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as otherwise required by the Commission. The Applicant also
acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. §506 (relating to the inspection of facilities and records).

Applicant, by filing of this application waives confidentiality with respect to its state tax information in the possession of
the Department of Revenue, regardless of the source of the information, and shall consent to the Department of Revenue
providing that information to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

That DES, LLC , the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory obligation to conform with 66 Pa.
C.5. §506, and the standards and billing practices of 52 PA. Code Chapter 56.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 11
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That the Applicant agrees to provide all consumer education materials and information in a timely manner as requested
by the Commission’s Qffice of Communications or other Commission bureaus, Materials and information. requested
may be analyzed by the Commission to meet obligations under applicable sections of the law.

That the facts above set forth are true and correct/true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and

belief.
Signafire of Affiant /!
P P ‘1’ - -
Sworn and subscribed before me this "IL day of &cxzoé [ v . :

Thomas S. Bellantoni

Notary Public ,
State of Connecticut m /’4 gf‘/’/"k‘

My Comm. Exp. 8/31/09 Signature of official administering oath

My commission expires T%’ / % 7
7 /!

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 12
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AFFIDAVIT
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
;S8
COUNTY OF DAUPHIN :

1, Daniel Clearfield, Esquire, Affiant, being duly swomn according to law, deposes and say
that:

I am counsel of record for Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or Direct Energy
Business Services.

That I am authorized to and do make this affidavit for said Applicant;

A copy of the notice as it will appear in each of the newspapers (listed below) is attached.
Erie Daily Times, Erie, PA; Patriot-News, Harrisburg, PA; Philadelphia Inquirer,
Philadelphia, PA; Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, Pittsburgh, PA; Williamsport Sun
Gazette, Williamsport, PA; and Scranton Times, Scranton, PA.

That, I, Daniel Clearfield, on behalf of Applicant will submit to the Commission the proof of
publication from each newspaper in which notice of the application filing was published as soon
as it is avaijlable.

That the facts set forth are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief,

and that [ expect to be able to prove the same at hearing.

Signature of Affiant

Sworn and subscribed before me this ] 5 I~ dayof OG’ﬁD}J@\J?OOKI

Nwsit J Tp ol

Si gr@f\:re ofofficial admmlstermg oath

"NOTARIAL ¢ SEAL

City of Harrrsbur Dauphﬁogyun?m

My Commission Exptres December 9, 2006

My commission expires

Natural Gas Supplicr License Application 13
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APPENDIX C C@PY

PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

Application of Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or Direct
Energy Business Services. For approval to offer, render, furnish natural gas supply
services as a marketer/broker or aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural
gas supply services, to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Docket No. A-
125135.

On October 13, 2004, Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or
Direct Energy Business Services filed an application with the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission (“PUC”) for a license to provide natural gas supply services as (1) a
supplier of natural gas, (2} a broker/marketer engaged in the business of supplying
natural gas, and (3) an aggregator engaged in the business of providing natural gas
supply services. Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or Direct Energy
Business Services proposes to sell natural gas and related services throughout all of
Pennsylvania under the provisions of the new Natural Gas Choice and Competition Act.

The PUC may consider this application without a hearing. Protests directed to
the technical or financial fitness of Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or
Direct Energy Business Services may be filed within 15 days of the date of this notice
with the Secretary of the PUC, P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265. You
should send copies of any protest to Direct Energy Services, LLC d/b/a Direct Energy or
Direct Energy Business Services’ attorney at the address listed below. Please include
the PUC’s “docket number” on any correspondence, which is A-125135.

By and through Counsel:
Kevin J. Moody, Esquire
Counsel for Direct Energy Services LLC
c/o Wolf, Block, Schorr & Solis-Cohen LLP
212 Locust Street, Suite 300

Harrisburg, PA 17101

{717) 237-7187 (Phone)
(717) 237-7161 (Fax)

DSH:55071.1/DIR023-216494



AFFIDAVIT

State of _Connecticut

S8,

County of __Fairfield

_James Steffes __, Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that:
He is the __ Vice President of _ Direct Energy Services, LLC ("DES, LLC") ;
That he is authorized fo and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;

That the Applicant herein _ DES, LLC has the burden of producing information and supporting documentation
demonstrating its technica! and financial fitness to be licensed as a natural gas supplier pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S.
§2208{c)(1).

That the Applicant herein _DES, LL.C has answered the questions on the application correctly, truthfully, and
completely and provided supporting documentation as required.

That the Applicant herein  DES, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to update information provided
in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents.
That the Applicant herein _ DES, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to supplement

information provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents as requested by
the Commission.

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of hisfher knowledge, information, and belief, and that
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at hearing.

/Jz}%
Signatdre of Affiant

'f"“ 2ot % -
Sworn and subscribed before me this __# _dayof __ Deboder  for | L

Thomas S. Bellantoni

Notary Public y/w, g M«Aﬁ

State of Connecticut Signature of official administering cath
My Comm. Exp. 8/31/09

My commission expires va;{/"?

Natural Gas Supplicr License Application 14
PA PUC Dacument #: 139346



APPENDIX A

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

1 completed Tax Certification Statement must accompany all applications for new licenses, renewals or transfers. Failure to provide the requested
information and/or any outstanding state income, corporation, and sales (including failure to file or register) will cause your application to be rejected. If
additional space.is needed, please use white 81/2” x 117 paper. Type or print all information requested.

|. CORPORATE QR APPLICANT NAME 2. BUSINESS PHONE NO. (203) 328-3540
CONTACT PERSON(S) FOR TAX ACCOUNTS:
Direct Energy Services, LLC Sharen Rorwick — (416) 590-3888

3. TRADE/FICTITIOUS NAME (IF ANY)

Direct Energy or Direct Energy Business Services

4. LICENSED ADDRESS (STREET, RURAL ROUTE, P.0. BOX NO.) (POST OFFICE) STATE) (Z1P)

263 Tresser Bivd., 8" Floor, Stamford, CT 06901
5. TYPE OF ENTITY ] SOLE PROPRIETOR [J PARTNERSHIP x CORPORATION

8. LIST OWNER(S), GENERAL PARTNERS, OR CORPORATE OFFICER(S)

NAME.(PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER  (OPTIONAL)

Seé Attached List. | I | |- | | [ -] | | | [

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER _(OPTIONAL)
!t /-1 J-L_1 | | |
NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER  (OPTIONAL)
L - - f | |
. NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER _ (OPTIONAL)
L+ 1 -1 J-0L ] | | |
NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL)

Ll - r g r | I I

9. LIST THE FOLLOWING STATE TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS. (ALL ITEMS: A.B, AND C MUST BE COMPLETED).

A. SALES TAX LICENSE (8 DIGITS) APPLICATION C. CORPORATE BOX NUMEER (7 DIGITS)  APPLICATION
PENDING N/A PENDING N/A

I O O O S O N T O I N O =

B. EMPLOYER ID (EIN) {3 DIGITS:  APPLICATION
PENDING N/A

lef-[r e feqe e Jslaj o O

11 DN von have PA emnlnves aither recident or nnn-regident? 1 vrs ¥ NOY

11 D ovon own any aceets or have an office in PA? I vEs ¥ NN

NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING TAX RETURNS

. Sharon Rorwick _ Helen Kowalchuk _ Sharon Rorwick

PA SALES AND USE TAX EMPLOYER TAXES CORPORATE TAXES
_(416) 590-3888 _ (416) 590-3332 __(416)590-3888
PHONE PHONE PHONE

Telephone inquiries about this form may be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue at the following numbers: (717)
772-2673, TOD# (717) 772-2252 (Hearing Impaired Only)

Natyral Gas Supplier License Application 15
PA PUC Document #; 139346



APPENDIX A

TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
8. List of Direct Energy Services, LLC Officers:

Deryk King
Chairman

Lois Hedg-peth

Director,
President & CEOQO

Phil Tonge
Senior VP,
Southern Region

Jay Hellums
Senior VP,
Energy Procurement

Bill Cronin
Director,
Senior VP

David Clarke
Senior VP
Financial Control

Clinton Roeder
Vice President, Finance

Jim Steffes
Vice President

Thomas Boehlert
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Qfficer

Gordon Currie
Secretary



QUESTION 4

See attached Direct Energy Services, LL.C’s d/b/a filing with the Pennsylvania
Department of State pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953.



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF STATE
CORPORATION BUREAU

206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING
P. Q. BOX 8722
HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722
VWWW.DOS.STATE PA US/CORPS

DIRECT ENERGY

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT. PLEASE
NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE COMMONWEALTH . THE
CORPORATION BUREAU 1S HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS
IN PENNSYLVANIA,

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU , PLEASE VISIT
OUR WEB SITE LOCATED AT WWW.DOS.STATE.PAUS/ICORPS OR PLEASE CALL OUR MAIN
INFORMATION TELEPHONE NUMBER (717)787-1057. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING
BUSINESS AND/OR UCC FILINGS , PLEASE VISIT OUR ONLINE " SEARCHABLE DATABASE " LOCATED

ON OUR WEB SITE.

ENTITY NUMBER : 3237370
MICROFILM NUMBER : 2004070

MICROFILM START - END : 540 - 541

CT CORP SYSTEM
COUNTER
PA



S JUL-19-2884 168 1S CT CORP P.84/85

200407 0- 540

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
.‘ CORPORATION BUREAU
Entity Number Application for Registration of Fictitious Name
| 4 Pa.CS. § 311
3 2 3—7 3 70 54 Pa §13]
Document will be returned to the
Name name and addyess you enter to
the left.
Address - o
City State Zip Code
. §70 20 ?
Ee S0 Fllcd in the Department of Suate on JJL 7004
Secretary of the Commonwealth FD

In compliance with the requirements of 54 Pa.C.$. § 31t (rclating to registration), the undersigned cntity(ies) desiring to register a
fictidous name under 54 Pa.C.5. Ch. 3 (relating to fictitious names), hereby state(s) that:

. 1. The fictitious namc is;

Direct Energy

2. A brief statement of the character or nature of the business or other activity Lo be carried on under or through
the fictitious name is:
retail provider of electricity & natural ges commoditics & scrvices

3. The address, including number and street, if’ any, of the principal place of business (P.O. Box alone is not
acceptable):

263 Tresser Blvd, 8th Floor, Stamford, CT 06901
Nurmber and stroet City State Zip County

4. The name and address, including number and strect, if any, of each individual intcrested in the business is:
Name Number and Street City State Zip

. PALTS - G744 C T Syatem Ondine
T SRR Ut /<
flq% Zi)s T RV

20tk WA 02 R0 hE



- JUL-19-2084 16:16 CT CORP

0007 5~ 54

DSCB:34-311-2

F, B5-85

5. Each entity, other than an individual, interesicd in such business is (are):

Direct Energy Services, LLC Limited Liability Coampany Delaware

Name Form of Organization Organizing Jurisdiction
263 Tresser Blvd, 8§th Floor, Stamford, CT 0690)

Principal Office Address

CT Cotporation System, 1515 Market St, Saite 1210, Philadelphia, PA 19102 - philadelphia County

PA Registercd Office, if any

Name Form of Organization Organizing Junisdiction

Principal Office Address

PA Registerad Office, if any

6. The applicant is familiar with the provisions of 54 Pa.C.S. § 332 (relating to effect of registration) and

understands that filing under the Fictitious Names Act does not cteate any cxclusive or other right in the
fictitious name.

7. Optional): The name(s) of the agent(s), if any, any onc of whom is authorized to exccute amendments 1o,

withdrawals from or cancellation of this registration in behalf of all then cxisting parties to the registration, is
{are):

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, the undersigned have cauged this Application for Registration of Fictitious
Name to be executed this

WO oy or NIMA 2000
(¥}

individual Signature Individual Signature

Individual Signsture Individual Signaturc

Dircct Energy Services, LLC
Entity Name Q Entity Name
Signature Stgnaturc
SECRETFikN OF CEMPwy Awe of
Tite Sk MmEMAcR Title

PAGLS - 017/D4 C T Syrem Osling

TOTAL P.BS5



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF STATE
CORPORATION BUREAU

206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING
P. O. BOX 8722
HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722
WWW . DOS.STATE.PA.US/CORPS

DIRECT ENERGY BUSINESS SERVICES

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT. PLEASE
NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE COMMONWEALTH . THE
CORPORATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS
IN PENNSYLVANIA,

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU, PLEASE VISIT
OUR WEB SITE LOCATED AT WWW.DOS.STATE.PA.US/CORPS OR PLEASE CALL OQUR MAIN
INFORMATION TELEPHONE NUMBER (717)787-1057. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING
BUSINESS AND/OR UCC FILINGS , PLEASE VISIT OUR ONLINE " SEARCHABLE DATABASE " {OCATED
ON OUR WEB SITE.

ENTITY NUMBER: 3237371
MICRGCFILM NUMBER ;. 2004070

MICROFILM START - END : 542 - 543

CT CORP SYSTEM
COUNTER
PA



JUL-19-2884 16:15 CT CORP P.B2-85

S AR .
T 200407 0- 842
PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
.’ CORPORATION BUREAU

Estity Number Application for Registration of Fictitious Name

323737/ 54 Pa.C.8.§ 311

Document will be returned to the

Neme pame and address you enter to
the left.

Addr

= O CUHP COUNTER =
City Zip Code
Ko S0 Filed fige Depamncnt of State on Jit 20 7
1 ~ ~
Secretary of the Commonweah}@

In compliance with the requirements of 54 Pa.CS. § 311 (relating to registration), the undersigned entity(ies) desiring to register a
fictitious name under 54 Pa.C.S. Ch. 3 (relating to fictitious names), hereby state(s) that:

. 1, The fictitious pame is:

Direct Energy Business Secrvices

2. A brief statement of the character or nature of the business or other activity to be carried on under or through

the: fictitions name is:
rerail provider of electricity & natural gas commodities & services

3. The address, including number and street, il any, of the principal place of business (P.O. Box alone is not
acceptablc):

263 Tresser Blvd, 8th Floor, Stamford, CT 06901
Number and street City State Zip County

4. The namc and address, including number and strect; if any, of cach individual interested in the business is:
Name Number and Street Ciry State Zip

. PADIG - 01703/04 C T Syuam Onking
Mo DS s
fh

e 2€:h U 02 0 e



CJUL-19-2884 16:15 CT CORP

200407 0- 343

DSCB:54-311-2

5. Each cntity, other than an individual, interested in such business is (are):

Direct Energy Scrvices, LLC Limited Liability Company Delawarc

Name Form of Qrganization Organizing Jurisdiction

263 Tresser Blvd, 8th Flear, Stamford, CT 06901

Principal Office Address

PA Registered Officc, it any

CT Corparation System, 1515 Market St, Suitc 1210, Philadelphia, PA 19102 _. philadelphia County

Name Form of Organization Organizing Jurisdiction

Principal Office Address

PA Registered Office, if any

6. The applicant is Eamiliar with the provisions of 54 Pa.C.S. § 332 (relating to effect of registration) and
understands that flling under the Fictitious Names Act does not create any cxclusive or other right in the
fictitious name.

7. Optional): The game(s) of the agent{s), if any, any on¢ of whom is authorized to execute amendments to,
withdrawals from or cancellation of this registration in behalf of all then existing parties to the registration, is
(are).

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Application for Registration of Fictitious
Name to be executed this

N ayorJt! A 200
J

Individual Signaturc Individual Signature

Indivigdual Signature Individual Signature

Dirsct Energy Services, LLC

m Entity Name

Signature Signature
Secagreav oF COMPAVY AwO o
Title Sewe MEMBER, Title

AL - D10¥04 £ T Syaiern Danliae

P.B3-85



QUESTION §

See attached application for foreign registration pursuant to 15 Pa.C.S. §8981 and Direct
Energy’s Certificate of Formation.



JUL-B6-20B4 14:35 CT COrP

PENNSYLYANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE

CORPORATION BUREAU
Application for Registration - Foreign
, - (15PaC8)
Bty Tumber __ Registered Limited Liability General Pactership (6 8211)
12342 T Registered Limited Lisbility Limited Pasiership (§ 8211)
____ Limited Parmership (§ 8582)
_X _ Limited Liability Company (§ 8981)
Nyme Document will he returned to the
) name and addrexs you enter to
the left,
Addiress l:' “”RP_' :l l”NltH >
Clty Sure Zip Code
Fee: $250

---------------------

Filed in the Department of State on __JUL_D.G_ZBUJ._.

\Q_TLQ O Coks Vi

Secretary of the Commonwealth V

In compliance with the requirements of the applicable provisions (relating 1o registration), the undersigned, desiriog to
register to do business in this Commonwealth, hereby states that:

1. The name to be registered is;
Direct Energy Services, LLC

2. (If the name set forth in paragraph I is not available for use in this Commonwealth, campleie the following):

register and do business in this Comunonwealth is:

The name under which the limited lability company/limited liability partnership/limited partnership proposes to

3. The name of the jurisdiction under the laws of which it was organized and the date of its formation:

Jurisdiction; _Delaware  Date of Formation;_06/22/2004

4. The (4} address of its initial registered office in this Commonwealth or {b) name of its commercial registered
office provider and the county of venue is:

{2) Number and strect

City Statc Zip County
(b} Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County
C T Corporation System Philadelphia
FADST . W10 C T Filing Mstmgyr Qaling

P.B2/84



JulL-Be-2884 14:35 CT CORP

DSCB:15-8981/8211/8582-2

5. Check and complete one of the jollowing:

that jurisdiction is:

___ The address of the office required-to be maintained by it in the jurisdiction of its organization by the laws of

Number and street City

of its principal office i

263 Tresser Blvd., 8th Flgor, Stamford, CT 06901

_X_ Ttis not required by the laws of its jurisdiction of organization to meintain an office therein and the address

State Zip

Number and street City

State Zip

N/A

6. For Resiricted Professional Limited Liability Company Only. Strike out if inopplicable: The company isa
restricted prafessional company organized to render the following professional service(s):

Limited Liability Partnership and Limited Partnership: Complete paragraphs 7-and 8

7. The name and busincss addreas of ¢ach general partner.
Name

Business Address

capital contribution is;

Number and strcet

B, The address of the office at which is kept & list of the names and addresses of the limited partners and their

City

Commonweatth is canceled or withdrawn.

The registered partnership hereby undertakes to keep those records until its registration to do business in the

State Zip County

PALST - 3711404 C T Piling Muveger Culine

P.@3724

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused

this Application for Registration to be signed by a duly
authorized officer/member or manager thereof this

2nd_day of W1y, 2004

Direct Eatrgy Services, LLC

Name of Partnership/Company

o £ BB~

Signafule
President of Direct Emergy Marketing,

as member Tisle

Imc.




P.22-84

JU-86~2094 14:35 CT CORP

PENNSYLVYANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
CORPORATION BURRAU
Application for Registration - Foreign 4@
(15%2C.8) 0 o

Entity Number ___Registered Limited Liability Gencral Partnership (§ 8211)
Registered Limited Liability Limitcd Partnership (§ 8211)

___ Limited Partership (§ 8582)
¥ Limited Liability Company (§ 8981)
Dotament will be returned to the

Mame
name and address you enter to
the left.

CT CURP CUUN [ER -

Filed in the Department of State on

Fee: $250

Secretary of the Commonwealth

In compliance with the requirements of the applicable provisions (relating to registration), the undersigned, daslnng m

. register 1o do business io this Commonwealth, hercby states that:

1. The name to be registered is:
Direct Brergy Setvices, LLC

2. (If the name set forth in paragraph 1 is not avallable for use in this Commonwealth, complets the fallowing)
The name under which the limited liability company/limited lizbility partnership/limited partnarghip proposes to
register and do business in this Commonweaith is:

3. The name of the jurisdiction under the lawg of which it was erganized and the date of [ts formation

Jurisdiction; _Delaware Date of Formation; 0612272004

4. The (8) address of ils initial registered office in this Commonwealth or (b) name of its commercial regisiered

office provider and the county of venue is:
{8) Number and street City State Zip County
{b) Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County
C T Corporation System Philadelphia
PADST - W14 C T Filing Muwmger Online




- JUL-B6-2884 14:35 CT CORP

DSCB:15-8981/8211/8582-2

5. Check and complets one of the following:

that jurisdiction is:

—_The addresa of the office required to be mainiained by it in the jurisdiction of its organization by the laws of

Number and street City

of its principal office is:

263 Tresser Blvd., 8th Floor, Stmford, CT 46501

X Itis vot required by the laws of its jurisdiction of organization to maintain an office therein and the address

State Zip

Number and street City

State Zip

6. For Restricted Professional Limited Liability Company Only. Strike aut if inapplicable: The company is
restricted profcssional company organized to render the following professional service(s):
N/A

Limited Linbility Partnership and Limited Partnership: Complete paragraphs 7 and 8

7. The name and business address of each general partner.
Name

Business Address

capital contribution is:

Number and strect

8, The address of the office at whick 15 kept a list of the names and addresses of the kimited partners and their

City

Commenwealth is canceled or withdrawn.

The registered partnership hereby undertakes to keep those records until its registration to do business in the

State Zip County

PADSY.ININAH C T Plling Macage Ouline

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, the undersigned has caused
this Application for Registration to be signed by a duly
authorized officer/member or manager thereof this

2nd dayof july . 2004

Direct Ensrgy Serviews, LLC

Name of Parinership/Company

£,

Signfiwe

President of Direct Energy Marketing,

as memper Title

P.83-84

Inc.



.
;

¢ JUL-B6-2884 14:35 CT CORP

Docketing Staternent DSCB:15-134A (Rev 2001)
Departmeants of State and Revenue

One {1} copy required

Check proper box:

Parmgylvania Entities

. business stock

— buginess non-stock

—__professional

____ nonprofit stock

____ nonprofit non-stock

—_ Statutory close

___ management

.. CoOperative

- insurance

—. lionited Rability compzny

o ceswicred professional
lirnited ligbility company

. business wrust

P.84./84

BUREAU USE ONLY:
Dept, of State Entity #

Dept. of Rev, Box #

FilingPerfod______ Date 3435

SICNAICS ___~ ReponCode __

Foreign Entiries
Stare/Country DE Date 067212004

. businass

. noaprofit ,

_X _limited liability company

., Festricted professional
limited liability company

. business oust

Other
damestication
division
— consolidation

1. Enkity Name:
Direet Encrgy Services, LLC

| 2. Individual name and mailing address respansible for njtial tax reports:
Sharon Rorwick, 25 Sheppard Ave. W., 15th Floor, Toronto, ON M2ZN 656

Name Number and stree? City Stalc Zip

3, Deserigtion afbusiness activity:

retail peovider of elestricly and natusal eas commodities and services

4, Specificd cifective date, fany:

5. EIN (Employee Identificution Number), if any:
_applied for

month/dayfyear hour, if my
6. Fisce) Year End:
1231

7. Fictitious Name (only If foreign corporation is wansacting business in PA under u fctitious name):

PAGCY » 14RT ©F Sing Muspat i

TOTAL Ao



. Delaware -

The First State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS5 A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "DIRECT ENERGY SERVICES,
LLC", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE TWENTY-SECOND DAY OF JUNE,

A.D. 2004, AT 12:37 O'CLOCK P .M.

TR rlar S ey LPRRAS

DATE: 06-22-04

3819310 8100

I 040459100




AT o g A ditao Wl LuRr

F.02/6L

State of Delaware
i Secre of State
ivisian Corporations
Delivered 12:45 PM 06/22/2004
FILED 12:37 PN 06/22/2004
CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION SRV 040459100 - 3819310 FILE

OF
DIRECT ENERGY SERVICES, L1LC

This Certificate of Formation, dated June 22, 2004, has been duly executed and is filed

to Section 18-201 of the Delaware Limitad Lisbility Company Act (the “Act™) to form a
limited liabity company (the “Company™) under the Act.

L. Name. The name of the Compeny is: “Direct Encrgy Services, LLC™.

2. Registered Office; Regisiared Agent. The eddress of the registered officorequired to
be mzintained by Section 18-104 of tho Act is:
Corporation Trust Center
1209 Orange Street

Wiimington, Delaware 19801

The name and the address of the registerod agenl for service of process required to be
maintained by Section 18-104 of the Act are;

The Corporation Trust Company
Corporation Trust Ceater

1209 Orange Street

Wilmington, Delaware 19801

EXECUTED us of the date written first above.

By

Neame: An . Ericksen
Autho Person

TOTAL P.@2

T T



Received 07/12/2004 09:33AM in 04:58 on line (8] for EA1665 * Pg 3/9
07/12/2004 10:35 FAR13033 963248 Direct Enerey 9 @1003/009

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

OF
DIRECT ENERGY SERVICES, LL.C

A Delaware Limited Liability Company

This LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT OF DIRECT ENERGY
SERVICES, LLC (this “4greement”), dated as of June 22, 2004, is adopted, executed and agreed
to by the Sole Member (as defined below).

1. Formation. Direct Energy Services, LLC (the “Company”™) has been formed as a
Delaware limited liability company under and pursuant to the Delaware Limited Liability
Company Act (the “Act™).

2. Term. The Company shall have 8 perpetual existence.

3. Purposes. The purpose of the Company is to carry on any lawful business, purpose or
activity for which limited liability companies may be formed under the Act.

4. Sole Member. The name and address of the sdle member (the “Sole Member”) is:

Direct Energy Marketing Inc.
263 Tresser Blvd.

. One Stamford Plaza, 8th Floor
Stamford, CT 065901

5. Contributions. Without creating any rights in favor of any third party, the Sole Member
may, from time to time, make contributions of cash or property to the capital of the
Company, but shall have no obligation to do so.

6. Distributions. The Sole Member shall be entitled (a) to receive all distributions
(including, without limitation, liquidating distributions) made by the Company and (b) to
enjoy all other rights, benefits and interests in the Company.

7. Management. The management of the Company is fully reserved to the Sole Member,
and the Company shall not have “managers”, as that term is used in the Act. The powers
of the Company shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and
affairs of the Company shall be managed under the direction of, the Sole Member, who
shall make all decisions and take all actions for the Company; provided, that the Sole
Member may from time to time delegate any powers and right to management that it
holds with respect to the Company to directors or officers of the Company, as such may
be appointed from time to time by the Sole Member. If the Sole Member appoints a
board of directors, any action required to be taken by the board of directors shall require
the unanimous written approval of the directors; provided, that such approval may be
provided in a written consent and the directors shall have no obligation to hold a mecting
to discuss such approval.

1695114.1 Direct Energy Services, LLC
. LMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT
-1-



Received 07/12/2004 09:33AM in 04:56 on_ line [8] for EA1665 * Pg 4/9
07/12/2004 10:36 FAE 19083485448 "birect Enerey s R1004/009

8. Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve and its affairs shall be wound up at such time,

if any, as the Member may elect. No other event (including, without limitation, an event
described in Section 18-801(4) of the Act) will cause the Company to dissolve.

9. Liability of Member. The Sole Member shall not have any liability for the obligations or
liabilities of the Company except to the extent provided in the Act.

10. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND SHALL BE
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE (EXCLUDING ITS CONFLICT-OF-LAWS RULES).

(Signatures Begin on Next Page]

1695214, 1 Direct Energy Services, LLC
. LMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT
2-



Received 07/12/2004 09:33AN in 04: li 8] for EA1&6S5 * Pg 5/9
07/12/2004 1037 FAR - 15033363948 58 on, Line [8) for g 5/

7
283 Direct Energy A 005/009

- IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undetsigned, being the sole member of the Company, has

caused this Limited Liability Company Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above
stated.

DIRECT ENERGY MARKETING INC.

1695214.1 Direct Energy Services, LLC
. LIDMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT

-3-



QUESTION 15

Neither the Applicant nor any affiliate, predecessor, or person identified in this
Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity.

Georgia

In July 2000, Energy America, LLC (“Energy America™), an affiliate of Direct Energy,
was a respondent in a proceeding before the Georgia Public Service Commission, docket
number 12126-U. The proceeding resolved claims that Energy America had enrolled
door-to-door customers without the appropriate authorizations. Energy America did not
admit to any acts which violated any Georgia laws or regulations. However, Energy
America did agree to a stipulation implementing certain measures including establishing
an energy fund to assist low income and elderly customers and paying costs and expenses
to the Georgia PSC.

In July 2003, Energy America was a respondent in a proceeding before the Georgia
Public Services Commission, docket number 16602-U. The proceeding resolved claims
that Energy America had enrolled customers without the appropriate authorizations.
Pursuant to a stipulation, Energy America agreed to credit the accounts of complaining
customers and to contribute to Georgia’s Low-Income Heating Assistance Program.

On January 6, 2004, the Georgia Public Service Commission approved a Stipulation
between Energy America and the Staff of the Georgia Public Service Commission to
resolve a matter arising out of the Energy America’s inadvertent failure to timely pay its
provider of mailbox services (docket number 9557-U). Consistent with applicable rules,
Energy America had maintained a mailbox as, among other things, the primary mailing
address for certain payments, including Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(“LIHEAP™) payments, and other correspondence from Energy America’s customers in
the State. As a result of Energy America’s inadvertent failure to pay the vendor,
payments sent to Energy America at the mailbox address were not forwarded to Energy
America, resulting in the disconnection of service to several customers. In resolution of
these issues, Energy America agreed to reinstate the accounts of all affected customers
and made a voluntary contribution to the LIHEAP fund.

Texas

On December 22, 2003, Republic Power (d/b/a Energy America) — an affiliate of Direct
Energy — entered into a Stipulation and Settlement Agreement with the Public Utility
Commission of Texas (“PUCT™) to resolve certain technical violations of the Texas
Commission’s rules relating to the selection or changes of retail electric providers
(“REP”). A Notice of Violation (“NOV”} issued by the PUCT had alleged that (i) a pre-
checked box on the Company’s internet customer enrollment form failed to properly
“provide a statement with a box that must be checked by the customer to indicate that the
customer has read and agrees to select the REP to provide electric service and the time
and date of the customer’s enroliment”; (ii) the Company’s “Terms of Service” document
did not contain a required “Electricity Facts Label”; and that (iii) the enroliment package



e-mailed by the Company to new customers enrolled via the internet failed to include a
document entitled “Your Rights As A Customer.” Republic acknowledged its technical
violation of the checkbox requirement and, in fact, had corrected the technical violation
prior to the issuance of the NOV. No customer complaints were received by the PUCT
regarding the violation.

The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement also addressed certain complaints that arose
out of Republic’s telemarketing efforts, as conducted by several third-party telemarketing
firms. It was learned that in violation of Republic’s instructions, the telemarketing firms
had switched certain customers without obtaining proper approval or witheut making
certain required disclosures required by PUCT rules. Republic addressed this situation
by suspending its telemarketing activities, terminating its relationship with these vendors,
and implementing a number of controls and compliance measures before resuming
limited telemarketing activities earlier this year. Pursuant to the Stipulation and
Settlement Agreement, in consideration of an administrative penalty of $750,000, all
matters that were the subject of the NOV and customer switching-related complaints that
occurred on or before August 31, 2003 were deemed to be fully resolved. As part of the
settlement the PUCT staff and Republic acknowledged that customer confusion about the
restructured retail electric market may have been a contributing factor to the lodging of
some customer complaints. The parties pledged to work together cooperatively to
identify and expeditiously resolve any further problems.

These violations were technical and inadvertent in nature or the result of the actions of
third parties. Applicant’s affiliates resolved these issues in a responsible and reasonable
manner and are working cooperatively with regulators to prevent their re-occurrence.



QUESTION 16

. a. The following individual is responsible for handling customer complaints:

Megan Lyons

Senior Manager, Service Delivery
263 Tresser Blvd,, 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901

(T)203) 328-3548

(F)(203) 328-3545

An alternate contact is:

Enver Acevedo

Manager, Regulatory Affairs & Compliance
263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor

Stamford, CT 06901

(T)(203) 328-3568

(F)(203) 328-3545

b. Please see item ¢ below.

c. Please see standard residential terms and conditions attached.



Direct Energy Services, LLC
Natural Gas Price Protection Program
And Appointment Of Agent

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE
(Written Disclosure Statement)

Section1. AGREEMENT AND APPOINTMENT OF AGENT. This is an agreement for Direct Energy Services, LLC to.
be your exclusive agent and supplier for natural gas supply service. We at Direct Energy Services, LLC are licensed by the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission {PUC) to-provide natural gas supply service. Our PUC license numberis A-125041.

Section2. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. You will buy your natural gas supply service from us for your service address
beginning on a date set by your natural gas distribution company (*NGDC"), Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, and will
continue for 24 monthly billing cycles. Your NGDC will continue to deliver your natural gas, and provide billing and other
services.

Section3. COMMODITY CHARGE, BILLING AND PAYMENT. We set the commodity prices and charges that you pay
to us for natural gas supply service. Commodity charges are the charges for the basic natural gas supply service which'is
sold by volume (cef). The PUC regulates distribution prices and services. You will pay us a fixed price of $:819/ccf for the
commodity of natural gas. This price inciudes our estimated total stafe taxes. This price excludes Pennsylvania state and
local sales tax, if applicable. If you believe that your non-residential service is exempt from Pennsylvania sales tax, you will
provide us-with a valid, properly executed sales tax exemption certificate which will be effective anly after processed by your
NGDC. Your NGOG, Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, will bill you for our charges and you will continue to pay your bill in
accordance with your NGDC's billing and payment terms.

Section4.  RIGHT OF RESCISSION. You may cancel this agreement without fees or penalties of any kind within three
{3) business days after receiving this notice. To cancel this agreement, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this notice
to us at Direct Energy Services, LLC, P.O. Box 642156, Omaha, NE 68164, and include your name, address, phone
number and account number, or fax this same information to us at 1-800-457-9686. You may also cancel this agreement by
calling 1-886-459-3809.

Section 5. CANCELLATION. If you don’t pay our charges when due, we may cancel this agreement by providing ten
(10) days written notice to you, We may also cancel this agreement by providing the notice required by the PUC and your
NGDC for discontinuance of service by suppliers of natural gas supply service. This agreement is also cancelled if your
NGDC returns you to NGDC supply and distribution service. Cancellation does not relieve you of your payment obligations
to us for service provided up to the date of the cancellation.

Section 6. EARLY CANCELLATION FEE. Because our actual damages would be difficult to calculate,
you will pay us an early cancellation fee of $50.00 as a reasonable estimate of our damages if you cancel
this agreement after it becomes effective and before the 24 month expiration date. This early
cancellation fee is not punitive. Payment of your early cancellation fee will not relieve you of your
payment obligations to us for service provided up to the date of cancellation.

Section7. RENEWAL. This agreement will automatically renew under the same terms and conditions on a month-to-
month basis. While taking service on a month-to-month basis, either you or we may cancel this agreement without fees or
penalties.

Section 8, CHANGE IN TERMS AND CONDITIONS/EXPIRATION OF AGREEMENT. If at anytime we propose to
change our terms and conditions of service, we will send you advance written notices at about 90 days and 60 days before
the effective date of the change. As this fixed term agreement approaches the expiration date, we will send you advance
written notices at about 90 days and 60 days before the expiration date. Since your NGDC is billing our charges, we will
provide these notices in separate mailings corresponding to your NGDC's billings. We will explain your opticns to you in
these two advance notices.



Section9.  ASSIGNMENT. You may nct assign this agreement without our prior written consent. We may assign this
agreement to a third party or to an affiliate, without your consent, by sending you advance written notice at least 60 days
before the effective date of the assignment.

Section 10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. WE MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES
OTHER THAN THOSE EXPRESSLY MADE IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND WE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPQOSE.

Section 11. FORCE MAJEURE. We will make commercially reasonable efforts to supply natural gas, but that does not
guarantee a continuous supply of natural gas. Certain causes and events out of our control ("Force Majeure Events') may
result in interruptions in your service. We will not be liable for any service interruptions caused by a Force Majeure Event.
Because we do not transport or distribute natural gas, we will not be liable for damages caused by a Force Majeure Event,
including any events or circumstances (a) that are beyond the our reasonable control, (b} that we are unable to prevent,
avoid or overcome through the exercise of diligent efforts, and (¢} that are not the result of our failure or negligence,
including but not limited to fire, explosion, flood, landslide, earthquake, hurricane, tormado, lightning, named tropical storm,
acts of God, epidemic, civil unrest, insurrection, war blockade, riot, sabotage, embargo, military or government usurped
power, emergency conditions, acts of terrorism or problems attributed fo acts of terrorism, required maintenance work,
inability to access the local distribution utility system, non-performance by your NGDC (including but not limited to a facility
outage on your NGDC's gas distribution lines), or changes in laws, rules or regulations of any governmental authority
{including but not limited to the PUC).

Section 12, LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. LIABILITIES NOT EXCUSED BY REASON OF FORCE MAJEURE OR
OTHERWISE WILL BE LIMITED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED [N THIS SECTION. NEITHER YOU NOR WE WILL BE
LIABLE TO THE EACH OTHER FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR INDIRECT
DAMAGES. OUR LIABILITY WILL BE LIMITED TO A MAXIMUM OF THE TOTAL INCOME EARNED BY US FOR THE
PAST 12 MONTHS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AFTER DEDUCTING ALL COSTS OF SERVICES INCURRED BY US IN
PROVIDING SERVICE TO YOU UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THESE LIMITATIONS APPLY WITHOUT REGARD TG THE
CAUSE OF ANY LIABILITY OR DAMAGE. YOU WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO ANY REMEDIES OTHER THAN THOSE
PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION,

Section 13. GOVERNING LAW. This agreement is governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Section 14, DISPUTE RESOLUTION. We will attempt to resolve any questions you may have about this written
disclosure statement or our charges . If we do not resolve your questions to your satisfaction after you have contacted us as
provided.in Section 16 below, you may contact the PUC as provided in Section 18 below.

Section 15. TO CONTACT US.

If you have a question or disagreement concerning this written disclosure statement or our charges, you may call our
Customer Service Contact Center at; 1-888-734-0741 Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m. EST and Saturday 8:00
a.m. - 5:00 p.m. EST (contact center hours are subject to change without prior nofice). You may also contact us through our
website at: www.directenergy.com. You may also write to us at: P.O. Box 642156, Omaha, NE 68164.

Section 16. TO CONTACT YOUR NGDC AND SUPPLIER OF LAST RESORT.

Your NGDC and Supplier of Last Resort is Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania (CPA), 650 Washington Road, Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania 15228, CPA's toll free numbers are: 1-888-460-4332 or 1-800-231-3238 TTY/TDD, Universal Service
Program; 1-800-537-7431.

Section 17. TO CONTACT THE PUC.
To contact the PUC's Utility Choice Holline number, call 1-888-782-3228.

To write to the PUC; Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265.

Section 18. Emergency. In the event of an emergency, such as a gas leak or loss of gas service, please call your NGDC
at 1-888-460-4332.



Section 19. Limited Time Offer. This offer is valid through September 17, 2004 or while supplies last.

Average Customer's Monthly Natural Gas Usage:

15 cef

80 cof

120 cef

Direct Energy Price (cents/ccf)

$0.819

$0.818

$0.819

For internal.use only:
CPAD0263_R_0.819_24_50_v02



From: Mick, David [dmick@state.pa.us]
t:  Thursday, August 19, 2004 1:27 PM
‘ Moody, Kevin J.
Subject: RE: final, clean version - Energy America Disclosure Statement

Kevin,

.have completed my review of the written disclosure statement for Energy America, LLC (NGS) and | approve Sections 1-
8 and 14-19. Sections 9-13 fall outside the scope of the Customer Information Regulations. In addition, Sections 10-12 do
not comply with the Commission's Plain Language Policy Statement. Finally, please note that the price comparison table
that follows Section 19 is still not properly formatted (as it appears once it is printed). Thank you for your cooperation in this
matter.

David Mick
PA-Public LHility Commission, Bureau of Consumer Services
717-783-3232

————— Original Message-----

From: Moody, Kevin J. [maiito:kmoody@WOLFBLOCK.com]

Sent: Thursday, August 19, 2004 1:22 PM

To: Mick, David

Subject: final, clean version - Energy America Disclosure Statement

Dave, per our discussion, attached is the final statement. Again, many thanks for all your help and time on this. Kevin

Kevin J. Moody, Esquire

Wolf,.Block, Schorr and Solis-Cohen, LLP
212 Locust Street, Suite 300

Harrisburg, PA 17101

(717) 237-7187

(717)237-2767 {Fax)

Email: kmoody@wolfblock com

10/12/2004



QUESTION 17

A. Aftached please find copies of the following: Direct Energy’s organizational chart;
letters describing the financial relationship between Direct Energy and its parent; annual
reports and accounts for Direct Energy parent Centrica plc for 2002 and 2003; and a
report on Centrica’s credit rating.

The credit ratings for Centrica plc are as follows:

Moody’s
Long-Term-A2
Short-Term-P1

Standard & Poor’s
Long-Term-A
Short-Term-A1l

B. The chief officers of Direct Energy are as follows:

Dervk King, Chairman
Deryk King has been President and CEO of Centrica North America since January 2001.
He is also a member of Centrica’s Executive Committee.

Mr. King spent his early career in sales and marketing, first with Air Products and
subsequently with ICI. In a 23 year career with ICI, he held a number of international
marketing posts including two and a half years stationed in Tokyo. Mr, King then moved
into general management, first as general manager of ICI’s European fertilizer business
and then as managing director of ICI's global polyester business.

He left ICI in 1996 to become chief operating officer of Powergen plc. During his time
with. Powergen, the company expanded its operations into India, Indonesia, Thailand,
Hungary, Portugal, and Australia and achieved five successive half-year periods of record
earnings.

After leaving Powergen in late 1998, Deryk joined Centric plc as senior advisor and
projects director for a number of European initiatives the company was undertaking. He
joined the company on a permanent basis in August 2000 and moved into his present post
at the end of that year.

Mr. King is a graduate of Oxford University and has also completed the INSEAD
Advanced Management Programme and the Cabinet Office Top Management
Programme. He is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Lois Hedg-peth, Director, President & CEO
Lois Hedg-peth has more than 20 years of experience, working in various positions at
AT&T Corp., prior to joining Direct Energy. She most recently served as President,




Fixed Wireless Operations, where she implemented deployment of a consumer and small
business network that increased from 100 to 300,000 customers within 15 months, as
well as processes and support systems to service the network customers.

During her tenure at AT&T, Ms. Hedg-peth supervised operations, regulatory affairs and
consumer marketing initiatives for various business units.

Bill Cronin, Director. Senior Vice President

Bill Cronin has more than 17 years of experience, most recently at New Power, Inc. as
Managing Director, Risk Strategy and Trading, where he managed a portfolio of 800,000
retail natural gas and electricity customers in 16 utility regions. Prior to that, Bill was at
Phibro, Inc. for 14 years, starting as Senior Credit Analyst and rising to Chief Financial
Officer and Head of Business Development.

Mr. Cronin has a B.A. degree in economics and communications from the Oneonta State
University in Oneonta, N.Y.

Our custodian for accounting records is:

Demi Tsioros

Vice President, Finance
263 Tresser Blvd., 8" Floor
Stamford, CT 06901
(T)(203) 328-3564
(F)(203) 328-3545
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Direct Energy.

July 14, 2004

To:  Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission

Dear Sirs/Mesdames:

I am writing in connection with Direct Energy Services, LLC’s (“DES, LLC’s”
proposed licensure in Pennsylvania. More particularly, I am writing to certify, in my
capacity as Legal Counsel to DES, LLC, and without personal liability, that (a) DES,
LLC is a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of Direct Energy Marketing Inc., which in turn
is a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of Centrica US Holdings Inc. (“CUSHI”), and (b)
CUSHI is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Centrica plc. For information relating
to Centrica plc’s business please visit www.centrica.com.

Very Best Regards,

Brandon Parent
Legal Counsel

. 25 Sheppard Avenue West, Suite 1500, Toronto, ON, M2N 656

A Centrica business
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12:22pm  From=-TREASURE SVC +7043831548 T-023 P.08/09  F-500

401 South Tiyen Straet
Three Wachovia Center, 10th Floor
Chariolle, NC 28288.5710

WACHOVIA

July 14, 2004

Penfisylvania Public Utility Commission

Dear Sir or Madurmn:

This letrer 1s to inform you that our customer, Centrica US Holdings Inc. (CUSH]) has
been a valued customer of Wachovia Bank, N.A. sincec March 2003 and, as of this
writing, has conducted its accounts and operations with us in a satisfactory manner.
Centrica US Holdings Jnc. has an excellent relationship with Wachovia, maintains
significant balances within the bank and always settles its liabilities promptly.

Please fee] free 1o contact me if you need additional information. I cart be rcached at

(704) 715-3919 or mike.wicse@wachovyia.com.

Sincerely,

Mok e JQ.L{.E-a--c'—

Mike Wiese
Vice President
Wachovia Treasury Services
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Vision, Strategy, Values

Our vision is to be a leading supplier of essential services
in our chosen markets in order to provide maximum value
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to our shareholders.

Our distinctive strategy  Our values are the core of

is to create value for our corporate philosophy:

shareholders through:

Deepening our relationships Passion for customers Challenge

with customers This value is central to the way We are constantly striving for
Gaining and retaining valuable we work. We have an ethos of continual improvement; we are
customers by understanding delivering outstanding customer  never satisfied. We engage
their needs and offering them service, We must be able to constructively with advocates
tailored products and services anticipate our customers'needs  and critics from within and
through our strong brands. and comect any errors promptly.  outside the company. We do

Managing risk in the

We must give value for money
and deliver efficient and effective

this to maintain our competitive
edge and deliver consistentiy

energy markets products and services. outstanding shareholder returns.

Identifying and implementing

the right blend of owning Pride Support

production assets, negotiating Pride comes from the We support employees seeking

long term contracts and daity satistaction of our customers to meet and own chalienges.

buying activities. and from delivering high quality We foster teamworking and
products and services. We're knowledge sharing, and

Sharing knowledge proud of our staff and their give our employees the

and best practice achievements, and we tools and training they

Making Centrica greater than recognise and reward success. need to do their job well.

the sum of its parts both

by implementing common Trust

processes and by sharing Trust is at the heart of our

knowledge, best practice and relationships with customers.

learning across the company. Trust means doing what we
say and acting with integrity.
We demonstrate trust by
respecting and empowering

Throughout this report references
to British Gas include Scottish Gas.

Eamings and operaling profit numiers are 13184, th-oughout the commentary, belore goodwill amortisation and i

our employees. Building trust
will help us develop strong
future relationships with

our stakeholders.

14l chames whena

The directors balieve this maasure assists with uncerstanding the underlying perfarmanca at the group. The squivalent amaunts after goodwill amartisation
and exceptional charges are reflectad in note 2 and are recorkiled at group level in the group profit and loss account on page 38, with descriptions af the

excaptionaii

in note 4, Adjusted samings and adjusted basic eamings per shar are reconciled to their statutory aquivalents in nota 9,

AN curment Fnancial results listed ane for the year snded 31 Decamber 2003. All references to ‘the prior year!, ‘2002 and ‘Jast year' man the year snded

31 Decembaer 2002,



Chairman’s statement

Our continued focus on understanding and providing
what our customers want has helped us to achieve

growth in both revenues and earnings.

Earnings per share (pence)

03 118 16.8
02 114 152
01 81 121

00 8.4 102

99 43 79

After goodwill amorlisation and exceptional

charges. including Jom ventures and assecatas,

Betore goodwill amorlisation and exceplional

charpes. inciding Join ventums and assocaes,

Dividend {pence}

03 5.4

02 4.0

01 31

00| 2.8

99 2.5

Centrica has made steady
progress during 2003 against a
backdrop of uncertain economic
conditions, rising energy prices
and challenging reguiatory
issues in some of our markets,
Our continued focus on
understanding and providing
what our customers want, and
our skill in managing the risks of
souwrcing the enengy to meet their
needs, have helped us to achieve
growth to record levels in both
revenues and earnings.

The development of competitive
markets is important for our
strategy. In 2003 we sawa
continuing commitment to a
fully transparent energy market
in Britain, with new legislation to
introduce a competitive electricity
trading system in Scotiand. In
Europe, the new energy directives
are now in place, and we look
forward to the establishment of
a properly competitive market.
The regulatory environmentin
North America remains varied,
but overall we have continued

to prosper in our chosen
markets. There has been

further progress in improving

the competitive nature of the

UK telecommunications market,
but there is some way to go
before alevel playing field is
firmly established.

In 2003 there were sharp rises

in UK wholesale prices in both
gas and electricity despite lower
than average consumption due
o warmer weather. The long
ferm outlook for gas supply in
the UKis improving, with an
increasing diversity of supply
and further links between the

UK and mainiand Europe. It
seems inevitable, however,
that the increasing costs of
complying with the UK and EL
regulations designed to deliver
a low carbon economy will
create upward pressure on
consumer electricity prices.

Dividend

The beard of directors is
proposing a final dividend of
3.7 pence per share to be paid
in June 2004. This means that,
when comnbined with the interim
dividend of 1.7 pence per share
paidin November 2003, the
total dividend for 2003 will be
5.4 pence per share. This total
per share increase of 35%
reflects our continuing
confidence in the outlook for
both cash flow and earnings

in the medium term.

The commitment and
dedication of our
employees have
ensured that 2003 has
been a very successful
year for the group.

The board of directors

Sir Brian Shaw retired in May
2003 and we are most grateful
for the part he playedinthe
development of Centrica.

it is fitting that he continues to
chair the AA Motoring Trust, an
independent charity supported
by Centrica. Mike Alexander,
who made a considerable
contribution to the success

of Centrica, retired from the
company in February 2003. In
December, rmy own retirement
was announced and my

successor, Roger Carr, subject
to re-slection to the board, will
be taking over as chairman at
the end of the annual general
meeting (AGM) in May.

The future

Centrica has made enormous
progress over the past seven
years, rising from the bottom
half of the FTSE 100 Index

to position itselfin the top 30
companies in the UK; growing
from our British Gas base
through the acquisition of

the AA, the movemnent into
telecommunications and
intermational expansion.

larm delighted that we have
established a solid platform
from which continued delivery
of our strategy will produce
strong medium term growth.

The commitment and dedication
of our employees have ensured
that 2003 has been another very
successful year forthe group
and | would iike to thank them

all for their hard work. am
confident that, with the
excellent management team

led by Sir Roy Gardner, along
with the experience brought

by Roger Carr asthe new
chairmar, and the collective
efforts of all our empioyees,

the company will continue

to go from strength to strength.

Tl

Sir Michael Perry ase
Chairman

Centrica plc report 2003 01



Centricaataglance

British Gas Centrica Business Centrica Energy Centrica Storage
Services Management Group

Under the British Gas name Centrica Business Services aims  We source the gas and electricity  Centrica Storage operates the

in England, the Nwy Prydain to be recognised as the most we need to supply our Rough gas storage facilities —

and British Gas names inWales,  innovative and flexible provider customarsin Britain through a apartially depleted gas fietd

and Scottish Gas in Scotland, of energy and other essentia! team of specialists working in in the Southern North Sea.

we supply gas, electricity and services for businesses. Centrica Energy Management The business provides storage

telecoms services to residential Group {CEMG). The business services for a wide range of

customers throughout Britain. The business markets gas, consists of ourupstream gas customers, including other

Aswellasenergy andtelecormns,  electricity and telecoms production, electricity businesses within the

we offer customers an increasing
choice of complementary
home services.

We continue to be the first
choice gas supplier for millions
of people. Since the market
opened to competitionin 1998
we've become the largest
supplier of electricity to
residential customers in Britain.

Apart from supplying energy

we are also the largest domestic
central heating and gas appliance
instailation company with
maintenance and breakdown
services provided under our
HomeCare range. We also
provide HomeCare for plumbing
and drains, home electrics and
kitchen appliances and area
national instalier of domestic,
monitored home security systems.
British Gas Communications
offers an integrated package of
fixed line, mobile and internet
services to customers across
Britain,

www,house.co.uk

A
British Gas g

02 Centrica plc report 2003

services under the British Gas
brand across Britain, It is now
the number one supplier of
energy to the commercial sector.

The creation of Centrica
Business Services enabled

the business to focus on the
specific needs of its customers,
trom large industrial and
commercial companies, to small
and medium size businesses.

www.britishgasbusiness.co.uk

centrica

business services

generation, wholesale and
industrial gas sales activities and
our enengy optimisation unit.

Through its provision of
appropriate access to
competitively priced gas and
power supplies, CEMG is key
to the success of our retail
energy businesses.

We now produce approximately
25% of peak demand for our
electricity customers through
our interests in six gas-fired
power stations. In addition, we
ara cornmitted toinvesting in
renewable generation, and
already have interests in
developments in the Irish Sea
and North Sea.

www.centrica.com

centrica
ehergy

Centrica group.

www.centrica-sl.co.uk

Taking care of the essentials




The AA OneTel Europe Centrica
North America
We provide reassurance and With a fresh and innovative Our energy supply joint venture,  In Ontario, Direct Energy

services to motorists in the UK
and Ireland through the AA.

The roadside assistance service
remains at the core of our
activities, with members
choosing the level of cover

that best suits their needs.

The AAis the UK's number
one independent insurance
intermediary and we are a
growing provider of personal
loans and financial services.

AA Service Centres offer a
range of mainienance and
repair services to motorists
across Britain, and AA Tyre Fit
is the UK's first all-mobile fleet
and retail tyre network. We are
the only national driving school
excliusively using fully qualified
driving instructors.

www.theaa.com
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approach, we provide arange
of landline, mobile and internet
services across the UK,

One.Tel landline customers are
offered a range of call plans,
including unlimited usage.
Customers also benefit from free
directory enquiries calls to
One.Tel's 118 111 service.
Mobite phone customers havea
choice of the latest handsets
and flexible tariffs.

Internet users are offered a
choice of packages, whether for
casual home use or business
needs. The service includes
breadband options for people
who require high speed access
and ‘always on’ connection.

www.onetel.co.uk

Luminus, has provided a launch
pad for developing our activities
in Europe. Competitioninthe
Flanders region of Belgium,
which had been open at
industrial and commercial

level was extended in July
2003, to residential gas and
electricity customers.

Following the opening of the
Spanish energy market at the
start of 2003, Luseo Energia
is focused on providing
electricity forsmall and
medium sized businesses.

www.luminus.be
www.luseoenergia.com

Essential Home Services offers
gas and electricity and arange
of home services.

In Texas we supply electricity
under the Direct Energy,

WTU Retail Energy and CPL
Retail Energy brands to homes
and businesses.

We supply gas underthe Energy
America brand in Michigan, Ohio
and Pennsyivania.

Direct Energy Business Services
provides comprehensive energy
solutions to businesses

throughout Canada and in Texas.

www.directenergy.com

www.energyamerica.com
www.cpiretailenergy.com
www.wturetailenergy.com

gg Direct Enerqgy:

4%
f - ‘energy america

.

E[,@L

Retail Energy

JWHIYU|

Every day we touch the lives of millions of people. Through our leading brands,
Centrica provides warmth, comfort and peace of mind.

Centrica pl¢ report 2003 03




Chief executive’s review

We believe that the fundamental drivers of profitability
within our brand units will continue to improve as we
broaden and deepen the relationships we have

with our customers.

Overall the group delivered a
strong performance in 2003 with
adjusted basic earnings per
share up 11% on 2002, This was
delivered despite the impact of
the second consecutive year of
warm weather which, unusually,
In 2003 also brought with it higher
commadity costs; both of these
depressed reported margins

in our gas supply businesses.
However, the underlying
strength of the Centrica

medel with its unique balance
of upstream and downstream
positions, together with the
positive Impact of acquisitions,
has enabled us again to deliver
record profits despite these
adverse external factors.

Turnover and profitability
Group tumover (exciuding
Accord trading revenue) was
£11.7 billion in 2003, up 17%
from 2002, Increases were
achieved in all of the main
customer facing businesses as
weltas in the industrial and
wholesaling division of the
Centrica Energy Management
Group (CEMG). The highest

growth came from North
America (up 112%; due mainly
Operating profit (Em}
03 897 1058
02 809 932
01 511 678
o) 452 526
99 35 424 L

Alter gootwill amortisation and
exceptional charges, ncuding joint
ventures and associates.

Belore goodwi amortisation and
excepuonal charges, including joint
ventures and associales,

to the full yearimpact of the 2002
acquisitions in Texas. Despite
the unseasonably warm
weather, tumover in British Gas
increased with positive year-on-
year contributions from enengy,
home services and telecoms.

Group operating profit* of
£1,058 million wasup 14%
from £932 million in 2002,

The lower profits in British

Gas residential and Centrica
Business Services, duetothe
impact of weather and higher
commodity and transportation
costs, were more than offset
by significant improvements

in other units, particularly North
America, the AA and CEMG,
and the full year contribution
from Centrica Storage.

Cash flow, capital expenditure
and acquisitions

Group operating cash flow {from
continuing cperations, including
dividends from joint ventures and
associates, before exceptional
payments) was £1,321 million for
2003 cornpared with £795 million
for 2002. An increase of

£141 million to £1,463 million

in operating profit” before
depreciation was supplemented
by a decrease in petroleun
revenue tax (PRT) payments of
£109 million and the acceleration
in 2002 of transportation
payments of £168 million.

In2003therewas a
considerabie reduction

in acquisition expenditure
compared to the prior year.
Receipts from disposals net of
acquisitions were £232 million
versus net expenditure in 2002

“Including join? ventures and assaciates, before goodwill amortisation.
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of £935 million. This was
primarily due to the net receipt
on the disposal of Goldfish
Bank, partially offset by both our
purchases of the Roosecote and
Barry power stations, and
deferred consideration on the
2002 acquisition of customers in
Texas. Operating cash outflow
on discontinued activities of
£301 million mainly reflected the
repayment of Goldfish Bank
deposit accounts.

Lower spend in respect of the
business transformation
programme within British Gas
was the main contributor to the
reduction in net capital
expenditure and financial
investrnent, down £120 million at
£282 million (2002: £402 million}.

The group’s net cash inflow
(before management of liquid
resources and financing) was
£652 million, against a net
outflow of £818 million in 2002,

Oudlook

We believe that the fundamental
drivers of profitability within our
customer facing brand units will
continue to improve as we
broaden and deepen the
relationships we have with our
customers through innovative
product offerings and improved
service and targeting. This will
be underpinned by further
investment in our gas and power
asset base,

British Gas is now part way
through its transformation with
the heavy financial investment in
hardware and software having
taken place. We believe this root

arkd branch reform of systerns arxd
processes will genuinely transform
the customer experience which
is at the heart of the profitability
of the business. We are now
allocating £40 miliion to the
programme for costs which were
previously in other British Gas
budgets; for example property
costs, post-commissioning
running costs and the cost of
staff back-filling. Together with
some additional home services
functionality now specified

(€10 million) we expect the
programme to cost around

£400 million. We have decided
to extend both the pilot and
deployment phase for the cross-
selling technology and are now
around nine months behind the
original timeline; this decision
was taken to ensure the integrity
of the systern and to preserve our
customer service levels as we
roll-out to the wider user base.
The delay inimplementation is
not expected to materiallyimpact
either costs or benefits from the
programme. The next two years
will be challenging as we put the
remaining elements of the systems
infrastructure in place and the
investment continues in the
wider transformation programme.
The first material net financial
benefits are slill expectedin 2005
and we retain our 2005 margin
target for British Gas at 8%.

With chum rates within the
British retail energy industry
stabilising, we expect recent
levels of customer losses in gas
and gains in electricity to be
maintained throughout 2004.
Asyet itis too early to assess

the precise effect of the price rise



Operating profit by business® (Em)

2003 2002
Bitish Gas residertial 206 244
Centrica Business Sarvices 51 65
Cantrica Energy Management Group 561 519
Cantrica Storage 40 1
The AA 83 73
OneJel 4 2
Contrica North America 130 63
Other operations - 3
Goldfish Bank 20 {40
Group 1,058 532
*Including |oint ventures and associations, bek cwill tisation.

in January 2004 aimed at restoring
gross margins to 2002 levels. A
key aim for us will be to build on
oursuccess in 2003 inretaining
in gas, and gaining in electricity,
a greater proportion of higher
value custorners. To assist the
expansion of the British Gas
brand, early in 2004 we will trial
awholesale line rental (WLR)
telecoms solution in the UK
which would allow us to provide
a single bill to customers for
both line rental and call charges.
This will enhance the customer
experience and give us the
platform we require to
accelerate the growth of

British Gas Communications
and so further contribute to
strengthening the relationship
we have with our customers.

With Centrica Business Services
we will seek to consolidate our
position as the leading supplier
of energy productsto the
commercial sectorin Britain,
Having integrated the
businesses acquired over the
last two years, we are now
concentrating on investing

to transform the customer
experience, on enhancing

our ability to react to market
changes and on cross-selling.

We intend to add to our gas and
power asset portfolio in 2004.
We continue to target further
investment of around

£100 million per year in gas
reserves to support our UK
customer dermand and we also
intend to increase our equity
hedge in electricityin the UK
with an investment of around
£250 million over the next three

years. 2004 may also bring

the first material spend on our
renewable generation assets
as, with successful surveys, we
begin construction of the S0MW
offshore wind farm at Barrow.
We are also actively seeking
further assets in North America,
panticularly inTexas, where

we aim to acquire electricity
generation plant to support

our retail business.

We have taken measures over
recent years to increase the
deliverability from our gas fields.
While on average, overthe
medium tenm, gas production
from Morecambe will decline by
around 10% per year, we expect
production levelsin 2004 to be
similar to 2003.

We have an ongoing programime
of maintenance work on our
Rough storage asset which

will further improve the
operational performance

of the asset and reduce the

risk of material outages. With
this, and the market-driven
movement in the summer/
winter gas price differential, we
expect Rough's profitability to
exceed ourinitial expectations
and to show a marked year-on-
yearimprovement.

The AA will continue to seek
revenue growth through value-
adding product developments
underpinned by further
improvements in operational
efficiency. We expect to see
real benefits from the roll-out of
new technology to the roadside
patrols with improved service
to our customers and reduced

cost-to-serve. An integrated
single customer services
organisation will help to further
deepen the customer relationship
and enhance the cross-selling
opportunities within the AA,

In order to maintain its competitive
position in the UK telecoms
market, One.Tel is establishing
acall centre in India. We expect
this to lower the cost base
significantly while maintaining
the current levels of customer
service. A successful trial in 2004
of a WLR solution will further
enhance the customer experience.

In North America we have
achieved a scale which allows
us to move steadily forward.
We will add organically to our
top-line with a concentration

on value. Alongside this we will
use our new business services
organisation to support our
current retail positions and
enter new markets, targeting
medium sized enterprises

with a full range of energy and
related services. We continue to
pursue acquisition opportunities
but, in the current regulatory
environment and given our
concentration on value, these
are likely to be complex and
difficult to execute.

The competitive environment
is likely to continue to develop
at different speeds across
Europein the short term.
However there is a clear
timetine for dereguiation and
we are well positioned to enter
the available markets at the
right time and when the right

opportunity appears,

Our progress in 2003 has only
been possible because of the
efforts of our employees. We
recognise that the further growth
of Centrica depends on having
people with appropriate skills
who are committed to the success
of the company. | am pleased
that in 2003 we achieved a very
high response rate to our
employee survey which allows
us to identify the issues and
areas forimprovement as we
progress our people strategy.

In summary, our strategy has
always been and remains to
maximise long term value by
deepening our relationships with
customers assisted by sharing
knowledge and best practice
across the company. At the same
time we must achieve a cost of
goods advantage through optimal
upstream procurement. This
strategy and our clear focus on
value delivery, including value-
adding acquisitions when
identified, will enable us to grow
both top-line revenue and,
through improving operational
performance, botlorm line eamings
in the medium term, We remain
committed to afinancial structure,
including appropriate debt
levels, which best rewards our
shareholders. We expect this to
include, in 2004, another significant
step towards our targeted
dividend payout ratio of 40%.

s Gt

Sir Roy Gardner
Chief executive
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British Gas @1

Our Engineering Acadamy recrylted and trained
hunctreds of naw engineers during 2003.

In the home did you know...7

> Britiah Ges is the biggest supplier
of both residential gas and
electricity in Britain,

> Wa have 7,160 qualified engineers
and 844 contractors who completed
around 7.2 milion jobs during the year.

> One in four homes in Britain with gas
central heating has a ServiceCare
contract with British Gas.

> Almost 130,000 customers have
aigned up to onkine e-bills asince the
launch of paperiess billing in May 2003.

British Gas residential
Adverse external factors
mask strong underlying
fundamentals

In a challenging year for the retail
energy industry in Britain with
{he impacts of warm weather
unusually coupled with rises in
commodity costs, British Gas
increased its tumover by 2.4%
to £6.2 billion (2002: £6.0 billion).
This was due to an increase

in our electricity market share,
higher energy pricing and
continued growth in our

home services business.

However, operating profit*
was down 16% at £206 miliion
(2002: £244 million). The main
elements of this year-on-year
fall were the impactofa

£54 million National
Transmission System (NTS)
credit in 2002 and a significant
increase in commodity and
transportation costs inthe
second half of 2003,
Transportation costs for British
Gas increased by around 5%
in 2003 as Transco made up
for a cost under-recoveryin
2002 when lower gas volumes
were transported as a result

of the warm weather. We also
made further investments of
£61 million (2002: £38 million)
to meet our obligations under
the govemment's Energy
Etficiency Cornmitment and
£32 million (2002: £22 million)
onour engineer training
academy to increase our
engineer numbers to meet

the projected demand for
energy related services.
Cormrespondingly, the number

of training centres and
partnerships with further
education establishments has
now increased to 13 across the
country with 1,267 engineers
currently in training.

The British Gas transformation
programme to deliver improved
customer service has continued
to progress in 2003 across

the areas of data, processes,
systems and people. The
transformation impacts every
area of the business and

will deliver a ‘one stop shop'
experience for our customers,
where a single customer

service agent will be able to deal
with all of their enquiries.

The customer relationship
management infrastructure

has now been rolied out to
9,700 staff, enabling them

to have a single view of the
custorner and giving them the
abllity to serve customers
appropriately. This insight

willin tum create a different

and enhanced customer
experience. For integrated
cross-selling functionality, we
have extended the testing period
between pilot and full ramp-up
to ensure systern integrity
throughout. As a consequence,

Key residential energy performarnce indicators

2003 2002 a%
Customer numbers (year endj (000)
Residential gas 12,580 12,839 (1.9
Residectial slectricity _ 618 _ 5785 7
Estimated market share (%) el
Residential gas 62 64 (2ppts)
Residential electricity 24 22 2ppis,
Average consumption
Residential gas (themmns) 6§14 €09 0.8
Residential slectricity (kWh) 4178 4,145 0.8
Waeighted average sales price
Residential gas {p/therm} 4757 47.01 1.2
Residantial electricity (p/kWh} 618 6.03 2.7
Weightedaverageunitoosts
Resigential gas (WACOG. ptherm)_ " 2265 _ 2181 _ 38
Residertialslectricity WACOE, pAdWh) 246 247 (04}
Transportatien and distribution (€m)
Residential gas 1305 1256 39
Residential elactricity 479 444 8
Total 1,784 1,700 4.9
Turnover (£rn)
Residential gas 3742 3805 .7
Resldential efectricity 1547 1,380 12
Total 5,289 5,185 2.0
Operating profit e e
Residential enemgy 136 218 {38)
Operating margin (%) e m e e
Rasidential snergy 26 4.2 [(i.6ppts)
British Gas product holding™
Average Brilish Gas products per customer [year end} 1.62 1.53 ]

= Bntish Gas brand.

*Indluging joint vertures and associates, before goadwill amortisation.

O% has been ussd 10 express 'percentage change’.
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we will now be testing the billing
engine in the second half of
2004, with full roll-out by early
2006. During 2003 we incurred
£11 million in revenue costs and
£67 million in capitalised costs
{cumulative spend to the end of
2003, £325 million).

During 2003, British Gas
launched a significant culture
change programme entitled
‘Boing the Right Thing'
designed to enhance custorner
service performance and to
embed new ways of working

to derive maximum benefits
from the investment in business
transformation. The initiative
has been embraced by staff
across British Gas. ithas also
formed the creative focus of the
updated British Gas branding
and become the strapline of
ahighly successful marketing
campaign, Following our
online billing television
advertisement, the British Gas
website, house.co.uk, saw an
increase in unigque visitors from
140,000 t0 203,000 per week,

Energy

During 2003 we continued to
focus on the value we derive
from our customer relationships
rather than simply on the
number of customers we supply.
This involved greater emphasis
on investing to retain customers.
QOur analysis shows that
retention is enhanced by

higher product holdings and
improved customer service.
Chumnrates have fallen in both
fuels with gas chum down to
10% {2002: 13%) and electricity
down to 16% (2002: 23%).



British Gas residential segmental tumover (£m)

2003 2002
Residential gas 3,742 3,805
Residertial elactricity 1,547 1,380
Home senices 847 810
British Gas Communications 56 52
Total 6,162 6047
Britigh Gasg takes cam of kitchen appliances from
microwaves to washing machines,
The net result of this was that energywatch figures showed up over two percentage points to increase profitability,

we increased our energy
customer relationships in 2003
by 145,000 against a loss of
191,000 in 2002 while spending
£30 million less on acquisition
activities. In 2003 our abitity

to target more accurately our
sales activity resulted in higher
conversion rates and an
increase in product holdings
percustomerto 1.62 from 1.53.
As part of our drive to reduce
cost-to-serve, almost 130,000
customers have now signed

up for online e-bills since the
launch of paperiess biliing
inMay 2003.

Putting the customer at the
heart of the business has

seen improved service delivery.
This year British Gas was voted
the best gas supplierinthe

UK for custorner satisfaction

in the annual survey by research
firm JD Power & Associates.
The quality of acquisition
processes has also improved
as we have implemented
customer needs-based
targeting and a sales code

of practice. Our commitment
to stamping outincidents of
mis-selting has yietded
significant further progress

in reducing the number of
comptaints about British Gas -
sales practice reported to
energywatch, British Gas is
also leading industry-wide
work, supported by Ofgemn
and energywatch, to simplify
the transfer processes,
particularly in the electricity
market, which wil further
improve the customer
experience. By the end of 2003

complaints about our selling
practices atjust 38% of the
level they were in April 2002
with complaints about the
transfer process down 48%
over the same time period.

Average gas consumption

in 2003 was in line with 2002
with similarty warm temperatures
through the year. However,

the 2002 Transco recovery
and differing weather patterns,
along with a consequent lower
payout from our weather
hedging activities, led to
areduction in gross margin

of £32 million.

Energy gross margin was

also impacted by increased
commodity cost. Wholesale
market prices in gas and
electricity increased by
approximately 15% in 2003.
The full impact of commadity
cost increases, particularly

in the second haif, was not
anticipated and therefore

was not recovered from
custorners in 2003 in the 2.5%
price rise in April. The 5.9%
price rise from 10 January 2004
{1 March 2004 for prepayment
customers) reflects the
commodity costincreases
experienced late in 2003.

Home services

British Gas home services
reported strong growthin

2003 with turnover increasing
by 4.6% to £847 million

(2002: £810 million). Operating
profit* increased by 38% to
£84 million (2002: £61 million)
with full year operating margins

"Inciuding joint ventures and assotiates, balore goodwill amortisation.

at 10%. Our continuing
growth inthe home services
market is an indication of the
trustin and strength of the
British Gas brand. Onein

four homes in Britain with

gas central heating now has

a service contract with British
Gas while the newer products
of home electrical care,
kitchen appliance care and
plumbing and drains care
continued to grow rapidly,
displaying our ability to
understand and service
customer requirements.

Our central heating installations
activity was down in 2003 with
the number of installations
lower by 16% and tumover
down by 12% at £228 million
{2002: £260 million} duetoa
contraction in the overall market.

We see home services asa
unigue and growing opportunity

improve customer service
and strengthen the brand
attributes differentiating
British Gas fromour
competitors, Home services
products continue to have
apositiveimpact on the
retention of energy customers.
We are targeting significant
growth inour share of the
home services market and
therefore have continued to
increase our staff numbers
throughout 2003 with the
total number of qualified
engineers growing by 855
to7,160.

British Gas Communications
Tumover increased by 8% o
£56 million (2002: £52 million)
driven by a significant
improvement in average
revenues per customer

{up 13%). Inthe absence

of aworkable WLR soiution

Key home services performance indicators

2003 2002 0%
Customer product holdings (year end) (000)
Central heating service contracts 3,250 3,093 5
Othercontralhaating servicecontracts. T By 849 (4]
Kitchenappliances care (no. of appliances) 1109 &71 27
Plumbing and drains cama 1,084 905 0
Electrical cara 568 367 63
Homa security 28 28 -
Total haldings 6,906 6,113 13
Ceniral heating installations 88 102 (16)
Turnover (Em)
Cantral heating service contracts 391 349 12
Cantral heating instaliations 228 260 (12)
ome T e 201 13
Total 847 810 4.6
Engneedcgstaffempioyed _ ___ __ 1160 _ 620515
Operating profit* (Em)
Home services ) 61 38
Cperating margin (%)
Home services 10 8 2ppts
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ca

business services

We supDly anevgy to businesses of afi sizes,
from pics to garden centras.

centrica
energy

Key British Gas Communications performance indicators

2003 2002 8%
Customer numbers {fived fine) iyear end) (000) 316 357 25
Average minutas used per month {fixed line) 374 340 10
ARPY (fixed line) (£ 11.86 10.52 13
Turnover (Em) 56 52 8

Operating loss {Sm)

{14} (35) €0

we have intentionally acquired
fewer customers this year

and focused on significantly
reducing customer chum.

This has reduced by nine
percentage points driven
primarily by the promotion

of the enhanced carrier
pre-selection (CPS) product
that was introduced in July
2002. Ninety-one per cent

of our fixed line customer base
is now on CPS, These actions
have significantly reduced the
operating less of the business
to £14 million (2002: £35 million).

Centrica Business Services
Consolidating our leading
supply position in the
commercial sector

Centrica Business Services
continues to consolidate and
improve its position as the
nurnber one supplier of enemy to
the cornmercial sector in Britain,
measured by supply points, with
an overall market share of 29%
(2002: 27%). As with the
residential business, 2003 has
proved a challenging year.
Turnover was up by 16% at

£1.1 billion due to the full year
effect of the Electricity Direct
(ED) acquisition and growth of
the electricity customer base.

Operating profit” felito
£51 millton (2002: £65 miflion),

hit mainly by warmer than
average weatherwhich
lowered gas consumption
and a higher than forecast

rise in wholesale prices.

The business also expensed
£5 million of integration costs
for ED and £4 million in the
overhaul of customer systems
and processes. The £6 million
one-off NTS credit received in
2002 was more than matched
by the full year effect of £7 million
from the ED acquisition.

Improving customner service
continues to bea major
initiative. In total we expect
investment here to be £40 million
over three years. The intention
is to rationalise the disparate
systemns the business has
inherited and so enhance
service levels, lower cost-
to-serve and lower costs

to acquire new product
retationships. Roll-out of

new systerns to the business
will commence in 2005.

Centrica Energy
Management Group
Further well timed
investments made in power
generation and renewables

CEMG continued to apply its
assets and skills to minimise
input costs for the downstream
businesses whilst at the same

“Including joint ventunes and associates, befone goedwill amortisation.
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time defivering steady upstream
revenues against a backdrop of
warmer than average weather
and volatile commodity prices.
Operating profit for 2003 was
up by 8% to £561 million.

Gas production

Despite a 4% reductionin
production volumes year-on-year,
upstream gas profits increased
by 7% to £480 milion. Theimpact
of reduced volumes was offset
by a 4% increase in average
selling prices and lower operating
costs due to the full year effect

of the abolition of royalties on
offshore gas production net of
the additional PRT charge.

An extremely successful
reperforation campaign in our
South Morecambe field has
increased daily deliverability

from four wells by an average
of 15%. Plans are in place

to reperforate afurther 10
wells in the North and South
Morecambe fields which
wouldincrease deliverability
and therefore medium term
production flexibility, After
completing the acquisition

of the remaining 60% of Rose
field, development progressed
more rapidly than originally
anticipated, bringing first gas
on stream in January 2004,

We also secured a contract to
develop and operate a new
gas reception terminal at
Easington, which will land gas
from Norway's Ormen Lange
field. First gas through the
terminal is expected in 2006,
The project will make more
efficient use of the Easington

Key Centrica Business Services performance indicators

2003 2002 L%
Customer supply points (year end) (000) —
Gas . aro 383 [3.41
Electricity _ 535 516 a7
Total %05 898 07
Average consumption
Gas(thenms) 3,124 3,276 16
Electricity {kwWh) 25,700 23,785 @
Weighted average sales price R
Gas (p/therm) AT5 3672 28
Electricity (/KW 484 479 10
Weigtted average unit costs
Gas (WACOG, pherm) 21.56 20.M a1
Elastricity (WAGOE, p/A) 220 225 18
Trangportation and distribution (€m) .
Gas 130 126 32
Begticty _ . L 21 170 2
Total 351 296 19
Tumover(®m) ___ ] .
Gas 455 457 0.4
Electricity 870 514 30
Yotal 1,125 an 16
Operating profit” (Em) 5t 62
Operating margin (%) 45 7 _25ppis)




Sourcing energy did you know..?

> We mat 25% of our customers' demand > During the year our power stations

during the ysar from our own aquity
gas production,

> We are now the biggest operator
of gas-turbined power generation
inthe UK.

supplied 21% of our customers’
elactricity damand.

> Inthe Insh Sea we are providing gas
production and cperations expertise
to third party gas producers.

W have gas interests In both tha Nerth and
Inish Seas.

terminal operation and bring
in further revenue in the form
of fees, with Centrica managing
the design, construction and
commissioning of this terminal.

As announced in January 2004,
we reached agreement to
acquire a further 280 million
therms of gas reserves with the
acquisition of interests in the
Orwell and Statfjord fields for
£60.7 million. The agreement
included nine million barrels

of cil reserves which will
produce a reverue stream

and act as a valvable hedge

to our exposuretogas
contracts linked to oil prices.

Industrial sales and
wholesaling

Sales volumes were up by 7%
against 2002 due to increased
wholesaling activity. As with
2002, warm weather depressed
consumption in our retailing
businesses, allowing profitable
sales of excess contracted

gas into the wholesale market,
particularly in the first half of the
year. However, operating
profits were down by 11% at
£64 million due to a number

of one-off costs including an
adjusting payment of £10 million
related to prior year charges

for awholesale electricity
purchase contract.

Electricity generation

In April, we acquired the 220MW
Roosecote plant in Barrow

ang, in July, the 240MW Barry
plant in South Wales, taking
ourtotal equity generation
capacity to 2,174MW. Total
electricity generated in the

Key Contrica Energy Management Group performance indicators

2003 2002 A%
‘Gas production
Production volumes {m therms)
Morecambe 3428 3,639 (6)
Other 457 417 10
Total 3806 4056 14.2)
Avarage sales price (p/therm) 24 215 4.2
Turmover (Bm) 919 932 {1.4)
Edomaltumover®Em) __ e
Operating costs(@m) ____~_ _ I
Royaltes _ T @ .67 _nm
Patroleum revenue tax 128 76 68
Volumea rslated production costs 213 2ar (10)
Other production costs 10 105 3.8
Total 439 485 (@
Operating profit (Em) 450 447 7
Powaer stations
Power generatad (GWh) 8,668 7,662 13
Industrial and wholesale
Average sales prica (p/therm) ___ %5 198 35
Tumaver {£m) 809 784 3
Opeeating proft (Em} 4 72
Accord
Traded volumes (physical)
Gas {m therms) 24546 20,398 20
Electricity (Twh) 139 95 46
Tumnover (£rn} 6,218 4,304 44
Operating proft (&) 17 - wm
CEMG operating profit (Em) 561 510 8
year was 8.7TWh {21% of our target, Centrica announced
downstream requirements) an investment programme
with the stations running on of £500 million over the next

average, for the portion of the
year they were in the portfolio,
at aload factor of 59%.

Renewables

In the supply year April 2002

to March 2003, Centrica

fuffilled its obligation to source
3% of all electricity supplied
from renewable sources through
the purchase of certificates and
is on track to meet the target of
4.3% for the current supply year,
To meet the Government's
renewable power generation

five years, working alongside
joint venture partriers. In 2003,
investments included the joint
venture with DONG and Statkraft
to build a 90MW wind farm
offshore at Barow-in-Furness;
and the acquisition of the lnner
Dowsing and Lynn offshore
wind farm developments in

the Greater Wash area (witha
combined generation potential
of at least 180MW). Centrica
was also successful in acquiring
sufficient Round 2 licences to
give the flexibility to build up to

afurther 1,250MW of offshore
wind capacity.

Accord

Despite the anticipated tough
trading environment with fewer
counterparties participating,
Accord made an operating profit
of £17 million in 2003, £13 milion
of which came in the first half.
Inthe second half, Accerd
experienced reduced gas
trading profits due to the
severe unplanned restrictions
in gas flow through the
continental interconnector and
field closures in the UK North
Sea. Physical volumes traded
during 2003 were equalto 2.7
times the gas and 3.4 times the
electricity volumes suppliedto
our UK downstream custorners
(2002: 1.4 times and 2.2 times,
respectively), and reflected
increased activity in Europe to
support our retail operations in
Belgium and Spain.

Centrica Storage

©On 18 December the Secretary
of State gave final clearance to
Centrica's acquisition ofthe
Rough storage field and
associated assets, with the
behavioural undertakings
otfered addressing all
competition concerns. This
removal of any remaining
uncertainty allowed the
forward selling of storage
services to recommence.

Operational difficulties in the
first half were resolved and
the field experienced no
rmajor outages during the
second half of the year. The

Centrica plc mport 2003 08



Operating and financial review continued

On the road did you know..?

> Our patrols repair around 8 out of 10

> The AA's website is the UK's number

breakdowns at the roadside. one automotive and insurance site,
> The AA has the largest dedicated > AA Tyre Fit is the UK's first all-mobile
breakdown patrol force in the UK, fleet and retail tyre network.
with approximately 3,500 patrols.
maintenance backlog inherited We have reorganised our Key AA performance indicators

at the time of acquisition bas
been significantly reduced
and a related HSE deferred
prohibition order was lifted.
Operating profits increased

to £40 million (2002: £1 million)
due to a full year's operation
and the selling of a proportion
of 2003/2004 storage services
at prices more reflective of the
current market differential
between summer and winter.
This differential, which was
between 6.5p and 7p per therm
at the time of acquisition, has
traded since November 2003
at between 10pand 13p.

The AA

Strong growth in AA core
business leadingto 27%
increase in operating profit”

in 2003 the AA delivered strong
growth in the profitability of its
core roadside and personal
finance operations and
continued its investment

in technology, infrastructure
and training. Overall, turnover
grew 4.8% to £797 million and
operating profit’ increased

by 27% to £93 million,

The 'Just AAsk’ marketing
campaign has continued to
focus consumer attention on
the breadth of the AA's product
range. Latest research shows
that prompted recognition of
the ‘Just AAsk’ logo is now at
an all-time high of 86%.

The campaign, which began

in May 2002, was recognised
by the UK's marketing industry
at the Marketing Week
Effectiveness Awards 2003,

internal operations by bringing
together all of the core sales
and customer service teams
under one umbrella through
the creation of a new customer
services organisation. This
new structure will improve

our custorner service through
multi-skilling and integrated
management focus and
standardise processes

across our sites. Creating

a single customer services
tearn will also enable us to
build upon our successes in
cross-selling. By the end of
2003 the average product
holdings per customer had
increased to 1.31 (2002: 1.23).

Qur website, theaa.com,
continues to be developed and
the number of wabsite visits
increased by 45% to 31 million,
with a high demand for online
routes and maps. This increase
in visits led to record online sales
figures for personal loans, up
year-on-year from 8,647 to
16,452, and membership sales,
up from 61,677 10 79,507,

AA roadside services
Turnover increased by 3% to
£482 million due to growth in
the business services market
and an increase in personal
membership income. The
continued drive towards
increasing customer value
rather than volume growth
led to anincrease in operating
profit* of 13% to £61 million.
Further measures to contain
the cost base, including the
closure of loss making sales
channels, together with

"Including joint ventures and associates. before goodwill amortisation.
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2003 2002 &%
Roadsideservicas | _. .. e
Customer numbers (yaar ancd} (000) 13,522 12978 4.2
Custorner renewal rate (%) 85 85 -
Average transaction value (£) 36 34 6
Roadside patrols employed 3478 3651 4.7}
Personal finance
Insuance customers {00G)
Mator 052 959 0.7
Home 683 664 4.4
Quefienowalrate(®) .. 82 78 | depts
Averageannualpremium(® 297 281 (19
Motorandhomeinsurancecommissions €m)__ #8483 11
Loans (fixed term) book size (Em) 1,043 661 58
Lending share of JV operating profit (£m) 19 17 12
Number of fixed term personal loans (000) 160 123 30
AA Servica Centres
Site numbers 127 128 (1.6}
Averaga tumover per site (2000} 356 320 11
Turnover ([Em)
AA roadside services 482 476 3.4
AApesonalfirance e 8B 172 B
Other AAsorvices . _ S . L AUV S
Total 187 760 4.9
Operating praft/floss|" (&)
AA madside services €1 54 13
AA personal finance 50 47 8
Cther AA Services (8 (28) 35
Total 83 73 27
Operating margin (%)
Total AA 12 10 2ppls
AA product holding
Average AA products per customar {year end) _13f 123 7
increasing productivity, with specialised all weather
improved the operating portable computer systems

margin to 12% (2002: 10%}).

AA business services won
the contract to provide
breakdown assistance to
the 365,000-strong fleet

of new and used Volkswagen
vehicles, and recruited
additional dedicated patrols
to service this contract.
Investment in roadside
assistiance continued with
all patrols now equipped

with fault diagnostic capability,
which will enhance patrols'
ability to fix faults at the
roadside. Called VIXEN,

the laptop computer also
provides AA patrols with GPRS
communications functionality
which enables more efficient
deployment and better
management of call to arrive
times. In November 2003,
VIXEN was recognised by

the automotive industry



systems enabile our patrols

Speciaiisad computer
to fix more breakdowns at the side of the road,

Tha AA now has anintegrated cusiomer
services Leam,

when it won the 2003 Autocar
Idea of the Year Award.

The AAwon the annual JO
Power 8 Associates UK
Roadside Assistance Study
award for custorner satisfaction
forthe second successive year
and for the fourth time in the six
years It has been awarded.

AA personalfinance

Tumover increased by 8% to
£186 million (2002: £172 million).
Although motor insurance
premiums fell year-on-year,
improved customer targeting
and more competitive products
enabled the business to
increase operating profit™ by 6%
to £50 million (2002; £47 million).
The total value of personal
finance advances reached

£1 billion for the first time
following the continued
success of the AA personal

loan and development of the
new AA Visa card, which broke
even ayear ahead of schedule.
The year closed with a portfolio
of 160,000 loans (2002:
123,000); 20% of new AA

loans were sold online in 2003,

The value of motor and home
insurance commissions grew
by 1% despite a 2% reduction
in the average annual premium,
driven mainly by the cyclical
nature of pricing conditions in
the motor insurance industry,
This was achieved through a
major differentiating service
initiative, ‘Keeping the
Customer Mobile', launched
in March. In December this
mobility initiative was
recognised by the insurance

industry with the Insurance
Tirmes Award forinnovation

of the year. This and other
initiatives resufted in a record
renewal rate of 82% (2002: 78%).

The growing success of the
AA's specialist insurance
service, AA Select, was
recognised by the British
Insurance Brokers Association
(BIBA), which represents
around 2,500 UK brokers,

in 2003. BIBA has agreed that
any member company unable
to provide a competitive quote
for non-standard insurance will
refer the caller to AA Select.

The innovative parts and
labour product, where AA
rmembers are covered for the
cost of breakdown repairs,
has continued its rapid take-up
rate. By the end of the year the
total number sold had reached
214,000 (2002: 114,000).

All of these sales have been

as a result of cross-selling

to current AA members,

Relaunched on 1 January 2003,
the AA's innovative and flexible
travel insurance products have
achieved record sales during
the year despite a flat overseas
tourism market. Sales of single
trip cover are up 78% and
annual multi-trip cover is

up 76%.

Other AA services

The AA Service Centres made
an operating loss* of £20million
(2002: £15 million). We have
continued to take actions to
reduce the losses, including
astaff redeployment

*Includfing jowit ventures and associates, bafors goodwill amortisation,

programme which has
reduced the operating cost
base. There are a number of
new initiatives in place aimed
at growing the customer
base in order to build on the
year-on-year tumover
increase of 10%,

AATyre Fit, the mobile tyre
fitting business acquired iast
year, made an operating loss*
of £7 million, atthough tumaover
has increased by £6 million
following the expansion of
the fleet from 50 vans to

170 to provide nationwide
coverage, AA Tyre Fitis the
UK's first all-mobile retail

tyre network.

Operating profit* in the driving
school more than doubled
over 2002 as pupil and
instructor numbers reached
record levels. Publishing,

car data check and roadside
signs also made positive
contributions. In the Republic
of lreland, the AA nearty
doubled its profits to £3 million,
due to grewth in bothinsurance
and roadside assistance,
remaining the leading

roadside assistance provider
and personal insurance
intermediary in the country.

One.Tel
QOperating profits double with
continued brand investment

ForOne.Tel, 2003 has beena
year of continued development
and growth. We have maintained
our focus on developing new
products and internal processes
that offer a best total cost

solution to our customers,
whilst lobbying for regulatory
improvermnenits {o enable the
enhancement of CPS and the
delivery of WLR to encourage
open competition.

In 2003 turnover grew by 16% to
£178 million {2002: £153 million),
as aresult of the growth in
customer numbers along with
anincrease in the average
products per customer to
1.29{2002: 1.21). Fixed line
monthly average revenue per
user (ARPU) has declined
slightly year-on-yearto £16.18
{2002: £16.20), as a result of
significant competition-related
price reductions, especially in
intemational and national rates.
However, the further uptake

of CPS has enabled us largely
to offset these price reductions.
Thirty-seven per cent of the fixed
line customer base is nowon
CPS tariffs with the ARPU on
these tariffs being more than
35% higher than non-CPS
tariffs. The average minutes of
use permonth increased by
21% to 345 minutes and, as a
result of product enhancements
and service improvements,
fixed line churn levels declined
by seven percentage points
year-cn-year.

QOur variable gross margin was
sustained as we continue to
leverage our least-cost routing
capability and negotiate
favourable transmission rates
with our carriers. We further
developed our swilched
reseller model, entering into
an agreement with Cable &
Wiireless in the third quarter
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Operating and financial review continued

In telecoms did you know...? B
, ) pBg Direct Energy.
> On One.Tel's busiest day in 2003 our > We are aleading competitor to
cugtomers spent approximately BT and atready 37% of One.Tel's
9.53 million minutas on the phone. fixed line customenrs have chosen
carrier pra-sslection. LL
> One.Tel was named the UK'a Best EP
Consumer ISP 2003 by the Internet > One.Tel customers ¢an call directory Retail Engrgy
Servica Praviders Assoclation. enquirias frea by dialing 118 111,
We offer & range of packages for intemet users
including high speed bmadband Bcoess.
tocarry our local and national the higher costs of acquiring their telecommunications margins on renewing customers
traffic aver their natwork, customers, associated with requirements. Following the and contributed to a reduction
thereby freeing up capacity offering a greaterrange of success of a pilotin 2003, in in operating profit* to £1 million
onour switches whilst retaining products through a wider January 2004 we announced {2002: £16 million). In addition,
our multiple arrangements array of distribution channels, the setting up of a call centre we increased our investment

with other carriers.

Operating profit* for 2003

was £4 million, double that of
2002 (£2 million). Investment

in our brand campaign has
increased by £1.7 million to
£3.6 miliion as we highlighted
the comprehensive range of
telecommunications services
available from One.Tel.
Compared to the end of 2002,
when we had one call-inclusive
package, we now offer a
complete range of fixed line,
mobile and internet tariffs
addressing the many varied
needs of customners in today's
market. In addition, since the
dereguiation of the directory
enguiries market in August 2003,
we have provided a free, brand
differentiating, directory
enquiries service toour
custormers. Acquisition costs
were up 31% at £29 million
supporting a 13% growth in
the customer base. This reflects

Key OneTel performance indicators

as well as a full year of mobite
acquisition costs. Qur mobile
base continues to grow steadily,
reaching 73,000 customers at
the end of 2003 with the new
call and text inclusive tariffs
{launiched in March 2003}
successfully atiracting high
value customers.

Since February 2003, all our
customers (including the
broadband customers acquired
from fomart in 2001) have been
on our single customer care
and billing systermn, enabling

us to offer an integrated service
to our customers with all their
One.Tel services summarised
onone bill. In 2003 there was
significant progress in the
industry debate around WLR
deregulation, and we, along
with other market entrants,

will tial a WLR product in

early 2004, enabling our
customers to banefit from

a single relationship for all

2003 2002 &%
Customer numbers (year end) {000)
Fixed ling 783 746 6
Mobile 73 36 103
Other servicas 218 180 21
Total (30 day tolling) 1,084 962 13
Average minutes used per month (fixed line) 345 284 21
ARPU (fixad line}{2) 16.18 16.20 [0.1)
ARPU {mabilg) (£ 14.04 12,77 13
One,Tel product holding
Average products per customer (year and) 128 1.2 7
Tumnover {£m) 178 153 16
Operating profit* {£m) 4 2 100
Operating margin {%} 2.2 1.3 0.9ppts

“Including joint vertures and associates, betors goodwill amedisaticn.
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in Bangalore, which will lower
One.Tel’s cost base.

Centrica North America
QOperating profits more than
double that of 2002

We have continued to expand
and develop our presence in
North America despite the
challenging business and
regulatery environments.

In 2003, we successfully
integrated and rationalised
the businesses acquired in
2002 and improved their
prefitability by renewing or
acquining only customers
who create value. In 2003
operating profit* increased
by 106% to £130 million
(2002: £63 million), after

£10 million of costs refating
to our exit fram Pennsylvania
home services, the entryinto
Alberta and adverse foreign
exchange movements.

This reflected strong
performances in our
electricity markets, especially
in Texas where the full year
impact of the acquisition
exceeded expectations.

Residential and small
commercial gas

Turnover increased by 9% over
2002 reflecting the colder winter,
together with revenues from
approximately 300,000
customers acquired in 2002.
Higher wholesale gas costs

in the second half lowered

in brand building and
experienced increased costs

of customer renewals in Ontario
associated with reguiatory
changes which significantly
affected customer renewals

in the prime rnid-year renewal
period. Ourintensive efforts
brought about favourabie
changes to the regulations in
June and resulted in renewal
rates rising and the costs of
renewals falling late in the year.
The second half performance
reflected the seasonal weighting
of sales volures towards the
first half against a much flatter
profile of operating costs.

In our US gas markets, the
regulatory climate, together
with a volatile gas price
environment, has continued
tomake it difficult to add value-
creating customers, We will
participate only in markets that
ofter an appropriate retum on
capital and accordingly we
announced our withdrawal
from Georgia and Maryland.

fr the first half we re-evaluated
the retums achievable on our
originalinvestment in Energy
America in the light of the
current regulatory and
business environments and
increased the amortisation
charge by £12 millionin
respect of part of the goodwill
and shortened the life over
which the remaining goodwill
isto be amortised.
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energy america

Direct Energy provices s range of services in the
home.

In North America did you know...?

> In 2003, Dimct Energy Essential Home Services

techniclans made 730,240 hame visits.

> We completed an average of 20,000 service
calls each week during the autumn and winter
=an average of about 3,000 calls every day.

Residential and small
commercial electricity
Tumover and operating profit*
increased sharply, reflecting
the full year contribution and
performance of cur recently
acquired businesses in Texas
and a full year of Ontario
electricity sales. Owing to the
high electricity consumption
per customerin Texas, overall
average consumption rose
by 56%.

Our Texas customers fallinto
two categories. For those

in West and South Texas,
acquired at the end of 2002,
energy prices were increased
in March by an average of 17%
under the Price to Beat (PTB)
mechanism, allowing us to
maintain target margins
despite a sharp increase

in gas costs, a key driver

of power prices. Customer
numbers have reduced by
10% in this category as
expectedina PTB envirohment,
which is designed to encourage
competition by inhibiting
incumbent suppliers from
competing on price before

1 January 2005. In the second
category, we continue to build
an organic electricity business,
now under the Direct Energy
brand name, principally in

the Houston and Dallas/

Fort Worth areas. Customer
numbers grew year-on-year
by 59% and our focus on value
has raised average annual
consumption per customer
from 98% to 121% of the
overall Texas average and
significantly reduced bad

debt levels.

Key North America performanca indicators

2003 2002 A%

Customer numbers (year )
Residantial and small commercial gas {000} 1,118 1,339 (1n
Residential and small commarcial gloctricity (000) 1,318 1416 {7)
Home and business services (000} _ 1680 1827 38
Averageconsumption —
Residentiat and small commercial gas (therns) 1340 1,138 18
Residential and small commercial electricity (kWh) 16,630 10,666 56
Gas production
Gas production volumes (m th ) 362 380 {4.7)
Average sales price (pthem) 193 2041 (4)
Turnover (Em)
Residential and small commercial gas 531 486 9
Rasidential and small ot ial sloctricity 1,144 189 505
Home and business services _ e e MR 1% 21
Gas production and energy trading including 1AC) S0 28 6
Total 2360 1,118 112
Operating profit/{loss)” [Em}
Rasidertial and small commertial gas 1 16 84
Residential and small commercial slectricity 87 o nm
Home ard business services o] 23 26
Gas production and energy trading (induding 13C) 12 34 (62)
Total 130 63 106
Operating margin (%)
TotaiNothAmenca . 5 & _{ipoY
The Ontario electricity market Home and business services
for residential and small Turmover and operating profit*
commercial customers improved with the benefits of
remains effectively closed increases in customer numbers
to further growth under the and margins being partially
price cap introduced in offset by investment in custormer
November 2002. service and capacity expansion.

We rebranded the Enbridge
Customer chum has reduced Services Inc business acquired
and our margins remain in May 2002 as Direct Energy
strong but it has not been Essential Home Services
possible to acquire new and Direct Energy Business

customersin the price cap
environment, The new
government recently
announced its intention to
increase the level of the price
cap from 1 May 2004 and that
the provincial regulator, the
Ontario Energy Board, will
take back the responsibility
for setting retail power rates
by 1 May 2005.

“Including joint venturas and associates. before goodwill amortisation.

Services, and focused on driving
efficiency and growth using our
experience in the British Gas
home services business.
Integration of our home
services and retail energy
businesses in Ontario enables
us to leverage cross-selling
opportunities. Customer
numbers in the core heating
and cooling protection

products increased by 16%
to over 390,000.

During 2003, the formation

of a new business services
group enabled us to market
energy and services to

medium sized commercial

and industrial customers,

Early signs are encouraging
with several large contracts
already signed. This willbe an
area of particular focus for 2004.

In February 2003 we reduced
our holding in the Consumers'
Waterheater Income Fund
from 41.8% to 19.9%, realising
further proceeds of £46 million
in addition to the £304 million
raised in 2002. We continue

to account for the earnings,
assets and liabilities of the
fund on a fully consclidated
basis as required under FRS 5.

Atthe end of 2003, we
announced the closure of the
remaining nine retail stores

in Ontario with a £16 mitlion
exceptional pre-tax charge
taken on closure,

Upstream activities

Gas production volumes
declined marginally with
asuccessful new weli
development programme
largely offsetting the natural
decline rates inherent in mature
fields. Additionally, we drilled,
completed and began
production on 131 wells
during 2003 compared with
218in 2002. Qur production
met 22% (24% in 2002) of
our customer requirements
in Canada and the northem
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Operating and financial review continued

-------

Q

8 now supplying gas and electricity in Belgium.

USin 2003, Despite increases
in market price, our average
gas selling prices reduced by
4% compared with the same
period in 2002 following the
expiry of favourably priced
forward sales contracts in
November 2002. Together
with higher royalty charges,
this had a significant dampening
effect on operating profit”,

Europe
Well positioned as European
supply market deregulates

In Belgium, the residential gas
and electricity market in
Flanders opened fully for
competition on 1 July 2003.
Centrica's joint venture,
Luminus, successfully switched
across its 800,000 customers
{approximately 600,000
electricity and 200,000 gas).
Luminus is the clear number
two inthe Flanders market
which is already beginning

to see increasing competition
as new entrants respondto the
market opening. Luminus had
aturmover of £362 million and
produced a positive contribution
in the year. The Walloon and
Brussels markets will open, on
a phased basis, from July 2004
to July 2007, at which point the
residential markets will be fully
opento competition.

Centrica entered the Spanish
energy market under the Luseo
Energia brand and has been
actively acquiring commercial
electricity customers crganically
since the launch in June 2003.
Reaction has been promising
and we are gaining some

valuable insights into the
operation of the market.

The European energy directives
are now In place and are being
implemented. The pace of
actual market opening will vary
across Europe but we are well
positioned to take advantage

of opportunities as they emerge,

Discontinued business

On 1 August Centrica
announced that Goldfish Bank
Lid had agreed to sellits

credit card and personal

loan business to Lloyds TSB,
the joint venture partner, fora
premium of £112.5 million above
the receivables book value,

The sale included the brand,
the loyalty programme and the
associated business assets.
This transaction was completed
on 30 September 2003,

The Goldfish credit card and

its associated loyalty scheme
were originally developed as
acustomer retention initiative
within the group’s energy supply
business. Since then Centrica
has retained its position as
Britain’s leading household

gas supplier and transformed
itself into the leading domestic
electricity supplier. With around
41% of the overall household
energy market the strategic
significance of Goldfish

was reduced. The capital
commitment required to

grow real scalein the near
term, coupled with an attractive
offer for the business from
Lloyds TSB, meant that disposal
of its share of the business

“Including joint ventures and associates, before goodwill amortisation,
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was in the best interests of
Centrica shareholders.

The operating loss® up to the
September 2003 disposal

was £27 million. The transaction
triggered a pre-tax exceptional
loss on disposal of £51 million,
which after tax and minority
interests, amounted to a net
loss of £43 million.



Group financial review

We aim to grow our earnings and cash flow within a
prudent risk management framework. During the year
our share price outperformed the market by nearly 10%
and since demerger in February 1997 we have
outperformed the index by 221%.

Centrica’s aimis to achievea
total shareholder return (TSR)
ranking in the first quartile of UK
FTSE 100 companies, taking
account of share price growth
and dividends received and
reinvested over a sustained
period. Centrica promotes
continuing growth in eamings
and cash flow and seeks to
maximise the return on capital
it achieves in excess of its cost
of capital, within a pnsdent

risk management framework.
The remuneration report on
pages 29 to 36 summarises our
TSR performance over recent
years against our comparator
FTSE 100 group.

The group's closing share price
on 31 December 2003 was

211 pence (31 December 2002:
171 pence), resulting in 2 market
capitalisation of £9.0 billion
(2002; £7.3 biltion). World stock
markets recoverad somewhat
in 2003 with the FTSE 100 Index
rising by over 13%. The group's
share price outperformed the

FTSE 100 by 8.8% (2002: 3.1%).

Since demerger in February
1997, Centrica's share price
has outperformed the FTSE 100
Index by 221%.

Earnings

Earnings increased by

£22 million to £500 million in
2003. This reflected improved
operating profit* up £126 mitlion,
offset by taxation up from

£250 million to £266 million and
higher goodwill amortisation,

up by £38 million to £161 million.

Earnings before exceptional
charges and goodwill

“Includimg joint ventures and associales, before goodwill amortisation.

amortisation were up 12% to
£714 million, This represents
areturn on capital employed
over the year of nearly 28%
or 8.8% on our average
market capitalisation.

Operating profit

Operating profit* increased to
£1,058 million from £832 million
in 2002, benefiting from a full
year of profits from our 2002
acquisitions in North America.

Exceptional charges and
goodwillamortisation

Buring the year, non-operating
exceptional charges of

£51 million net of tax arose
{2002: £26 million non-cperating
exceptionals net of tax). These
related to the closure of our retail
outlets in Ontario and the disposal
of the Goldfish credit card and
loan business for a premium of
£112.5 million, Together these
resulted in a pre-tax non-
operating loss of £67 million,
related tax credits of £16 million
and a minority interest charge of
£2 million. The group’s goodwill
amortisation charge for the year
increased to £161 miltion from
£123 mitlion in 2002, mainly as a
result of our recent acquisitions
inNorth America,

Net interest

Net interest charged to the
profit and loss account was
£52 million compared with

£62 million in 2002 and was
covered 20 times by operating
profit* compared with 15 times
a year earlier. The reduction in
interest payable was dueto
lower average indebtedness
mainly as aresult of areduction

in spending on fixed assets and
acquisitions, and improved
working capital management,

Taxation

The tax charge for the year

on profit before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional
charges of £282 million for 2003
represented a 28% rate on
profits* (2002 comparative rate
28%). The overall chargeis less
than the UK 30% statutory rate,
primarily due to the utilisation
of tax losses in the year.

Earnings per share

and dividends

Basic earnings per share grew
from 11.4 pence to 11.8 pence
and adjusted earnings per share
from 15.2 pence to 16.8 pence.
Overthe last three years the
adjusted earnings per share has
grown by acompound annual
average of over 18%, facilitating
a progressive dividend policy.
We are proposing a final dividend
of 3.7 pence giving a total of

5.4 pence (2002: 4.0 pence),
anincrease of 35%.

Cashflow

Group operating cash flow
from continuing operations
{including dividends from joint
ventures and associates,
before exceptional payments)
was £1,321 million for 2003,
cormpared with £795 million

in 2002, The improvement
resulted from an increase of
£123 million in operating profit*
{from continuing operations
before depreciation and
amortisation of investments),
as well as improvements in
working capital management.
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Group financial review continued

Centrica share performance {pence) Group opersting cash flow (£m)
30 03 92 1020
230 f'M
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rf’lw Mﬁry I
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% 00 1063 1148

0fJan 1998 Dec2ood 99 138 1464
Smocthed fres day sverage Excluding dividends from joint vantures and
H Centricapk 1 Hor ptional pay
E FTSE 100 retative Inchuding diddends fromolrt verituros and
elore jonal paymerts.
Group operating cash outflow afurther £44 million arose, indebtedness, amounted to and counterparty risks are

from discontinued operations
was £301 million, compared

to an outfiow in 2002 of £5 milion.

Total capital expenditure was
£323 million this year, down
trom £449 million in 2002.

This includes £72 million

(2002: £180 million} of costs
capitalised for information
technology investments
associated with our new
customer relationship
management (CRM)
infrastructure. Proceeds

from disposals of £409 million
(2002: £54 million} included
receipts on disposal of the
Goldfish credit card and loan
business, net of the repayment
of the working capitaf facility.
Acquisition expenditures of
£117 million (2002: £989 million,
net of cash and overdrafts
acquired) consisted primarily
of our purchases of Roosecote
and Barry power stations inthe
UK, as well as the payment of
deferred consideration on 2002
acquisitions. The group's net
cash inflow before management
of liquid resources and financing
was, as a resuit, £652 million,
against a net outflow of

£818 million in 2002.

Consolidated balance sheet
The net assets of the group
increased during the year from
£2,402 million to £2,754 million,

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets of
£1,614 million (2002;

£1,813 million) represented
goodwill that has arisen on
acquisitions. During the year,
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£40 million of which resulted
from the final determination of
the fair values of 2002
acquisitions. Goodwill is
amortised by way of charges
against profits over periods
ranging from 5 to 20 years.

Tangible fixed assets, mainly
comprising gas field assets
and power stations, had a net
ook value of £2,730 million
(2002: £2,763 million). During
the year gas field assets and
power stations were acquired
for £85 million. At the yearend,
the net proven and probable
gas reserves represented by
our field interests amounted
to 2,611 billion cubic feet {beh)
(2002: 2,846 bef), which
included 351 bef (2002: 404 bef)
in North America. At the year
end, hardware and software
costs relating to our major
investmentsin CRMhad a

net book value of £297 million
(2002: £237 milliony).

The group's investmentin

joint ventures was £94 million
(2002: £74 million), comprising
its share of gross assets of
£1,014 rillion and share of
gross liabilities of £920 million.
The group's share of net debt in
joint ventures was £788 million.
These investments related
principally to the group's 60%
interest in Humber Power
Limited, its 50% interest in the
AA's joint ventures with HBOS
and 50% of Luminus NV.

Working capital
Current assets less current
liabilities, excluding net

a deficit of €487 million (2002:
deficit of £243 million excluding
Goldfish balances). The increase
is attributable largely to tax and
to the final dividend payable in
June 2004.

Netdebt

The group's cash balances
reversed from a net debt
position of £529 million at

31 December 2002 (excluding
the Goldfish facility and the
Consumers' Waterheater
Income Fund {non-recourse)
debt) to a net cash position at
31 December 2003 of

£163 million {exciuding

£216 million of non-recourse
debt). Money market
investments increased by
£672 million to £992 million.

Provisions and other creditors
due after more than one year
Provisions and other creditors
due after more than one

year decreased during the
yearto £1,164 million (2002:
£1,384 millicn), mainly due

to decreases in deferred
petroleurnrevenue tax and
pension and other retirement
benefit provisions.

Financial risk management
The board has established
objectives and policies for
managing financial risks, to
enable Centrica to achieve its
long term shareholder value
growth targets within a prudent
risk management framework,
These objectives and policies
are regularly reviewed.

Currency, interest rate, liquidity

managed centrally by a treasury
tearn, within parameters set

by the board. This teamis also
responsible for monitoring the
group's credit ratings and
managing the cost of its debt
capital. An energy management
teamn manages energy market
price and weather risks.

Where appropriate, financial
instruments are used to manage
financial risks as explained
below and in note 28 on pages
6710 71. Untilits sale in
September 2003, Goldfish Bank
interest risks were managed by
atreasury team with Lioyds TSB
Bank plc within parameters set
by the Goldfish board.

Credit rating

The group's debt ratings

from Moody’s Investors
Service/Standard & Poor's
remain unchanged at A2/A
{long term) and P1/A-1 (short
term) and with a stable outlook.

Currency risk

Through wholly-owned US
and Canadian subsidiaries,

the group has operational
exposure in Canadian and

US dollars. Canadian dollar
translation exposure is hedged
by maintaining a portfolio of
Canadian dollar financial
liabilities, which approximate
to the net asset value ot the
Canadian operations. US dollar
translation exposure has been
hedged by borrowingona
short term basis through a US
commercial paper programme.
In addition there is an element
of translation exposure to the
euro through the 50% interest



Capital funding 31 December 2003

Net cash/debt (m)
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Net debt £53 million.
Equity including minority
interest —£2,754 million,

¢
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in Luminus, whichhas been -
hedged by selling suros forward
on a rofling basis. Exposures

to foreign currency movements
from operating activities are

also hedged through the use

of forward foreign exchange
contracts. All debt raised in

US dollars through the US
commercial paper programme,
apart from that hedging the US
translation exposure, is either
swapped into stedling or another
functional currency as part of the
translation hedging operations
described above.

Interest rate risk

The group's policy is actively

to manage interest rate risk

on long term borrowings while
ensuring that the exposure

fo fixed rates remains within
a30% to 70% range. This is
achieved by using derivative
financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, to adjust
the interest basis of the portiolio
oftong term debt (see note 28 on
pages 67 to 71}. Atthe yearend
debt has been raised on both
afixed and floating rate basis.

Liquidity

Cash forecasts identifying
the liquidity requirements of
the group are produced
frequently, These are reviewed
regularly by the board to
ensure that sufficient financial
headroorn exists for at least
212 month period. The group
policy includes maintaining a
minimum level of committed
facilities and an objective that
a proportion of gebt should
be long term, spread overa
range of maturities. Detalls

of the maturity profile of
borrowings are givenin note
28cnpages67to71. Asat

31 December 2003, the group
had undrawn committed
facilities of £915 million,

which were used as a backstop
forthe US commercial

paper programme.

Counterparty risk

The board's policy is to limit
counterparty exposures by
setting credit limits for each
counterparty, where possible
by reference to published
credit ratings. Exposures are
measured in relation to the
nature, market value and
maturity of each contract or
financial instrument. Surplus
cash is invested in short temm
financial instruments and only
deposited with counterparties
with a minimum credit rating of
A3/A- and P1/A-1 in Moody's
Investors Service/Standad &
Poor's long term and short term
ratings respectively. Energy
trading activities are undertaken
with counterparties for whom
specific credit limits are set.

All contracted and potential
exposures are reported to the
financial isk management
committee of the board.

Commoadity price risk

The key commodity price risks
facing the group are first, natural
gas and electricity prices bothin
the short term market and in
respect of long term contracts
and, secondiy, escalation
indexes on long term gas
contracts, of which the most
influential are oil product prices
and general price inflation.

The group's policy isto hedge
a proportion of the exposure
for a number of years ahead
matched to the underlying
sale and purchase risk profiles.
The group aims to manage

its risk by using financial
instruments such as oil and
gas swaps and gas derivatives
and bilateral agreements for
gas and power, as wellas
asset ownership.

The financial isk management
committee regularly monitors
the extent of the group's
commedity price exposure
and the level of hedging
activity alongside the
availability of forward prices
and market liquidity. The net
gains from trading in energy
derivatives are set out in note
28 onpages67to71.

The acquisition of the
Roossecote and Barry
power stations has further
contributed to the group’s

' targettocoverarounda

quarter of its electricity
requirement from its own
sources.

Weather risk

Gas sales volumes, and to

a lesser extent electricity
volumes, are influenced by
termperature and other weather
factors. In Britain, the weather
derivatives market remains
retatively immature. We again
entered into a number of
weather derivative transactions
for the winter period October
2008 to March 2004 in order

to hedge part of the group’s
weather exposure.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting
policies remain unchanged
over last year and are described
in note 1 to the accounts on
pages41todd.

The group complies with the
disclosure requirements of
FRS 17 Retirement Benefits.
These disclosures are ¢contained
in note 25 on pages 62 to 65.
if the standard had been fully
adopted in 2003, profit would
have besen reduced by

£71 million (2002: £47 million)
and net assets would have
been reduced by £720 million
(2002: £507 million).

Conversion to International
Financial Reporting Standards
Centrica is preparing to comply
with the European regulation
requiring companies listed in

the EU to report consolidated
financial statements in
conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards
{FRS) from 2005 onwards.

The main impact of adopting
IFRS is the potential for eamings
volatility resulting from the
requirernent to mark to market
certain of the group's energy
contracts. The accounting
treatment of pensions, share
schemes and goodwill will

also change significantly.

ket

Phil Bentley
Group finance director
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Corporate responsibility
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Remaining withinthe FTSEAGOC ndices
ires U continually 10 mp P
responsibility performancs.

‘We were pleased to be included in the Dow
Jonas Sustainablity World Index for the first time.

Our ongoing success and sustainability depend
on the pecple we smploy.

As acommercial grganisation,
aur first responsibility is to meat
ourresidential and commercial
customers' needs for essential
services in and around the
home. Through our business
activities, we are an integral part
of local communities. We create
wealth for employees, generate
taxes to government, create jobs
among suppliers and deliver a
fair reward to investors who
finarce the business.

We also understand that success
in the marketptace can oniy

be sustained if we accept and
respond to a set of responsibilities
to society as awhole. By
understanding ourimpact on
society, the economy and the
wider environment, we can build
positive relationships with the
communities of which we are
part of. This approach benefits
our shareholders and employees
through the development ofa
successful and sustainable
approach to doing business.

it is important that corporate
responsibility becomes an
integral part of our company
culture. At the heart of this
approach is a clear articulation
of our vision and values. This

is supported by our business
principles, which outline our
commitment to opérating
responsibly. By doing all this we
aim to create the service our
customers, suppliers, business
partners and colleagues expect.

Our corporate responsibility

strategy is based on:

* identifying, consulting with
and responding to the views of
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stakeholders;

» identifying key impact areas
and ensuring that challenges
and issues are properly
addressed by our brands;

* seeking to give a balanced
view of performance by
participating in independent
benchmarking; and

* presenting information on our
impact and performance in an
intelligible and accessible way.

In order to lead the development
and application of cur corporate
responsibility strategy, the
Centrica board has established
a corporate responsibility
committee, comprising senior
executives from across the group.
During 2003, the committee has
worked at group and business
unit level to define and agree the
level of performance and reporting
to be achieved for ali key impact
areas of Centrica business activity
and to ensure that corporate
responsibility strategies provide
effective business support,

We review our performance
through external benchrnarking.
n 2003, Centrica remained within
the FTSE4Good indices, an
indication that we had continued
to improve our corporate
responsibility performance.

We were also ranked middle
quintile in the Business in the
Community CR Index. We were
pleased to be included within
the Dow Jones Sustainability
World Index for the first time.

QOur aimis to continue to report
fairly and transparently on the
range of factors that affect us,
including our impact on the

environment and scciety. This
sectionbighlights our major issues,
based around a framework
developed by Business in the
Community, under the headings
workplace, marketplace, the
environment and community.

Workplace

Our ongoing success and
sustainability as a company
critically depend on the people
we employ. Through normal
business activity, we have millions
of customer cortacts every year.
The conduct of each and every
one of our employees is the
basis on which we build effective
relationships with our customers,
with fellow employees and

with the communities in which
we operate.

We want to be an employer of
choice, developing initiatives
that help attract, develop, retain
and motivate the best people to
work with us to succeed in our
business objectives. During the
year, a coherent global people
strategy was developed to enable
us to meet specific business
needs. The strategy has been
widely shared and communicated
within and across the group.

fn many areas, there is still much
to be done but we believe we
have a framework in place that
will allow us to continue to invest
in our employees.

Cur corporate responsibility
strategy in the workplace
seeks to bring alive our values
and to realise our objective

of becoming an employer

of choice. The priorities for
action that we have set are:

* to ensure responsible
behaviour by being clear
on our expectations of our
employees and of what
we offer in return;

+ to ensure the people we
employ reflect the customers
we serve so that we can deliver
appropriate services;

¢ to attract the best people to
work with us in achieving our
business objectives;

* to ensure that our leaders
understand and apply our
vaiues in ali that they do;

¢ to develop ourpeopleina
structured way to further
their skills and understanding
of our values; and

* to promote a safe and healthy
working environment.

Values

Centrica has articulated its
values and introduced a new
guide to sound business
practice, sefting out the
standards of behaviour we
expect from our employeesona
range ofissues, The guide was
circulated to all UK employees.

Our values and business
principles are supported by
policies that ensure the support
we provide employees is both
effective and relevant. Following
acomprehensive review process,
36 new or revised policies have
been introduced in the last year.

Diversity

We are working to build an
employee profile that is both
representative and inclusive
and that understands the
requirements of the broad
custormer base we serve.



in 2003, Centrica introduced & new diversity
stratagy that iIncludes both smployess and
customwers.

A new graduate brand was developed in 2003,

As of November 2003, British Gas Is the second
largest buainags In the UK with Inrvestons in
Peopis accreditation,

In 2003, Centrica introduced
anew diversity strategy that
includes both employees and
customers. We have appointed
anew diversity director, and
established a diversity action
group chaired by asenior
executive, The group is driving
anintegrated approach that will
build on the excellent practices
we have currently developed
and ensure they are consistent
throughout our business.

During 2003, Centrica conducted
areview of the pay levels between
men and women in accordance
with our commitment made in
the Kingsmill Report. The results
showed that the gender pay gap
in Centrica is muchnamower than
national norms and our cuiment
pay policies and practices contain
no gender bias. This review will
now be areqular report to our
executive committee.

We are working with a number of
organisations that enable us to
share best practice, iearn from
others and continually improve
ourapproach to diversity. These
include the Employers’ Forum
on Disability, the Institute of
Employment Studies, the
Employers’ Forurmon Age and
Business in the Community.

Centrica participated inthe 2003
Employers’ Forum on Disability
Global Inclusion Benchrmark
that monitors the inclusion of
disability in a company’s social
reporting process. Having been
placed sixthin 2002, our
performance improved during
2003 when we achieved second
‘position in the survey.

Attracting talent

We continue to be involvedina
range of employment initiatives
across the UK to recruit pecple
from different backgrounds
and groups in the community
including people with
disabilities, one parents, carers
and the long term unemployed.

A new UK graduate recruitment
brand was developed in 2003.
The website was extensively
overhauled to enabie applicants
to apply online and we
developed on-campus support
to help with marketing activities.
The number of UK graduates
Centrica recruited in 2003
increasedto 42 trom 12,

Leadership
Centricarecognises that quality
of leadership is a central factor
in achieving our business
objectives and in ensuring that
the behaviour of our employees
truly reflects our values. This is
a priority area forus.

During 2003 we identified the
key behaviours required by
leaders at all levels if Centricais
to achieve its business goals.
Following research with our
employees, we created a clear
and concise set of behavioural
competencies for leadership
that are consistent with our
culture and values, We believe
this will create an environment
that provides the right challenges
and support to allow our people
to achieve their potential.

Based on these competencies, a
new performance management
system was developedto

provide greater clarity from

the business strategy and
management agendas to
individual objectives. The new
system seeks to create and
maintain a high performance
culture across the group with
greater emphasis on helping
to manage underperformance.
From 2004 onwards, managers
will use the behavioural
competencies to identify their
development needs and then
receive feedback on how they
aredoing.

Training programmes have
equipped managers with the
necessary support to review and
manage the performance of their
tearns. We have alsoinitiated a
riew framework across the
group that aligns individual
rewards even more closely

to business objectives.

In June, the executive
committee agreed actions to
develop talented managers
across the business. The
management talent review
enables the organisation o
plan succession for the most
senior roles in the business,
Succession plans were
developed in 2003 and used
toincrease the movemnent of
anumber of people between
brands and across functions.

In 2003, we faunched anew
range of personal and
professional development
opportunities to provide us
with a clear understanding

of the future leadership talent
within the organisation. The
programme offers our peopie

arange of opportunities to
develop their skills, whether
they are new tothe group or
existing managers facing new
challenges. Programmes cover
company induction, change
management and leadership
skills, personal effectiveness
and team building,

Qur graduate development
programme seeks to develop
future senior managers through
a thorough understanding of
the operational aspects of

our businesses, before
developing into a specialist
role. Our programme is
structured to provide a
number of key placements
including time spent within our
custorner service operation.

People development
Investors in People (IIP)
provides an ideal opportunity
o benchmark the continual
development of everyone who
contributes to our success
against arecognised standard.
The AA gained iIP accreditation
across all of its businessin
October 2002 as part of its
internal 'Just AAsk" launch and
in support of its brand values.
In November 2003, it was
announced that British Gas
had achieved business wide
recognition to the new lIP
standard, underpinning our
commitment to the development
of our people. As of November
2003, British Gas is now the
second largest business in the
UK with such accreditation.

The creation of the British Gas
Engineering Academy has

Centrica plc report 2003 19
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The creation of the British Gas Engineering
Academy has heiped us develop and re-focus
our trainéng facilties.

Wa have mainiained a low trequency of major
injuries through 8 continuing progrmmime of risk,
assessmaent, training and awiting.

Centrica is committed to continually improving
standards of cusiomer services,

helped us develop and re-focus
our training facilities to handle
the extra training requirements
for an additional 5,000 recruits
into our engineering work force.
The academy’s strategy is to use
not only our own training centres
but also to engage in
partnerships with further
education colleges. This enables
us to handie our peak training
requirements for technical
training within British Gas.

Our commitment to training has
been recognised by
government. Qur chief executive
chairg the National Modem
Apprenticeship Task Force and
Ambition:Energy, a New Deal
initiative to get unemployed
peopleinto employment. We will
be extending the concept of
modern apprenticeships into
other areas of our business
during 2004, in particular into
customerservice roles.

In 2003, the British Gas
Engineering Academny trained
more than 500 modemn
apprentices and 1,000 adult
recruits. Our Direct Energy
Essential Home Services
business in Canadais also
initiating an apprenticeship
programme and is now a
recognised, centified body to
license technicians.

Health and safety

Making proper provision for the
health, safety and welfare at
work of our employees and
others who could be affected by
the group's activities is atop
priority for our business.
Centrica's health and safety
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targets are linked to specific
performance indicators. All
targets and key performance
indicators are monitored and
reported regularly to the
Centrica board. Detailed
scrutiny of actual or potentially
significant incidents identifies
lessons to be leamed and
preventative action to be taken.
Again we are pleased to report
no fatal accidents in 2003 - the
group having experienced only
one fatality since demerger.
We have maintained a low
frequency of major injuries,
despite the significant growth
in our operational businesses.
This has been due to our
continuing programme of risk
assessment, training, team
briefs and auditing.

We introduced a number of
occupational health and safety
initiatives to highlightand
manage particular risks within
our business. Examples
included managing
occupational road risk,
managing stress in the
workplace and reinforcing our
policy on the use of mobile
phones. In North America, a
confidential Employee
Assistance Programme is
available to all employees.

British Gas was awarded the
Gas Industry Safety Award in
2003 for supporting the
furtherance of gas safety
throughout the UK and Europe.

Communicationand
engagement

Employment policies and a
range of other information are

also included on Essential, a
new intranet portal that was
launched in 2003 across all our
UK businesses. Reaching our
ermployees with relevant
information Is critical if they are
to interact productively with
colleagues and customers in
their day-to-day activities,
Feedback tothe
communications channel has
been positive and Essential will
be extended to other parts of our
business during 2004,

This year we enhanced our
ermnployee survey to get a better
insight into their engagement
with Centrica and understand
what actions are needed. The
shift from satisfaction to
engagement is consistent with
our culture and values. Seventy-
four per cent of our employees
responded to the 2003 survey
with more than 50% completing
the survey online using the
Essential intranet portal.

Marketplace

Passion for custorners is the
cornerstone of the
organisational values that we
have set for Centrica, Being
responsible in how we behavein
our customer relationships is
central to how we achieve our
company vision and how we
define our values.

Qur main brands are known and
trusted in their markets. All our
brands, new and old, share a
passion for customers and
interpret this in ways appropriate
for the markets and
communities where they
operate.

Our main impacts are in the

following areas:

* ensuring that our customers
enjoy high quality service;

* making access to our services
easy through meeting the
diverse needs of all our
customers;

¢ ensuring that our sales
techniques inspire trust and
are credible;

» offering advice to customers
on safe and responsible use of
our services; and

» ensuring our suppliers reflect
and embody our values in their
relationships with us.

Customer service

We are committed to improving
our standards of customer
service and have arange of
quality management programmes
in place across the group. We
measure customer satisfaction
on an annual basis whilstmonthly
indicators of service delivery are
reported to senior managers
throughout the group. Information
is also fed through to the Centrica
custormer service committee
who determine and monitor key
customer service targets.

This reporting process enables
us to track both the performance
of our own service delivery and
that of our suppliers inareas such
as alternative media provision
and text phone availability for
disabled people. We also
provide the facility of a voluntary
service register for older or
disabled people, sothey can
help us develop the services we
offer, and alanguage translation
service for customers whose
first language is not English.
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The Lextphone is part of our appmach o meeting
the diversa needs of cusiomers.

Raducing our amissions to alr is-one of bur key
snvimamantal objectives.

Meeting diverse needs

We have a responsibility to
meet the diverse needs of all
ourcustomers, Many need
help to benefit fully from the
services we offerand we are
investing in initiatives to
enhance customer choice,
safety and energy efficiency,
with a particular emphasis
on alleviating the burden of
fuel poverty.

Through the Energy Efficiency
Commitment programme,
British Gas provides free and
discounted energy efficiency
measures to help customers
save energy and reduce their
fuel bills.

Since the start of the
programme in April 2602

British Gas has provided energy
saving measures to over

4 million homnes, nearly 45%

of which are low income
households. We have insulated
more than 360,000 homes,
provided 1.3 million households
with energy efficient appliances,
installed 65,000 energy efficient
boilers and heating controls and
provided more than 2.3 million
homes with low energy light
bulbs. By the end of 2003,

we had delivered more than
60% of our three year energy
saving target.

At the heart of our service ethic
is acommitment to treat ali our
customners both fairly and
equally. Each month we publish
an intemal diversity report,
which looks specifically at the
services we provide to diverse
groups of customers, More than

750,000 customers are included
on British Gas, AA and OneTel
registers, advising us of their
service needs as aresult of their
age or disability.

In Britain, we send out over
17,000 alternative format

biils, statements, letters and
marketing communications
each month to our customers.
These formats include Braille,
large print and audio tape.

In August 2003, Centrica
launched a customer diversity
intranet site, to provide additional
advice and information on a
range of customer diversity
issues to our employees.

Sales

Centrica uses avariety of
channels to sell its products
and is committed to ensure
that the same standards of
responsibility apply regardless
of the sales channel, A particular
focusis face-to-face selling
through our direct sales agents.
We have reviewed our own
recruitment and training
procedures as well as
encouraged the emergence

of industry standards.

All British Gas energy sales

staff are EnengySure accredited,
showing they are appropriately
trained and registered on a
nationwide database designed
to protect consumers. As
founder-members of the
Association of Energy Suppliers
(AES), we have worked with

the industry, regulator and
consumer bodies to agree

the AES Code of Practice for
face-to-face selling.

Supplier relationships

We expect our suppliers to

have similar high standards

to our own in terms of workiorce
practices, production
procedures for goods and
services, health and safety,

and the envirpnment.

Centrica has set up ateam
dedicated to managing our
top 20 strategic supplier
relationships. Establishing this
formal group-wide relationship
with our key suppliers has
certainly proved positive and
encouraged suppliers to work
more proactively with Centrica,
enabling us to gain maximum
value from the relationships.
As agroup we have derived
significant tangible benefits
and suppliers in fum have

also benefited.

This more structured and co-
ordinated approach has
resulted in stronger group-wide
contract management for
some suppliersand ina
greater focus on process
improvement with others.
Some suppliers are now
providing consultancy, advice
and training within their fields
of expertise, This support
benefited the group by more
than £2.3 million in 2003.

Environment

We are working to ensure

that we effectively manage

ourimpacts on the

environment through:

* reducing our emissions;

s ourrenewable energy strategy;
and

+ involving our employees.

Renewable energy

We are requiredin the UK to
source 4.3% ol our electrigity
from renewable sources in
2003/2004, rising to 15.4% in
2015/2016. We continue actively
to support the development of a
traded market, to promote
development of renewables.

In July, we announced our
investment strategy for
renewable generation assets.
Theintention is eventually to
source around half of our
renewable obligation from our
own assets.

Environmental management
systems

The acquisition of gas-fired
power stations and a major gas
storage facility have influenced
our environmental impact. We
are introducing environmental
management systerms (EMS)
across all of our businesses to
manage this and to help identify
opportunities for improving our
performance. We aimto
implement an EMS that mests
the requirements of IS0 14001
across our established UK
businesses and key activities by
2005. Targets have been set for
2005 and we have so far
achieved centification for 13 of
the 15 selected businesses.
Currently, the major elements of
EMS are in place for the AA,
British Gas, power generation
and gas production.

Transport and energy

1n 2003, Centrica's commercial
vehicles covered more than
131 million miles and used 29
million litres of fuel to deliver
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o 2 major Corr
10 besitd rgnewable genontion assets,

In July, we

‘here to HELP' progreas as at 31 December 2002

Activity Status
Zones signed up 517
Households included 262,380
Zones complated 41
Housshold assessments complated 51,852
Charity referrals {of which 0% are completely new clients for tha charsities) 10,230
Complated bensfit checks 317
Total unctaimed benefits identified £1,826,537
Potantial average benefit galn per qualitying household (pa) £1.619

Anne Mintp, group dimctor, b weces,
planting a trea as part of the "Natural Gapital’
CAMPaIgn.

roadside service and install,
maintain and repair central
heating, white goods and other
productsin the home. We
prioritise fuel efficiency in new
vehicles and implement travel
and fuel reduction policies. We
also run a flest management
programme to reduce the
amount of travel by employees,
and intum reduce impact on
the environment,

We are committed to reducing
buillding energy use per
employee and increasing the
amount of waste recycled,
particularly in offices. In 2003,
energy consumption per office-
based employee was reduced
by 10%. All energy for Centrica
offices is sourced from certified
renewable supplies. Qur waste
recycling programme has
achieved significant results, the
office recycling rate rising to 48%.

Involving our employees

Our employees play avital rolein
helping usta reduce the
environmental impact of our
operations. We rely on themto
work in ways that influence our
customers and suppliers to use
our products and servicesina
more environmentaily sensitive
way,

In early 2003, we launched
‘Natural Capital’, a UK campaign
that aims toincrease levels of
employee awareness of
environmental issues and
encourage direct action through
behavioural change.

The first stage of the campaign
has targeted office employees,
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with an environmental charnpion
on each site to promote the
initiatives of the campaign.
Roadshows have been runat 24
sites and 3,000 individual
pledges have been signed.
Feedback has been very positive
and increased awarenessis
beginning to show results in
terms of the site environmental
programmes and the annual
employee survey.

Community

Our community investment
programme focuses on projects
that address social issues most
closely aligned with our
business. During 2003, we
contributed £6.6 million to
community causes, Community
contributions are measured
using the London Benchmarking
Group model that includes cash,
time and in-kind suppert and
helps us assess what these
resources really achieve forour
community partners, Our
strategy is to focus on
programmes that reflect ourcore
business, skills and experience.
The main programmes operated
by our brands are described
below including examples where
the knowledge of our
cornmunity partners has helped
us improve the experience of our
customers. In addition, our aim
is to provide opportunities for
our employees to become
involved in their communities,

British Gas

A key social issue for British Gas
is ensuring sustainable access
to energy. Through our *here to
HELP' programme, British Gas
is working in partnership with

social housing providers and
seven national charities to
improve the quality of life for
individuals and families in some
of Britain's most deprived
communities. The programme is
providing practical ways to
make homes warm, safe and
comfortable, To date, some
50,000 household assessments
have been completed resulting
in the installation of over 17,000
energy efficiency measures,
10,000 referrals to our charity
partners and the identification of
over £1.8 million of unclaimed
benefits, whichequatestoa
potential average benefit gain of
around £1,600 per qualifying
household each year.

We also engage in education,
training and job creation. British
Gas worked in partnership with
Mencap and the Employers’
Forum on Disability to publish
‘Paying your Bills'. The booklet
was developed with the helpof a
cross-section of people with a
learning disability. is aguide ta
hefp manage household bills
and covers issues including how
tofind the easiest method of
payrment, how to get support if
problems arise and tips on
saving energy and money.

In July 2003, we were delighted
o receive the Businessinthe
Community Award for
Excellence in Education and
Lifelong Learning for the British
Gas 'Think Energy’ prograrmme.
‘Think Energy' is an energy
education prograrmme for7 to 18
year olds and has reached 49%
of schools in the UK since its
faunchin 2000. It combines a

mixture of classroom leaming
and home study, helping young
people learn about the
importance of energy efficiency.
To date, more than 17,000 UK
schools have requested 'Think
Energy’ resources.

The AA

The key socialimpacts of the AA
are related motoring and
fransport issues. Qur main
impacts are road safety, for
drivers and pedestrians, and car
use impacts, such as traffic and
road management.

Centrica established The AA
Motoring Trust in 2002 to carry
forward and strengthen the AA's
historic public interest role
looking after the interests and
safety of road users. The charity
was launched in February 2003.

The Trust's key road safety
programme is its European
Road Assessment Programme
{EuroRAP), which promotes road
safety by highlighting poor road
design. EuroRAP's second set of
results were releasedin
September 2003 and the
following month 24 EU transport
ministers declared action on
dangerous roads when the
programme was launched in
ltaly. In its first year, the AA Trust
has won intemational
recognition for EuroRAP and
also received the Autocar 2003
award for safety,

The Trust also played a key role
in representing motorists' views
over congestion charging in
Londen and elsewhere in the
UK. Other workin 2003 included



Sir Rgy Gardner launched our parnecship with
Cancer Research UK, our smpioyse charity of the
yoar 2003-2004.

Focus of contribution in 2003

Centrica’s community spend is focusad on
A numbar of priority areas, bnked toissues
olevant 1o our business,

M Charitabie gifts - 4%
1§ Community investment - 69%
8 Commercial initlatves — 2%
B In-kind support - 6%

demonstrating the danger of
people talking on mobile phones
while driving, whether hand-held
or hands-free. After crash testing
child carseats, acampaign was
launched to encourage higher
safety standards.

North America

In Narth America, Direct Energy,
through our ‘direct in the
community’ programme,
focuses on social issues related
to safe and affordable housing,
especially for families, older
people and the disabled. This
work combines charitable giving
with activities designed to foster
and encourage our employees
to volunteer in their communities
and support causes they value.

Important initiatives include
support of Raising the Roof,
Canada’s only national charity
solely dedicated to finding fong
term solutions to homelessness.
Direct Energy provided
C$250,000 (£108,800) in
carporate donations and
employees raised close to
C$30,000{E13,050) during the
‘Fall Pledge’ campaign.

The mad cow disease scare of
2003 badly damaged the Alberta
beef industry. Direct Energy
donated C$50,000 (£21,800)to
the Alberta Food Bank network
and also donated C$2 for each
Albertan who contacted Direct
Energy Preterred for information
on products and services.
Through this offer, a further
C$15,000 (£6,500) was raised.

In Texas, Direct Energy supports
a ‘neighbour-to-neighbour’

programme, which helps South
and West Texas families in ¢risis
pay their home energy bills.
Following an initial contribution,
we will be contributing
US$350,000 (£213,700) to the
programrne on an annual basis.

Our employees

The Centrica employee charity
of the year is supported by the
vast majority of our UK
employees. During 2003 our
charity partner was Meningitis
Trust for which we raised more
than £500,000. We are hoping
for similar success with our
cument charity partner, Cancer
Research UK.

Launched in 2003 in North
America, the 'directin the
community’ programme also
supports our employees through
the 'Dollars for Doers’
programme. Employees who
volunteer rmore than 10 hours
per month are eligible to apply
for acorporate tlonation of up to
C$500 (£220) for the registered
charity they support. In addition,
the ‘Donated Expertise'
programme encourages
employees to provide
assistance to charitable
organisations in their community
by providing paid time off during
their working day for this
important voluntary work.

Centrica has continued its
partnership with Carers UK. In
December, we supported
‘Carers' Rights Day’, which
aimed to raise awareness of the
rights of people with caring
responsibilities and the benefits
that are available to them.

Centrica is also a member of
Employers for Carers, a group
that includes major employers,
employers' organisations and
government agencies. It
promotes the business benefits
of supporting carers in the
workplace and seeksto
influence curent employment
policy and gractice to support
carers in and into work,

Reporting and assurance

In addition to this overview of our
corporate responsibility
aclivities, there is more detailed
information available on our
website at www.centrica.com/
responsibility, We have also
produced a short, printed report
that can be accessed via the
website.

For the first time, we have
commissioned animpartial
assessment of our website
information by a specialist
extermal agency, The Corporate
Citizenship Company. It has
conducted an assurance
process on the information
presented and provided a

- commentary on our progress

lowards being a more socially
responstble company. The full
staternent is available onfine.

In summary, this commends our
systems to manage and
implement our corporate
responsibility policies, especially
the adoption this year of the
staterment of Centrica's values
and business principles. It
highlights the fact that we are
addressing responsibility issues
in our mainstream business
practice, such as customer

satisfaction, workplace morale
and the environmental impact of
our products and services, as
well as our long-standing
community engagement.

The external commentary also
identifies areas where we have
room toimprove. These include
improving performance
measurement against our stated
business principles, setting clear
{famgets for managers to achieve
and understanding better the
implications of our commitment
1o sustainability, especially for
our enengy and motoring
services businesses. We will
seek to address these issues in
everything we do.
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Board of directors

Sir Michael Perry aog

Chairman (70) AN.R.

Sir Michael! Pey bacarna chalman of
Centrica pic in 1997, He was anon-
axecutive director of British (Gas ple rom
Jung 19594 until Centrica was demerged
in February 1987. He is a member of the
Supervisory Board of Royal Ahold NV,
president of the Marketing Council,
chaimnan of the Shakespears Globa Trust
and chaiman of the Oxford University
Facuity Boarg for Management.

Sir Michae! will retira rom tha board at
tha end of the AGM on 10 May 2004,

Mark Clare

Beputy chief executive and Managing
director, British Gas (46) C.E.

Mark Clara joined British Gas plcin 1994
as group financial controlier, and was
appointed finance director of Centrica pic,
in 1997. In 2000, he was appointed daputy
chief axecutive, and from 1 January 2002,
managing director of British Gas. Heis
anon-axecutive director of BAA plc,

The Energy Saving Trust Ltd and The
Energy Retail Association Ltd.

Helen Alexander

Non-axecutive director (47) ALC.R.
Hetlen Alexander joined the board on

1 January 2003, She s chief executive

of The Economist Group, a trustes of the
Tate Gallery and an honorary fellow of

Hertiord Collage, Oxford. Formerty, she

wis anon-axecutive director of BT Group

pic and Northem Foods plc.

Sir Aoy Gardner

Chief executive (58) E.N.

Sir Roy Gamdner was appointed finance
dwector of Brtish Gas plc in 1994, From
1995, he had responsibility for the business
units which subsequentty formed Centrica
plc. Priorto joining British Gas pic, he was
managing dirsctor of GEC-Marconi Lid
and a direclor of GEC pic. He is non-
executiva chaiman of Manchester United
pic, prasident of Carers UK, chairman of
tha Employers’ Forum on Disability and
chaiman of the National Modem
Agppranticaship Task Force.

Paul Walsh

MNon-executive director (48) AR,

Paul Walsh was appainted to the board
on 1 March 2003. He is chief executive of
Diageo pkk and a non-executive director
of Federal Express Corporation and
General Mills Inc,
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Roger Wood

Managing director, the AA (61) C.E.
Roger Wood joined British Gas plc in
1996 as managing director of British
(Gas Services, and was appointed a
drector of Centrica pic in 1997.In 1999,
fotowing the acquistion of the AA business,
he becamea managing director, home &
road services. He has been managing
director of tha AA since 1.January 2002,
Bafone joining British Gas plc, he was
diractor ganaral of Matra Marconi Space
NV, group vica president of Northem
Telecom Ltd and a UK director at ICL.

Phil Bentley

Group finance director (45} E.

Phil Bantley joinad Centrica pic in 2000
from Diageo plc, where he was finance
director of GuinnessUDV. Prior to that,
he was group treasuner and director of
risk managameont of Diageo plc from
1987, and group treasurer of Grand
Metropolitan plc from 1995. Praviously,
haspent 15 years with BP. Heis alsoa
non-executive director of Kingfisher plc.

Patricia Mann oBe

Senlor non-execidive diractor (66)
ACHNR

Patricia Mann was a non-exacutive
director of British Gas ple from December
1995 until Centrica was demergedin
February 1997, She was a vice president
international of J Walter Thompson Co Ltd
and ramaing a director of JWT Trustoes
Ltd. Shais on tha board of the UK Centra
for Economic and Environmental
Davalopment and National Trust
Emterprises, and was formerty a director of
the Woolwich Building Society and Yale
and valor plc.

Roger Carr

Non-executive director (57) AR,
Reger Carr was appointed 1o the board
in 2001, He is chafrman of Mitchells &
Bullers pic, deputy chaiman of Cadbury
Schweppes plc and a senior advisar to
Hohlberg Kravis Roberts Co. Ltd. Ha was
praviously chiof executive of Williams plc
and chairman of Thames Water plc and
Chuhbb plc. Ha is a member of the
Industrial Development Advisory Board
and the CBl council. He will bacome
chairman with effect from the end of

the AGM on 10 May 2004.

Robert Tobin

Non-execiutive director [65) AR.

Rabert Tobin, a US citizen, was appointed
to the board on 1 January 2003, Ha s

a member of the Supervisory Board

of Royal Ahold NV, Batween 2000

and May 2003 he was chairman

of the board of directors of the

Worldwide Retail Exchange.

Note

Mika Alexander ard Sir Brian Shaw
ware directors until 28 February 2003
and 12 May 2003 respactivaly.

Key to membership of committees
A Audit committes

C Customer servica commitiea

E Centrica executiva committee

N Nominations conmmittes

R Remunaration committee



Directors’report

The directors present their report and the audited
financial statements of Centrica ple for the year ended
31 December 2003.

Directors

The board of directors section on page 24 gives details
of the current directors. All served throughout the year
except for Paul Walsh who was appointed as anon-
executive director on 1 March 2003,

Sir Michael Perry will retire at the end of the annual generat
meeting (AGM) to be held on 10 May 2004, having reached
the age of 70. Subject to his re-election as a director at the
AGM, Roger Carr will succeed Sir Michael Perry as chairman.

In accordance with the articles of assogciation, Phil Bentley,
Roger Camr and Mark Clare wlll retire by rotation at the 2004
AGM. Upon the recommendation of the nominations
committee, these directors will be proposed for re-election.
The board believes that Reger Carr will provide strong
leadership and wise counsel in his new role as chairman.

The biographical details of those directors being proposed
for re-election are given in the notice of AGM {full detaits of
directors' service contracts, emoluments and share interests
can be found in the remuperation report on pages 29 to 36).

Mike Alexander retired from the board on 28 February 2003
and Sir Brian Shaw retired from the board on 12 May 2003

Principal activities

The principal activities during the year were:

= the provision of gas, electricity and energy-related
products and services in Great Britain, North America
and Europe;

* the operation of gas fields in Great Britain and
North America and power stations in Great Britain;

+ gas storage in Great Britain;

+ energy trading in European and North American markets;

* rpadside assistance and other motoring services in the
UK and Europe;

* the provision of financial services in the UK and Ireland;
and

« the provision of telecommunications services in the UK.

Business review

The chairman’s statement on page 1 and the operating
and financial review on pages 6o 14 report onthe
activities of the group during the year, recent events
and any likely further business developments.

Financial results
The financial results of the group are discussed in the group
financial review on pages 1510 17 of this report.

Major acquisitions and disposals

In March, an underwritten equity offering reduced the group's
interest in the Consumers' Waterheater Income Fund {which
was set up to refinance assets acquired with Enbridge
Services Inc) from 41.9% 10 19.9% for which Centrica
received C$112 million (£46 million} in net proceeds.

In April, the 229MW Roosecote gas-fired power station,
located near to the group’s existing assets in Barrow-in-
Fumess, was acquired for £25 million. in July, the 204MW
gas-fired power station at Banry, South Wales, was
acquired for £40 mitlion. Following these acquisitions, the
company's total electricity generation capacity was
increased to 2,174MW. Details relating to investments in
renewable enengy resources are given on pages Sand 21.

In September, the sale of the Goldfish credit card and loan
business was completed for a premium of £112.5 million
above the receivables book value.

Postbalance sheetevents
Details of post balance sheet events are disclosed in note
29to the financial statements.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.7 pence per ordinary share was
paid on 12 November 2003, The directors recommend
that, subject to approval at the AGM, a final dividend of
3.7 pence per ordinary share will be paid on 16 June 2004
to those shareholders registered on 30 April 2004. This
would make a total dividend for the year of 5.4 pence per
share (2002: 4.0 pence per share).

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions are set out in note 27
on pages 6610 67.

Creditor payment policy

it is the group's policy to:

* agree the terms of payment in advance with the supplier;

» ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment;
and

= pay in accordance with contractual and other legal
obligations.

The number of days’ purchases outstanding as at
31 December 2003 was 33 {2002: 34) for the group
{excluding Accord Energy Limited) and 20 days
(2002: 41 days) for the compary.

Employment policies

During 2003, the group employed an average of 42,573
people; 39,571 were employed in the UK, 501 inthe
rest of Europe and 2,501 in North America.

The group is committed to pursuing equality and
diversity in all its employment activities and continues
to support initiatives to provide employment for
disabled people and carers. Centrica is a member

of the Employers’ Forum on Disability and the
Employers' Forumon Age.
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Directors’ report continued

The group's business principles and policies set out
standards and expectations of behaviour of its
employees in canducting business in an ethical way.
Centrica supports the principles of the UN Global
Compact on hurnan rights and labour standards,
The group encourages its business partners and
suppliers to respect and follow this approach.

Employees are regularly updated on performance against
group strategy. There are regutar employee surveys, action
planning forums and dialogue with representatives of
recognised trade unions. Employees' views are also
sought using a network of local consultative bodies.
Further details of the group’s employment policies

and employee communications can be found on

pages 18to0 20.

Employee share schemes

The group encourages employee share ownership by
operating tax authority approved share schemes opento
ali eligible employees, including executive directors,

Each year, sharesave schemes in the UK and Ireland
enable eiigible employees to acquire shares in the
company at the énd of a three or five year saving period.
A total of 17,448 employees participate in the schemes.

The company also cperates a shareincentive plan, which
enables eligible UK employees to buy Centrica shares,
subject to monthly limits, out of pre-tax pay. In addition,
the company awards one free matching share for every
two shares an emnployee buys, subject to amonthly limit
of 20 matching shares. A total of 6,398 employees
participate in the plan.

Corporate responsibility

information relating to the group’s impact on society, the
economy and the wider environment is given on pages 18
to 23. The system of intemal control, described on page 28,
covers significant risks associated with social, environment
and health and safety matters.

Charitable and political donations

An outline of the group's involvement in the community
appears on pages 22 to 23. Charitable donations in the UK
during the year amounted to £5.3 million (2002: £4.7 million).
In fine with group policy, no donations were made for
political purposes.

Share capital

The company's authorised and issued share capital as
at 31 December 2003, together with details of shares
issued during the year, is set out in note 19 on page 56.

Material shareholdings
At 9 February 2004, the following malterial shareholdings
were recorded in the register maintained in accordance

with the Companies Act 1985:

Fidelity 179,465,013 4.21%
Legal & General Group 155,268,781 3.64%
Barclays 138,903,214 3.26%
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Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed their
willingness to be reappointed as auditors of the company.
Upon the recommendation of the audit committee, a
resolution to reappoint them as the company's auditors
and authorise the directors to determine their remuneration
will be proposed at the AGM.

Authority to purchase shares

The directors were authorised at the 2003 AGM to
purchase the company’s own shares, within certain limits
and as permitted by the articles of association. Although
no such purchases have been made to date under this
authority, the directors will seek to renew this authority at
the 2004 AGM.

Corporate governance

The group is committed to high standards of corporate
governance. During the year, the board has reviewed its
governance arrangements in the light of the new
Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the new Code)
and the Guidance on Audit Committees (the Smith
Guidance} and has made changes as necessary and
appropriate. As the new Code took effect in respect of
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 Novernber
2003, this report has been prepared on the basis of the
previous Combined Code on Corporate Govemance

(the Code). Some additional disclosures have been made
as a transition towards compliance with the new Code.
Throughout the year, the company fully complied with the
provisions of the Code and applied its principles as follows:

The board

An effective board of directors leads and controls the
group. The board, which meets at least 10 times a year, has
a schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The board
is responsible for determination of strategy and major
policies; review of management performance; and
approval of the annual operating plan, the financial
statemants, major projects and corporate governance.
One of its meetings each year is substantially devoted to
the development of strategy.

Overall attendance during 2003 was 92% for the board,
B8% for the audit committee, 90% for the remuneration
committee and 100% for the nominations committee.
Non-attendance was due mainly to previously arranged
commitments of the newly appointed directors.

Comprehensive briefing papers including management
accounts are ¢irgulated to each director one week priorto
board meetings. A procedure is in place for directors to
obtainindependent professional advice in respect of their
duties. They also have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary.

The names of the directors and their details including

committee memberships, appear on page 24. All of the non-
executive directors, including the chairman, are members of
the audit and remuneration committees as the board believes
that each of them adds value to the business of those meetings.
This membership structure gives the non-executive directors



detailed insight into the nature of the matters being discussed,
brings continuity to membership and avoids undue reliance
on particular individuals. Throughout the year, the chairman
and the other non-executive directors were independent

of management and the senior independent director was
Patricia Manp. In November, the board considered the
independence of the non-executive directors (other than
the chairman) against the criteria inthe new Code and
determined that each was independent.

The non-executive directors, including the chaimman,
meet independently of managernent on a regular basis.

All directors joining the board are required to submit
themselves for election at the AGM following their
appointment, Thereafter, they are subject to re-election
every third year. The non-executive directors are initially
appointed for a three year term and, subject to review and

re-election, can serve up to a maximum of three such terms.

The directors receive ongoing training including an
induction programme tailored to meset the needs of the
individual, The directors also recelve regular updates on
changes and developments to the business, legislative
and regulatory environments.

The board has delegated authority to a number of
committees {0 deal with specific aspects of the
management and control of the group. These committees
have specific terms of reference and meet on aregular
basis. The minutes of the meetings of these committees
are made available to all the directors on a timely basis.

Executive committee

The executive committee comprises the executive
directors and the general counsel and company secretary.
It is chaired by Sir Roy Gardner. It meets weekly and
oversees the management of the group and is the decision
making body for those matters not reserved to the board
and within the limits set out in the group's delegated
authority and expenditure control policies.

There are four sub-committees of the executive
committee; the group risk management commitiee;

the group financial risk management committee; the
corporate responsibility committee; and the health,
safety and environment committee. The membership
of these committees is drawn from senior management.

Audit committee

The audit committee, which meets four times a year,
consists of the chairman and independent non-executive
directors. It was chaired throughout the year by Roger Carr.

The audit committee, which reports its findings to the

board, is authorised to:

¢ monitor the integrity of the interim and annual financial
statements, including a review of significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

* review the company’s internal financial controls and
internal conirot and risk management systems;

* monitor and review the effectiveness of the cormpany's
internal audit function; and

« establish and oversee the cormnpany's relationship
with the external auditors, including the monitoring
of theirindependence.

Note 3(v) 1o the financial statements on page 47 sets out
the group's policy to seek competitive tenders forall
major consultancies and advisory projects. The board
has approved policies that restrict the types of non-audit
work that can be undertaken by the external auditors
and restrict the employment by the group of former
employees of the external audit firms. The award of
non-audit work within categories that the extemnal
auditors are permitted to camy out under the board
approved policies is subject to pre-clearance by the
audit committee if the fee exceeds specified thresholds.
All non-audit assignments awarded to the external
auditors are reported to the audit committee ona
quarterly basis, along with a full breakdown of
non-audit fees incurred during the year.

As amatter of best practice and in accordance with
auditing standard 610, the extemnal auditors have held
discussions with the audit committee on the subject of
auditindependence and have confinmed their
independence in writing.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee, which met six times

during 2003, consists of the chairman and independent
non-executive directors. ltis chaired by Patricia Mann.
The role of this committee and details of how the company
applies the principles of the Code in respect of directors’
remuneration are set out on pages 29 to 36.

Nominations committea

The nominations committee consists of Sir Roy Gardner,
Patricia Mann and Sir Michae! Perry, who chairs it.

It makes recommendations to the board for the
appointment of replacement or additional directors.

At its three meetings during the year it considered the
succession to SirMichael Perry as chairman of the
company and, accordingly, Patricia Mann chaired

the second and third of these meetings. Having taken
advice from executive recruitment agents and having
drawn up a list of required attributes, members of the
committee gave careful consideration to a number of
individuals, both external candidates and existing
independent non-executive directors. The committee
concluded that Roger Carr was the most appropriate
person to succeed Sir Michael Perry as chairman of the
company, having sought and received assurance that
he had sufficient time available to devote to the position,
and recommended his appointment to the board.

The nominations committee is also responsible for
succession planning and board evaluvation. it is intended
that aformal evaluation of the performance of the board,
assisted by external consultants, will be undertaken
during 2004.

Customer service committee
This committee determines and monitors customer
service targets, as key drivers of the long term success
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Directors’ report continued

of the group. It was chaired on an interim basis by
Mark Clare between May 2002 and January 2003.
Helen Alexander succeeded Mark Clare as chairman
of this committee with effect from February 2003,

Relations with shareholders

The company has a programme of communication with
its shareholders, As well as share price information,
news releases and the annual report, the Centrica
website Includes speeches from the AGM, presentations
to the investment community and a section for
shareholder services.

The board believes that the AGM presents an important
opportunity for dialogue with private shareholders,

many of whom are also customers. At the AGM, the
chairman and the chief executive present a review of the
businesses of the group. Representatives from across the
group are available to answer questions both before and
after the meeting.

All shareholders have the opportunity to cast their votes at
the AGM by proxy, by post or via the internet. Sharsholders
can register to receive all their communications online,
benefiting both themselves and the company.

Centrica also holds regular meetings with its major
shargholders. The chairman attends the meeting at

which the preliminary results are presented to major
investors and analysts. Formal reports of investor feedback
are presentedio the board at least twice a year.

Internal control

The board of directors is responsible for the group's system
of internal control, which is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstaternent or loss.

Identification, assessment and management of risks
The company places great importance onintemal

control and risk management, A risk aware and control
conscious environment is encouraged throughout the
group. The board, either directly or through its committees,
sets objectives, performance targets and policies for
management of key risks facing the group, These include
strategic planning, acquisitions, political and regutatory,
investments, expenditure control, treasury, environment,
health and safety, trading and customer service.

Across the group, each business has a risk management
commitiee that seeks 1o identify, assess and advise onthe
management of operational risks. In addition, the group
risk management committee considers the risks that
might affect the company at group level, The processes of
newly acquired companies are integrated with those of the
group. Centrica Storage operates to the same standards of
internal control and risk managerment as the rest of the
group; however, as a result of undertakings given to the
Secretary of State for Trade and Industry, a high leve! of
separation is maintained between the management of
Centrica Storage and that of the rest of the group.
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Assurance

The business assurance function undertakes intermal
audit reviews according to a plan approved by the audit
committee. The results of their work are reported to the
audit committee on a quarterly basis.

The board's review of the system of internal control
The board of directors, with the advice of the audit
committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system operated (as described above)
throughout the period from 1 January 2003 to the date
of this report and is satisfied that the group complies
with the Turnbull Guidance on Internal Centrol,

Going concern

After making enquiries, the board has areasonable
expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, we continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial staterments,
which are shown on pages 38to 77.

This directors’ report has been approved by the beard
and signed on its behalf by

Ele T

Grant Dawson
General Counsel and Company Secretary
12 February 2004

Registered office:

Millstream

Maidenhead Road

Windsor

Berkshire SL4 5GD

Company registered in England and Wales No. 3033654



Remuneration report

Composition and role of the remuneration committee
The board has established a remuneration committee,
which is chaired by Patricia Mann. Helen Alexander,
Roger Car, Sir Michael Perry and Robert Tobin were
members of the committee throughout 2003, Paul Walsh
became amember when he joined the board on 1 March
2003. All members are non-executive directors and, with
the exception of Sir Michael Perry, are independent.

The committee makes recommendations to the
board, within formal terms of reference, onthe policy
and framework of executive remuneration and its cost
to the company. The commitiee is also responsible
for the implementation of remuneration policy and
determining specific remuneration packages for each
of the executive directors. It has accessto advice
provided by the group human resources director
(Anne Minto), the group head of reward (Mike New),
the company secretary (Grant Dawson), the chief
executive (Sir Roy Gardner) and external consuitants.
During 2003, the committee consuited, but did not
formally appoint, Towers Perrin, who provided information
and advice on executive compensation to assistin the
formulation of the committee's recommendations.
Towers Pemrin also provided advice to the group

on retirement benefits and non-executive directors'
fees during the year.

This report explains how the company has applied

the principles in the 1998 Combined Code on Corporate
Governance that relate to directors’ remuneration.

It will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM for approval,
No director votes on any matter relating to his or her
own remuneration.

Framework and policy on executive directors'
remuneration

The group’s remuneration policy is designed to provide
competitive rewards for its executive directors and other
senior executives, taking Into account the company's
performance, the markets in which the group operates
and pay and conditions elsewhere in the group.

In constructing the remuneration packages, the
committee aims to achieve a balance between fixed and
variable compensation for each director. Accordingly,

a significant proportion of the remuneration package
depends on the attainment of demanding performance
objectives, both short and long term. In agreeing the
level of base safaries and the annual performance
bonus scheme, the cormmittee takes into consideration
the total rermuneration that executives could receive.
The committee reviews the packages and varies individual
elements when appropriate from year to year.

To recognise performance against agreed objectives,
the committee has put in place an annual bonus scheme
for executive directors similar 1o that applying to other
senior executives in the group, Annual bonuses for
executive directors are deterrnined by the achievement
of demanding individual, business and corporate
objectives.

Under both the executive share option scheme (ESOS)
and the long term incentive scheme (LTIS) the current
practice is to make conditional awards each yearup toa
maximum of 200% and 75% of base salary respectively.
These schemes are designed to align the interests of
executive directors and other senior executives with the
longer term interests of shareholders by rewarding them
for delivering increased shareholder value.

As amatter of policy, all executive directors and certain
senior executives are expected to retain a minimum
shareholding in the company atieast equalinvalue

to the executive's base salary.

Executive directors also participate in a contributory,
final salary pension scheme (details of which are given
on pages 35 and 36).

The committee believes that these arrangements, which
are further explained below, are important in providing

a potential remuneration package that will attract, retain
and continue to motivate executive directors and senior
executives in a marketplace that is increasingly challenging
and competitive in both commercial and human resource
terms. It is intended that the cumrent remuneration policy, the
ESOS and LTS elements of which have been approved by
shareholders, will continue for 2004 and succeeding years.

In 2003, the total compensation of the executive directors,
detailed on page 32, consisted of components in the
following proportions:

Relative proportions of components of executive directors’
remuneration: 2003
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ESOS + LTS

Fixed components: @ Salary O Benafrs
Varisble components: 7 Parformance bonus

HNote: Salary and benefits are 2mounts niceived during 2003 pension is the increase

n transfer value less directors’ contributions during 2003; parformance bonus is that
paidin respect of 2003; and ESOS and LTIS are tha eslimated value of the awards mace
n 2002 based on a Black Scholes model, provided that al padormance conditions.

ans met a1 the end of the relevant pedomiansce perods. In 2003, Mike Alaxandes sanved
as a dimctor for January and February only. Because of his retiement he was not eligible
to participate in ESOS grants and LTIS allocations made in 2003, nor did he rececve s bonmus.
1 respect of the ysar. Accordingly, no part of fis rer iON Was per related.

Components of remuneration

Base salary

The commitiee seeks to establish a base satary for each
executive director deterrnined by individual performance
and having regard to market salary levels for similar positions
in comparable companies derived from independent
sources. Base salaries are reviewed annually. Base salary
is the only element of remuneration that is pensionable.

Annual performance bonus

At the beginning of each year, the committee reviews the
bonus scheme to ensure that it remains competitive in the
market and continues to incentivise the executive directors
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Remuneration report continued

and align their interests with those of shareholders. For
2003, having reviewed comparative data provided by
Towers Perrin, the committee increased the relative weight
given to financial performance targets and adjusted the
maximum bonus payable should every element of every
objective be achieved in full from 60% to 100% of base
salary. In 2003, 50% of the maximum bonus achievable
related to financial performance targets, 25% to customer
and employee satisfaction and 25% to personal
perforrmance. For executive directors with business unit
responsibilities, the scheme is structured to reflect the
perforrmance of their business unit as well asthat of the
group, No bonus at all is payable to an individual whose
agreed minimurm personal targets are not met.

Executive share option scheme (ESOS)

Options granted underthe ESOS only become
exercisable if and to the extent that performance
conditions are satisfied three years after the date

of grant. If exercisable, they remain so until the tenth
anniversary of grant. Performance conditions are
based on the extent to which growth in the company's
earnings per share (EPS growth) exceeds growth in
the Retail Prices Index {RPI growth) over a three year
performance period. EPS is calculated as fully diluted
earnings per share adjusted for exceptional charges
and goodwill amortisation. The committee believes
that this method of calculating EPS provides an
independent and verifiable measure of the
company’s performance.

In respect of each grant of options, the committee has
determined that, for the option to be exercisable in full,
EPS growth must exceed RP| growth by 18 percentage
points or more over the three year performance period.
No part of the option grant will be exercisable if EPS
growth fails to exceed RPI growth by at least 9 percentage
paints over the performance period. The proportion

of the option grant exercisable by the executive will
increase on a sliding scale between 40% and 100%

if EPS growth exceeds RP1 growth by between 9 and
18 percentage points over the performance period.

The company's EPS growth may be re-measured
annually for a further two years, but always from the
date of grant of the options, with the performance
conditions increasing proportionately. The commitiee
believes that, in relation to the ESOS, EPS growthin
excess of BP| growth is the most appropriate measure
for determining the increase in value delivered to
shareholders by the company's executive directors
and senior executives. The committee reviews the
appropriateness of the performance measure and

the specific targets set when considering each

new grant of options.

tn March 2003, options were granted to each executive
director equal to 200% of his base salary and, at the same
or lower rates, to certaln other senior executives. Details
of options granted to executive directors are shown on
page 34. ltis the company’s intention that new shares be
issued, subject to institutional guidelines, to satisfy the
exercise of options granted under the ESOS.

30 Centrica ple report 2003

Cne executive director holds an option under the
restructured executive share option scheme (RESOS).
The RESOS was put in place to replace options which
executives had previously held over British Gas plc
shares and which were cancelled at demerger. There
are ng performance conditions attaching to options
under the RESOS. Further details are given on page 34,

Long term incentive scheme (LT1S)

Allocations of shares are made annually to executive
directors and other senior executives under the LTIS.
These awards are subject to challenging performance
conditions based on the company's total shareholder
return (TSR) relative to the retumns of a comparator
group, since this ensures that the executives are not
rewanded unless the company has outperforrned its
peers in creating shareholder value. The committee has
determined that, in the absence of ameaningful *natural’
comparator group for the company, the companies
comprising the FTSE 100 atthe start of the relevant
performance period (the LTIS comparater group)
constitute the most appropriate comparator group for
the purpose of the LT1S. The committee reviews the
appropriateness of the performance measure and

the specific target set when considering each new
allocation of shares under the LTIS. In assessing the
extent of satisfaction of the performance condition,

the committee uses data provided by Alithos Limited.

Allocations made priorto May 2001 are subject to

a performance period of either three or four years

(at the participant’s choice), followed by a retention
period of two years. Changes to these arrangements
were approved at the 2001 AGM. Allocations made
from May 2001 will be released to the participant
under normal circurnstances after the three year
performance period, provided the performance
conditions have beenmet.

The actual number of shares eventually released to the
participant depends on the company’s TSR over the entire
performance period relative to the LTIS comparator group.
The maximum annual allocation of shares only vests and
is released to the executive if the company's TSR over the
performance period is ranked in 25th position or above
relative to the 92 other companies in the LTIS comparator
group. No shares vestif the TSR overthe performance
period is ranked below 50th position in the LTIS
comparator group. Between 25th and 50th position,
shares vest on a sliding scale from 100% to 40%.

I April 2003, LT1S allocations equal to 75% of base
salary were awarded to executive directors and,

at the same or lower rates, to certain other senior
executives. The maximum number of shares that
could eventually be transferred to each executive
director upon satisfaction of the performance criteria

appears on page 33.

Prior to 2002, the trustee of the LTIS bought shares
in the market to match the likely future requirernents
for shares under LTIS releases. Any shortfall will be
satisfled by the issue of new shares.
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The table above shows graphs of the company’s TSR
performance and that of the FTSE 100 index for the five
years anded 31 December 2003. As required by the
Directors' Remuneration Report Ragulations 2002, this
uses a rolling definition of the FTSE 100, whereas the
definition used for the purposes of the LTIS is the FTSE 100
as constituted at the beginning of the period. In order to
demonstrate the delivery of shareholder value during the
relevant perforrnance period, the TSR graph for the LTIS
award that vested in October 2003 is shown on page 33.

Pension

Executive directors also participate in a contributory, final
salary pension scheme (details of which are given on pages
35and 36).

Other employment benefits

In common with other senior management, executive
directors are entitled to a range of benefits, including a
company car, life assurance, private medical insurance
and a financial counselling scheme. They are also eligible,
on the same basis as other employees, to participate in
the company's inland Revenue approved sharesave

and share incentive ptans. These are apen to all eligible
employees and provide a long term savings and
investment opportunity.

Sarvice contracts

It s the company's policy for the notics period in executive
directors’ service contracls not to exceed one year. The
committee retains a level of flexibility in order to offer
contracts to new executive directors that contain an initial
notice period in excess of one year, provided that after the
first such period the notice period reduces to one year,

The executive directors' service contracts have no fixed
term but provide that either the director or the company
may terminate the employment by giving one year's
written notice and that the company may pay
compensation in lieu of notice.

The dates of the executive directors’ service contracts
are set out in the table on page 32.

Upon Mike Alexander's retirement from the board on

28 February 2003, he forfeited all of the options granted
to him under the ESOS (see the table on page 34) and the
conditional allocations of shares made to him under the
LTIS on 2 October 2000, 1 October 2001 and 2 April 2002
{see the table on page 33). The periormance targets in

respect of the allocations of shares made to himunder the
LTIS on 1 October 1998 and 7 October 1999 had previcusly
been achieved and those shares were or will be released to
him at the end of the retention periods on 30 September
2003 and 30 September 2004 respectively. Mike Alexander
has not received and will not receive any payments other
than his pension, the details of which are disclosed

on pages 35 to 36.

External appointments of executive directors

The board believes that experience of other companies’
practices and chalienges is valuable both for the personal
development of its executive directors and for the
company. ltis therefore the company’s policy to allow
each executive director to accept one non-executive
directorship of another company, although the board
retains the discretion to vary this policy. Fees are retained
by the individual director.

Non-executive directors

Non-executive directors do not hoid service contracts.
The dates of their appointment are shown in the table on
page 32. Their appointment is subject to the articles of
association. Their fees are determined having regard

to the need to attract individuals of the right calibre and
experience, the time and responsibilities entailed and the
fees paid by other companies. Their fees are approved
by the board, upon the recommendation of the executive
committee, whose members are the executive directors
listed in the second table on page 32, together with
Grant Dawson, general counsel and company secretary.
The executive committee received survey and other
information from the remuneration consultants, Towers
Perrin. The non-executive directors, including the
chairman, do not participate in any of the company’s
share schemes, incentive plans or pension schemes,

In addition to his fees as a non-executive director ofthe
company, Sir Brian Shaw received fees for consultancy
services to The Automobile Association Limited.

The remuneration report from page 28 to page 31 up to this
statement has not been audited. From this point untii the
end of the report on page 36, the disclosures, with the

- exception of the line graph on page 33, have been audited.
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ emoluments Annual Total Total
Base performance smoluments™ smoluments®
sataryftees bonus Benefits” 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000 £00CG
Executive directors Date of service contract
Mike Alexander 10 January 2002 66 - 5 k| 617
Phil Bentley 13 September 2000 440 376 27 843 647
Mark Clare 21 March 2001 448 308 N 787 626
Sir Roy Gardner 21 March 2001 768 662 50 1,480 1,098
Roger Wood 21 March 2001 403 324 30 757 608
2,125 1,670 143 3,938 3,596
Non-executive directors  pate ot appointment
Helen Alexander 1 January 2003 35 - - a5 -
Roger Carr 1 January 2001 35 - - 35 24
Patricia Mann 4 December 1996 35 - - 35 34
Sir Michael Perry 4 December 1896 200 - - 200 195
Sir Brian Shaw™ 23 September 1999 20 - - 20 54
Robert Tobin 1 January 2003 35 - - 35 -
Paul Walsh 1 March 2003 29 - - 29 -
389 - - 389 317
Total emoluments 2,514 1,670 143 4,327 3,913

() Benefits include all taxable benefits arising from employment by the company, mainly the provision of a company car.
(i) The foltowing are excluded from the table above:
(a} pensions - see pages 35 and 36.
(b) share options ~ see page 34. The aggregate of the amount of gains made by executive directors on the exercise
of share options was £1,029,874 (2002: £305,950); and
(c) long term incentive scheme - see pages 32 and 33. The aggregate value of shares vested to executive directors under
the LTIS was £1,648,680(2002; £4,630,479).
{ii) The total emoluments figure for 2002 excludes £22,000 paid to Sir Sydney Lipworth for his services as a director of the
company and one of its subsidiaries during part of that year.
{iv) The figure for Sir Brian Shaw includes fees of £7,232 {2002: £20,000) inrespect of consultancy services o The
Automobile Association Limited while a director of Centrica pic.

Directors' interests in shares

The following table and the tables on pages 33 and 34 show the beneficlal interests of the directors who held office al the
end of the year in the ordinary shares of the company and the interests of the executive directors who served during the
year in the company’s share schemes:

LNS1otal LTIS total
Sharoholdings  Sharehoidings  sliocations allocations
as ot asat ssat asat
Directors as at 31 December 2003 . o M% ! ”‘?&.’é n Mm ! “21,"5.3
Executive directors
Phil Bentley 111,188 80,095 637,330 453,857
Mark Clare 472,762 354625 835542 B40,895
Sir Roy Gardner 2360222 771,661 1,365,749 1,382,870
Roger Wood 498,080 366,011 769,692 800,876
Non-executive directors
Helen Alexander 2,800 2,800 - -
RogerCarr 4,700 4,700 - -
Patricia Mann 2,142 2,142 - -
Sir Michael Perry 25,900 15,200 - -
Robert Tobin 20,000 - - -
Paul Walsh 5,000 - - -

i) Shareholdings shown as at 1 January 2003 or subsequent date of appointment of the director.

(il Asat9 February 2004, the beneficial shareholdings of the executive directors had increased from the totals shown at
31 December 2003 by the following numbers of shares: Phil Bentley 81; Mark Clare 81; and Sir Roy Gardner 81,

{ii) Asal31 December2003, 21,200,505 shares (1 January 2003: 27,238,473) were held by the trustee of the employee
share trust for the purposes of the LTIS. As with other employees, the directors are deemed to have a potential interest
in those shares, being beneficiaries under the trust. These interests remained unchanged as at 9 February 2004.

(iv) From 1 January 2003 to 9 February 2004, none of the directors had any beneficial interests in the company's securities
other than ordinary shares, nor any non-beneficial interests in any of the company's securities, nor in those of its
subsidiary or associated undertakings.
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The following table gives details of the LTIS allocations held by executive directors who served during the year:

Vasted durng 2003 In reteation period in performance period
1 October 7 October 2 Oclober 1 October 2 Apdl 1 Apri
1956% 1999™ 2000" 2001™ 2002 2003M

Mike Alexander 178,024 142,415 - - - -

Phil Bentley - - 136,253 135,398 136,788 228,83

Mark Clare 181,431 151,703 166,066 144,547 141,792 231,434

Sir Roy Gardner 340,716 272,446 234,707 223,225 233,540 401,831

RogerWood 189,949 154,799 141,710 135,398 131,783 206,002

Market price at allocation date 118.00p 161.50p 22050p 214.50p 227.00p 148.00p

End of qualifying periogd™ 30/9/2003 30/9/2004 1/10/2005 30/9/2004 1/4/2005 31/3/2006
Market price at vesting date™? 185.22p

i Attheend of the perfformance period to 30 September 2001, the company ranked in fourth position in the relevant
LTS comparator group. Accordingly, 100% of the allocations were released on the vesting date of 1 October 2003
following the expiry of the two year retention period. These shares were subject to income tax at the individual’s
marginal rate and national insurance contributions {NICs) at the rate of 1%, based on the market value of the shares at
the date of vesting. The income tax and NICs liability was satisfied by the sale of sufficient shares and, accordingly, the
directors only received the net number of shares fallowing disposal, which is reflected in the shareholdings as at
31 December 2003 in the second table on page 32.

(i) Attheend of the performance period to 30 September 2002, the company ranked fourth in the relevant LTIS
comparator group. Accordingly, 100% of the allocations are being held in trust for a further two years, at the end
of which time they will be released to the directors at the trustee's discretion.

(i) Atthe end of the performance period to 1 October 2003, the company ranked in fortieth position in the relevant LTIS
comparator group, Accordingly, 75% of the onginal allocations are being held in trust for a further two years, at the end
of which time they will be released to the directors at the trustee's discretion.

{iv) The respective performance periods relating to these allocations will end on 30 September 2004, 1 April 2005 and
31 March 2008. ¥, and to the extent that, the performance conditions are met, the allocations will vest and the relevant
number of shares will be released to the directors at the trustee's discretion.

{v) Details of the treatment of allocations on Mike Alexander's retirement from the board on 28 February 2003 appear
on page 31.

{vi) The end of the qualifying period is the date on which itis judged whether or not the qualifying conditions
{see LTIS section on page 30} have been fulfilled.

{vif) The vesting date was the next business day after the end of the qualifying period.

The following table, which has not been audited, shows the TSR performance of Centrica and the relevant TSR
cormnparater group over the qualifying peried relating to the LTIS allocation that vested on 1 October 2003:

TSH indices - Centrica and FYSE 100: October 1988 LTIS allocation

300 ' Performance period Relantion period
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W FTSE 100 companies &s 81 October 1998 Source: Althos Lid
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Directors’ interests in share options
Ful details of the options over ordinary shares in the company held by executive directors who served during the year and
any movements in those options in the year are shown below:

Options Cpitiors

held as at Options Oprtions Options heid saat Exercise Date from
1.January granted sxarclsad lapsad 31 December price which Expiry
2003 during year dudngyea™  duringyesr 2009 {pence]  exercisable date
Mike Alexander
ESOgS® 308,269 - - 308,269 - 240,050 Jun2004 May2011
ESOS® 351,423 - - 351,423 - 224,800 Apr2005 Apr2012
Sharesave® 14,867 - 14,9679 - - 92200 Jun2003 Nov2003
Sharesave™ 1,863 - - 1,863 - 177.600 Jun2007 Nov2007
676,522 - 14,967 661,555 -
Phil Bentley
ESQS? 308,269 - - - 308269 240.050 Jun2004 May2011
ESOS® 364,768 - - ~ 364,768 224.800 Apr2005 Apr2012
ESOS? — 559,345 - - 559,245 146.600 Mar2006 Mar2013
Sharesave® 5,071 - - - 5071 191.000 Jun2004 Nov2004
678,108 559,345 - - 1,237,453
Mark Clare
ESOs® 329,098 - - - 329,098 240.050 Jun2004 May2011
ESO3® 378,113 - - - 378,113 224800 Apr2005 Apra2012
E308? - 579,809 - - 579,809 146600 Mar2006 Mar2013
Sharesave™ 9,318 - - - 9,318 177600 Jun2007 Nov2007
RESOS™ 177,645 - - - 177645 81.060 Oct1897 Oct2004
894,174 579,809 - - 1,473,983
Sir Roy Gardner
ESOS® 508,227 - - - 508,227 240.050 Jun2004 May2011
ESOS" 622,775 - - - 622,775 224.800 Apr2005 Apr2012
ESQOS® - 954,979 - ~ 954979 146.600 Mar2006 Mar2013
Sharesave™ 9,318 - - - 8,318 177.600 Jun2007 Nov2007
RESOQSH 1,336,446 - 1,336,446" - - §1.885 Nov1997 Nov2004
2,476,766 954,979 1,336,446 - 2,095,299
Roger Wood
ESOSP 308,269 - - - 308,269 240.050 Jun2004 May2011
ESOS® 351,423 - - - 351,423 224.800 Apr2005 Apr2012
ESOS® - 538,881 - -~ 538,881 146,600 Mar2006 Mar2013
Sharesave® 9,318 - - - 9318 177.600 Jun2007 Nov2007
669,010 538,851 - - - 1,207,891
() Executive share option scheme (ESOS)

0

(i)

Options were granted to executives under the terms of the Centrica executive share option scheme on 31 May 2001,
2 April 2002 and 24 March 2003. Details of the operation of this schermne are provided on page 30.

Sharesave scheme

The company operates an Inland Reveriue approved all-employee savings related share option scheme, The scheme
is designed to provide a long term savings and investment oppontunity for employees and is described on page 26.
Restructured executive share option scheme (RESOS)

Options granted to company employees under the British Gas plic executive share option scheme prior to February
1997 were cancelled and replaced at demerger by non-Inland Revenue approved options to acquire Centrica shares.
The replacement options were granted on the same terms as British Gas executive share options, with the same
exercise date and aggregate exercise price per share, and the number of shares piaced under option was adjusted to
take account of the demerger. No further options have been or will be granted under this scheme.

{iv) Exercise of share options

Options were exercised at the following dates and prices:
(a) 28 August 2003 at 177 pence; and
(b) 4 April 2003 at 158 pence.

The closing price of a Centrica ordinary share on the last trading day of 2003 (31 December) was 211 pence. Therange
during the year was 212.75 pence (high) and 131.5 pence (low).
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Directors’ pensions
The pension arrangements for the executive directors, all of whom are members of the Centrica pension scheme,
are shown below.

The Centrica pension scheme is a funded, Inland Revenue approved, final salary, occupational pension scheme,
its rules provide for the following main features:
+ normal retirernent at age 65 (see note on normal retirement age belowy);
* right to an immediate, unreduced pension on retirement at age 60,
* right to an immediate, unreduced pension on leaving service after age 55, subject to 10 years' service and
company consent;
¢ right to an immediate, unreduced pension an leaving service on reorganisation or for redundancy after age 50;
+ life assurance cover of four times pensicnable salary;
+ spouse's pension on death in setvice payable at the rate of two thirds of the member’s prospective pension and,
on death after retirement, two thirds of accrued pension. Children’s pensions are also payable;
* members’ contributions payabie at the rate of 4% of pensionable eamings;
* pension payable in the event of retirement due to ill health;
* pensions in payment and in deferment guaranteed to increase in line with the increase in the RP(; and
* no discretionary practices are taken into account in calculating transfer values, -

All benefits are subject to Inland Revenue limits. Where such limitation is due to the eamings ‘cap’, benefits are increased
to the level that would otherwise have been paid and are provided via the Centrica unapproved pension scheme. This
scheme is unfunded but the benefits are secured by a charge over Centrica’s assets to give security equivalentto the
pensions provided to other employees. An appropriate provision in respect of their accrued value has been made inthe
compariy’s balance sheet.

Normal retirement age

Having considered external market practice and the retirement provision made within Centrica for other senior managers,
it has been agreed that the executive directors and certain other senior executives will be offered a one-off opportunity to
leave the Centrica pension scheme and join the Centrica management pension scheme, This offer is consistent with the
historical treatment of the Centrica senior management population.

The Centrica management pension scheme has a normal retirerment age of 82. Individual accrual rates in respect of past
and future service will be increased so that the pension expectations of individuals transferring across will be the same

at the retirement age of 62 as they would have been had they retired at age 85. Noindividual transferring will receive benefits
tfrom Centrica which when added to their retained benefits elsewhere exceed two thirds of their final pensionable salary.
Further, any request for early retirement will require company consent.

'For those members who are affected by the operation of the earnings ‘cap’, Centrica provides top up benefits via
an unapproved arrangement. The benefits that arise under this are treated as being subject to the same rules
as apply in respect of the approved portion of the members' benefits.

Pension benefits earned by directors (£}

Transter
value of the
increasein

Accruad Accrued Transter Transter Ditference accrued
pension as ai PONSIOn as At incroase vaiue as £t valueasal Cortributions in transter pension
310ecamber 31 December inaccrued 31 December 31 December paidin vales less exchuding

2008" 2002 pansion® 2003 2002 2003™  contrib Inflation™
Mike Alexander**#~ 180,000 176,700 3,300 4,070,400 2,598,800 2,430 1,469,170 -
Phil Bentley¥ 31,700 18,600 12,100 335,500 196,400 14,782 124,318 107 471
Mark Clargt 89,900 74,300 15,600 1,008,300 793,000 14,782 200,518 136,851
Sir Roy Gardner™ 233,400 183,400 50,000 3,885,000 2,883,800 14,782 986,418 732,004
Roger Wood"®? 103,400 89,300 14,100 2,004,700 1,645,400 14,782 344,518 210,109

) Accrued pension is that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 65, based on eligible service to
31 December 2003,

{fii Theincrease in accrued pension during the year excludes any pension arising from additional voluntary contributions.
The increase in accnued pension adjusted to exclude inflation may be derived by discounting the figure in the first
column by the rate of inflation (2.8 % - see note (iv)) and subtracting the figure in the second column.

(i} Contributions were paid in the year by the directors under the terms of the scheme up to the maximum rate of 15%
of the earnings ‘cap’.

{iv) The rate of inflation used was 2.8%, the annual rate to 30 September 2003, the date used for pension increases
under the scheme.

(v} The accrued pension shown for Mike Alexander includes a credit in relation to a transfer from a previous
employer's pension scheme,
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(vi) With effect from 1 January 1998, the pensions for Mike Alexander and Mark Clare have accrued at the rate of
2.26% (approximately '/«) and 2.28% (approximately /«) of pensionable salary respectively for each year of
pensicnable service. Pensions in relation to service prior to 1 January 1998 will continue to accrue at the rate of

1.67% (/=) of pensionable satary.

{vii} Mike Alexander retired from the Company on 28 February 2003. In accordance with the rules of the scheme he
receives an unreduced pension. The significant increase in the transfer value between 31 December 2002 and
31 December 2003 is almost all accounted for by the fact that the pension is now in payment whereas, as at
31 December 2002, it was calculated on the basis of an assumed retirement date at age 60. Because the increase
in the amount of pension is less than the rate of inflation {see note (iv)) no figure is given in the final column of the
table. This is because that column is derived from the increase in pension as distinct from the increase in the value

of the pension,

{viiliThe pension for Phil Bentley accrues at the rate of 2.31% {approximately */«3) of pensionable salary for each year

of pensionable service.

{ix} The pensions for Sir Roy Gardner and Roger Wood accrue at the rate of 3.33% (/) of pensionable salary per year

of service,

(x) Had the change in normal retirement age for individuals referred to above been implemented at 31 December 2003
itwould have resulted in the transfer value of the increase in accrued pension excluding inflation for Phil Bentley,
Mark Clare, Sir Roy Gardner and Roger Wood being £156, 155, £344,343, £1,640,835 and £937,152 respectively;
and the increase in accrued pension for those directors being £16,700, £34,000, £104,600 and £51,600 respectively.

This report on remuneration has been approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

Fole T

Grant Dawson
General Counsel and Company Secretary
12 February 2004

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
staterments for each financial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the group
and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements the directors are

required to:

* salect sultable accounting policies and then apply
themn consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and pnudent;

* state whether applicable accounting standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial staternents on the going concern
basis, unless it is inappropriate to presurne that the group
will continue in business,
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The directors confinm that they have complied with the
above requirernents in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsibie for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the company and

the group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statemnents comply with the Companies Act 1985,

They are also responsible for saleguarding the assets

of the company and the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other itregutarities.



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Centrica plc

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Centricaplc

We have audited the financial statements which comprise
the profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the cash
flow statement, the statement of total recognised gains
and losses and the related notes, which have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and the
accounting policies $et out in the principal accounting
policies note. We have also audited the disclosures
required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A 10 the Companies Act
1885 contained in the directors’ remuneration report
(‘the auditable part’).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual
report, the directors’ rermuneration report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and accounting standards are set out in the statement
of directors’ responsibilities. The directors are also
responsible for preparing the directors' remuneration report.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements
and the auditable part of the directors' remuneration
repart in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and United Kingdom Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. This report
including the opinion has been prepared for and only
for the company's members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
orto any other person to whom this report is shown

or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements and the auditable part of the
directors’ remuneration report have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985.
We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’
report is not consistent with the financial statements,

if the company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual
report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information comprises only the directors' report, the
unaudited part of the directors' remuneration report, the
chainman’s statement, the chief executive's staterment, the
operating and financial review, the group financial review,
the staternent of corporate responsibility, the corporate
governance statement and the gas and liquids reserves.

We review whether the carporate governance staternent
reflects the company's compliance with the seven
provisions of the Combined Code issued In 1998 specified
for our review by the |isting Rules of the Financial Services

Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required
to consider whether the board’s statements on intemal
control cover all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the company's or group’s corporate
govemance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents
and the auditable part of the directors' remuneration report.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all

the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence

to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the auditable part of the directors' remuneration report
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other imegularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion;

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and the group at
31 December 2003 and of the profit and cash flows
of the group for the year then ended;

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

¢ those parts of the directors’ remuneration report
required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies
Act 1985 have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985,

PWW P

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

12 February 2004
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Financial statements

2000 2002
Rosults Rasudts
for the year Goodwill {orthe year Goodwil
before goodwill  amortisation befora goodwill amoertisaticn
amoctisation and l:‘uld mmﬂ)rmmnm _am:l Fesults for
Group profit and loss account exceplional  axcopt exceptional - exoepiional
Year e;r::ded 31 December Nates “"‘E d‘“n: h”e: mﬁ mlg;: mﬁ
Turnover:
Group and share of joint ventures’ tumover—
continuing operations 18,177 - 18,177 14,429 - 14,429
Less share of joint ventures’ turnover (347) - (347) {207) - (207)
Group tumover — continuing operations 17,830 - 17,8630 14,222 - 14,222
Discontinued operations 101 - 1m 123 - 123
Group turnover 2 17,931 - 17,931 14,345 - 14,345
Cost of sales 3 {14,579 - (14572 (11,358} - {11,358
Gross profit 3,359 - 3,359 2,987 - 2,987
Operating costs 3 (2,367} (155) (2,522) {2.108) (116} (2,224)
Group operating profit: ;
Continuing operations 1,049 (144) 875 919 (102) 817
Discontinued operations 27} (11) (38) (40) (14) {54)
892 {155) 837 879 {116) 763
Share of operating profit/{loss) in joint ventures
and associates - continuing operations 2 66 6} 60 53 ) 46
Operating profit including joint
ventures and associates:
Continuing operations 2 1,085 (150) 935 972 (109) 863
Discontinued operations 2 2n (11} (ﬁ (40} {14) {54)
2 1,058 (161) 897 932 (123) 809
Continuing operations:
Loss on closure of business 4 - i9) 18 - - -
1 0ss on disposal of business 4 - - - - {14) (14)
Loss ondisposal of fixed assets 4 - - - - (14) (14)
Discontinued operations:
Loss on disposal of business 4 - (51) {51) - - -
4 - 67} {67) - (28) (28)
Net interest payable:
Group (36} - {36) @7 - @7
Share of joint ventures and associates {16) - {16} {15) - (15)
6 (52) - (52) (62} - 62)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,006 (228) 778 870 {151) 719
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 7 (282} 16 {266) (243 K] (250}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
for the year 724 {212} 512 627 (158) 469
Minority ihterests (equity and non-equity) 22 (10} {2 (12) 9 - )
Profit atiributable to the group 714 {214) 500 636 {158) 478
Dividends 8 {229) (172)
Transfer to reserves 20 271 306
Penca Pence Pence Pence
Earnings per ordinary share
basi¢ 9 11.8 11.4
diluted 9 11.6 11.3
adjusted basic 9 16.8 15.2

The notes on pages 41 to 73 form part of these financial staterments.
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Group balance sheet

31 December Notes = i
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 10 1,614 1,813
Tangible assets 11 2,730 2,763
Investments:
Share of gross assets of joint ventures 12 1,014 810
Share of gross liabilities of joint ventures 12 {920) (736)
12 94 74
Other investments 12 20 28
4,458 4,678
Current assets
Stocks 13 173 180
Debtors:
Debtors (amounts falling due within one year) 14 2,921 2,692
Debtors (amounts falling due after more than one year) 14 117 134
Goldfish Bank debtors (amounts falling due within one year) 14 - 781
Goldfish Bank debtors (amounts faliing due after more than
one year) 14 - 11
14 3,038 3618
Current asset investments 15 992 320
Cash at bank and in hand 34 28
4,237 4,146
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
Bommowings 16 (298) (289)
Goldfish Bank borrowings 16 - (430)
Other amounts falling due within one year:
Creditors 17 (3,698) (3,249}
Goldfish Bank customer deposits 17 - {286)
17 {3,698) {3,535)
{3,996} {4,254)
Net current assets/{liabilities) : 241 (108)
Total assets less current liabilities 4,699 4,570
Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year}
Borrowings 16 (781) (784)
Creditors 17 104} (122
(8s5) (906)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 {1,060) (1,262)
Net assets 2,754 2,402
Capital and reserves —equity interests
Called up share capital 19 237 236
Share premium account 20 549 537
Merger reserve 20 467 467
Profit and loss account 20 1,284 1,008
Shareholders' funds 21 2,537 2,248
Minarity interests (equity and non-equity) 22 217 154
Capital employed 2,754 2,402

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 12 February 2004 and were signed on its behalf by:

ol Fketan

Sir Michael Perry gse Phil Bentley
Chairman Group finance director

The notes on pages 41 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements continued

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Year ended 31 December Notes - =
Profit for the year 500 478
Exchange translation differences {4) {8)
Total recognised gains and losses for the year 495 470
Profit for the year includes joint ventures' and associates' profit after tax of £32 million (2002: £15 million).
Group cash flow statement 2008 2002
Year ended 31 Decemnber Notes £m £m
Cash inflow from continuing operating activities 1,203 722
Cash outflow from discontinued operating activities® (301) {5)
Cash inflow from operating activities 24a 992 717
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 28 57
Returns on investments and servicing offinance 24b {(15) (25)
Taxation paid 24c (181) (192)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 24d (282) (402)
Disposals and acquisitions 24e 292 (935}
Equity dividends paid (182) {138)
Cash inflow/(outfiow) before use of liquid resources and financing 652 (918)
Management of liquid resources 24f (669) 134
Financing 24g (13} 747
Decrease innet cash (30} (37)
() Cash outflow from discontinued operating activities in 2003 includes the repayment of the Goldfish Bank savings
deposits of £286 million.
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in debt,
net of cash and current asset investments 2003 202
Year ended 31 December Noles £m &m
Decrease innet cash (30) @37
Repayment of Goldfish Bank warking capital facility 430 180
Cash outflow/(inflow) from decrease/{increase)in other debt and lease financing 53 {117)
Cash outflow/{inflow) from increase/(decrease) in liquid resources 669 (134)
Change in debt, net of cash and cumment asset investments
resulting from cash flows 1,122 (108)
Exchange adjustments (20) )
Movement in debt, net of cash and cumrent asset investments 1,102 (112)
Debt, net of cash and cumrent asset investments, at 1 January (1,155) {1,043}
Debt, net of cash and current asset investments, at 31 December 24h (53) (1,155}
Of which:
Net cash/{debt) (excluding Goldfish Bank and non-recourse debt) 163 {529
Goldfish Bank working capital facility - {430)
Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund (nen-recourse) debt {216) {1986)
(53) (1,155)

The notes on pages 41 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

Accounting principles

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicabte accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention and the Companies
Act 1985 except for the accounting policy for energy
trading activities, Further details explaining this departure
are contained in note 28(f) to the financial statements.

The accounting policies, where applicable, arein
accordance with the SORP issued by the Gil Industry
Accounting Committea entitled Accounting for Oil
and Gas Exploration, Davelopment, Production and
Decommissioning Activities.

Basis of preparation

The group financial statements consolidate the accounts
ofthe company, all of its subsidiary undertakings and
incorporate the results of its share of all joint ventures

and associates. The results of undertakings acquired

are consolidated from the date the group gains control.

No profit and loss account is presented for the company
as permitied by Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985.

The Consumers' Waterheater Income Fund has been
consolidated as a quasi-subsidiary in accordance with
FRS 5 Reporting the Substance of Transactions.

Ajoint venture is an entity in which the group has along term
interest and shares control with one or more co-venturers.
The consolidated financial statements include the group
portion of tumover, operating profit or loss, exceptional
items, interest, taxation, gross assets and gross liabilities
of the joint venture {the gross equity method).

An associated undertaking (associate) is an entity in which
the group has along term equity interest and over whichiit
exercises significant influence. The consolidated financial
statements include the group portion of the operating
profit or loss, exceptional items, interest, taxation and

net assets of associates (the equity method).

Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net
of trade discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Energy supply: Turnover for energy supply activities
includes an assessment of energy supplied to customers
between the date of the last meter reading and the year
end (unread). Unread gas and eiectricity is estimated
using historical consumption patterns and is included

in accrued energy income within debtors.

Energy trading: Turmnover comprises amounts realised
from physical sales of natural gas and electricity
recognised in the period of delivery.

Storage services: Storage capacity revenues are
recognised evenly over the contract period, whilst
commaodity revenues for the injection and withdrawal
of gas are recognised at the point of gas flowing into
or out of the storage facilities.

Home services: Where the group has an ongoeing obligation
to provide services, revenues are apportioned on a time
basis and amounts billed in advance are treated as
deferred income and excluded from current tumover.

AA road services: Membership subscriptions are
apportionad on atime basis over the period of
the membership,

Financial services: Turnover includes interest, fees and
commissions receivable from financial services agtivities.

Telecomrnunications: Turnover is recognised on the
basis of telephony services provided to customers
in the financial period.

Costofsales

Energy supply includes the cost of gas and electricity
produced and purchased, and related transportation,
royalty costs and bought in materials and services. Gas
production costs include petroleum revenue taxes (PRT)
calculated on a unit of production basis, with changesin
estimates dealt with prospectively over the remaining lives
of gas fields. Home services cost of sales include direct
labour and related overheads on installation works, repairs
and service contracts. AA road services cost of sales
includes AA patrol and third party agents costs, as well

as central deployment costs. Financial services cost of
sales includes finance charges on working capital facilities
used to finance banking receivables and interest payabie
on customer deposits.

Employee share schemes

The group has a number of employee share schemes,
detailed in the directors' report on page 26 and on pages
30to 31. As permitted by UITF Abstract 17, the group does
not recognise the difference between market value and
option price to employees in relation to the UK and Irish
sharesave schemnes within the profit and loss account, on
the basis that the schemes are offered to alf employees in
those countries. The cost of potential share awards under
the group’s long term incentive scheme is charged

tothe profit and loss account over the period to which the
performance criteria of each allocation relates. Cost is
defined as the difference between the contribution
receivable from employees and the market value at the
date of grant, or the actual cost of shares where market
purchases are made at, or around, grant date. Cost also
includes provision for employer's National Insurance
charges expected to arise al exercise dates.

Research and development expenditure
Research and developrment expenditure is charged
to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies

are translated into sterling at closing rates of exchange.
The results of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint
ventures are translated into sterding at average rates of
exchange for the relevant period. Differences resulting from
the retranslation of the opening net investrment in overseas
subsidiary undertakings and from the retranslation of the
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Principal accounting policies continued

opening net assets and the results of these entities for the
year are taken to reserves, and are reported in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Exchange differences on foreign currency bomowings,
foreign cumrency swaps and forward exchange contracts
used to finance or hedge foreign cumrency net investments
in overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures
are taken directly to reserves and are reported in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses. All other
exchange movements are recognised through the profit
andloss account.

Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business
acquired after 1 January 1998 Is included in the balance
sheet at cost, less accurnulated amortisation and any
provisions for impaimment. On the acquisition of a
subsidiary undertaking (including unincorporated
businesses), joint venture or associate, fair values are
attributed to the assets and liabilities acquired. Goodwill,
which represents the difference between the purchase
consideration and the fair values of those net assets,

is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over
a period which represents the directors’ estimate of its
useful economic life, Goodwilt which arose on acquisitions
after 1 January 1998 is being amortised over periods
ranging from 5 to 20 years. Goodwill which arose priorto
1998 was written off directly to the profit and loss reserve.
If an undertaking is subsequently sold, the appropriate
unamortised goodwill or goodwill written off to reserves
is dealt with through the profit and loss account inthe
period of disposal as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are included in the balance sheet
at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
provisions for impairment.

Inthe case of investments in customer relationship
management (CRM) and other technology infrastructure,
cost includes contractors' charges, materials, direct labour
and directly attributable overheads. Capitalisation begins
when expenditures for the asset are being incumed and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for use
are in progress. Capitalisation ceases when substantially
allthe activities that are necessary to prepare the asset

far use are complete. Depreciation commences at the
point of commercial deployment.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other tangible fixed assets,
except exploration and production assets, are depreciated
on astraight-line basis at rates sufficient to write off the
cost, less estimated residual values, of individual assets
over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation pericds
for the principal categories of assets are as follows:

Freehold and leasehold buildings upto50years
Plant 5to 20 years
Power stations 20years
Equipment and vehicles Jto10years
Storage upto 28 years

42 Centrica ple report 2003

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic life.

Exploration and production assets are capitalised
using the successful efforts method and depreciated
from the commencement of production In the fields
concerned, using the unit of production method,
based on all of the proven and probable reserves of
those fields. Changes in these estimates are dealt
with prospectively. The net carrying value of fields in
proeduction is compared on a field-by-field basis, with
the likely future net revenues to be derived from the
estimated remaining commercial reserves. A provision
is made where it is considered that recorded amounts
are unlikely to be fully recovered from the net present
value of future net revenues.

Leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised
and included in tangible fixed assets at cost. The
obligations relating to finance leases, net of finance
charges in respect of future periods, are included
within borrowings. The interest element of the rental
obligation is allocated to accounting pericds during
the lease term to reflect the constant rate of interest
onthe remaining balance of the obligation for each
accounting period. Rentals under operating leases
are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-
line basis.

Asset impairments

intangible and tangible fixed assets are reviewed for
impairments if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
When a review for impairment is conducted, the
recoverable amount is assessed by reference to the

net present value of expected future cash flows of the
relevant income generating unit or disposal value, if higher.
if an asset is impaired, a provision is made to reduce the
camying amount to its estimated recoverable amount.

Investments

Other fixed asset investments are included in the balance
sheet at cost, less accumulated provisions for amortisation
and any impairment.

Cunrent asset investments are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net
realisable value.

Take or Pay contracts

Where payments are made to external suppliers under
Take or Pay obligations for gas not taken, they are
treated as prepayrnents and included within debiors.

Decommissioning costs

Provision is made for the net present value of the estimated
cost of decommissioning gas production facilities at the
end of the producing lives of fields, and decommissioning
storage facilities at the end of the useful life of storage



1 Principal accounting policies continued

facilities based on price levels and technology at the
balance sheet date. Changes in these estimates are dealt
with prospectively. When this provision gives access to
future economic benefits, a decommissioning asset is
recognised. The decommissioning asset is amortised
using the unit of production method, based on proven and
probable reserves. The unwinding of the discount on the
provision is included in the profit and loss account within
the netinterest charge.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

Pensions and other post retirement benefits are accounted
forin accordance with SSAP 24 Pension Costs. Additional
disclosures are also made in the notes to the financial
statements as required under FRS 17 Retirement Benefits.
The cost of providing retirement pensions and other
benefits is charged to the profit and loss account over the
periods benefiting from employees’ service. The difference
between the charge to the profit and loss account and the
contributions paid to the pension schermes is shown as

a provision in the balance sheet. The regular pension cost,
variations from the regular pension cost and interest are

all charged within employee costs, and the straight-line
method is applied for amortising surpluses and interest.

Long term sales contracts

Provision is made for the net present cost, using a risk free
discount rate, of any expected losses on long tenm sales
contracts, which at inception are onerous. The provision
is based on the difference between the contracted sales
price and the expected weighted average cost of gas.

Taxation

Cumrent tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax,
is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at

the balance sheet date where transactions or events

that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future

or aright to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences
between the group's taxable profits and its resuits as
stated inthe financial statements that arise from the
inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessmentsin
periods different from those in which they are recognised
in the financial statements.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits in
the foreseeable future from which the reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is not recognised when fixed assets are
revalued unless, by the balance sheet date, thereisa
binding agreement to sell the revalued assets and the

gain or loss expected to arise on sale has been recognised
in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not recognised

when fixed assets are sold and it is more likely thannot
that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged
to tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the retained
eamnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates only

to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends
have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement
to distribute past eamings in the future has been entered
into by the subsidiary or associate.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that

are expected to apply in.the perods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based ontax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Financial instruments

a) Debtinstruments

Debt instruments are stated at the amount of net
proceeds received after deduction of issue costs,
adjusted to amortise any discount or premium evenly
over the term of the debt.

b) Derivative financial instruments

The group uses a range of derivative financial instruments
for both trading purposes and to manage {hedge)
exposures to financial isks, such as interest rate, foreign
exchange and energy price risks arising in the normat
course of business. The accounting treatment for these
instruments is dependent on whether they are entered into
for trading or non-trading (hedging) purposes. A derivative
instrument is considered to be used for hedging purposes
when it alters the risk profile of an underying exposure of
the group in line with the group’s risk management policies.
In addition, there must be a demonstrable link to an
underlying transaction, poo! of transactions or specified
future transaction or transactions. Specified future
transactions must be reasonably certain to arise for the
derivative to be accounted for as a hedge.

A discussion on how the group manages its financial risks
isincluded in the group financial review on pages 15to 17.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for as follows:

Energy trading activities: The group engages in swaps,
futures, forwards and options in gas, electricity and
weather, for trading purposes. Financial and physical
trading positions are marked to market using extemally
derived market prices. Marked to market gains and losses
are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account,
within cost of sales. This is a departure from the
Companies Act 1985 as disclosed within note 28(f).

The comesponding fair value debtors or creditors

are included within the balance sheet.

Energy hedging activities: The group engagesin gas,
electricity, oil and weather derivatives to hedge against
price exposures arising within the energy supply,
procurement and retail operations. The derivatives are
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Principal accounting policies continued

matched to the specific exposures they are designed
to reduce, with gains and losses recognised in the profit
and loss account in the same period as the income and
costs of the underlying hedged transactions.

Treasury hedging activities: The group uses interest rate
swaps, forward rate agreements, foreign cumency swaps
and forward exchange contracts to manage exposures
tointerest rates arising on underlying debt and cash
positions or probable future cormmitments and foreign
exchange risks arising on foreign currency assets and
bommowings, foreign currency forecasted transactions
and the retranslation of overseas net investments.
Altinstruments are used for hedging purposes to alter
the risk profile on existing underlying exposures and
probable future commitments in fine with the group's
risk management policies.

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest
rate swaps and forward rate agreements are recognised
as adjustments to the net interest charge over the term
ofthe contracts,

Curmrency swap agreements and forward exchange
contracts are retranslated at the rates ruling in the
agreements and contracts. Resulting gains or losses
are offset against foreign exchange gains orlosses
on the related bormowings or, where the instrument

is used to hedge a committed future transaction,

are deferred untll the transaction occurs. Where used
to hedge overseas net investments, gains or losses
are recorded in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses, with interest recorded in the profit
and loss account.

Where derivatives used to manage interest rate risk or
to hedge other anticipated cash flows are terminated
before the underlying debt matures or the hedged
transaction occurs, the resulting gain or loss is recognised
on a basis that matches the timing and accounting
treatment of the underiying debt or hedged transaction.
When an anticipated transaction is no longer likely to
oceur or finance debt is terminated before maturity,
any deferred gain or loss that has arisen on the refated
derivative is recognised in the profit and loss account,
together with any gain or loss on the terminated item.

Comparative figures

Where the presentation of the financial statements and
notes has been revised, prior year amounts have been
reclassified in line with the revised presentation. The profit
and loss account, balance sheet and notes 2, 3,5, 13, 14,
17 and 28 are affected by this change.
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2 Segmental analysis
The segmental analysis reflects, in the opinion of the directors, how the group's activities were managed during the year.

Operating profit/oss) Operaling profit/lioss}
before goodwill afler goodwill
amortisation, including amartisation, lncluding
share ol resuits ol joint share of resuts of joint
Tumaover ventures and associates vertures and associates Net assets/fliabilities)
yoar ended 31 Dacember yoarended 31 December year ended 31 Cecambar 31 Decomber
. 2003 2002 2000 2002 2009 2002 200 2002
a) By business segment tm em [ &m £m tm £m £m
Continuing operations:
Residential energy 5,289 5,185 136 218 136 218
Home services 847 810 84 61 83 60
British Gas
Communications 56 52 (14) {35) {14) (35)
British Gas residential 6,192 6,047 206 244 205 243 A86 347
Centrica Business Services 1,125 a7 51 65 40 59 347 353
industrial sales and
wholesaling BO9 784 64 72 64 72
Gas production 54 74 480 447 480 447
Accord energy trading 6,218 4,304 17 - 17 -
CentricaEnergy
Management Group®™ 7,081 5,162 561 519 561 519 556 314
Centrica Storage™ 862 9 40 1 40 1 367 390
The AA 797 760 93 73 44 23 645 685
OneTel 178 153 4 2 1 4 47 53
Centrica North America 2,369 1,118 130 63 50 24 1,159 1,182
Other operations 6 2 - ) [{3)] 2} 60 49
17,830 14,222 1,085 a72 935 863 3,667 3,383
Discontinued operations:®
Goldfish Bank 101 123 (27 {40) {38} (54) 4 181
Unallocated net liabilitiesh {909) {1,162)
17,931 14,345 1,058 932 897 8029 2,754 2,402
b) By geographical area of operation
UK:
Continuing operations | 15,442 13,089 955 914 891 850 2,536 2,140
Discontinued operations®| 101 123 2n (40) (38) {(54) (4} 181
15,543 13,212 928 874 853 796 2,532 2,321
Rest of Europe 19 15 - 9) (6) (1) (28) 51
North America 2,369 1,118 130 63 50 24 1,159 1,192
Unallocated net liabilities™ (909) {1,162)
17,931 14,345 1,058 932 897 809 2,754 2,402

See overleaf for footrotes (i} - (iv).

Cantrica plc raport 2003 45



Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Segmental analysis continued 2008 2002
¢) Tumover by geographical destination em £m
UK:
Continuing operations 14,797 12,608
Discontinued operations® 101 123
14,898 12,731
Rest of Europe 664 496
North America 2,369 1,118
17,931 14,345

The group's share of operating profits of associates before goodwill amortisation for the year ended 31 December 2003
was £nil (2002: loss of £1 million) and after goodwill amortisation for the year ended 31 December 2003 was £nil
{2002: loss of £2 million).

The group's share of turnover and operating profits/{losses) of joint ventures by business segment for the year ended

31 December was:
Operating profivfloss) Operating profitfloss)
Tumover befora goodwill amortisation atter goodwill amontisation
2003 2002 2003 2000 200 2002
om m £m &m £m £m
British Gas residential 17 25 5 2 5 2
Centrica Energy Management Group 73 77 37 40 37 40
The AA 76 63 21 16 21 16
Other operations {including Luminus NV) 161 42 3 4 (3) (10)
347 207 66 54 60 48

i) Inter-segment transfers from Centrica Energy Management Group to British Gas residential and Centrica Business
Services totalled £4,323 million (2002: £4,142 million).

(i} Centrica Storage activities are managed separately from the activities of the Centrica Energy Management Group.
The effect of this change on the 2002 segmental analysis is to report turnover of £9 million, operating profit after
goodwill amortisation of £1 million and net assets of £390 million within the Centrica Storage business segment
previously reported in the Centrica Energy Management Group business segment.

{iii) Goldfish Bank [oyalty scheme costs of £30 million were reclassified in the prior year from turmover to cost of sales.

{iv} Unallocated net liabilities {including Goldfish Bank related balances, principally money market investments of
£143 million) comprised:

2008 2002
&m tm
Fixed asset investments 20 26
Accrued interest payable (19) N
Dividends payable (157 (110
Taxation (700) {346}
Debt, net of cash and money market investments (53) {725)
{009) {1,162)
200 2002
Bafors goadwill Goodwill Bators goodwil Goodwill
amortisation  smortisation Total amonisation amoisation Total
3 Costs £m £m £m fm tm £m
Cost of sales®™
Continuing operations 14,529 - 14,529 11,289 - 11,289
Discontinued operations® 43 - 43 59 - 59
14,572 - 14,572 11,358 - 11,358
Operating costs®
Continuing operations 2,282 144 2,426 2,004 102 2,106
Discontinued operations 85 11 96 104 14 118
2,367 155 2,522 2,108 116 2,224
Total costs recognised in arriving
at group operating profit 16,939 155 17,094 13,466 116 13,582
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3 Costs continued s
Group operating profit is stated after charging:
Amortisation of goodwiil 155 116
Amortisation of fixed asset investments 5 7
Depreciation:
Owned assets 382 357
Leased assets 23 33
405 380
Profit on disposal of fixed assets™ 11 18
Operating lease rentals:
Plant and machinery 3N 3
Cther 70 42
101 73
Auditors' remuneration™;
Audit services
Statutory audit
Company 0.2 0.2
Subsidiary undertakings®™ 24 15
Audit related regulatory reporting 03 02
Furtherassurance services 05 15
Tax services
Tax compliance services 02 0.2
Tax advisory services 04 0.4
Other services 02 5.2
3.9 9.2

) Gastransportation costs of £1,522 million (2002: £1,459 million) and electricity transportation and distribution charges
of £726 million (2002: £647 million) were inclided within cost of sales, Operating costs consist entirely of
administrative expenses.

() Goldfish Bank loyalty scheme costs of £30 million were reclassified in the prior year from tumover ta cost of sales.

(il The profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets was £3 million {2002: £6 million) and profit on sale of fixed asset
investments was £8 million (2002: £12 million).

(V) Included in auditors’ remuneration, excluding the statutory audit, were non-audit fees payable arising in the UK
of £1.1 million (2002; £6.2 million). In addition, the group's auditors acted as auditor to the group’s pension schemes.
The appointment of auditors to the group’s pension schemes and the fees paid in respect of these audits are agreed
by the trustees of each scheme, who act independently frorm the management of the group.

{v) Itis the group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consuitancy and advisory projects. Appointments are
made taking into account other factors including expertise and experience. In addition, the beard has approved a
detailed policy defining the types of work for which the auditors can tender and the approvals required. The auditors
have been engaged on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise and experience with
the group are particularly important, including tax advice and due diligence reporting on acquisitions. In 2002, other
services included £5 million paid to the consulting business of the auditors prior to its sale in October 2002.

{vi} Audit fees for subsidiary undertakings in 2003 included £0.2 million in respect of 2002.

4 Exceptional items

2003 2002
Recognised after operating profit n em
Continuing operations:
Loss on closure of business® (16) -
Loss on disposal of business® - (14)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets® - (14)
Discontinued operations.:
Loss on disposal of business™ (51) -
Total recognised after operating profit (67) (28)

i) Loss on closure of business relates to the closure of the Direct Energy home services retail stores in Ontario on which a
tax credit of £6 million has been recognised.

(i} In 2002 a €14 million loss arose on the disposal of the LPG business.

(i)} Following the reduction in operation of Golf England Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, a £14 million provision was
recognised in respect of losses on disposal of fixed assets.

{iv) Discontinued operations relate to the disposal of the group's interest in the Goldfish credit card and loan business
for a premiurn of £112.5 millior: over the receivables book value, resulting in a pre-tax non-operating loss on disposal of
£51 million on which atax credit of £10 million and a minority interest charge of £2 million have been recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

5 Directors and employees 2000 2000
a) Employee costs £m fm
Wages and salaries 1,089 905
Social security costs 99 73
Other pension and retirement benefits costs (note 25) 79 68
Long termincentive scheme 14 11
Share incentive plan 2 -

1,263 1,057

Details of directors' remuneration, share options, long term incentive scheme interests and pension entitiements in the
remuneration report on pages 29 to 36 form part of these financial staterents. Details of employee share schemes are

given on page 26 and in note 19,

b) Average number of employees during the year Nux Nunm:fr
British Gas residential 23,064 19,584
Centrica Business Services 1,417 845
Centrica Energy Management Group 740 574
Centrica Storage 138 11
The AA ) 11,409 11,640
Goldfish Bank 270 189
OneTel 830 740
Centrica North America 2,501 2,187
Other operations 2104 2,284
42,573 38,051
UK 39,571 35,563
North America 2,501 2,187
Rest of Europe 501 301
42,573 38,051
2003 2002
Intorest Interest Ironest Inerast
payabis recelvable Tota! payable receivable Total
6 Net interest £m £m [ om £m em
Cost of servicing net debt (excluding Goldfish Bank)
Interest receivable - 36 36 - 16 16
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (57) - (57) {40) - (40)
Finance lease charges {8) - {8} (11) - {11)
(65) 36 (29) {51) 16 35
Other interest
Share of joint ventures' interest payable (16) - {16} {15} - (15)
Notional interest arising on discounted items (19) - (19) (15) - (15)
Interest on supplier early payment arangements® - 13 13 - 13 13
Interest on customer finance arrangements® s - {5) N - (%)
Other - 4 4 {3) - [16)]
(40) 17 23) {@0) 13 27
Interest (payable)/receivable {105) 53 (52) (91) 29 62)

Product income generated by AA personal finance, and Goldfish Bank for the year ended 31 December 2003 was

£89 million (2002; £100 million). Financial services product charges were £26 million (2002: £33 million) relating entirely to
Goldfish Bank, Both financial services' income and charges have been included within group operating profit,
[ Interest on supplier early payment amangements arose on the prepayment of gas transportation charges.
i) Theinterest cost relates to subsidised credit arrangements provided to customers purchasing central

heating instalfation.
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7 Tax
a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Thetax charge comprises:
Currenttax
UK corporation tax 257 148
Tax on exceptional items” (10} 2
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 16
247 162
Foreign tax 32 17
Adjustments in raspect of prior years 6 -
38 17
285 179
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of timing differences (33) Q)
Deferred petroleum revenue tax relief 39 55
Tax on exceptional itemns® {6) -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (31) -
Exceptional deferred tax charge® - 9
&) 55
Share of joint ventures’ tax 12 16
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 266 250

() The tax credit arising on the exceptional loss on disposal of business was £10 miltion and on the exceptional loss on
closure of business was £6 million {note 4.

(i) The exceptional tax charge in 2002 comprised anincrease in deferred tax provisions arising from the supplementary
chamge applicable to profits on ring-fenced cffshore gas production.

b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The differences between the total current tax shown above and the arnount calculated by applying the standard rate
of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax s as follows;

2003 2002
£m &m
Profit on ondinary activities before tax 778 719
Less: share of joint ventures' and associates' profit before tax (44) (31)
Group profit on ordinary activities before tax 734 688
Tax on group profit on ordinary activities
at standard UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2002: 30%) 220 207
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, including goodwill amortisation 48 51
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 23 7
Utilisation of tax losses and other short term timing differences (25 (82)
Deferred petroleum revenue tax relief (39) (55)
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 5 &
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 6 16
Supplementary charge applicable to upstream profits 47 12
Overseas losses or taxation not available for credit - 17
Group current tax charge forthe year 285 179

c} Factors that may affect future tax charges

The group earns its profits primarily in the UK, therefore the tax rate used for tax on profit on ordinary activities is the
standard rate for UK corporation tax, currently 30%. A supplementary charge of 10% is also currently applicable on the
group’s UK upstream profits. Fair values are attributed to fixed assets on acquisition of businesses and companies and
amortisation or depreciation is subsequently provided based upon those amounts. Were the assets to be sold at the book
values at the balance sheet date without the benefit of tax planning arrangements, the amount of tax that would be
payable is estimated in aggregate to be £180 million (2002: £168 million) of which £121 million (2002: £146 miillion) is
provided as a deferred tax liability. There is, however, nointention to sell any of these assets in the foreseeable future and
therefore the crystallisation of the above {ax charge is considered to be remote.
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2003 2002
& Dividends £m £m
Interim dividend of 1.7p (2002 1.4p) per ordinary share 72 59
Proposed final dividend of 3.7p (2002: 2.6p) per ordinary share 157 110
Final dividend in respect of share issues after the balance sheet date - 3
229 172

The interim dividend was paid on 12 November 2003 and the proposed final dividend is payable on 16 June 2004
to shareholders on the register at the ciose of business on 30 April 2004,

9 Earmnings per ordinary share

Earnings per crdinary share has been calculated by dividing the eamings for the year of £500 million (2002 £478 million)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 4,235 million (2002: 4,181 million).

The number of shares excluded 26 mlllion ordinary shares {2002: 27 million), being the weighted average number of

the company’s own shares recorded on the group balance sheet during the yearin accordance with UITF Abstract 13
ESOP Trusts.

The directors believe that the presentation of an adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share, being the basic earmings per
ordinary share adjusted for goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges assists with understanding the underlying
performance of the group. The reconciliation of basic to adjusted basic eamnings per ordinary share is as follows:

2003 2002

Pence per Panca per

ordinary ordinary

£m share om share

Eamings - basic 500 118 478 11.4
Exceptional items after tax and minority interests 53 12 35 0.9
Goodwill amortisation 161 38 123 29
Earmnings - adjusted basic 714 168 636 15.2
Eamings - diluted® 500 1.6 478 1.3

() Inaddition to basic and adjusted eamings per ordinary share, inforration is presented for diluted eamnings per ordinary
share, Under this presentation, no adjustments are made to the reported earnings for either 2003 or 2002, but the
weighted average number of shares used as the denominator is adjusted. The adjustments relate to notional share
awards made to employees under the long term incentive scheme and the share options granted to employees under
the sharesave schemes were as follows:

2003 2002
million million
shares shares.

Weighted average number of shares inissue 4,235 4,181
Estimated vesting of long term incentive scheme shares a9 35
Dilutive effect of shares to be issued at a discount to market value

under the sharesave schemes 20 10
Potentially dilutive shares issuable under the executive share option scheme 2 1
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings

per ordinary share 4296 4,227
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10Intangible fixed assets - goodwill £
Cost

1 January 2003 2,077
Acquisitions® 44
Disposals (note 23) {145)
Exchange adjustments 26

31 December 2003 2,002
Amortisation

1 January 2003 264
Charge for the year 155
Disposals (note 23) (32)
Exchange adjustments 1

31 December 2003 388
Net book value

31 December 2003% 1,614
31 December 2002 1,813

{0 Acquisitions include adjustments to goodwlll totalling £40 million, following final detenminations of the provisional

fair value estimated for Direct Energy Services inc (formerly Enbridge Services Inc), Electricity Direct, Rough storage
and WTU/CPL acquisitions made in 2002. Details of the revisions are provided below:

Direct Energy Services Inc

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Direct Energy Services Inc has increased by £10 million to £203 million

as a result of: a reduction in tangible fixed assets of £7 million to £220 million following final deternination of the
depreciated replacement cost; an increase in net current lizbilities of £9 million to £13 miliion following final
determination of debtor recoverable amounts and liabilities arising at acquisition; a decrease in provisions of

£13 million to £31 million following final detemmination of defermed tax at acquisition; and increased consideration

of £7 million to £445 million relating to the costs of the acquisition.

Electricity Direct

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Electricity Direct has increased by £12 million to £32 million as a result of:
areduction in debtors (amounts falling due within one year) of £17 million fo £32 million following final determination
of the recoverable amounts at acquisition; and increased creditors {amounts falling due within one year) of £7 million
to £62 million following final determination of liahilities at the date of acquisition, On the acquisition of Electricity Direct,
consideration of £12 million was paid but held in escrow, contingent upon verification of certain working capital
balances acquired. Following verification, an amount of £12 million was repaid to the group. Final consideration
totafled £38 million.

Centrica Storage

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Rough storage has remained unchanged at £alf, however the following
adjustments were made to the fair values at acquisition: a reduction in tangible fixed assets by £18 million to

£445 million following final determination of the value in use; a reduction in creditors (amounts falling due within

one year) by £2 million to £16 million; a reduction in provisions of £17 million to £140 million following identification
of certain non-qualifying defemred tax assets during the completion period; and increased consideration of £1 million
to £489 million refating to the costs of the acquisition.

WTU/CPL

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of WTU/CPL has increased by £18 million to £185 million as a result of:
areductionin debtors (amounts falfing due within one year) of £19 million to £84 million following final determination
of the recoverable amounts at acquisition; a reduction in creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year) of
£17 million to £23 million following final determination of liabilities arising at acquisition; and an increase in contingent
consideration of £16 million to £17 million to reflect expectations at 31 December 2003. Contingent consideration is
dependent on business performance to 2006 and is stated net of an amount recoverable from the vendor in refation to
the liability for regutatory clawback, dependent upon the retention of customers above specific levels in 2002 and 2003.
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10 Intangible fixed assets - goodwill continued
(i} The net book value of goodwill at 31 December related to the following acquisitions:

Amonisation
2009 2002 period
£m £m years
The AA 780 829 15-20
Goldfish Bank - 124 10
Direct Energy 284 279 15
Energy America™ 20 41 5
Enron Direct 49 53 15
OneTel 45 49 15
Direct Energy Services Inc . 176 167 15
Electricity Direct 84 78 15
WTU/CPL 158 167 15
NewPower 5 8 5
Other 13 18 5-20
1,614 1,813
(i} The amentisation period in relation to the cartying value of Energy America goodwill was shortened during the year from
15yearsto 5 years.
Storage,
Plart, axploration
:ni:imd" and mﬂﬂ gon:::o:ﬂ pmdu;i::m Tatal
11 Tangible fixed assets o om om P o
Cost
1 January 2003 111 1,144 217 3,745 5217
‘ Additions - 263 17 a5 375
Acguisitions® - {6) 71 {4) 61
Disposals (24) (356) - {7} (3870
Disposal of subsidiary - (58) - (12) 70)
Revision of decornmissioning asset - - - 5 5
Transfers (1) 1 - - -
Exchange adjustments - 36 - 22 58
31 December 2003 85 1,024 305 3,844 5,259
Depreciation and amortisation
1 January 2003 26 330 12 2,086 2,454
Charge for the year 3 148 18 236 405
Disposals an {322 - [12d] (335)
Disposal of subsidiary - {12) - - (12}
Exchange adjustments - 13 - 4 17
31 December 2003 18 157 30 2,324 2,529
Net book value
31 December 2003 68 867 275 1,520 2,730
31 December 2002 85 814 205 1,659 2,763

() The net book value of the group’s land and buildings at 31 December 2003 comprised ireehold of £34 millien
(2002: £44 million), long leasehotd of £18 million (2002: 223 million} and short leasehold of 215 million (2002; £18 million).

(i) The net book value of the group's tangible fixed assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2003 within plant,
equipment and vehicles was £4 million (2002: £8 million), power generation €nil (2002: £73 million} and within storage,
exploration and production was £96 million (2002: £120 million). The depreciation and amortisation charge forthe
year in respect of finance leased assets included £6 million {2002: £4 miltion) on ptant, equipment and vehicles, £nil
(2002: £10 million) on power generation and £17 million (2002: £19 million) on storage, exploration and production assets.

@iy The amounts capitalised in the year in respect of customer relationship management infrastructure included within
plant, equipment and vehicles at 31 December 2003 amounted to £72 million (200Q2: £180 million).

{iv) The net book value of the fixed assets of the Consumers' Walerneater Income Fund {the Fund) within pfant, equipment
and vehicles was £190 million {2002: £182 million). Debt issued by a subsidiary of the Fund, without recourse to the
group, is secured on the assets as set outin note 31,

{v) Included within the group's exploration and production assets at 31 December 2003 were costs of £19 million pending
determination (2002; £60 million). The net book value of the group's decommissioning costs at 31 December 2003
was £40 million {2002: £17 million).

{vi} Included within acquisitions are revisions to fair values totalling a credit of £25 milllion, as explained in the footnotes
to note 10,
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Joint ventures end associales o

Shares® Loans  Ownshares®  investments Total
12 Fixed asset investments £m £m £rn om Bm
Share of net assets/cost
1 January 2003 22 4 51 5 g2
Additions™ 10 - - - 10
Disposals and transfers®™ - (4) (€} - {10}
Dividends receivable (26} - - - (26}
Share of profits less losses for the year 38 - - - 3B
Exchange adjustments [0} - - - (1}
31 December 2003 43 - 45 5 23
Goodwill
1 January 2003 55 - - - 55
Disposals (1) - - - M
Goodwill amortisation 8) - - - (6)
Exchange adjustments 4 - - - 4
31 December 2003 52 - - - 52
Amounts written off
1 January 2003 {1 2 29) 3 {35)
Amortisation under long term incentive schemes - - (5) - 5)
Disposals®™ ] 2 6 - g
31 December 2003 - - {28) (3) (31)
Net book value
31 December 2003 a5 - 17 2 114
31Deacember 2002 76 2 22 2 102

) The group's share of net assets of associates was £1 million (2002: £2 million}. The group's share of joint ventures’
gross assets and gross liabilities principally comprised its interests in Humber Power Limited (power generation),
Centrica Personal Finance Limited (AA and British Gas personal loans activities), AA Financial Services (AA credit
card activities) and Luminus NV {energy supply).

The group's share of joint ventures® gross liabilities included loans payable to the group amounting to £nil

(2002: £4 million}. The share of Humber Power Limited's gross liabilities included £268 million (2002: £269 million) of
lease finance, of which £249 million (2002: £254 million) was repayable after more than five years. Although the group
helds amajority of the voting rights in Humber Power Limited, it is restricted in its ability to exercise these rights under
an agreement with the other shareholder. Consequently the investment has not been consolidated but has been
accounted for as a joint venture.

2000 2002
Conrica

Humbar Personal AA

Power Finance Finencial
. Limited Limited Services  Luminus NV Other Total Total
Investments in joint ventures £m om £m fm £m £m £m
Share of gross assets 314 519 40 126 15 1,014 810
Share of gross liabilities (292) {516) 40) {66) 6) {920) (736)
22 3 - 60 9 94 74
Share of net assets of associates 1 2
95 76

Net debt included in share of gross assets

and share of gross liabilities {236) {508) (39) o) (2) (788} (627)

(i} The Centrica employees share trust held 21 million (2002: 27 million) shares in the company. This represented 0.50%
of the called up ordinary share capital (2002: 0.64%;, which had a market value at 31 December 2003 of £45 million
and anominal value of £1 million (2002: £47 million and £2 million respectively). During the year & million shares
(2002: 12 million shares) were transferred from the trust in respect of awards held by employees. All other investments
ware unlisted.

{ii) During 2003 Luminus NV called on previousty unpaid share capital, the group's share of which armounted to
€13 million (€9 million). On 24 September 2003 the group acquired a 25% interest for £1 million in Barrow Offshore
Wind Limited, a company which intends to construct a wind farm at Barrow,

(v} Loans of £2 million to AA Financial Services were also repaid in the year,

The principal undertakings of the group are listed in note 30 on page 72.
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2003 2002
13 Stocks £m &m
Gasin storage and transportation® 114 107
Other raw materials and consumables 45 56
Finished goods and goods forresale 14 17
173 180
() Gas intransportation of £40 million in 2002 has been reclassified from other raw maternials and consumables to gas in
storage and transportation.
2003 2002
14 Debtors Within After Within Alter
Amounts falling due e e am T
a) Businesses' debtors (excluding Goldfish Bank debtors):
Trade debtors 718 53 785 44
Accrued energy income 1,670 - 1427 -
Defemed corporation tax {(note 18) a1 25 - 36
Other debtors® 360 - 340 5
Prepayments and other accrued income: '
Take or Pay 3 4 13 -
Other 139 a5 127 49
142 39 140 49
2,921 117 2,692 134
b) Goldfish Bank debtors:
Trade debtors; loans and advances to customers - - 761 10
Prepayments and accrued income - - 1 1
Other - - 19 -
- - 781 1

) Includedin other debtors is £125 million (2002: £84 million) relating to energy derivatives held fortrading. Debtor
balances relating to energy derivatives held for trading in 2002 of £94 million have been reclassified from other

creditors to other debtors.
2003 2002
15 Current asset investments m e
Money market investments 992 320

Current asset investments included £183 million (2002: £153 miltion) held by the group's insurance subsidiary undertakings,
£7 million {2002: £nil) held by the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund and £17 million {2002: £10 million) held by the Law
Debenture Trust, on behalf of the company, as security in respect of the Centrica unapproved pension scheme, as
described in note 25. These amounts were not readily available to be used for other purposes within the group.

2003 2002
16 Borrowings m""’y‘:‘: m‘x m‘:’:‘; m‘;’::__f
Amounts falling due €m £m £m £m.

a) Businesses’ recourse borrowings (note 28d)
Bank loans and overdrafts 52 - 13 -
Sterling bonds?® - 535 - 518
Commercial paper 205 - 237 -
Loan notes 2 - 3 -
Obligations under finance leases® 39 30 36 70

b) Businesses' non-recourse borrowings

Canadian dollar bonds® - 216 - 186
2398 781 289 784

c) Goldfish Bank borrowings™
Bank |oans and overdrafts (note 28d) - - 430 -
{i Sterling bonds were repayable as follows: between one and two years £125 million {2002; £nil); between two and five
years £nil (2002: £125 million); and after five years £416 million (2002: £400 million). The bonds bear interest at fixed
rates between 5.375% and 5.875% (2002: 5.375% and 5.875%). The bonds have a face value of £541 million
(2002: £525 million) and are stated net of £6 million (2002: £7 million) of issuance discount.
(i} Group obfigations under finance leases after more than one year at 31 December 2003 were repayable as follows:
between one and two years £30 million {2002: £39 million) and between two and five years £nil (2002: £31 million).
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. 16 Borrowings continued

(i) Thisls debt issued by the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Consumers'
Waterheater Income Fund {the Fundj}, which is treated as a quasi-subsidiary and consolidated in the group accounts..
The debt is secured solely on the assets of the Fund and its subsidiaries, without recourse to the group. Summary
financial information for the Fund is given in note 31,
in January 2003 the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Trust issued C$500 million of secured fixed rate bonds recaiving
net proceeds of C$497 million. The proceeds received were used to repay C$500 miliion of floating rate bonds
previously issued in December 2002, The bonds were issued in two series and are repayable between 11 and 13 years
bearing interest between 4.700% and 5.245% respectively.

{iv) The Goldfish Bank working capital facility was repaid on 30 September 2003 following the disposal of the
Goldfish credit card and loan business.

X3 002
1 7 creditors Within After Withiry After
Amounts falling due e e WY;:' e
Trade creditors 1,441 - 1,343 -
Taxation and social security 260 - 137 -
Other creditors® B27 80 808 23
Accruals and deferred income:
Transportation® 30 - 18 -
Other accruals and deferred income 983 24 832 23
1,013 24 850 95
Dividend payable (note 8) 157 - 110 -
Goldfish Bank customer deposits® - - 286 -
3,698 104 3,535 122

() Included increditorsis £115 million {2002: £111 million) relating to energy derivatives held for trading. Debtor balances
relating to energy derivatives held for trading in 2002 of £84 million have been reclassified from other creditors
to other debtors.
(i) The group has the option to either prepay or accrue its gas transportation charges in Britain. For much of the year,
. the group prepaid these charges.
(il Goldfish Bank savings accounts were largely repaid by 31 December 2003 and unclaimed balances of £0.2 million
were transferred to Barclays Bank to be held in trust.

1 Jarwsaty Foveign Acquisitions Profit and 31 December
. 2003 exchange  anddisposals Revisions. loss charge Utilised 2060
18 Provisions for liabilities and charges £m em £m tm £m Em £m
Deferred corporation tax®® 278 7 (30} - {11 - 244
Decommissioning costs™ 206 - ()] 5 7 - 215
Deferred petroleum revenue tax®™ 395 - - - 128 (226} 297
Pension and other retirement benefits™ 75 - - - 79 (124) 0
Restructuring costs™ 21 - - - 18 (n 22
Sales contract loss and
renegotiation provisions™® 218 - - - 14 (15) 217
Othert® 69 - (13) - 38 (59 35
1,262 7 {46) 5 273 (441} 1,060
() Deferred corporation tax (assets)/liabilities comprised:
Potential assets
Amounts provided unrecognised
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 351 436 (22) (56)
Deferred petroleum revenue tax (119) (158) - -
Other timing differences including losses carried forward (44) {36) {117) (107
188 242 {139} (163)
Defered corporation tax liability 244 278
Defemed corporation tax asset included in debtors (note 14) (56) (38)
188 242

{i) A deferred tax provision has been made in respect of accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences,
net of recognised deferred tax assets.
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18 Provisions for liabilities and charges continued

(i) Provision has been made for the estimated net present cost of decommissioning gas production and storage
facilities at the end of their useful lives. The estimate has been based on proven and probable reserves, price levels
and technology at the balance sheet date. The timing of decommissioning payments are dependent on the lives
of the facilities but are anticipated to occur between 2005 and 2042. The profit and loss charge includes £6 million
of notional interest (2002: £4 million).

(iv) The provision for tax on gas and oil activities has been calculated on a unit of production basis.

{v) This provision included the difference between charges to the profit and loss account and the contributions paid to the
pension schemes in respect of retirement pensions and other related benefits {note 25).

{v) The provision represented costs relating to sumplus properties, redundancy and other costs relating to recrganisations.
The provision relating to surplus properties was calculated as the iower of the difference between rental costs and
sub-letincorme over the remainder of the leases and the potential cost to sumender those leases. The provision for
redundancy costs reflected announced restructuring plans. The majority of these sums are expected to be spent
between 2004 and 2005,

{vi) The sales contract ioss provision represented the net present cost, using arisk free discount rate, of expected losseson
long tenm sales contracts, which at inception are onerous, based on the difference between contracted sales prices and
the expected weighted average cost of gas. These contracts terminate batween 2005 and 2006. The profitand loss
charge represents £14 million of notional interest (2002 £14 miltion).

In previous years, the group renegotiated certain long term Take or Pay contracts which would have resulted in
commitments to pay for gas that would be excess to requirements and/or at prices above likely market rates.
The provision represented the net present cost of estimated payments due to suppliers as consideration forthe
renegotiations, which are due for settlement in 2008.

(viiy Other provisions principally cover estimated liabilities in respect of claims reflected in the group’s insurance
subsidiaries, outstanding fitigation and provision for National Insurance payable in respect of long term incentive
scheme liabilities. The National Insurance provision was based on a share price of 211 pence at 31 December 2003
{2002: 171 pence).

2003 2002
19 Called up share capital £m gm
Authorised share capital of the company
4,950,000,000 ordinary shares of 5% pence each
(2002: 4,950,000,000 ordinary shares of 5%/ pence each) 275 275
100,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each - -
Allotted and fully paid share capitaf of the company
4,265,901,206 ordinary shares of 5% pence each
{2002: 4,252,856,414 ordinary shares of 5% pence each) 237 236

During 2003,.13,044,792 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to satisfy the exercise of share options and the matching
element of the share incentive plan as follows:

Forthe yearended 31 December 200 2002
Number 13,044,792 231,925,358
Nominal value {£m) 0.7 12.9
Consideration (£m) {net of issue costs 2003: Enil; 2002: £6 million) 13 488
Options outstanding over
prcinary shares Latest
2003 2002 axercise Exercise
miltion mikon date prices (ponce)
RESOS® 0.5 2.1 November 2004 81.060 t0 90.266
ESOS® 258 13.5 September 2013 146.600to0 240.050
UK sharesave™™ 93.8 61.6 November 2008 92.200 to 202,600
Irish sharesave® 0.3 0.3 May2008  132.80010 168.700
Total 31 December 120.4 775

) Details of the RESOS appear on page 34 in note (jii) to the table of directors' interests in share options.

(i) Details of the ESOS appear on page 30.

(i Details of the UK and Irish sharesave schernes appear on page 26.

{iv) As permitted by UITF 17, the group does not recognise the cost of awards to employees in the profit and loss account
for the year, on the basis that it operates a UK Inland Revenue approved sharesave scheme.

The closing price of a Centrica ordinary share on 31 December 2003 was 211 pence (2002; 171 pence),
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19 Called up share capital continued

Long term incentive scheme

At 31 December 2003, 37 million shares (2002: 34 million) were outstanding in respect of allocations made under the long
term incentive scheme, which includes allocations of 27 million shares (2002: 23 million) that are subject to performance
conditions and allocations of 10 miliion shares (2002: 11 million) that have reached the conclusion of the performance
period but are subject to a two year retention period. Details of the operation of the long term incentive scheme, in which
the executive directors participate, can be found in the remuneration report on pages 30 and 31.

The Centrica employees share trusts were established to acquire ordinary shares in the company, by subscription
or purchase, with funds provided by way of interest free loans from the company to satisfy rights to shares on the vesting
of allocations made under the company's long term incentive arrangements.

Since the beginning of 2002, no further shares have been acquired by the trust. Any future shortfall will be satisfied
by the allotment and issue of new shares.

At 31 December 2003, the trusts held 21 million ordinary shares in the company which had a market value of £45 million
{2002: 27 million ordinary shares with a market value of £47 million). Dividends due on shares hetd in trust are waived in
accordance with the trust deeds. All administration costs are bome by the group.

Share Profit
premium Memger and loss
account reserve accourt” Tota)
20 Resarves £m £m £m tm
1 January 2003 537 467 1,008 2,012
Retained profit for the year - - 271 271
Exchange transiation differences® - - {4) @)
Issue of ordinary share capital 12 - - 12
Shares to be issued under long term incentive scheme™ - - 9 9
31 December 2003 549 467 1,284 2,300

) Cumulative goodwill taken directly to the profit and loss reserve at 31 December 2003 amounted ta £85 million
{2002: £85 million). This goodwill had been taken to reserves as a matter of accounting policy and will be charged
in the profit and loss account should there be a subsequent disposal of the business to which it related.

(i) Exchange gains of £42 million (2002: £84 million) on net investment in overseas undertakings have been offset
in full in reserves against exchange losses of £46 million {2002: £92 million) on foreign cumency borrowings.

(i) Centricaintends to fund certain of its long term incentive schernes through the issue of new shares when these
schemes vest, The amount shown represents the expected value of the shares to be issued using the market
price at the date allocations were granted.

2003 2002
21 Movements in shareholders' funds o P
1 January 2,248 1,602
Profit attributable to the group 500 778
Dividends {229) (172)
Exchange transtation differences {4) [t5)]
tssue of shares net of reserves movement on employee share schemes 13 444
Shares t0 be issued under long term incentive scheme 9 4
Net movement in shareholders’ funds forthe year 289 746
31December 2,537 2,248
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22 Minority interests Eque':ny "“”“‘SI TC;:I
1 January 2003 46 108 154
Minority interest arising during the year (note 24g) 12 46 58
Exchange translation differences - 10 10
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation {5) 17 12
Distribution - (17) {i7)
31 December 2003 53 164 217

Equity minority interests at 31 December 2003 related to a 30% economic interest held by Lloyds TSB Bank plc in Goldfish
Bank. Non-equity minority interests at 31 December 2003 related tothe 80.1% of units in the Consumers' Waterheater
Incorne Fund {note 31}, listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

23 Acquisitions and disposals

(i) Acquisitions

During the year the group acquired the business and assets of two gas fired power station businesses (Roosecote and
Barry). The group also made a number of smaller acquisitions, inciuding a further equity interest in the Rose gas field in
exchange for its 1.5% equity interest in the Armada field which are aggregated in section (c}. The acquisition method of
accounting was adopted in all cases. The analysis of assets and liabilities acquired, and the fair value of these acquisitions
were as shown befow. The fair values stated below are provisional because the directors have not yet reached a final
determination on all aspects of the fair valus exercises.

Fair valus

Book valug adjustmenl" Fairvalua
a) Roosecote Bn £m £in
Tangible fixed assets 26 (3 23
Stock 2 - 2
Net assets acquired 28 )] 25
Goodwill arising -
Consideration 25
Cash 24
Deferred consideration® 1
25
The group acquired the assets and business of Roosecote power station on 14 May 2003 from the administrative
receivers of Lakeland Power Limited. Prior to acquisition the power station formed part of this legal entity and in the
circurmnstances itis not practical to provide details of the results before acquisition.
() Tangible fixed assets have been adjusted to their estimated value in use.
(i} Deferred consideration is due within one year.
Accounting
policy Fairvalue
Book value sdignmem” adjuﬁmemﬂ Fairvalue
b) Barry fm £m fm m
Tangible fixed assets 31 2 6 39
Stock 3 m - 2
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) (1} - - (1)
Net assets acquired a3 1 6 40
Goodwill arising -
Cash consideration 40

The group acquired the assets and business of Barry power station on 29 July 2003 from AES Barry Limited. Prior to
acquisition the power station formed part of this legal entity and in the circumstances it is not practical to provide details
of the results before acquisition.

) Accounting policy alignments relate to the valuation of turbine parts.

(i} Tangible fixed assets have been adjusted to their estimated value in use.
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23 Acquisitions and disposals continued Fair vahue

' Book value adjustment Fair value

c) Other £m tm £m
Tangible fixed assets 10 14 24
Debtors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 - 7
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) (&) - 3]
Provisions m - (1)
Net assets acquired 10 14 24
Goodwill arising® 4
Consideration 28
Cash 18
Contingent consideration® 3
Fair and book value of assets disposed 7
28

The group acquired DER Development Companies Nos 1-10 Limited (Alberta) on 13 January 2003 (consideration
£6 million, goodwill arising £nil); the assets and business of the West Lancashire Heating Company on 28 February 2003
{consideration £2 million, goodwill arising £2 million); Integrated Building Technelogies Inc (IBT) on 31 May 2003
{consideration £2 million, goodwill arising €2 million); and Amec Offshore Wind Power Limited, Offshore Wind Power
Limited and Offshore Wind Power (Site No. 1} Limited {together, Offshore Wind Power) on 23 December 2003
{consideration £10 million, goodwill arising £nif}. In addition the group acquired a 20% equity Interest in the Rose field in
exchange for cash consideration of £2 million and its 1.5% equity interest in the Armada field (goodwill arising £nil).
0 Goodwillis being amortised over peticds ranging from 5 to 15 years.
(i} Contingent consideration comprises: £1 million in respect of IBT, payable within one year and dependent upon
the performance of IBT in the period post acquisition; and £2 million in respect of Offshore Wind Power which
is expected to be paid within one year and is contingent on achievement of key stages in the development of the
wind farms.

(ii) Disposals
The group disposed of its interest in the Goldfish credit card and loan business on 30 September 2003 for a prernium of
£112.5 million above the receivables book value, resulting in a pre-tax non-operating loss on disposal of £51 million, A tax
credit of £10 million and a minority interest charge of £2 million have been recognised in relation to this, giving a loss on
disposal to the group of £43 million. The analysis of assets and liabilities sold and consideration received is given below:

£&m

Tangible fixed assets 45
Stock . 1
Loans and advances to customers 1,019
Prepayments 4
Accruals, provisions and settlement accounts (36)
Netassets 1,033
Related goodwill 113
Pre-tax non-operating loss on disposal (51)
1,095
Sale proceeds
Cash consideration received 1,095
Deferred consideration 2
Disposal costs @
1,095

The loss made by Goldfish Bank from 1 January 2003 0 the date of disposal was £38 rillion.

The group disposed of its equity interests in the Renee, Rochelle and Rubie fields on 10 March 2003 for a consideration
of £5 million. The book value of the assets and liabilities sold amounted to £7 million and £2 million respectively, and no
profit was recognised by the group in relation 1o the disposal. The result of the group's equity interest in the fields from

1 January 2003 to the date of disposal was £nil.
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24 Notes to the group cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of group operating profit to operating cash flow ﬁ mg
Continuing operations
Group operating profit 875 817
Amortisation of goodwill 144 102
Depreciation and impairment 394 382
Shares issued to fund share incentive plan® 2 -
Amortisation of investments 5 7
Profit on sale of investments {8) (12)
Profit on sale of fixed assets {3 &)
Provisions {150) {177)
Change in working capital;
Stocks - (increase)/decrease ; [ (10) 33
Debtors —increase {272) (542)
Creditors —increase® [ 316 134
34 {375)
Cash inflow from operating activities before exceptional payments:
Continuing operations 1,203 738
Payments relating to exceptional charges - (16)
Cash inflow from operating activities after exceptional payments 1,293 722
Discontinued operations
Operating loss (38) {54)
Amortisation of goodwill 11 14
Depreciation and impairment 1 8
Provisions {3) 16
Change in working capital:
Stocks - decrease/(increase) 4 3
Goldfish Bank debtors —increase® {256) {119)
Goldfish Bank working capital facility - increase/(decrease)™® 2n {180}
Goldfish Bank customer accounts — (decrease)/increase (286) 286
Debtors - decrease - 1
Creditors - (decrease)/increase (15) 26
(282) 11
Cash outflow from discontinued operations (301) (5)
Total cash inflow from operating activities after exceptional payments 992 717

) This represents the grant date market value of matching shares issued to employees during the year under the share
incentive plan (SIP). Further details of the SIF ¢an be found on page 26 of the directors’ report.

(i} Included in 2002 was a reduction of £168 million from the acceleration of gas transportation payments, which
the group has the option to prepay.

@i} Sold as part of the disposal of the Goldfish credit card and loan business.

{ivi The Goldfish Bank working capital facility primarily financed the Goldfish credit card and loan balances. In accordance
with generally accepted practice for banking activities, movements on this working capital facility are included within
operating cash flow rather than financing. The repayment of this working capital facility of £701 million following the
disposal on 30 September 2003 is included in note 24e.

2003 2002
b) Returns on investments and servicing of finance £m &m
interest received 54 29
interest paid (61) 42
interest elemnent of finance lease rental payments (8) (12)

(15) {25)

Interest income/(charges} on banking receivables and related working capital facilities are included within operating cash
flow in note 24a.

60 Ceantrica plc repart 2003




24 Notes to the group cash flow statement continued

¢) Taxation paid £m £m
UK corporation tax paid (159) (196}
Overseas tax paid (24) -
Consortium tax relief received 2 4
(181) (192)

2003 2002

d) Capital expenditure and financial investment £m &m
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (323) {449)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 39 28
Loans to jeint ventures repaid 2 19
(282) 402)

2003 2002

e) Disposals and acquisitions £m tm
Payments on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businesses an {1,107}
Payments on acquisition of joint ventures and associates (10 {4
Payments of deferred consideration (30) {70
Total cash payments (117) (1,181)
Cash acquired - 229
Overdratft acquired - (30)
Receipts on disposal of Goldfish credit card and loan business 1,095 -
Repayment of Goldfish Bank working capital facility® (701) -
Proceeds from other disposals 15 54
292 - {935)

Cash consideration, net of cash and overdrafts acquired, at acquisition date rates of exchange, as included in note 23

totalled £82 million. The difference of £6 million to payments on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businessesis

due to repayments relating to prior year acquisitions as explained in note 10 {j).

() The repayment of the Goldfish Bank working capital facility includes £271 million in respect of amounts drawn down
during 2003. This movement is included within the reconciliation of operating profit to aperating cash flow.

2003 2002
f) Management of liquid resources £m £m
Net (purchase)/sale of cument asset investments (669) 134

Liquid resources comprised short term deposlts with banks which mature within one year of the date of inception.
Current asset investments increased by £143 million in relation to discontinued operations relating to the investment of
sale proceeds.

2003 2002
im

g} Financing £m
Commercial paper:

Issued 204 309

Repaid (236) (381}
Capital element of finance lease rentals ’ (38} (32)
Bonds issued 17 221
Realised net foreign exchange {loss)/gain® (12} 57
Investment by equity and non-equity minority shareholders™ 41 129
Issue of ordinary share capital™ 1" 444

{13) 747

The net cash financing inflow in relation to discontinued operations was £46 million.

) Where cumrency swap agreements are used to hedge overseas net investments, the realised net (losses)/gains are
recognised in financing cash flows.

(it Includes capital contributions to Goldfish Bank of £12 miltion (2002: £21 million) and £46 million (2002: £108 million)
from the disposal of 22.0% (2002: 58.1%} of our holding in the Consurners’ Waterheater income Fund, net
of distributions paid to non-equity minority unitholders of £17 million (2002: Enil).

(i) Cash inflow from the issue of ordinary share capital is stated net of issue costs of £nil (2002: £6 million).

Cantrica plc report 2003 61



Notes to the financial statements continued

Exchange
adjustments
{and other
24Notes to the group cash flow statement continued e cahfow v o oo
h) Analysis of debt, net of cash and money rarket investments em £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 28 3) 9 M
Overdrafts (13} {27) (12} (52)
{30)
Bonds (714} 17 (20) {751}
Loan notes due within one year 3 1 - (2}
Ohligations under finance leases (106) 37 - (69}
Other bormowings (237) 32 - (205)
53
Cument asset investments® 320 669 3 992
Gooldfish Bank working capital facility® (430} 430 - -
{1,155) 1,122 20) (53)
Of which:
Net debt {excluding Goldfish Bank and non-recourse debt) (529) 692 - 163
Goldfish Bank working capital facility {430) 430 - -
Consurners’ Waterheater Income Fund {non-recourse)} debt (198) - {20) (216)
(1,155) 1,122 (20) (53)

() Thisincluded an exchange loss on cash of £3 million (2002: loss £4 million).

(i} £143 million of the current asset investment cash flow related to discontinued operations.

{iii} The Goldfish Bank working capital facility was repaid on 30 September 2003 on disposal of the Goldfish credit card
and loan business.

25Pensions

Substantially all of the group’s UK employees at 31 December 2003 were members of one of the four main schernes in the
group: the Centrica pension scheme (formerly the Centrica staff pension scheme), the Centrica engineers' pension
scheme, the Centrica management pension scheme and the AA staff pension scheme. These schemes are defined
benefit schemes and are subject to independent valuations at least every three years, on the basis of which the qualified
actuary certifies the rate of employers’ contributions which, together with the specified contributions payable by the
employees and proceeds from the schemes’ assets, are expected to be sufficient to fund the benefits payable under

the schemes.

The Centrica unapproved pension scheme is an unfunded arrangement which provides benefits to certain employees
whose benefits under the main schemes would otherwise be limited by the earnings cap.

Independent actuarial valuations for SSAP 24 purposes at 31 March 2001 showed aggregate actuanial asset values and
those values relative to benefits due to members, (calculated on the basis of pensicnable earnings and services on an
ongoing basis using the projected unit method) as follows:

Asselvaluas

Assal reiative to

values labilities

£m %

Centrica pension scheme 713 105
Centrica engineers' pension scheme 396 106
Centrica management pension scheme 254 s
AA staff pension scheme 676 117
The long term assumptions applied to calcutate group pension costs, 2008 2002
as agreed with the independent actuary, are set out below: ) % %
Rate of price inflation and pension increases 2.50 2.50
Annual rate of return on investments 6.70 6.70
Futureincreases in ermnployee eamings 4,50 4.50
Dividend growth 3.75 3.75
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25 Pensions continued
The group's pension costs arising and the reconciliation to the

2000 2002
balance sheet provision was as follows: £m &m
Regular pension costs 105 95
Amortisation of surplus (21} 21
84 74
Interest {10) {10)
Net pension costs 74 64
Contributions paid {124} (107)
Decrease in provision for pension costs {50) 43)
Pension provision at 1 January 55 98
Pension provision at 31 December 4] 55
AA post retirement private medical insurance® 24 21
Direct Energy Marketing Limited post retirernent benefits® 1 ]
Pension and other retirement benefits provision (note 18) 30 75

Other retirement benefits

(i The group has a commitrment to provide post retirement private medical insurance cover for certain AA current and
pastemployees. The triennial independent actuarial valuation undertaken at 31 Decernber 2001, assuming a2.5%
per annum real increase in premiums, disclosed a liability of £27 million. The provision under this scheme as
recognised under SSAP 24 was £24 million (2002: £21 million). The net cost to the group of retirement benefits under

this scheme was £3 mitlion (2002: £3 million).

(i) The group has a commitment to provide certain pension and other post retirement benefits to employees of
Direct Energy Marketing Limited (Canada). The Direct Energy Marketing Limited pension plan was established on
1 March 2002 and an independent actuarial valuation camied out on 7 May 2002, which disclosed a surplus in
respect of pension benefits of £6 million and a deficit in respect of non-pension post retirement benefits of £4 million,
resulting in a net surplus of £2 million. The provision under this scheme as recognised under SSAP 24 was £1 million
(2002: £1 million surplus). The net cost to the group of retirement benefits under this scherne was £2 million (2002;

£1 million}.

The total net cost to the group o.f other retirement benefits on a SSAP 24 basis was £5 million (2002: £4 million).

Additional disclosures regarding the group's defined benefit pension schemes, the unapproved pension arrangement
and the post retirement medical plan are required under the transitional provisions of FRS 17 Retirernent Benefits,
The disclosures provide information which will be necessary for the full implementation of FRS 17 in due course.

The latest full actuarial valuations were carried out as at the following dates: the approved pension schemes at 31 March
2001, the unapproved pension scheme at 6 April 2002, the Direct Energy Marketing Limited pension plan at 7 May 2002
and the post retirement medical liability at 31 December 2001. These have been updated to 31 December 2003 for the
purposes of meeting the requirements of FRS 17. Investrents have been valued, for this purpose, at market value.

21 Decamber 31 Decemnber 31 December

. . . . 2000 2002 2001

The major assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were: % % %
Rate ofincrease in employee earnings 425 4.3 4.5
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions 275 23 25
Discount rate 550 575 58
Inflation assumption 275 2.3 25
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25 Pensions continued
The market value of the assets in the schernes, the present value of the liabilities in the schemes and the expected rate of
return at the balance sheet date were:

Expecisd rite Expected rate Expacted rate
of retum ol retum of retum
Par annum Valuation por annum Vahsation por gnwim Vahsation
2003 2003 2002 2002 2001 2001
31 December % tm % £m % £m
Equities 84 1,859 8.4 1,503 8.0 1,759
Bonds 5.1 ite) 4.8 267 52 274
Property 74 68 6.9 62 7.1 60
Cash and other assets 38 a3 4.0 50 4.5 100
Total fair value of assets 7.75 2,359 7.7 1,882 7.5 2,183
Present value of schemes’ liabilities {3,430) (2,713) (2,526)
Deficit in the schemes {1,071) {831) {333)
Related deferred tax asset 321 249 100
Net pension liability {750) (582) (233)

Under SSAP 24 the balance sheet on page 39 includes a provision of £30 million at 31 December 2003 (2002: £75 miillion).
Had FRS 17 been implemented in full at that date the net assets of the group would have been reduced by £720 million
(2002: £507 million), and the net charge for pension costs in the profit and loss account would have increased by

£71 million (2002: £47million) compared with that under SSAP 24, as set out below:

Increasa’
FRS17 SSAP 24 Increass FRS 17 $SAP24 (decteasa)
2003 2003 2003 2002 2002 2002
For the year ended 31 December & £m £m £m £m &m
Amount charged to operating profit 138 79 59 133 €8 65
Amount charged/{credited) to interest 12 - 12 (18) - (18)
Net charge to profit and loss account 150 79 ra 115 68 47
) . 2003 2002
Analysis of the arnount that would have been charged to operating profitunder FRS 17 tm £m
Current service cost 135 13
Past service cost 3 2
. 2003 2002
Analysis of the amount that would have been (chargedy/credited to interest under FRS 17 £m £m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 149 170
interest on pension scheme liabilities (161) (152)
Analysis of the actuarial loss that would have been recognised in the statement 2003 2002
of total recognised gains and losses em tm
Actual return less expected retum on pension scheme assets 208 {588)
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (3} (1))
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (419) 99
Actuarial loss to be recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses before
adjustment for tax (214) {492)
History of experience gains and losses 2003 2002
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Amount (£m) 208 (588}
Percentage of scheme assets 8.8% 31.2%
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
Amount {£m) (3} (3
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 0.1% 01%
Total actuarial loss recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount (€m) {214) (492)
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 6.2% 18.1%
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25 Pensions continued

The movermnent in deficit during the year under FRS 17 would have been: m:?: 208:
Deficit in schemes at beginning of year (831) (333)
Movements in the year to 31 December:
Current service cost (135} {131)
Past service cost {3} 2)
Employer contributions 124 107
Interest (12) 18
Acquisition of surplus in year - 2
Actuarial loss (214} {492)
Deficit in schemes at end of year {1,071) (831)

26 Commitments and contingencies

a) Acquiisitions

On 10 December 2002 the group reached agreement to acquire the retail gas and electricity supply business of the ATCO
Group in Alberta, Canada for consideration of approximately £52 million, payable over two years.

The transaction is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions.

b) Capital expenditure
At 31 December 2003, the group had placed contracts for capital expenditure amounting to £74 million (2002: £106 million)
of which £41 million relates to the investment in custorner refationship management infrastructure (2002: £72 million).

c) Decommissioning costs

The company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Hydrocarbon Resources Limited, have agreed to provide security

to BG intemational Limited, which, as original licence holder for the Morecambe gas fields, will have exposure to
decommissioning costs relating to the Morecambe gas fields should liabilities not be fully discharged by the group.

The security is to be provided when the estimated future net revenue stream from the Morecambe gas fields falls below
150% of the estimated cost of such decommissioning. The nature of the security may take a number of different forms and
will remain in force uniess and until the costs of such decommissioning have been imevocably discharged and the relevant
Department of Trade and Industry decommissioning notice in respect of the Morecarmnbe gas fields has been revoked,

d) Lease commitments Land and buildings Other
At 31 December non-cancellable operating lease commitments 2000 2002 2008 2002
of the group for the following year were: £m Em £m £m
Expiring:
Within cne year 7 4 9 1
Between one and five years 13 7 36 24
After five years 48 a8 3 3
68 49 48 28

At 31 December 2003 there were £1 rniilion of finance lease cormmitments for which inception occurs after 31 December 2003
(2002: Enil),

¢) Litigation
The group has a number of outstanding disputes arising out of its normal activities, for which provisions have been made,
where appropriate, in accordance with FRS12.

f) Guarantees and indemnities

The company has £915 million of bilateral credit facilities (2002: £1 billion). Hydrocarbon Resources Limited and British
Gas Trading Limited have guaranteed, jointly and severally, to pay on demand any sum which the company does not pay
in accordance with the facility agreements.

The group and BG Group plc have agreed, subject to certain limitations, to indemnify each other against certain actual
and contingent liabilities associated with their respective businesses. '

In redation to the sale and leaseback of the Morecambe gas field tangible fixed assets recorded in these financial
statements, the group has given guarantees amounting to £60 million (2002: £92 million).

The group has given guarantees in connection with the finance lease obligations relating to Humber Power |imited
referred toin note 12. A fixed collateral payment amounting to £225 million (2002: £225 million) is required in the event of
Centrica plc failing to retain at least one credit rating which is not on credit watch above the BBB+/Baa level, and further
collateral of £75 million (2002: £75 million) is required if the credit rating falls further,
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. 26 Commitments and contingencies continued
Group companies have given guarantees and indemnities, subject to certain limitations, to various counterparties in
relation to who'esale energy trading and procurement activities, and to third parties in respect of gas production and
energy transportation liabilities,

In connection with their energy trading, transportation and upstream activities, certain group companies have entered
into contracts under which they may be required to prepay or provide credit support or other collateral in the event of a
significant deterioration in credit worthiness. The extent of credit support is contingent upon the balance owing to the
third party at the point of deterioration.

Following the closure of the British Gas Energy Centres Limited (Energy Centres) operations in July 1999, guarantees
have beensigned on certain former Energy Centres’ properties as a result of reassignment of leases.

g) Gas purchase contracts

The groupis contracted to purchase 76 billion therms of gas (2002: 85 billion therms) in Britain under long term contracts.
The significant increase on last year is largely due to the addition of a contract agreed in 2002 with Statoil to procure

17 billion therms over 10 years from 1 July 2005. Last year this contract was not included in the numbers below as it was
conditional, however during 2003 it became unconditional. The gas contract commitments inclucle several contracts with
prices linked to the market price for gas and legacy coniracts at prices, mainly determined by various baskets of indices:
including oll prices and general inflation, which may exceed market gas prices from time to time.

The total volume of gas to be taken under these long term contracts depends upon anumber of factors, including

the actual reserves of gas that are eventually determined to be extractable on an economic basis. Based uponthe
rninimum volume of gas that the group is contracted to pay for in any year, the profile of the contract commitments
is estimated as follows:

2003 2002
milliion ilion
therma therms

Withinfive years 43,500 45,800
.. After five years . 32,400 19,200
' 75,900 65,100

The directors do not consider it feasible to estimate reliably the actual future cost of committed gas purchase as the
group's weighted average cost of gas from these contracts is subject to a variety of indexation bases. The group’s average
cost of gas from its contracts with third parties for the year ended 31 December 2003 was 20.8 pence per therm {for the
yearended 31 December 2002: 19.6 pence per therm).

2000 2002

The commitment profile on this same basis is set out below: tm gm
Within one year 2,200 1,900
Between one and five years 6,800 7,000
After five years 6,700 3,800
15,700 12,700

As reported in 2002, the group entered into a contract with Gasunie to purchase an additional 27 billion therms over
10 years from 1 April 2005. This contract remains conditional and is therefore notincluded in the numbers above,

h} Other
The group's use of financial instruments is explained in the group financial review on pages 15 t6 17 and in note 28.
27 Related party transactions 2003 2002
a) Joint ventures and associates £m £m
Sales for the year ended 31 Decemnber:
Humber Power Limited?® 4 -
Motordfile Limited 2 -
Centrica Personal Finance Limited 1 -

Purchases for the year ended 31 December:

Accuread Limited 34 17
Humber Power Limited? 75 74
ACTA SA (an associate) 2 -
Loans receivable outstanding as at 31 December:
. Centrica Personal Finance Limited - 2
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27 Related party transactions continued
All other transactions with joint ventures and assoclates were not material to the group.
{) Thegroup had a creditor balance at 31 December 2003 with Humber. Power Limited of £8 miliion (2002: £6 million).

b) Pension schemes
In 2003 the group incurred £2 miflion (2002: £2 million) of administrative costs relating to group pension schemes.

c) Transactions with directors
At31 December 2003 the amount outstanding in respect of credit cards made avallable by the company to directors was £479.

d) Other

On 30 September 2003 the Goldfish credit card and loan business was sold to Lioyds TSB Bank plc. Details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of are included in Note 23. Lloyds TSB Bank pic who have a 309 economic interest in Goldfish
Bank made available a working capital facility of £850 million to Goldfish Bank. The facility was repaid and cancelled on

30 September 2003,

The group entered into several derivative transactions with Lioyds TSB Bank plc during the year to hedge against interest
rate fluctuations on Goldfish Bank's activities. Other activity with Lioyds TSB Bank plc included interest receivable of Enill,
interest payable of £9 milion and charges of £6 million, of which £nil has been capitalised (2002: £27 million, £17 million
and £6 million respectively). Balances with Lioyds TSB Bank plc at 31 Decernber 2003 included £40 million in shott term
investments (2002: £nil).

28 Financial instruments

The group’s use of financial instruments is explained under the heading financial risk management in the group financial
review on pages 15 to 17. The related accounting policies are explained in note 1. As permitted within FRS 13, the
disclosures set out below in 28a and 28¢ through 289 exclude short term debtors and creditors. Additional information
on Goldfish Bank interest rate sensitivities is provided in note 28h below.

a) Interest rate risk profile of financial instruments

Financial assets 2003

The interest rate risk profile of the group’s financial s Conadian
assets at 31 December was as follows: dollar dallar Stering Yotal
Floating interest rate {£m) 15 12 982 1,009
Fixed interest rate {£m) - 53 5 58
No interest receivable (£m)® - 1 12 13
Total financial assets (£m) 15 66 999 1,080
Weighted average fixed interest rate (%) - 15 4 14
Weighted average period for which rate is fixed {months) - 43 62 a4
Weighted average period for which no interest is receivable {months) - 48 - 43
2002

us Canadian
dollar daollar Sterling Total
Floating interest rate {Em) 10 g 331 350
Fixed interest rate (£m) - 44 5 49
No interest receivable (Em)? - - 5 5
Total financial assets {£m}) 10 53 341 404
Weighted average fixed interest rate (%) - 15 6.5 141
Weighted average period for which rate is fixed {months) - 38 58 40

Weighted average period for which no interest is receivable (menths) - - - -
With the exception of uncleared items, floating rate financial assets attract interest rates mainly based upon LIBOR for

periods of one year or less.
il Financial assets on which no interest is paid relate to unit trust investrments, for which no maturity date is specified.
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28 Financial instruments continued
Financial liabilities

After taking into account forward foreign currency 2008
swaps, theinterest rate profile of the group's us Candian
financial liabilities at 31 December was as follows: dollar dollar Steding Total
Floating interest rate (£m) 274 3] 433) (710)
Fixed interest rate (£m) - (217) (2r) {488)
No interest payable (£m)? | - (164) {32) (196)
Total financial liabilities (£m) (274) (384) (736) (1,394}
Weighted average fixed interest rate (%) - 5.0 58 54
Weighted average period for which rate is fixed {months) - 131 85 106
Weighted average period for which no interest is payable (months) - - 58 58
2002
us Canadian
dollar dollar Stexting Total
Floating interest rate (tm) (80) (196) (873 (1,249)
Fixed interest rate (Em) - 2) {288) (290)
No interest payable (Emj)® - (108) {33) (141)
Total financial liabilities (_Qm) (80) (306) {1,294) (1,680)
Weighted average fixed interest rate (%) - 6.5 8.0 6.0
Weighted average period for which rate is fixed (months) - 28 1o 100
Weighted average period for which no interest is payable (months) - - 62 62

Floating rate financial liabilities bear interest at rates based upon LIBOR for periods of one day to six months.

{) Financial liabilities on which no interest is paid include £164 million {2002; £108 miliion) relating to non-equity minority
interests. Non-equity minority interests relate to the 80.1% (2002: 58.19%) econormic interest in the Consumers’
Waterheater Income Fund, represented by units listed on the Toronte Stock Exchange, for which no maturity
dateis specified.

b) Currency risk

Sterling, Canadian and US dollars were the functional currencies for all material operations in 2003 and 2002. Thera

were no material monetary assets and fiabilities In currencies other than these functional currencies, except for £18 million
of monetary assets denominated in euros (2002: £9 million). The euro assets represent short term cash flow timing
differences and margin requirements on European gas trading activities,

2003 2002

¢) Maturity of financial liabilities Other Total Other Totl
T ! s firancial financial financial fi ial

1:he maturity profile of the group’s financial Sorrowings bbby GaoMbes  Bomowings bbb u:;‘;;
liabilities at 31 December was as follows: £m £m £m £m £m £m
In one year or less, or on demand 298 €5 363 721 13 734
i more than one year but not more than two years 155 24 179 39 1 40
In more than two years but not more than five years - 43 43 349 36 385
In more than five years 632 19 651 401 19 420
Non-equity minority interests® - 164 164 - 108 108
1,085 315 1,400 1,510 177 1,687

The maturity profile of borrowings includes £541 million {2002: £525 million) of sterling bonds stated at face value.
As disclosed in note 16, these bonds are stated in the group balance sheet net of £6 million (2002: £7 million) of
issuance discount.

) Asnoted above, no maturity date is specified for non-equity minority interests.
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28 Financial instruments continuad

d) Borrowing facilities

At 31 Decemnber 2003, the group had undrawn committed bank borrowing facilities of £915 miflion (2002: £1 billion).
Ofthese facilities, 50% mature duning 2004, and the remainder in 2006,

In addition the group has access to anumber of uncormmitted facilities.

The principal debt facilities in use by the group at 31 December 2003 were uncommitted and consisted of a US commercial
paper programme of US$2 billion (2002: US$2 billion) and a euro medium term note (EMTN) programme of US$2 billion
(2002: US$2 billion). At 31 December 2003, US$369 million (£205 million) had been issued under the commercial paper
programme {2002: US$374 million {£237 million)) and bonds totalling £541 million (2002: £525 million) had been issued
under the EMTN programime. All the commercial paper issued was held in US dollars to hedge the group’s net
investments in North America, In relation to the bonds, 23% mature between one and two years and 77 % mature after
five years.

Prior to the disposal of its credit card and loan business, Goldfish Bank had an £850 million (2002: £850 million) borrowing
facility from Lioyds TSB Bank ple. The amount outstanding on the facility at 30 September 2003 of £701 million was repaid
on that date.

o) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 2003 2002
Thefollowing table shows the bock and fair values of the

Book vaiue Falkrvalue Book value Fairvalue
group's financial instruments at 31 December: £m £m tm &m
Primary financial instruments held orissued
to finance the group's operations:
Cash at bank and in hand and current asset investments® 1,026 1,026 348 348
Loan to Centrica Personal Finance Limited - - 2 2
Long tenm trade debtors® 53 53 44 44
Other financial assets 1 1 10 10
1,080 1,080 404 404
Bark loans and overdrafts? {52} (52 (13) 13)
Commercial paper® (205} (208) (237) (237)
Goldfish Bank working capital facility - - {430) (430)
Bonds™M (751} 778) {714) (744)
Finance lease borrowings™ {69) {72) (i06) (1)
Loan notes” 2 {2) 3 [ic)]
Other financial liabilities® (151) (151) 69) {69)
(1,230) (1,260} (1.572) (1,607)
Non-equity minority interests™ (164) (230} {108) (119)

(1,394) (1,490) {1,680) (1,726)

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the group’s

currency, interest rate profile and energy price exposures:
Forward foreign currency contracts®, interest rate swaps and
forward rate agreements™ 9 (10) 45 30
Energy derivatives™ 12 90 1 93

Derivative financial instruments held for trading;

Energy derivatives™ 10 10 (17 (7}

i Duetothe nature and/or short maturity of these financial instruments, book values approximated fair values.

(i) Fair values have been determined by reference to closing exchange rates at 31 December.

{iii) Prior year amounts include C$500 million (£ 196 miflion) Canadian dollar bonds previously classified as loan notes.

{iv) The fair values of energy derivatives are calculated as the product of the volume and the difference between their strike
or traded price and the corresponding market prices. The market price is based upon the coresponding closing price
of that market. Where there is no organised market and/or the market is illiquid, the market price is based upon
management estimates, taking into consideration all relevant current market and economic factors. Energy derivatives
held for trading includes both physical and financiat energy contracts entered into for trading purposes. Prior year
amounts have been restated to include the fair value of physical energy trading contracts as explained in note 281,

{v} The fair values of these financial instruments are based upen discounted cash flows, using discount rates based upon
the group's cost of bomowing.

{vi) Fairvalues have been determined by reference to closing prices at 31 December.
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2@ Financial instruments continued

f) Gains and losses on financial instruments held for trading

The group engages in swaps, futures, forwards and options in gas, electricity and weather, for trading purposes. Financial
and physical trading positions are marked to market using externally derived market prices and any gain or loss arising is
recognisedin the profit and loss account. This is not in accordance with the general provisions of Schedule 4 of the
Companies Act 1985, which requires that these contracts be stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value or that, if
revalued, any revaluation difference be taken to a revaluation reserve. However, the directors consider these requirements
would fail to provide a true and fair view since the marketability of energy trading contracts enables decisions to be taken
continually whether to hold or sell them. Accordingly the measure of profit in any period is properly made by reference to
market values. The effect of this departure from the historical cost convention on the financial statements for the yearis an
increase in profit for the year amournting to £5 million (2002: £7 million) and an increase in net assets at 31 December 2003
of £14 million (2002: £9 million).

Energy derivatives held for trading incfude both physical and financial energy contracts entered into for trading purposes.
Prior year amounts in note 28e have been restated to include the fair value of physical energy trading contracts amounting
1o & net liability of £22 million. The net gain from trading in energy derivatives included in the prefit and loss account for

the year ended 31 December 2003 is £17 million (2002; £nif). The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held
for trading purposes at 31 December 2003 amounted to £125 million and £115 million respectively (2002: £94 million
financial assets and £111 miltion financial liabilities). The average fair value of instruments held during the year ended

31 Decemnber 2003 did not materially differ from the year end position.

g) Gains and losses on hadges

The group uses financial instruments to hedge its currency, intevest, energy price and weather exposures.

Changes in the fair value of these derivatives used are not recognised in the financial staierents until the hedged
position itself is recorded therein. Unrecognised and deferred gains and losses on hedges arose as analysed below:

Unracognised Deoferrad
Totat net Totat et
Gains Losses  galns/fosses) Gains losses  gains/fosses)
&m £m £m £m em £m
At 1 January 2003 ' 116 {49) 67 62 (6} 56
Arising in previous years that were recognised in 2003 (80) 24 (66) {44) 6 {38)
Arisingin previous years that were notrecognised in 2003 26 (25) 1 18 - 18
Arising in 2003 118 (60) 58 6 {3) 3
At 31 December 2003 144 {85) 58 24 (3 21
Of which:
Expected to be recognised in 2004 87 32) 55 22 3 19
Expected to be recognised in 2005 or later 57 53) 4 2 - 2

h) Additional disclosures for Goldfish Bank

Prior to 30 September 2003, the three core products of Goldfish Bank were the Goldfish credit card, loans and savings
accounts, On 30 September 2003 Goldfish Bank sold its credit card and loan business to Lloyds TSB Bank pic and on the
sarme day repaid the balance on the working capital facility, with the surplus cash invested in short term deposits.

Since that date, the company has wound down its savings product balances, and at 31 December 2003 transferred

the small residual balances on these accounts to a trust managed by Barclays Bank ple. Goldfish Bank ceased trading
on 31 December 2003 and ended all reguiated business at that point,

Goldfish Bank did not hold any derivatives at 31 December 2003. All derivatives previously held were used to hedge
interest rate risk. Goldfish Bank did not hold any derivatives for trading. At 31 December 2003 Goldfish Bank heid short
term deposits amounting to £143 million, with a maturity date of no more than three months, and other non-interest
bearing assets of £15 million;

For the comparative period, an analysis of derivatives, interest rate sensitivity gap analysis and fair value of non-trading
financial instruments held is provided opposite:
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28 Financial instruments continued

Derivatives

The maturity of the notional amounts and reptacement cost of non-trading financial instruments, ali entered into with Lloyds
TSB Bank plc at 31 Decernber 2002 were as follows:

Batween one
One yoaror less and fiva ysars Cver liveysars Total
Notional  Replacement Notional  Replacement Notional  Replacement Notional  Replacement
mrincipal cost principal cost principal cost prncipal cost
Interest rate related contracts £m £m £m em &m £m £m £m
31 December 2002 52 - 236 - - - 288 -

Interest rate sensitivity gap analysis
The tables below summarise the repricing mismatches of Goldfish Bank's non-trading assets and liabilities. ltems are
allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the maturity date.

Move than More than More than
three months sbx months ona ysar
Not but pat but nod but not Non-
mora than mare than o than more thar Morathan merest .
thiee months ix Morths Firv fiv beari Toia!
31 December 2002 e T e s i o
Loans and advances to customers 759 1 1 10 - - 771
Other assets - - - - - 271 27
Customer deposits? (286) - - - - - (286)
Goldfish Bank working capital facility (344) (86) - - - - (430
Other liabilities and shareholders’ funds - - - - - (326) (326)
Interest rate swaps (off balance sheet) 288 - {52) (2386) - - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap 417 {85) (51) {2286) - (55) -
Cumulative gap 417 332 281 55 55 - -

() Repayableondemand.

Fair value of non-trading instruments
At 31 December 2002 the notional principal amounts, fair values and book values of non-trading instruments entered into:
with third parties were as follows:

Notional Year end Yaar end Year end Year end’
principal pesitive positive negative negative
amount Tak value book value {air value book value
Interest rate swaps £m om Em £m £m
31 December 2002 288 - - 4 -

29 Post balance sheet events

On 19 January 2004 the group announced it had reached agreements with Chevron Texaco to acquire a 33.33% interest in
the UK side of the Statfjord oil and gas field (the Statfjord field is located in both UK and Norwegian waters) and a 50%
interest in the Orwell gas field (located in the Southern North Sea) for total consideration, including the value of associated
tax allowances, of £60.7 million. The acquisitions will add approximately 280 million therms of gas and nine million barrels
of oilto the group's portfolio, with a further development option.
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30 Principal undertakings Country ot h”um“;;ﬁd;:
31 December 2003" Incorporation andnetassets Prinipal activity
Subsidiary undertakings
AA Corporation Limited England 100 Holding company and roadside
services in Eire
AA Reinsurance Company (Guernsey) Limited Guemsey 100 Insurance services
Accord Energy Limited England 100 Wholesale energy trading
Automobile Association Developments Limited England 100 Roadside and financial services
Autormobile Asscciation Insurance Services Limited England 100 Financial services
Automobile Association Underwriting Services Limited  England 100 Roadside and financial services
British Gas Services Limited England 100 Servicing and installation of gas
heating systerns
British Gas Trading Limited England 100 Energy supply
Centrica America Limited England 100 Holding company
Centrica Barry Lirnited England 100 Power generation
Centrica Canada Limited Canada 100 Holding company and gas production
Centrica Energia SL Spain 100 Energy supply
Centrica insurance Company Limited Iste of Man 100 Insurance services
Centrica KL Limited England 100 Power generation
Centrica Overseas Holdings Limited England 100 Holding company
Centrica PB Limited England 100 Power generation
Centrica Resources Limited England 100 Gas and oil production
Centrica Risk Limited Eire 100 Non-life insurance
Centrica RPS Limited England 100 Power generation
Centrica Storage Holdings Limited England 100 Gas storage
Centrica Telecommunications Limited England 100 Telecommunications
CPL Retail Energy LP usa 100 Energy supply
DER Development Nos. 1-10 Limited (Alberta) Canada 100 Gas production
Oirect Energy LP USA 100 Energy supply
Direct Energy Marketing Limited Canada 100 Energy supply
Direct Energy Services Inc. Canada 100 Home services
Energy America LLC USA 100 Energy supply
Electricity Direct (UK) Limited England 100 Energy supply
GB Gas Holdings Limited Engtand 100 Holding company
Hydrocarbon Resources Limited England 100 Gas production
Regional Power Generators Limited Engtand 100 Power generation
The Autcmobile Association Limited Jersey 100 Roadside services
Volkswagen Assistance Limited England 100 Roadside assistance
WTU Retail Energy LP USA 100 Energy supply
Joint ventures
AccuRead Limited England 49 Meter reading
Autornobile Association Financial Services™ England 50 Financial services
Barrow Offshore Wind Limited™ England 25 Wind farm construction
Centrica Personal Finance Limited England 50 Financial services
Humber Power Limited England 60 Power generation
Luminus NV Belgium 50 Energy supply
Motorfile Limited™ England 50 Used car data checking
) All principal undertakings are indirectly held by the company, except for GB Gas Holdings Limited, which is a direct
subsidiary undertaking.

{il Automobile Association Financial Services is unincorporated and its principal place of business is Capital House,
Cueen’s Park Road, Handbridge, Chester CHB8 3AN.

{ii} Barrow Offshore Wind Limited is a joint venture with DONG AS (37.5%) and Statkraft Energy Europe {37.5%).

{iv} Motorfile Limited is a joint venture with Experian Limited and has a 31 March year end.
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31 Summary financial information for the Consumers' Waterheater Income Fund (the Fund)

The Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund is consolidated as a quasi-subsidiary in accordance with FRS 5 Reporting the
Substance of Transactions. Summary financial information is provided below, showing each main heading in the primary
statements for which there is a material item included within the group’s accounts, as prepared under UK generally
accepted accounting practices.

a} Profit and loss account

2003 2002
Period ending 31 Decernber £m £m
Turnover - 60 3
Profit before tax 17 2
Distribution to unit holders (23} 2
There are no other recognised gains and losses occurring in either the current or prior period.
b) Balance sheet 2000 002
31 December £m £€m
Tangible fixed assets 190 182
Net current assets 9 4
Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year)® (216} (196)
Provisions forliabilities and charges {46) 42)
Net liabilities {63) {52)
c} Cash flow statement 2003 2002
Period ending 31 Decermnber on £m
Cash inflow from operating activities 45 3
Returns on investments and servicing of finance (6) -
Capital expenditure and financial investment 21) -
Acquisitions - (294)
Financing - 303
Distributions to unit holders {23) {
(Decrease)/increase in net cash 5) 11

The Fund commenced operating on 17 December 2002. At 31 December 2003 Centrica hetd a 19.9% interest in the Fund
(2002: 41.9%), through its wholly owned subsidiary, Enbridge Services Inc, which holds 100% of the Class B
exchangeable units in Waterheater Holding Limited Partnership, a subsidiary of the Fund. Class B Exchangeable Units
attract comparable voting rights te Units of the Fund and are exchangeable into Class A Units of the Fund.

Class A units of the Fund are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange and represent the minority interest included in the
group financial statements. The Fund’s full financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices in Canada, and accordingly there are differences between the Fund's financial statements and the
amousnts included within the financial statements of the Centrica group.

{1 Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year) comprise C$500 million of bonds issued by the Consumers
Waterheater Incorne Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Fund. These bonds carry interest at a fixed rate and an
expected final repayment date of between 11 and 13 years. The issuer, guarantor and holders of this debt have
acknowledged in writing that the notes do not represent obligations (as to principal or interest) of any person other
than the issuer and each of the guarantors. Accordingly there is no recourse to the group.
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. Company balance sheet 2008 2002
31 December Netes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 32 77 61
Investments:

Subsidiary undertakings 222 1,023
Otherinvestrents 17 22
33 239 1,045
316 1,106
Current assets
Debtors (amounts falling due within one year) 34 511 343
Debtors (amounts falling due after more than one year) 34 6 309
5,120 3,740
Current asset investments 35 655 147
Cash at bank and in hand 24 316
5,801 4,203
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
Borrowings 36 (205) (237)
Creditors 37 {2,484)
(3,868} @,721)
Net current assets 1,933 1,482
Total assets less current liabilities 2,249 2,588

Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year)

Borrowings 36 (535) 518)

Creditors 37 (73) (205)
{608) {723)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 38 (31) (33)

. Net assets 1,610 1,832

Capital and reserves - equity interests

Called up share capital 19 237 236
Share premium account 39 549 537
Profit and loss account 33 824 1,059
Shareholders' funds 40 1,610 1,832

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 12 February 2004 and were signed onits behalf by:

ol T gt

Sir Michael Perry GBe Phil Bentley
Chairman Group finance director

The notes on pages 75 to 77 form part of these financial statements, along with the accounting policies {note 1) and note 19.
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Plant,

ans v
32 Tangible fixed assets pyd
Cost
1 January 2003 102
Additions 29
Disposals @27
31 December 2003 104
Depreciation and amortisation
1 January 2003 41
Charge for the year 13
Disposails (g}
31 December 2003 27
Netbook value
31 December 2003 17
31 December 2002 67

No assets were held under finance leases (2002: £nil), .
Amounts capitalised in respect of customer relationship management infrastructure included within tangible fixed assets:
at 31 December 2003 were £29 million (2002: £26 million).

Investments n subsidiaries”

Shares Loans Own sharesm" Total
33 Fixed assetinvestments £ £m £m £m
Cost
1 January 2003 222 BO1 51 1,074
Additions 548 232 - 780
Disposals (548) {862) 6) (1,416)
Transfers . - (224) - (224)
Exchange adjustments - 53 - 53
31 December 2003 222 - 45 267
Amounts written off
1 January 2003 - -~ {29) 29
Amortisation under long term incentive schemes - - {5) (5
Disposals - - 6 6
31 December 2003 - - (28) (28)
Net book value
31 December 2003 222 - 17 239
31 December 2002 222 801 22 1,045

) Investments comprise £222 rniliion (2002: £1,023 million) of investrments in subsidiary undertakings, being shares in
subsidiaries of £222 million (2002: £222 million) and loans of £nil {2002: £801 million), and own shares at cost of
£45 million (2002: £51million) to the Centrica employees share trust. During the year the group restructured several of
its holding companies. As a resuft a number of outstanding loans were repaid, share capital was issued by certain
subsidiaries and the company's investment in these subsidiaries was subsequently transferred to other group
companies at nil toss or gain.

(i) The Centrica employees share trust held 21 million (2002: 27 million) ordinary shares in the company. This represented
0.50% of the called up ordinary share capital (2002: 0.64 %), which had a market value at 31 December 2003 of
£45 million and a nominal value of £1 million {2002: £47 million and £2 million respectively). During the year 6 million
shares (2002; 12 million) were transferred from the trust with respect to awards held by employees of the company and
its subsidiaries.

(i} £17 million of the amortisation carried forward for the Centrica employees share trust has not been charged through
the profit and loss account, but is included in amounts owed by group undertakings in note 34, as it reflects amounts
recoverable from subsidiaries for awards due to their employees. At 31 December 2002, the amount owed by
group undertakings relating to amortisation was £18 miliion, of which £3 million was due after more than one year.

The operation of the long term incentive scheme is described more fully in the remuneration report on pages 30 and 31.
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2008 2002
‘Within After Within After
One year ONo yobar Oong yaar oNne year
34 Debtors £m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings® 5,088 6 3,360 309
Other debtors 17 - 55 -
Prepayrnents and other accrued income 9 - 16 -
Corporation tax 2 - - -
5,116 6 343 309
(M Atotal of £17 million (2002: £18 million) was included, relating to the accumulated cost of shares expected to be
released to employees of subsidiaries under the fong term incentive scheme.,
2009 2002
35 Current asset investments £m n
Money market investments 655 147
£17 million {2002: £10 million) of money market investments were held by the Law Debenture Trust, on behalf of the
company, as security in respect of the Centrica unapproved pension scheme, as described in note 25.
2008 2002
f * Within Afher Within Adter
ﬁi‘:::::;:;g:g due " y; mv:-: may;ar: e y::
Sterling bonds® - 535 - 518
Commercial paper 205 - 237 -
205 535 237 518

() Sterling bonds are repayable as follows: between one and two years £125 million (2002: £nil); between two and five
years £nil 2002: £125 million); and after five years £416 million (2002: £400 million). The bonds bear interest at fixed

rates between 5.375% and 5.875% {2002: 5.375% and 5.875%). The bonds have a face value of £541 million
{2002: £525 miltion) and are stated net of £6 million (2002: £7 million) of issuance discount.

200 2002
37 Other creditors it ol Wihin Aner
Amounts falling due e e e e
Trade creditors 12 - 28 -
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,403 73 2,239 206
Taxation and social security 3 - 18 -
Accruals and deferred income 88 - 91 -
Dividend payable 157 - 110 -
3,663 73 2,484 205
Proft

1.January and loss Utilised 31 December

2003 charge n the ysar 2009

38 Provisions for liabilities and charges £m tm £m £m
Pension costs® 9 6 Q) 5
Other®® 24 14 (12) 26
33 20 (22) 31

Potential unrecognised deferred corporation tax assets amounted to £19 million {2002: £29 million).

(). The pension cost provision includes the difference between charges to the profit and loss account and the
contributions paid to the pension schemes in respect of retirement pensions and other retated benefits.

@i} Other provisions principally represents estimated liabilities for restructuring, outstanding litigation and Naticnal

Insurance in respect of long term incentive scheme liabilities. The National Insurance provision was based on a share

price of 211 pence at 31 December 2003 (2002: 171 pence).
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Share Proiit

premium and leoss

account account? Totn!
39 Reserves £m £m £m
1 January 2003 537 1,059 1,596
Retained loss forthe year® - (238) (238)
Shares to be issued under long term incentive scheme® - 3 3
Issue of ordinary share capital {note 19} 12 - 12
31 December 2003 549 824 1,373

() Aspermitted by section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985, no profit and loss account is presented. The company's
loss for the financial year was £9 million (2002: £28 miillion}.

i} The company intends to fund certain of its long term incentive schemes through the issue of new shares when these
schemnes vest. The amount shown represents the expected value of the shares to be issued using the market price
at the date allocations were granted.

{iiy Exchange losses of £53 million (2002: £84 million gain) on foreign currency borowings have been offset in reserves
against exchange gains of £53 million (2002: £90 million loss), on the cost of investments in overseas undertakings.

2003 2002
40 Movements in shareholders’ funds £m £m
1 January 1,832 1,548
Loss attributable to the company (€]
Dividends {229)
Exchange transiation differences -
Issue of shares net of issue costs 13
Shares to be Issued under fong term incentive scheme 3
Net movementin shareholders'’ funds for the financial year {222}
31.December 1,610

41 Commitments and contingencies
a) Capital expenditure
At 31 December 2003, the company had placed contracts for capital expenditure amounting to £10 million {2002: £8 miliion),

b} Lease commitments

At 31 December 2003, there were £1 million of land and building and £6 milfion of computer lease commitments in relation
to non-cancellable operating leases for the company (2002: £1 million and £7 million respectively). The company has
guaranteed operating commitments of a subsidiary undertaking at 31 Becember 2003 of £10 million (2002: £8 millicn)

in respect of land and buildings.

¢) Guarantees and indemnities
Refer to note 26(f).
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Gas and liquids reserves (unaudited)

The group has estimated proven and probabie gas and liquid reserves in the UK and North America. Estimates are made
by management.

The principal fields in the UK are South Morecambe, North Morecambe, Galleon and the Roughi field associated with
Centrica Storage. The principal fields in North America are Medicine Hat and Entice.

Estimated net proven and probable reserves of gas (billion cubic feet) UK An'»eﬁclm Total
1 January 2003 2,442 404 2,846
Revisions of previous estimates® 193 (7 176

Purchases of reserves in place 12 - 12

Production (382) (36) (418)
Sales of reserves in place . 5) - 5
31 December 2003 2,260 351 2,611

() Inclucles 188 billion cubic feet in relation to the Rough field associated with Centrica Storage.

Nerth

Estimated net proven and probable reserves of liquids (million barrels) uK America Total

1 January 2003 3 4 7

Revisions of previous estimates 3 M 2

Purchases of reserves in place 3 - 3

Production (1) - (1)
31 December 2003 8 3 11

Liquid reserves includes condensate, propane, butane and oil.
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Five year summary

Resuns 1399 2000 2001 2002 2003
Year ended 31 Decamber £m £m &m &m &m
Turnover 7217 9,933 12,611 14,345 17,931
Operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional
charges, including share of joint ventures and associates:
British Gas residential 164 (46) 244 208
Centrica Business Services 36 44 65 51
Centrica Energy Management Group 308 573 519 561
Centrica Storage 1 40
478 508 571 829 858
The AA 3 19 72 73 93
Goldfish Bank® (14) {15) {32) {40) @n
One.Tel 4 2 4
Centrica North America 8 68 63 130
Other operations 41) 6 {4) 5 -
424 526 679 932 1,058
Exceptional items {(138) (14) (80) (35) {53)
Goodwill amortisation (13) {60) {88) {123) (161)
Profit attributable to the group 182 335 323 478 500
Pance Penca Pence Pance Pence
Earnings per ordinary share 4.3 8.4 8.1 11.4 18
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share® 79 102 121 152 168
Cash flows 1998 2000 2001 2002 2003
Year ended 31 December tm om fm £m £m
Cash inflow from operating activities before exceptional payments 1,453 1,139 869 733 992
Exceptional payments {135) (76) (44) (16) -
Disposals and acquisitions {1,162) (590} (607) {935) 292
Cash (outflow)infiow before use of liquid resources and financing  (690) 55 {342) (918) 652
Assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 1? mg 20;‘1 201: ﬁ
Intangible fixed assets 992 1,309 1,524 1,813 1,614
Tangible fixed assets and fixed asset investments 1,913 1,993 2,225 2,865 2,844
Net current (liabilitiesyassets (346) (469) {397) (108) 241
Long term creditors and provisions {1,592) {1,535) (1,8186) (2,168) (1,945)
Net assets 867 1,208 1,536 2,402 2,754
Debt, net of cash and money market investments:
Net {debt)/cash (excluding Goldfish Bank and non-recourse debt)  (127) (117 {433) (529) 163
Goldfish Bank working capital facility (610) {430) -
Consumers' Waterheater Income Fund (non-recourse) debt {196) (2186)
(127 (117 (1,043 (1,155) 53)

The analysis between British Gas residential, Centrica Business Services and Centrica Energy Management Group is nat

available for 1999,

Prior years have been restated for changes in accounting policies. 1999 was restated on implementation of FRS 12
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets in 1999. Onimplementation in 2001 of FRS 19 Deferred Tax
and mark to market accounting for energy trading derivative financial instruments, values for 2000 were restated

but not those for 19889.

iy Discontinuedin 2003,

(i) Adjusted eamings per share exclude goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges.
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Information for shareholders

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date for 2003 final dividend 28 April 2004
Record date for 2003 final dividend 30 April 2004
Annual general mesting,

Queen Elizabeth || Conference Centre

Lendon SW1 10 May 2004
Final dividend payment date 16 June 2004
2004 interim results announced 29 July 2004
Interim dividend payment date 10 November 2004

Centrica shareholder helpline

Centrica’s shareholder register is maintained by Lloyds
TSB Registrars who are responsible for making dividend
payments and updating the register, including details of
changes to shareholders' addresses and purchases or
sales of Centrica shares. If you have a question about your
shareholding in Centrica, you should contact:

Centrica shareholder helpling: 0870 600 3385
Text phone: 0870 600 3950

Wirite to: Lloyds TSB Registrars

The Causeway, Worthing,

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Frequent shareholder enquiries

fyou change your address

Please notify Lioyds TSB Registrars in writing. If shares
are held in joint names, the notification must be signed
by the first-named shareholder. A form is also available
onour website,

Hyou change your name

Please notify Lioyds TSB Registrars in writing and enclose
acopy of any marriage certificate or change of name deed
as evidence.

Last Centrica share certificate

If your share certificate is lost or stolen, you should call

the Centrica shareholder helpline immediately. A letter of
indemnity will be sent to you to sign. Uoyds TSB Registrars
will charge for this service.

Duplicate shareholder accounts

Shareholders who receive more than one copy of Centrica
communications may have shares registered inadvertently
in at least two accounts. This happens when the registration
details of separate transactions differ slightly. f you wish to
consolidate these accounts, call the Centrica shareholder
helpline to request an account combination form. The form
is also available on our website.

Buying and selling shares inthe UK

If you wish to trade in Centrica shares, you will need to
use a stockbroker or high street bank which trades on
the London Stock Exchange. There are many telephone
and cnline services available. If you are selling, you will
need to present your share certificate at the time of sale.

Transferring Centrica shares

Transfering shares to someone else requires the
completion of a stock transfer form. This form, and details
of the procedure you need to follow, are available from the
Centrica shareholder heipline. Stamp duty is not nermally

80 Centrica plc report 2003

payable if the transfer is to a relative orif thera is no money
being paid in exchange for the shares.

Direct dividend payments

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank

or building society account. This service has a number

of benefits:

» there is no chance of the dividend cheque gaing missing
in the post;

+ the dividend payment is received more quickly as the
cash is paid directly into the account on the payment
date without the need to pay in the cheque and wait
for it to clear; and

» a single consolidated tax voucher is issued at the end of
each tax year, in March, in time for your seff-assessment
tax retumn.

Having your dividends paid in this way also helps Centrica
improve its efficiency by reducing postage and cheque
clearance costs. If you wish to register for this service,
please call the Centrica shareholder helpline tc request
adirect dividend payment form. The formis also on

our website.

The Centrica website

The Centrica website at www.centrica.com provides
news and details of the company’s activities, plus
information on the share price and links to our brand sites.

Theinvestor information section of the website contains
up-to-date information for shareholders including the
company’s latest results and key dates such as dividend
payment dates. [t also holds historical details such

as past dividend payment dates and amounts, and
acomprehensive share price information section.

Visit www.centrica.com/sharehoiders

Electronic communications

Shareholders who prefer to receive cormmunications

from Centrica electronically are encouraged to register
their email address via the investor section of our website.
The company’s annual report is available on the Centrica
website and, by registering, shareholders wil receive an
electronic notification when the company's annual reports
and notices of general meeting become available.
Shareholders are also able to complete and return

voting papers for the company's annual general meeting
electranically. Registration is free and easy to complete. All
that is required for registration is the shareholder reference
number which is shown on your tax vouchers and share
certificates, Once you are registered, you may also look up
arange of information including the number of Centrica
shares you hold, the registered name and address details
and information held for dividend payment instructions.

Share price information

The Centrica share price and historical details may be
viewed on our website. Shareholders can find share prices
listed in most national newspapers. Ceefax and Teletext
pages also display share prices that are updated regularly
throughout the trading day. For an accurate buying or
seliing price, you should contact a stockbroker or

high street bank.



The Centrica FlexiShare service

Centrica has teamed up with Lloyds TSB Registrars to
offer anew range of services aimed at making life easier for
shareholders. FlexiShare participants will have accesstoa
dividend reinvestment plan and a low cost, reduced time
share dealing facility. There is no cost to shareholders for
transterring into the FlexiShare service and participants will
benefit from the same rights as all other shareholders. For
further details about FlexiShare, please callthe Centrica
shareholder helpline or visit www.centrica.corn/flexishare.

ShareGift

ShareGift, the charity share donation scheme, is a free
service for shareholders wishing to give shares to
charitable causes. it may be especially useful for those who
wish to dispose of a small parcel of shares which would
cost more to sell than they are worth, There are no capital
gains tax implications (.. no gain or loss) on gifts of shares
to charity and it is also possible to obtain income tax relief.
Further information can be obtained at www.sharegift.org
or from the Centrica shareholder helpline.

The Unclaimed Assets Register

The Unclaimed Assets Register is a unique search
service that helps individuals to find their lost assets
and re-establish contact with financial institutions.

It has a database of unclaimed life policies, pensions,
unit trust holdings, and share dividends drawn from
many companies and can search for lost assets and
entitlements. The Unclaimed Assets Register charges
asmall fixed fee for each search, 10% of which goes
to charity. For further information, visit www.uar.co.uk
or call the Centrica shareholder helpline.

Overseas dividend payments

A service has been established to provide shareholders

in aver 30 countries worldwide with the opportunity to
receive Centrica dividends in theiriocal cumency. Fora
small fixed fee, shareholders can have their dividends
automatically converted from sterling and paid into their
bank account, normally within five working days of the
dividend payment date. For further details, please contact
the Centrica shareholder helpline on +44 121 415 7061,

Useful historical information

Demerger

Centrica plc traded on the London Stock Exchange for

the first time on 17 February 1997, the date of demerger
from British Gas plc. Shares were acquired in Centricaplc
on the basis of one Centrica share for every British Gas plc
share held at demerger. Shares in Centrica plc, acquired
on demerger, are treated as having a base cost for capital
gains tax purposes (calculated in accordance with taxation
legislation) of 64.25 pence each.

Share capital consolidation

On 10 May 1999, the ordinary share capital of Centrica plc
was consclidated on the basis of nine new ordinary shares
of 5% pence for every ten ordinary shares of 5 pence held on
7 May 1899. The consolidation was linked tothe payment of
a special dividend of 12 pence per share on 23 June 1989,

Shareholder benefits

We are pleased to offer a series of shareholder benefits on
selected products and services. If you would like to receive
information about these items, and have not previously
registered, please call the Centrica sharsholder helpline or
visit the shareholder benefits page of our website.

American Depositary Receipts

Centricahas an Armerican Depositary Receipt {ADR)
programme. The ADRs, each of which is equivalentto ten
ordinary Centrica shares, trade under the symbol CNTCY.

For enquiries, please contact:

ADR Depositary

The Bank of New York

Investor Relations

PO Box 11258, Church Street Station
New York NY 10286-1258

email: shareowner-sves@bankofny.com
or via www.stockbny.com

Telephone: 1 888 BNY ADRs in the US
or 00 1610 382 7836 from outside the US.
www.adrbny.com

Analysis of shareholders as at 31 December 2003

Distribution of shares bry tha type of sharehalier Heldings Shares
Nominees and

institutional investors 12,317  3,724,341,021
Individuals 1,147,334 541,560,185
Total 1,159,651 4,285801,206
Size ot sharmhokiing Number of holdings. Shames
1-500 864,482 219,544,635
501-1,000 193,624 133,203,069
1,001 -5,000 93,052 158,677,844
5,001 -10,000 4,971 34,319,964
10,001 -50,000 1,909 37,440,589
50,001 -100,000 346 24,821,353
100,001 -~ 1,000,000 846 290,271,896
1,000,001 and above 421 3,367.621,756
Total 1,159,651 4,265,901,206
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Centrica’s vision is to be a leading supplier of essential

services in our chosen markets.

ur strategy is to retain

and attract customers in our core businesses with continual
improvements in service and value, while at the same time
developing new opportunities in the UK and internationally.
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Throughout this document references
to British Gas include Scottish Gas.

Visit our websites

You can find out more about
Centrica and the businesses in our
group by visiting our websites.

www.centrica.com provides
information about the group,
including our corporate
responsibility activity and
shareholder services.

You can find out more about the
producis and services we offer
by visiting our customer sites:

www.theAA.com
www.house,co.uk
www.britishgasbusiness.co.uk
www.goldfish.com
www.onetel.co.uk

www.directenergy.com
www,.energyamerica.corn
www.luminus.be




Overview of the year

. : Before exceplionals and goodwill srmortisation including jeint ventures and associales After exceptionals and goodwill amortisation including joint vertires and associates

Earnings per share (pence) Operating profit (Em) Earnings per share (pence) Operating profit (Em)

Operating profit: up 37% (58% after exceptionals and goodwill)
Earnings: up 32% (48% after exceptionals and goodwill)

British Gas residential: improved gas margins and growth
in electricity and services

Centrica Business Services: profit up 48% with organic
growth supported by acquisitions

AA: core business growth in roadside and personal finance

. Telecoms: losses reduced by two thirds and improving
sector outlook

Goldfish: credit card growth from renewed brand building

North America: acquisitions of incumbent positions
but slower organic growth

Dividend: final dividend up 37%,; up 29% for the year

All operating profic numbers and eamings are stated., throughout the commentary, before sxceptionals and goodwill amortisation unless otherwise
siateq. The deeciors believe Lhis measure assists with understanding the undantying performance of the group. The equivalent amoumts after
excepuonals and goodwill 2mortisation are reflected in note 1 and are reconciled at group level in the group prefit and koss account on page 32,
wilh descriptions of the exceptional ftems in note 5.
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Centrica at a glance

Every day we touch the lives of millions of people.
Through our leading brands, Centrica provides warmith,
comfort and peace of mind.

People know us through our brands but behind those brands
lie the skill, knowledge and expertise of thousands of employees.

Centrica has unrivalled experience in providing essential
services to people in their homes and on the road.

British Gas

Gas: We supply gas to homes
throughout Britain, under the British
Gas and Scottish Gas brangs,
Against the background of a highly
competitive energy market, millions
of customers continue to choose
us as their gas supplier.

Electricity: Since the residential
electricity market opened o
cempetition in 1998 we've
become one of the largest
suppliers of electricity in Britain.

We are committed to providing our
customers with excellent service
and great value for money.

Telecommunications: British Gas
Communications was launched

in September 2000, and offers
customers fixed line, mobile

and internel services.

Home services: We continue
to be the largest provider of gas
central heating installation
and servicing in the country.
We also offer our customers
the reassurance of prolection
in other areas of the home,
praviding services for kitchen
appliances, plumbing and
drains, electrical wiring and
home security systems.

www.house,co.uk

4
/’ ;1

British Gas

Scottish Gas Q

Nwy Prydain

Centrica Business Services

During the year we created
Centrica Business Services.

We supply gas, electricity and
telecoms Lo industrial and
commercial customers acress
Britain using the British Gas,
Scoltish Gas and OneTel brands.

In addition to increasing our share
of the energy market for small and
medium sized enterprises, we

are creating broader bundled
offers. These build on emerging
operational synergies, as well as
our local and national presence.

www.britishgasbusiness.co.uk

centrica

business services
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Centrica energy management group (CEMG)

Gas and electricily operations:
Our equity gas production and
eleclricity generation capabilities,
along with third partly supply and
transporiation contracts are
managed to oplimise value

and assure reliable supply

for customers,

Energy trading: Our trading
and wholesaling business,
Accord Energy, rades with

all the major participants in the

wholesale UK energy market
and is an active player in the
emerging European markets.

www.cenirica.com
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We aim to enhance the service we provide to our customers
and the value we give to our shareholders by continually
deepening our understanding of what our customers want.

We do this by training our people, enhancing our systems
and developing our brands. Centrica strives to ensure
that all our experience and knowledge is shared across
our businesses for the benefit of customers and

shareholders alike.

The AA

Roadside services: We provide
reassurance and services to
motorists in the UK and Ireland
through the AA. The roadside
assistance service remains at the
core of our activities, with members
choosing the level of cover that
best suils their needs,

Personal finance: We are the
UK's number one independent
insurance intermediary, and we

are a growing provider of personal
loans and financial services.

Other AA services: AA Service
Centres offer a range of maintenance
and repair services to motorists
across Britain.

We are the only national driving
school exclusively using fully
qualified driving instructors.

www.lheaa.com

OneTel

With a fresh and innovative
approach, we provide a range
of landting, mobiie and nternet
services across the UK.

Our mobile service offers one
of the lowest monthly line rental
charges inthe country.

www.onetel.co.uk

OneTel»

Goldfish Bank

Building on the success of the
Goldfish card, we have launched
the Goldfish Bank in partnership
with Lloyds TSB to develop

a wide range of financial
services products.

New products include a savings
account, personal loans and
a guaranteed savings bond.

www.goldfish.com

¥
Goldfish
@‘?

North America and Europe

North America: Through Direct
Energyin Canada and Energy
America in the US we supply
energy to homes and businesses
in several provinces and states.

Qur Direct Energy home services
division provides heating and

ventilationinstallation and
maintenance services,

Europe: Qur joint venture energy
business, Lurninus, is an active
participant in the liberalising
Belgian market.

www.directenergy.com
Www.energyamerica.com
www.luminus.be

%g Direct Energy:

f . anargy amatica
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luminus
o8
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Chairman’s statement

Our strong brands, enhanced customer insight and
asset management expertise will continue to enable
us to create value for customers and shareholders.

04 Centrica plc report 2002

Ouring 2002, Centrica continued to
make progress towards our vision
of 'taking care of the essentials’ for
customers in our chosen markets.
We have done this by concentrating
on what our customers want. This
has led to top-line growth across
our business units and helped drive
adjusted earnings per share up
26% (before exceptional items

and goodwill amortisation).

We took significant steps to
ensure that British Gas remains
the market leader in residential
energy and continues to improve
its performance in other home
services. The AA had a year

of solid performance as we
repositioned the AA brand to
increase awareness of the wide
range of products and services
available to motorists. Our North
American business has made
progress despite a challenging
reguiatory environment.

Centricaremains
well placed

to competein
anincreasingly
international energy
marketplace where
we expect further
consolidation.

In the UK, the measures Lo
underpin a competilive energy
market enable us to continue

to deliver benefits Lo customers.
In the wider European context,
good progress was made
towards agreeing a framework
for introeducing competition

Lo the entire energy market.

In addition a number of important
improvernents wese made to the
competitive conditions in the UK
tefecoms market but there is still
further work to be done.

Dividend

The board of directors is propuosing
afinal dividend of 2.6 pence per
share to be paidin June 2003.
When combined with the interim
dividend of 1.4 pence per share
paid in Novernber 2002, the

total dividend for 2002 would

be 4.0 pence per share. This
represents an increase of 29%

on the previous year and reflects
our positive medium term outlook
for both earnings and cash low.

The board of directors

We announced a number of
changes to the board during the
year. 5ir Sydney Lipworth retired
at the annual general meeting

in May and we are most grateful
for the significant contribution

he made to the development

of Centrica. In September we
announced the appointment

of Helen Alexander and in
October the appointment of
Robert Tobin as non-executive
directors with effect from

1 January 2003. | am delighted
that Helen and Robert have joined
us. Their considerable experience
will further strengthen the board.

Corporate responsibility

We recognise that creating
sustainable shareholder value
depends on 3 full understanding
of our impact on society and

the responsible management

of our business in a manner
consistent with our values

and principles. To this end,

we eslablished a corporate
responsibility commitlee

which sets the framework for
developing and reporting our
efforts in this area. Our approach
was recognised by our inclusion
in the FTSE4Good and Dow Jones
Sustainability indices.

We recognise
that creating
sustainable
shareholder value
dependsona

full understanding
of our impact

on society.

The future

Centrica remains well placed

to compete in anincreasingly
international energy marketplace
where we expect further
consclidation. Our strong brands.
enhanced customer insight and
asset management expertise,
combined with our financial and
operational scale, will continue

to enable us o create value for
customers and shareholders alike.

The collective efforts of all Cenwrica
employees have ensured that

we have made further progress
towards our vision during 2002.
lwould like to thank them for their
commitmert and | look forward

to working with them (o deliver the
business performance, which will
provide our customers with the
service that they want and reward
our shareholders appropriately.

Sir Michael Perry gae
Chairman



Chief executive’'s review

We have a strong business with leading market positions
and | am confident that our strategy will continue
to deliver value for our shareholders.

Operating profit by business® (Em)

In 2002 the group continued

its strong overall financial
perfarmance, in particular from
our leading UK energy operations,
where improvement in margins
and growth were accompanied

by new momentum in our services
to business customers and
expansion of our upstream

energy asset portfolio,

QOur AA roadside and personal
finance operations continue

Lo deliver solid undertying profit
growth, Despite slow regulatory
progress in our UK telecoms and
North American energy markets,
we are expanding in both
businesses. Goldfish brand
development continues with

a move focused product line.
Qur reinvestment in growth
areas is proceeding selectively,
with a constant focus on
economic value creation,

Global energy markets were
hit in 2002 by turbulence and
the retrenchment or exit of
certain market participants,
and the UK was no exception.
Positive underlying progress
inthe transparency and
competitiveness of the UK
wholesale electricity market
resulted in financial pressure
on some asset owners, and
poor performance for those
market participants that had
nol anticipated the fundamentat
impact on wholesale pricing.

2002 2001
British Gas residential 244 {46)
Centrica Business Senvices 65 44
Centrica energy management group {(CEMG} 520 573
The AA 13 12
Goldiish Bank {40) {32)
Onelel 2 4
Cenvica North America 63 68
Other operations 5 {4
Group 932 679

“‘Before exceplional charges snd goodwill amertisation, inchuding joint ventures and associales.

However, the wholesale gas and
electricity markets are resilient,
with ample commuodity supply
enabling British Gas to benefit
from both retail brand leadership
and the hedging effect of our
energy assel management.

The value strategies that we are
pursuing in both the upstream
and downstream markets within
the UK continue to afford the
group a compelitive advantage.

Turnover and profitability

Group turnover (excluding Accord
trading revenue) was £10 billion

in 2002, up 11% from the prior-
year period. Higher sales to our
business customers - through
Centrica Business Services -

were complemented by an
increase in residential electricity
sales as well as growthin North
America, the AA's roadside and
personal finance units, home
services and One Tel. UK gas sales
velumes were lower, largely due lo
unusually warm weather in the first
and Tourth quarters of the year.

Group operaling profit including
Jjoint ventures and associates,
before exceptionals and goodwill
amontisation) of £932 million was
up 37% from E679 million in 2001,
withimproved performance across
most brand units, particularly
British Gas. Aggregate group
gross and operating margins
{exciuding Accord) were 30%

and 9%, up from 26% and 7%
respectively in 2001.

Customer service

We maintained our focus on
improving customer service
levels across all of our brands.
We are now placing greater
importance on qualilative

and value-based measures

of customer service which are
built into a scorecard evaluation
and reflected in the remuneration
of staff a1 all levels.

As testament to our focus on
these areas, we continue to be
highly rated by external agencies,
In particular, the AA won the

JO Power & Associates 2002

UK Roadside Assistance Study
award for customer satisfaction
for the third time in five years.
further accolades include Which?
magazine naming the AA as the
UK'’s best motoring organisation,
and www.house.co.uk winning
the 2002 Customer Management
National E-commerce Customer
Service Award.

Cutlook

Whilst the economic outlook
remains uncertain, we are moving
from a period of considerable
investment in growth opportunities
and strategic market entries,

to a period of delivery from

these investments, underpinned
by new customer refationship
management [CRM) platforms
and common competencies

in securing value from deeper
customer relationships.

For British Gas, we expect
continuing recovery in residential
gas gross margins and further
electricity growth to generate
further profit improvement,
partially ofiset by the higher
costs of the government's Energy
Efficiency Commitment and peak
CRM syslem implementation
expenses through to 2004,
Annual CRM cost synergies will
drive further medium term growth
in British Gas operating margins.

In the UK retail energy sector
competition remains tough,
although we believe that the
transaction prices paid recently
by acquirers should result in
retail pricing consistent with
positive supply margins. In
addition, reduced doorstep
selling in the industry appears
to beleading lo lower churn

Cenirica plc report 2002 05



Chief executive’s review continued

Qperating profit (Em}

Operating profit (Em)

P A T T T T

Belore exceplionals and goodwitl amortisation,

including joint ventures and associates.

Alter exceptionals and goodwill smerisation,
including joint ventures and associates.

rates. While we expect the result
of this reduced industry churn o
be slower growth in our residential
electricity customer base than

we had previously anticipated,
reduced customer acquisition
expenses should contribute

to better electricity profits.

We expect to increase market
share and profitability in the

UK commercial energy sector.
The launch of Centrica Business
Services has resulted in increased
management focus and growing
product portfolios in this unit.

ltis antictpated that output volumes
from our Morecambe Bay gas
production facilities will decrease
by around 10% per year. offset

over time by greater output from
other currently held gas assets and
future acquisitions. We expect our
cash petroleum revenue tax (PRT)
payments to decline significantly
over the next few years.

Profitability of the AA is expected
to continue toimprove, and
expenditure in information
technology will peak in 2003.

For OneTel, we expect thal
regulatory improvermnents will
warrant renewed organic
investmentin brand and product
marketing at the same time as
developing cur growing mobile and
internet businesses. For Goldfish,
significant improvement to credit
card and loans contributions are
expected in 2003 and with a more
focused rollout of new products,
breakeven will occur lowards the
end of the year.

North America continues to

offer a significant value creation
apportunity, given our focus on

the marketing and service elements
of derequlated energy supply.

We continue to lobby regulators

to maintain legal frameworks and
incumbent pricing levels which

06 Centrica plc report 2002

allow sufficient and stable gross
margin headroom to atiract new
markel entrants. Without this
regulatory commitment to proper
competitive markets, current
organic growth prospects and
customer renewals are being
negaltively affected. In this
environment, we expect to focus
in 2003 primarily on the integration
of our existing custemer bases and
on profitability. We will maintain
afiexible approach to customer
acquisition, seeking to acquire
incumbent supplier customer
bases and playing a key role

in markets at early stages of
deregulation, Qur organic growth
will be focused in a few larger state
and provincial markets which offer
sufficient scale for successfully
markeling our energy and related
services. As aresull of this industry
environment and our strategic
focus, the timing for achievement
of our broader ambition in North
America will depend upon the
availability and pace of key
acquisition opportunities.

Qur strategy in conlinental Europe
is to build a significant customer
base in the medium term. Although
the pace of deregutation varies
across the individual markets
there are now clear limetables

for commercial and residential
market openings. The whole of the
European Union household energy
market is expected to be liberalised
by mid 2007, We are focusing on
those countries where the speed
of market opening and legal and
political conditions, including
unbundling and independent
regulation, are mare advanced.

Employees

Our employees are central to the
delivery of our strategy and we
need Lo continue to altract and
retain high quality, highly motivated
peopie. fam pleased thal we have
recruited some excellent people

over the last year to complement
our existing team. We are also
developing programmes

to ensure that we have the
leadership capability to

drive our strategy forward.

{ am committed to making
Centrica an employer of choice
and the recent accreditation of

our AA brand unit as ‘Investors

in People’ is one indication that

we are developing the highest
standards of employment policies
and practices. Increased scores

in our satisfaction survey in 2002
demonstrate that our employees
share our vision and are committed
to delivering our strategy. | would
like 1o join the chairman in thanking
thern all for their ongoing and
valued commitrment.

Coanclusion

To sum up, we have a strong
business with leading market
positions. Our core businesses
are growing and are strongly cash
generative and our investment
innew businesses is proceeding
as marketl opportunities emerge.
I am therefore confident that our
strategy will continue to deliver
value for shareholders.

>

Sir Roy Gardner
Chief Executive



Operating and financial review

L
J
British Gas
British Gas serves miliions of customers
every day.
British.Gas residential British Gas strongly believes year. Net losses in gas customers rates overall. We believe that

Improved gas margins
and growth in electricity
and services

2002 has seen progression in

the performance of British Gas
residential, driven by improved
gas margins, continuing growth in
electricity and home services and
reduced losses in communications.
Aggregate turnover was up 2.3%
in 2002, at £6 billion with operating
profit at £244 miilion {2001: loss

of £46 million}, despite wanmer
weather. Qur energy and home
services operations have been
integrated 1o reflect our vision

of enhancing customer loyalty
through greater understanding
and to realise higher revenue

and cost synergies. Our
investment in the British Gas
brand continues to support our
leading position iri the residential
energy and services seclors

and allows us to continue

10 build further muiti-product
customer relationships, with

the aim of becoming Britain's
leading home services provider.
Our operations will be further
supported by our investment in
customer relationship management
(CRM) infrastructure, enabling
improved service levels, a lower
costto serve and lower costs to
acquire new produci relationships.

Al British Gas we're making
invesiments o enhance the
quality of service we provide

to millions of customers every
day. We are now significantly
increasing the number of
engineers and developing a
range of skills and expertise to
sustain our competitive edge in
the market. Continued investment
in developrment of our employees
so thal they are able to provide
ever improving service standards
wiil lead to durable and profitable
customer relationships.

that selling praclices across the
energy industry must continue

1o be improved. it has taken a
leading position driving the new
code of sales practice, removing
commission-only sales agents
and implementing anindependent
compliance regime,

At 40%, British Gas's share of

the aggregate residential energy
customer base in Britain remained
steady against the same tlime last

were in line with 2001 but reflect
alonger term rend of stabilising
markel share with losses occcurring
primarity during the few months
following retail price increases.
Second half losses were 186,000
compared with 426,000 in the

first half. Electricity safes growth
was reduced by the withdrawal

of commission-only sales agents.
Churnrates declined in the second
half of the year, with the market
showing signs of lower switching

Key residential energy performance indicators

2002 2001 O %

Customer numbers {period end) (000}

Residential gas 12839 13451 {4.5)
Residential electricry 5,795 5.374 ]
Estimated market share (36)

Residential gas 64 67 _ [ppts)
Residential efectricity” 22 21 1ppt
Average consumption

Residential gas (therms) S N L -
Residential electicity (kWh) 4,132 4.088 0.8
Weighted average sales price e e
Residenial gas (p/therm} 47.12 43.80 B
Residential electricity (p/kWh) 6.06 5.99 1.2
Weighted average unit costs

Residential gas (WACOG, p/therm} 21.9 21.90 03

Residential efectricity (WACOE, p/Wh)

2.47 2.55 {3.1)

Residential gas 1,256 1,508 a7
Resigential electricity 444 342 a0
Total 1.700 1.850 2]
Sates and marketing expenses (% of lurnover) 4.2 4.3 0.ippts)
Average products per cuslomer ™* (period end) 1.53 1.50 2
Turnover (Em)

Residential gas 3,805 4029 [t5)]
Residential electricity 1,380 1.121 23
Total 5,185 5.150 0.7
Gross profit margin (%)

Residential gas 20 12 Bppts
Residential electricity 26 27 (Ippe}
Tota! 22 15 Tppts
Operating profit (m) - -
Residential enengy 218 19 nm
Operating margin (%)

Residential energy 4.2 04 38ppls

*2001 restated to reflect Ofgem market sesizing during 2002.

““British Gas residentiat twand.

&% has been used W express ‘percentage change'.
n/m has been used {0 represent ‘nod meaningful',

our premium British Gas brand,
improving customer service
and breadth of branded horme
service offerings wilt continue
to afford us competitive
advantages in our Sectors.

Increases in residential energy
gross profits were partialty offset
by the £26 million expensed
investment in CRM infrastructure
(2001: £9 million). We expect

this will begin to improve our
operating profit by reducing the
costs Lo acquire and serve our
customers from 2004. We also
capitalised £154 million of CRM
expenditure during the year
{2001: £60 million), General

and administrative expenses
were higher as a result of higher
manpower costs (largely to
support a growing hame services
engineering workforce), higher
debitor provisions (£20 million)
and increased spending {£25 million)
Lo meet our obligations under
the government's Energy
Efficiency Commitment.

Most of this spend was
incorporated in our ‘here to HELP'
programme, This programme,
created by British Gas, is the
country's biggest independent
initiative to 1ackie household
poverty. In alliance with local
housing providers and seven
leading charities, this programme
will provide help o 500,000
households over the next three
years, This will take the form of
energy efficiency measures, benefit
checks and a range of services
provided by our charity pariners.

British Gas's home management
website, www.house.co.uk. gives
customers online access to British
Gas 24 hours a day, every day

of the week. Research shows that
the site has averaged around 28%
of all utility related web traffic in
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Operating and financial review continued

British Gas residential segmental turnover (Em)

2002 2001

Residential gas 3.805 4,029

Residential electricity 1,380 1.121

Home services 810 122

British Gas Communications 52 37

A Total 6,047 5,909

Wa continue Lo invest in the development
of employees.
Britain, up from around only 6% In 2002 we withdrew from the Key British Gas Communicaltions performance indicators
onthe old British Gas site. liguefied pevroleum gas (LPG) 2002 2001 5%

business in line with our strategy - -

. . ’ . Cuslomer numbers (fixed line) (period 000] 167 400 8)
Residential gas of focusing on direct customer A::age intes “;:“ mr:;h fix ed:::; {000) %0 347 :2;
Turnover decreased by 6% (o relationships as a large portion ARPU (fixed fine) (6 10.52 087 5.2
£3.81 billion. Higher average seliing  of the LPG business operated Variable gross margin (%) 28 -26 3 p; "
prices were offset by a reduction through third party retailers. Sales mzro .::' . s (% of tarmoven) 7 22 0 5p =
in sales volumes, reflecling warmer T €m : = 37 pF;.I
UK weather {operating profit Residential electricity Operating loss (Em) 5 (o7 &5

impact £42 million) and the net
loss of around 600,000 customer
accounts. We believe that our
brand and the scale of service

we provide support our average
revenue per customer being above
the average of the competition.

Gross margins recovered (o 20%
(2001: 12%6). The recovery was
driven by the increase in average
selling prices and a reduction in
transportation and metering costs
of £252 million compared with
2001, due to lower volume and
liming differences. A large portion
of the lower cosls arose in the early
part of the year reflecting a reversal
of the over-recovery by Transco

in 2001 of National Transmission
System (NTS) entry fees with a
year-on-year impact of £98 million.

Turnover increased by 23% Lo
£1.38 billion. Qur weighted average
retail price was slightly higher, as
the full year effect of a reduction

in prices in 2001 was offsetbya
shift in our customer mix following
growth in the prepayment segment,
which operates on higher tariffs
given related administrative costs.
Average consumption was broadly
flat year an year. We believe that
our average retail pricing is
approximately 8% below the
average of the incumbent suppliers
and we estimate our market share
at year end was 22% (2001: 21%).

Gross profit grew by 21% due

to higher volumes, while our
gross margin fell one percentage
point 10 26% due to increased
transportation and metering

Key home services performance indicators

2002 2001 L%
Customer relationships (period end) {000} o - e
Central heating service contracts 3,482 3.314 5
Kitchen appliances care (no. of appliances} BN 562 55
Plumbing and drains care 805 743 22
Elecrical care 367 143 157
Home security 28 28 -
Total relationships 5,653 4,790 18
Central heating installations 102 109 {6}
Turnover (Em)
Cantral heating sesvice contracts 388 _ 37
Central heating installations 260 255 2
Other __ L _.152 98 58
Total 810 122 12
Engineering staff employed 5,036 5,356 13
Sales and marketing expenses (% of turnover) & 5 1ppt
Gross margin (%) 46 42 4ppls
Total operating profit (Em) 61 36 69
Operating margin {3%) 8 5 3ppts
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costs being only partially offset
by lower commodity costs.

Home services

British Gas home services
continued 1o report strong growth
in the year. Turnover increased by
12% to £810 million. Higher central
heating volumes, augmented by the
impact of our Trothurst acquisition

in late 2001, were complemented
by good contributions from our
newer products, in particular home
electrical care, We are the only major
service supplier providing bundled
sefvice products under our own
brand, using our own people. This
integrated offering gives competitive
advantage over outsourced products
and services marketed by other
suppiiers and is a strong tool for

the retention of energy customers.

A £64 million improvement in
gross profit resulted from an
increase in volume and average
order value along with a higher
gross margin due to product mix,
increased productivity and the
lower price of materials. This
was partly offset by increased
operating costs, mainly due

Lo higher manpower and home
services marketing expenses.
Theresulting growth of 69%
inoperating profitillustrated

the continuing scalability of our
home services business model
as we increased both customer
numbers and product penetration.

Our engineering stafl numbers
{including installation engineers)

grew by 13%. Securing access

to skilled engineering staffis a

key challenge and during the first
half of the year we announced

our intention to recruit and train
approximatety 5,000 engineers over
the next five years: this is already
well under way. To this end British
Gas has set up its own engineering
academy which will co-ordinate

all engineering recruitment,

skills training and apprentice
development across the company.
It will also liaise with external bodies
including governmemnt and the wider
industry to promaote training and

to reduce skills shortages.

British Gas Communications
Turnover in 2002 was up 41%

at £52 million (2001: £37 million),
due primarily Lo a higher average
number of customers over the

12 month period. Our gross margin
increased to 28% (2001: 26%) as
call traffic was transferred to the
group’s switches, managed by
OneTel. Our switches atlow us to
take advantage of the lowest cost
routing for each individual call.

The business conlinues to operate
at a foss, mainly due to underlying
infrastructure costs and the cost
of customer acquisition in an
environment of continuing high churn
rates. Since the implementation

of enhanced carrier pre-sefection
(CPS) processes in July, all new
customer connections are fulfiled
using this method. Initial results
support our expectation that the
average revenue per customer



CEMG segmental turnover (Em)

2002 2001
Drsiness senﬁg Industrial saies and wholesaling 764 821
Gas production 83 80
Accord enerqy trading 4,304 31570
' . Total 5171 451
Centrica Business Services focuses on the
needs of small and medium sized enterprises,
(ARPU) will increase and the rate by 3 percentage points to 17% CEMG Gas production
of churn for customers using CPS following price rises in gas. Upstream gas assets Upstream gas profits were

will reduce. We are continulng to
lobby for a converged process for
both CPS and wholesale line rental
{WLR) in order to make it simpler for
customers tg swilch suppliers but we
remain of the view that considerable
work needs 10 be done before a fit Tor
purpose product can be launched.

Significant reductions have

been made to operating costs

as synergies with OneTel have been
realised. Cancellation and churn rates
have improved in the second half
through better customer targeting
and quality of service, Customer care
and billing were transferred onto
OneTel's system in Jung, reducing
information $yslems spending by
approximately £1 million per month.

Centrica Business Services
Profit up #8% with

organic growth

supported by acquisitions

Centrica Business Services
established itself as the number one
supplier of energy to the commercial
sector inthe UK by maintaining its
position in the gas market and by
achieving strong organic growth in
the electricity sector, supplemented
by the acquisition of Electricity
Direct. The organic growth
accounted for almaost half of the 53%
growth in the electricity customer
base since the beginning of the year.

Enron Direct has been successfully
integrated, increastng overall
business profitability, giving
enhanced sales capability across
the market and improving service
to larger mukti-site customers.

Turnover has increased by 67% to
£971 million as a result of organic
growth as well as a full year's results
from Enron Direct and five months’
contribution from Electricity Direct.
Overali gross masginincicased

Centrica Business Services has
increased its UK commercial
energy market share to 27%
(2001: 22%, measured by share

of supply paints), cornprising 51%
of the gas markel and 20% of the
electricity market. In gas we seek
to defend our market position
through focusing on customer
service and a value propaosition
rather than acquiring market share.
In eleciricity, due to the acquisition
activity and better largeted organic
growth, average consumption per
customer has increased by 39%.
We believe our pricing is
approximatety i line with

other major branded suppliers.

portfolio being enhanced

The Centrica energy management
group (CEMG) consists of gas
production operations, the newly
acquired Rough gas storage
facilities, eleciricity generation
(managed for British Gas residential
and Centrica Business Services),
large volume industrial and
wholesale gas sales. and our
energy procurement, optimisation
and scheduling operations. This
unilis fundamental - throughits
provision of competitively priced
energy supplies - to the success
of the customer facing operations
that are at the core of Centrica’s
consumer marketing business.

Key Centrica Business Services performance indicators

2002 2007 O%
Customer supply points (periodend) 00} _ . __ ...
Gas 383 389 {1.6)
Electricity 516 337 53
Total 883 126 24
Average consumption
Gas (therms) 3218 3.878 1§
Electricity fikWh) 22,398 16,115 38
Weighted average sales price
Gas: {p/thesn} 36.72 34.04 8
Elecuicity (p/kWh) 4.7% 5.49 03
Weighted average unit costs e
Gas (WACQG, p/theimn) 20.711 20.46 1.2
Electricity (WACGCE, p/kWh) 2.25 2.44 (8)
Transporiation and metering charges {Em)
Gas 126 130 (3
Electricity 170 40 325
Total 296 170 4
Sales and marketing expenses (% of turnover) 2.9 21 0.3pps
Turnover {£m})
Gas . . .. _._ —— .47 480 08
Electricity e SM_ 1 324
Total M 581 67
Gross margin (3)
Gas 1% 12 4ppts
Elecvicity 18 22 _ {4ppts}
Tatal 17 14 3ppis
Operating profit (Em)
Commercial energy ] 44 48
Operating margin (%]
Commercial energy 7 B {ppd

adversely affecied by the reduction
in wholesale prices compared wilh
fast year, reducing the average

unit sales price {which is linked to
market) by 5% in 2002. Production
volumes, which represented 27%
of our downsiream demand, were
5% fower than last year due in

part to warm weather in the first
and last quarter. Unit production
costs increased as a percentage

of turnover given the higher volume
taken from those fields which atiract
higher unit depreciation charges
and the overall reduction in turnover
to cover our fixed cost base..

During the year. a number of
upstrearm gas ransactions were
concluded in line with our strategy
of increasing gas equity ownership
beyond the Morecambe fields.

In the first, Centrica undertook

a strategic swap with Agip inwhich
Centrica acquired uncontracted
gas and equity inthe large
Goldeneye development, and built
its equity in the Armada complex
in the Central North Sea, together
with other small equity parcels

and cash. In return, Agip acquired
Centrica's equity in the Liverpoot
Bay development, where the gas
is not contracted Lo British Gas.

Subsequently, an 18% stake in the
Seymour development, adjacent
to Armada, was acquired from BP.
This well, which was drilled late in
the year and contains significant
quantities of gas and liquids, should
be in production in the first quarter
of 2003, At the end of the year,
Centrica entered into a contract

to acquire the remaining 60%
equity and overall operatorship

in the Rose gas development
inthe Southern North Sea.

The devetoprment is expected

to deliver its first gas in 2004.
Finally, agreement was reached for
the sale 1o Talisman of the R Block
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We now have interests in four power statons
22r0ss the country.

The energy management group sowrces the
energy neaded by our customer facing
operations.

oil production interests acquired
from Agip as part of the swap deal.

In total an estimated 135 billion
cubic feet (bef) (1.3 billion therms)
of gas was acquired. ‘

We have also focused on making
bestuse of our asset infrastructure
inthe East Irish Sea. In November,
the Cenlrica operated Bains field
came on stream and now links
into our South Morecambe
infrastructure. During the year,

an innovative drilling project
inour South Morecambe field
added a small amount of
additional reserves to the
portfolio. This technique is now
being evaluated for future use at
our other East Irish Sea assels
and offers us the potential of
adding reserves cost effectively.

Storage

In November Centrica acquired
the Rough gas storage facilities
inthe North Sea. During the period
of Centrica’s ownership, turnover
was £9 million with an operating
profitof £1 million. The Secretary
of State for Trade and Industry
has o decide whether to clear

the acquisition, refer it Lo the
Competition Commission for
further investigation or accept
undertakings in lieu of areference.

Industrial sales and wholesaling
Sales volumes were down by

8% against 2001 due toreduced
takes under long term interruptible
contracts with power stations,
and the termination of one
European contract. However,
betler gross margins, a profit

of £8 miltion recognised in the

first haif of 2002 in connection
with the early tlermination of

a gas supply contract, and
one-off losses on the termination
of other contracts in 2001
contributed toincreased

profils refative to last year.
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Key CEMG performance indicators

2002 2001 O%

Gasproductionandstorage — —_
Production volumes (m therms) N
Morecambe 3.659 3,892

Other 397 395 1
Totat 4,056 4.287 {5)
Average sales price (p/therm) 218 225 (s
Turnover * (Em} 932 1,033 {10}
Turnover {external) (Em) a3 80 3.8
Operating costs (% of tumover)

Royalties 7 7 .
Petroleum reverns tax L 8 2] -
Volume relsted productioncosts 25 23 _ 2ppis
Qther prociuction costs 12 10 2ppts
Total 52 47 Sppts
Rough operating profit (Em) 1 n/a 0/
Operating profit (£m) 448 552 {19
Industrial and wholesale

Sales volumes [mtherms) 5,654 6,215 (8}
Average sales price [pithenm) 19.8 19.5 2
Turnover (Em) 184 a1 (15)
Operating prof (£m] 72 5 wm
Aceord

Tradedvolumes(physicah _ _ ]
Gas {m therms) 20,399 18,512 10
Electricity (GWh) 95,329 29,446 224
Turnover (Em) 4,304 3570 21
Operating profit (Erm} 0 16 [100)
CEMG operating profit (Em) 520 573 @)

*91% was 10 group companies in 2002,

Electricity generation

We currently have interests in
four power stations with peak
capacity of 1.7 GW as well as

a 0.9 GW lolling agreement
with Intergen for the entire
outpul capacity of its Spalding
plant, where operations are
expecied 1o commence by
the end of 2004. The volume
of production at our generation
plants was 7662 GWh, an
increase of 160% on last year
due mainly to the addition of
Glanford Brigg and the full
period use of the King's Lynn
and Peterborough plarts. Our
stations provided 22% of our
annyal downstream demtand,
and 20% of peak requirements.
The main value of our plants

remains in their flexible mid-rmerit
and peak generation capacity

in a less liguid market for peak
supplies. However, they also
provide strategic upside potential
in the event of higher wholesale
prices, with the option to increase
generation volumes as it becomes
more profitable.

Accord Energy

Our Accord trading operations
continued to support our strategic
procurement requirements and lake
additional rading positions within
strictly controlled limits based on
our wholesale market outlook.

Accord broke even on the year,
adrop of £16 million on 2001,
After a positive first half,

we experienced gas trading losses
during the unplanned shutdown
of the continental European
interconnector. Given Centrica’s
trading positions in Europe, this
led to Accord having to procure
gas at short notice to meetils
obligations, which would have
been fulfitied by exponts from the
UK. Accord’s performance also
suffered in the power markels
through the highly publicised
problems of TXLU and British
Energy, which contributed

to high volatility. Accord also
provided for a one-off loss

of £6 million when TXU went
into administration late in 2002.
Physical volumes traded during
2002 were equal o 1.4 times the
gas and 2.2 times the electricity
volumes supplied {o cur
downstream customers.

The AA

Core business growth
inroadside and
personal finance

2002 saw further progress in the
developrment of the underlying
profitability of the AA's core
roadside and personal finance
operations. Key to the AA's future
growth is the ongoing investment
in brand repositioning which was
launched in May. The ‘JustAAsk'
message focuses consumer
attention on the product range
offered by the AA and has
increased product awareness
beyond roadside assistance from
33% 10 43%. Turnover grew 10%
to £760 million. Operating profit
increased by 1.4% to £73 million
with increases in roadside services
and personal finance offset by
start-up losses for the AA Service
Centres. This repositioning of

the AA brand will support the
AA's conlinued drive towards
end-to-end motoring services

to members and cross-sales

of the whole product range.



The "JustAAsk’ campaign launched in May
has helped beoaden awaceness of the
AA product renge.

Our network of Service Centres has now been
Tully rebranded.

In addition, the AA is investing

in a major CRM infrastructure
programme over three years.

In 2002, £30 million of expenditure
was incurred {of which £26 million
was capitalised). This investment
is central to developing the AA's
cross-selling potential and at

the same time achieving cost
efficiencies across the busingss.

The AA's website continues

1o attract new customers Lo buy
AA products and services online.
Judged to be the UK’s most
popular automotive related site
in 2002, the website also brought
the AA the award for e-business
strategy of the year at the National
Business Awards. TheAA.com
supplied 16 million route maps

in 2002 and was accessed

by 21 miillion visitors.

The AA continues to act as the
independent voice of the motorist.
Highlights included February’s
launch of EuroRAR, a systern to
-give a safety starrating to Europe's
roads, and the Chancellor's budget
commitment not to make any
further fuet tax increases.

AAroadside services
Turnover increased by 5% 0
£476 million, driven primarily by
membership growth, and whilst
our overall share of the personal
and business market marginally
increased to 31%, the average
price per customer fell by 0.6%
due to a change in product mix.

Operating profits increased by
23% to £54 million, as higher
wrnover was accompanied by
tight management cantrols and
initialives to contain the roadside
breakdown costs and increase
patrol utilisation.

Investment in roadside assistance
conlinues with the provision of new
vehicles, GPS route guidance and

improved management systems,
The growth in roadside assistance
membership has continued and
with increased productivity of
the 3,600 patrols, custorner
satisfaction has improved from
66% to 68%. The AA won the

JD Power & Associates UK
Roadside Assistance Study
award for customer satisfaction
and was named the UK’s best
motoring organisation ina
Which? magazine survey.

Also, the first tranche of
specialised all weather, portable
computer systems with fault
diagnostic capability were
deployed to AA palrols to help
maintain their ability to fix faults
at the roadside. All parols will be
similarly equipped during 2003.

In the year the AA continued to
train patrols and Service Centre
technicians at its dedicated training
coliege. Some 125 new pakrol
recruils were trained during 2002.

AA personal finance

Turnover in personal finance
grew by 11% to £172 million.
Supported by the *JustAAsk’
campaign, over 70.00Q car

ancd personal loans were taken
oul during the year which,

after renewals, left a year end
portfolio of approximately
117,000 fixed terrn personal
loans (2001: 77,000} provided
through the AA joint venture.

At the year end, the fixed term
loan book had increased by 54%
to stand at a record £667 million
(2001: £428 million) with provision
levels decreasing by 1% to
below 3%, Continued product
improvements coupled with
specific advertising, emphasised
the benefits of getting 'car loans
from car people’,

Motor and home insurance
commissions grew by 9%

Key AA performance indicators

2002 2001 o%
Roadsideservices -
Custamer numbers (period end) (000} 12975 12194 6
Customer renewal rate (%) 85 85 -
Avesage transaction value (€) k{1 35 m
Roadside patrols empioyed 3,651 J.582 2
Personal finance
Insurance customers (000}
Motor 959 906 6
Home &64 618 7
Overall renewal rate (%) 18 74 4ppes
Average annual prermium () 261 257 4
Motor and horme insurance commissions [Em) 83 B .9
I:ggns (fixed term}) bock size (Em) 661 428 5_:1
Loans (fixed terrn) operatirg profit {Em) 20 17 18
Number of fixed term personal loans (000) 117 77 52
AA Service Cantres
Site numbers 123 129
Average turnover per site {£000) 20 na
Tumover (Em)
AA ropdside services 476 452 5
AA personal finance JREE I T
Other AA services L M2 82 kY]
Total 760 689 10
Sales and marketing expenses (% of urnover) 10 9 1ppt
Operating profi (Em) .
AA roadside services _ 54 44 23
AA personal linance 47 0 7
Other AA services (28) na___ (133
Total 73 2 1
Operating margin (%)} 10 10

on higher policy volume

{up to £93 million), with customer
renewal rates rising to 78%
(2001: 74%). The average annual
premium rose by 2% to £261,
refecting general pricing
conditions in the industry.

Operating profits increased

by 17% to £47 milion. Turnover
growth of 11% was augmented
by close control of support
costs with increased efficiency
improving the ratio of employees
toinsurance policy levels.

A tailored motor insurance
policy specifically for AA
personal members was
launched in 2002 and sales

of 6,000 have been achieved
inits first year. Breakdown history
is one of the major factors that
form part of the premiums
assessmentl. The number of
policyholders of the AA's new
insurance product for pans and
labour repairs grew frarn 3,000
in Decermber 2001, following
its launch in May to 130,000

by December 2002.

Other AA services

Turnover is up 37% at £112 million,
including a full year of turnover
from the AA's network of 129
garages acquired from Halfords

in September 2001, In 2002

the business rebranded and
relaunched the garages as
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Operating and financial review continued

OneTel»)

OneTa now offers a complete telecoms service
covering landfne. mabile snd internal.

+
Goldfish’

AA Service Centres Lo provide
aretail presence for AA members
and customers. As a further step
towards providing a complete
motoring service it also purchased
Tyreserve and expanded its own
mobile tyre replacement service,
which now gives private and ficet
customers access to a network
of mere than 3,000 AA approved
fixed and mobile tyre centres.

Other AA services incurred
operating losses of £28 million.
E4.5 million of this came from
the closure of AA workshops,
with the Service Centres
producing an operating loss

of £15 million. £7 million of
investmentininirastructure
and rebranding of the Service
Centres was expensed.

We are carmying out various
initiatives such as a cost reduction
programme, advertising
campaigns and offers to the
current membership base to
increase utilisation and rapidly
reduce the ongoing loss.

The AA in the Repubiic of freland
contributed a profit of nearly

£2 million, an increase of over
80% on 2001, due to growth

in both insurance and roadside
assistance membership, thereby
remaining the leading roadside
assistance and personal insurance
provider in the country.

Publishing, car data check, the
driving school and roadside signs
macde positive contributions which
were offset by start-up investrments
in Tyreserve and costs in AABuyacar
and information services.

AA exceptional item

The group has decided to reduce
the operations of Golf England
Limited, a subsidiary undertaking,
and has recognised a €14 millipn
provision inrespect of losses

on the disposal of fixed assets.
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Onelel
Improving sector cutlook

Our focus for this year has been
onincreasing the vaiue of the
existing OneTel custorner base
through enhanced product
offerings and operational
efficiencies. In the medium term,
we believe that this positioning
provides us with a sound platform
to develop in the UK. assuming
recent regulatory proposals are
implemented quickly and fully,

Inthe second half of the year
turnover grew by 20% over the
second half of 2007 to E78 million,
as aresult of further growth in the
customer base. Qur variable gross
margin increased by 5% to 52%
as we took advantage of
opportunities 1o negotiate
improved transmission charges
with our carriers. Qur switched
reselier business model relies

on the use of the networks of
avariety of infrastructure owners
(13 as al 37 December 2002),
mitigating the risks associated
with network failure or carier
financial distress. Operating
profit for the year was £2.1 million
reflecting the investmentin new
products, particularly mobite

and a £2 million marketing
campaign undertaken in the
fourth quarter to raise awareness
of One Tel's transition from

Key One Tel performance indicators

a discounted inlernational calls
provider to a full communications
provider offering landiine, mobile
and narmow and broadband internet
services. To this end, during

the second half of the year

we launched our first

call inclusive package.

Customer acquisition costs
increased to £14 millionin

the second half (full year:

£22 million) supporting full year
growth in the customer base
of 23% from 2001, ARPU
increased by 1% against the
second hall of 2001, With

the implementation of the
revised indusiry process for
carrief pre-selecticn (CPS)

in July, the fevel of our new
landtine sales using this
conneclion methed increased
10 37% in December,

Mobile sales have been very
encouraging with more than
35,000 contracts sold since

the launchin July, supported

by attractive pricing and
expanded retail distribution,
The migration of our broadband
customers onto the One.Tel

" customer care and billing system

is due for completion in the first
quarter of 2003 enabling us

1o offer a complete customer
experience with all our telecoms
services charged on a singte bifl.

2002 2001 O %

Customer numbers [period end) (000)

Fixedline 146 668 12
Other services 216 17 85
Total* 962 785 23
Average minutes used per month (lixed line) 2B4 277 25
ARPU (fixed line) {£) 16.20 15.85 2.2
Variable gross margin {ixed line} (%) 51 47 4ppts
Sales and marketing expenses (% of turnover) 14 8  6Gppts
Turnover ** {Em} 153 €5 135
Operaling profit (Em) 21 4 {48)
Oprerating margin (%) 14 6 [4.6ppts)
30 day taliing

T*2001 unnover is from date of acquisition (3 Juty 2001)

Goldfish Bank
Credit card growth from
renewed brand building

Goldfish Bank has continued

Lo make progress. Following

a review of product strategy

by the Goldfish management
tearn, we are focusing increasingly
or brand performance through

a smalfer range of more capital
efficient products.

The credit card business was
migrated to Goldfish’s new
infrastructure in Novernber. This
was a significant and complex
process involving more thanone
million cards in issue and their
associated loyalty points records.
The new platform is operating well
and customer service, through the
new contact centre in Glasgow,
has improved significantly.
Independent research indicates
that brand awareness has
remained high in the credit card
market and strengthened in the
overall financial services business.
The key ohjective has been to
generate awareness of Goldfish
as a financial services provider,
rather than simply a credit card.
Spontaneous awareness improved
from 6% at the end of 2001 to
12% at the end of 2002, which
puts Goldfish towards the top end
of non traditional banking brands.

Credit card recruilment
performance has strengthened
throughout the year following
changes to the channel mix and
customer management approach.
Total card nel interest income
was up 9% at £36 million despite
lower margins prevailing within the
industry and higher utilisation of
interest free promotional balance
transfers. Fee income rose 6%

1o £34 million, primarily due to
higher levels of customer spend.
Credit losses remained low at

3% of outstanding balances.



%g Direct Energy:.

4 Y
-A‘enargy america
A new intemet based 5avings account was
{aunched duing the year.
Key Goldfish Bank performance indicators Centrica North America liberalisation. We remain of the
2002 2001 &% Acquisitions of incumbent  view that momentum will be
Credit cards in fores (000) 1082 1025 6 positions but slower regained in the regions thal are
Average monthly spend per active card (£) 541 476 14 organic growth important Lo our future, but the
Gross card receivables 773 617 1 timing remains uncertain.
Netinterest margin (%) 5.2 51 0.ppts  Tolal North American turnover was
Credit card income (£Em) £1,118 million in 2002, an increase Retail energy
Netinterest income 36 33 & of 46% over 2001 driven largely Turnover for the residential gas
Feerevenueandotherincome B4 51 6 byourentryintothe Ontario and supply business increased by 12%,
Total (before deduction of loyalty costs) 90 84 7 Texas electricity markets, our entry driven primarily by higher selling
Loyalty scheme costs (3% of income) 33 31 2ppts  into the Ontarie services market prices and acquisitions. Cur
Credit losses {3 of receivables) 3 3.2 (0.2ppts) through the acquisition of Enbridge  Ontario residential gas market
Credit card profit contribution (Em} 9 12 (25)  Services Inc and the addition of share was approximaltely 26% at
Goldfish non-credit card product contribution (Em) 2.4 n/a nfa  over 300,000 gas custamers year end. In our US gas markets,
Sales and marketing expenses {% of income) 6 5 ippt  through the acquisitions of slower growth caused by high rates

Goldfish operating loss before

minarity interest

(40} {32) 28)

The number of cards in force has
increased by 6% to 1.08 million
{2001: 1.02 million). During the
year 77,000 new accounts were
opened (2001: 27,600). with
altrition low at 4.5%. The average
monthly spend on the Goldfish
card increased by 14% against
2001, making it among the highest
inthe UK market. The credit card
proft contribution of £9 million
was £3 million lower than 2001
dueto a £4.5 million increase in
customer acquisition costs and

a £3 million cost relating to the
migration to Goldfish’s new
infrastructure in November.

In the autumn Goidfish entered
the personal loan market,
focusing initially on generating

a high quality applicant pool.
The product proposition was
based on fiexibility featuring

no redemption penalties for
early settlement. At the year

end approximately 1,800 personal
loans had been drawn down
with 1013l outstanding balances
of £14 million. Increased
awareness. response and
take-uprates will be saught

in 2003. Goldfish customers
purchased 104,000 additional
Goldfish branded products
including travel insurance, home

insurance and personal accident
insurance. Thisis 69% up on 2001
and is an encouraging indicator
of future cross-sales potential.
The profit contribution from all
non-credit card products

was negaltive: a net loss of

£2 million due to the investment
of £5 million in customer
acquisition during the period.

Goldfish successfully launched
its internet based savings
account and began active
marketing in the auturmn.

This has praved to have strong
appeal with £236 million

in deposils and over 11,000
accounts opened of which
approximately 50% were
customers new to Goldfish.
Savings will continue 1o form part
of a diversified funding strategy.

The overall operating loss

was E£40 million with aperating
expenses al Goldfish, consisting
of brand marketing, banking
systems and product development,
up 7% al £47 million. A further
£46 million investment was
capitalised in the development
of the IT systems platform,

As this nears completion,

we expect significantly lower
investment in 2003.

Enbridge Services Inc and
parts of NewPower Company’s
customer base.

Operating profit fell by 7%. as
profits from our horme services
businesses (£23 million) and
reduced losses in our electricity
business { by £5 million) were
offset by lower profits (by

E4 miflion) in cur gas business.
Included within the retail energy
results are the increase in the

cost base (£10 million) due to the
development of the infrastructure
10 support future growth and

£21 million of expensed costs
incurred in acquiring customers
organically, Upstream profits
were lower as wholesale prices
fell and favowrable ferward contract
prices expired. These resulls
include the adverse currency
movements {£4 mitlion}, with a 6%
decline in the average Canadian
dotlar exchange rate during the year.

The pace of organic growth slowed
in 2002 owing te a combination
of stow emergence of competitive
markets, resuictive legislative
and potitical developments
affecting sales aclivities, and
large fluctuations in wholesale
nalural gas prices. We are
continuing our efforts with
governments and regulators

at state, provincial and federal
levels in support of market

of customer churn was offset by the
acquisition in August of 212,000
customers in Michigan, Ohio and
Pennsylvania from the NewPower
Company. We continue to manage
our portfolic of US gas customers
closely. and will focus our efforts

on maximising the value from our
current position.

In our first year of operating in the
electricity business in Ontario (from
May) and Texas, rnover was

£189 million with an operating loss
of £10 million. Based on operating
experience this year, we estimate
that average annual consumption for
our residential electricity customers
would be 11,000 kWh, broadly in line
wilh our expectations and more than
twice our UK customer average.
The Texas residential electricity
market continues to support a
positive competitiva environment,
with the presence of a pricing
regime that affords reasonable,
sustainable gross margin prospects
to both incumbents and new
market entrants. Following our
entry into this market in January,

we served 890,000 retail energy
customers by the year end,
consisting of both acquired
positions (810,000 customers)

in southern and western Texas

{for which our ransaction closed

in late December 2002) and organic
programmes mainly in the Houston
and Dallas/Fort Worth regions.
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Operating and financial review continued

The integration of Entwidge Services inc
has allowed us to broaden the range
of products we offer,

Ourretail energy supply gross
profit grew by 14% to £95 million.
Qur gross margin decreased

to 14%. Qur current gross
margins (other than for our
acquired incumbent positions)
are largely driven by our historic
hedging activities in each local
market, through which we have
procured the energy commadity
at a fixed forward cost, achieving
amargin on the quantities
supplied to our fixed price retail *
customers over a contracted
period. There are risks 1o these
margins from the complexities
involved in accurately forecasting
total commaodity requirement,
linked to rates of consumption,
customer acquisition and retention.
We are now the third largest
electricity retailer in Texas.

Volatility in wholesate gas spot
prices remained high, as benchmark
gas contract prices moved belween
US$10/mmblu and US$2/mmbtu.
In markets where we compete
against utitities flowing through gas
or electricity to customers at
wholesale spot cost, this made
winning new forward curve-based
business extremely chatlenging and
also led to high levels of churn
among customers signed up o
what became relatively high priced
programmes. This cyclical pattern
will continue 10 be a feature of our
organic growth. In the latter part of
the year, prices returned o levels
that we believe are more
sustainable in the long term {US$4-
5/mmbtu} and conducive to the
development of our customer base.

Gross margins for our recently
acquired customers in Texas are
based upon prices approved by

the Texas Public Utility Commission
under the ‘Price To Beat’ structure,
which we can apply to have
modified twice in any year to

reflect changes in gas feedstock
cosls. Under the acquisition
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Key North America performance indicators

2002 2001 o%
c bers (period end)
Residentiat and small commercial gas {000) 1,339 1,230 9
Residential and smafll commercial electricity (000) 1,416 g na
Home and business services (000) 1,627 n/a n/a
Industrial and commercial energy (sites served} 61 49 24
Average piic
Residential and small comrmercial gas (therms) 1,13 1.154 (1)
Residential and small commercial electricity (Wh)____10,666____na____nia
Industrial and commercial energy (m therms) 19 23 (18}
Gas production and energy Lrading
Gas production volumes (mthermms) 3% 34 3
Average sales price {pithenm} a4 279 23
Turnover (Em) __ N, [
Residential and small commercial gas 485 433 12
Residential and small commercial electricity 1eg n/a nfa
Home and business services 159 na wa
Gas production and energy trading 124 105 18
Industrial and commercial enengy 160 230 (30}
Total 1,118 768 46
Sales and marketing expenses {% of turnaver} 1.7 3.7 {2ppts)
Gross margin {%)
Residential and small commercial gas 13 19 (6ppts)
Residential and small commercial electricity 16 n/a nfa
Operating profit (Em)
Residential and small commercial gas 16 20 (20)
Residential and small commercial electricity (10) (15) 33
Home and business services 23 - n'a
Gasproductionandenergytradng 33 62 (4%
Industrial and commercial energy 1 1 -
Teral 61 68 7}
QOperating margin (%) 6 9 [Opps)

arrangement, Centrica has an
economic interest in the profitability
of these businesses with effect
from 1 September 2002 through
Lo completion on 24 December
2002. These amounts will be
credited against amounts
payable, under the acquisilion
agreement, inrespect of the
sharing of earnings over the

next four years. All such payments
will be trealed as deferred
purchase consideration. With
effect from 24 December 2002

the [uli profits have been
recagnised in the accounts.

Market eniry costs this year for
Omtario and Texas of £20 million
have been expensed. Organic

customer acquisition costs
were lower. following highlevels
of Ontario electricity customer
acquisition in 2001 and due to
stower organic growth in the

US market. This, along with

the growth in turnover meant
that sales and marketing costs
as a percentage of turnover
reduced by 2 percenlage points.

We entered the Ontario electricity
markel when it opened in May,

and successfully converted

over 500,000 contracts signed
pre-opening to flowing cuslomers.
We now have 15% of the residentiat
electricity market. On 11 November,
the Ontario government announced
that it would cap residential and

small business electricity

prices at below market rates,

to be subsidised by government,
effectively suspending competition
until 2006. Under this legislation,
Centrica remains entitled to
receive the market pricing
mitigation agreement payment,
amounting to £16 million refating
to 2002. Margins on residential
retail contracts already written
are protaected, at least to 2006.
The regulaticns regarding
business customers are still
formative. This electricity
customer base of over 500,000
will continue to retain value and
be used for cross-selling gas
and home services products, but
further organic electricity growth
is unlikely to be possible until this
new legisiation expires in 2006.

We continue to seek opportunities
1o acquire incumbent customer
positions from utilities seeking

to exit the retail function. Our
agreement in December, which is
subject to legislative changes and
regulatory consents, to purchase
the incumbent retait energy
busingss of ATCO Group in Albenta
- which currently consists of
approximately §20.000 gas

and 160.000 electricity customers -
will give us an 80% share of the gas
markel and 14% of the electricity
market. We will maintain growih
mementum into 2003 as we migrate
customers to unregulated

energy and services packages.

Home and business services
As pant of our strategy to gain
competitive advantage and
operating leverage from an
energy and home services
cross-selling platiorm, the
acquisition of Enbridge Services
Inc for C$1 billion (£438 million)
was completed inMay 2002.
Enbridge Services Inc made

an operating profit of £23 million
during the year. We subsequently



.Oa.
luminus
- X ]

Q

Amajor 8dvertising campaign launched
Luminus in Belgium,

raised sorne C$744 million
{£303 million) through selling
down 58% of our interast

in the waterheater assets
acquired as part of the
transaction by way of the launch
of The Consumers’ Waterheater
Income Fund. Our remaining 42%
retained interest had a value

of C$218 million (E89 million)

at 31 December, whichwe
intend to continue to sell

down in 2003. Centrica

remains the exclusive installer
and provider of maintenance
and repair services for our
customers’ waterheaters

-and, accordingly. without legal
ownership of these assets, retains
relationships with approximately
1.3 million househeids.

In the group’s balance sheet
the waterheaters are included
in fixed assets and the debt
financing raised (C$500 million),
for which there is no recourse
to Centrica, is included in loans,
net of expenses. The profit and
loss account includes the entire
rental income and related costs,
including depreciation and
interest on the income fund’s
debt financing from the date

of launch of the fund in
December. The income fund
unit holders’ share of profit

is reflected in a non-equity
minority interest in the profit
and loss account, The balance
sheet non-equity minority
interes| includes amounts
raised frorn the sale of units.

The value of the retained
businesses logether with the
cashreceipts for the divested
assels has created major value
for Centrica shareholders.

We alsoremain a leading installer
of heating, ventilation and air-
conditioning (HVAC) equipment
in Ontario, which has a profitable
associated financing business

and, in addition, some 330,000

of households have contracted
with us for HVAC maintenance and
protection plans. We now have
around 50% share of this home
services market and increasing
this share is a key objective of
2003. Beginningin 2003 we

intend Lo manage services for our
business customers separately.

Upstream gas

Development of our gas

fields in Alberta continues.

We drilled, completed and
began production at 218 welis
during 2002, compared with

307 in 2001, Production volumes
were up slightly at 356 million
therms, representing 24% of

our North American downstream
gas sales. Operaling profit fell

by 47%, primarily as a result

of a lower wholesale market
which led to a 23% decline

in our average sales price

and the expiry of higher priced
forward sales contracts.

Europe

In developing our strategy
for Europe, we are focusing
an those countries where the
speed of market opening and
legal and politica! conditions,
including unbundling and
independent regulation,

are more advanced.

Through Luminus, our jeint
venture in Belgium, we now
have approximately 18% of the
electricity market above 1 GWh
in Flangders which opened in
January 2002. The broader
commercial energy market
opening in early 2003 will

be foliowed closely by the
residential market opening

in July 2003 for both electricity
and gas. Luminus is positioned
as the number two player in
the Flemish market. When the

residential market opens the
business expects to have over
600,000 residential electricity
customers and nearly 200,000
residentiat gas customers,

Our second move in Europe is
in Spain, where our initial aim

is to enter the small and medium
sized business sector of the
market and to build a business
organically which utilises the
skills we have developed in
other markets. We are currently
testing our proposition with a
view to opening for business

in the second quarner of 2003.

The operating loss in 2002 was
£7 miliion, reflecting start-up
costs in Belgium and Spain.

Note: All current financial results isted

are for the year ended 31 Dacember 2002

All references to ‘the prior-year period’,

‘2001" and ‘last year' mean year ended

31 December 2001 unless otherwise specified.
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Group financial review

We aim to grow our earnings and cash flow within a prudent

risk management framework. During the year our share price

out performed the FTSE 100 by 3.1% and since demerger in

Februapl 1997 to the end of 2002 we out performed the index
Q

by 187%.
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Centrica's aim is lo achieve a total
shareholder return {TSR) ranking
in the first quartile of UK FTSE 100
companies, taking account of
share price growth and dividends
received and reinvested over

a sustained period. Centrica
promactes continuing growth

in earnings and cash flow and
seeks to maximise the return

on capital it achieves within

a prudent risk management
framework. The remuneration
repart on pages 25to 30
surnmarises our TSR performance
over recent years against our
FTSE 100 comparator group.

The company's clasing share
price on 31 December 2002 was
171 pence (31 December 2001:
222 pence}, resulting in a rmarket
capitalisation of £7.3 biltion

{2001: £8.9 billion). World stock
markets continued to fallin 2002,
the FTSE 100 index dropping by
24.5%. The company's share price
still out performed the FTSE 100
by 3.1% (2001: 2.1%j) and since
demerger to the end of 2002 we
out performed the index by 187%.

Earnings

Earnings increased by £155 million
to £478 miltion in 2002. This
reflected improved operating
profits” up £253 million and lower
exceptional charges ofiset by
taxation up from £155 million to
£250 million and higher goodwilt
amortisation, up by £35 million

to £123 million.

Earnings before exceptional
charges and goodwill amortisation
were up 32% to £636 million.

This represents a return on

capital employed over the year

of 32% or 7.9% on our average
market capitalisation.

Operating profit
Operating profit® was £932 million
{2001: £679 miiliion). Most of the

improvement came from our
UK residential gas supply
business, and growthin our
business services and home
services operations.

Exceptional charges and
goodwill amortisation

During the year. non-operating
exceptional charges arose

of £26 million net of tax

(2001 £71million operating
exceptionals net of tax). These
related to changes in our Golf
England operation and disposal

of our LPG cylinder business.

In addition, a £9 million (2001: £ nily
exceplional tax charge arose

(see Taxation below). The goodwill
amontisation charge for the year
was £123 milion (2001: £88 millicn),
in line with our programme of
continuing acquisitions.

Netinteresl

Net interest charged to the profit
and loss account was £62 million
compared with £43 million in 2001
and was covered 15 times by
operating profit” compared with
16 times a year earlier. The increase
in interest payabie was due to
higher average indebtedness
mainty as a resuit of acquisitions,
offset by lower interest rates and
the net proceeds of the share
placement during the year.

Taxation

The ongoing taxaticn charge of
£243 million for 2002 represents

a 28% rate on profits adjusted

for goodwill amortisation and
exceptionals (2001 comparative
rale: 26%). Theincrease in the
effective rale is principalty due

to the introduction of a 10%
corporation tax surcharge on UK
offshore gas produclion, with effect
from 17 April 2002. This surcharge
increased the tax charge for the
year by £12 million and resulted

in a restatement of the deferred
lax liability of £9 million, which

*Belore exceptianal charges and goodwill amorusatien, including joint ventures anc associates.

has been treated as exceptional.
The overall charge is still less than
the UK 30% statutory rate, primarily
because previousiy unrecognised
deferred tax assets of £35 million
have been utilised during 2002.

Earnings per share and dividends
Basic earnings per share grew
from 8.1 pence to 11.4 pence and
adjusted earnings per share from
121 penceto15.2 pence, OQver
the last three years the adjusted
performance measure has grown
by an average compound growth
rate of 24% and facilitated a
progressive dividend policy.

We are proposing a final dividend
of 2.6 pence giving a totat of

4.0 pence (2001: 3.1 pence),

an increase of 29%.

Cash flow

Group operaling cash flow
(including dividends from joint
ventures and associates, from
continuing operations before
exceptional payments) was

£790 million for 2002, compared
with £885 mitlion in 2001, An
increase of £299 million in operating
profit” before depreciation and
amortisation of investrnents was
more than offset by changes in
working capital. including growth
in trade debtors, the timing of
gas ransportation payments,
petroleum revenue tax (PRT) and
gas production royalty payments.

Total capital expenditure was

E449 million this year, up from
E312 million in 2001, This

includes £180 million of costs
capitalised for information systems
investments associated with

our new customer relationship
management (CRM) infrastructure,
Acquisition expenditures (net

of cash and overdrafts acquired}
were £988 million in 2002

(2001: £1,204 million),-consisting
primarity of our purchases of the
Brigg power plant and Rough
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gas storage facilities inthe UK,
Enbridge Services Inc in Canada
and WTU Retail Erergy LP and
CPL Retail Energy LP in the US.
The group’s net cash outflow
before liquid resources

and financing was, as a result,
£918 miliion, against a net
outfiow of £342 miltion in 2001.

Balance sheet

The net assets of the group
increased during the year from
£1.536 million to £2,402 million.

Fixed assets

Net intangible fixed assets of
£1,813 miliion (2007 £1,524 million)
represented goodwill, which

has arisen on acquisitions.

During the year, £466 miliion

{2001: £314 million) was added,
including £193 million for the
acquisition of Enbridge Services
Ing, E167 million for WTU Retatl
Energy LP and CPL Retail Energy
LP and £80 million for Electricity
Direct. Goodwill is amortised by
way of charges against profits over
periods ranging from 5 to 20 years.

Tangible fixed assets, mainty
comprising gas field assets

and power stations, had a net
book value of £2,763 million

{2001: £2,058 million). During

the year gas field assets, including
the Rough gas storage facilities,
and power stations totalling

£590 million were acquired.

At the year end, the proven and
probable gas reserves represented
by our field interests amounted

to 2,846 billion cubic feet {bcf)
(2001: 3,232 beh), which included
404 bef (2001: 446 bef) in North
America. At the year end, hardware
and sofiware costs refating Lo our
major investments in CRM had
anet book value of £237 million.

The group's investment in joint
ventures stoed at £74 million
(2001:£112'million), comprising

its share of gross assets of

£810 million and share of gross
liabilities of £736 miliion, of which
£629 milkion related to borrowings.
These investments related principally
to the investments in 60% of
Humber Power Limited, 50%
interest in the AA’s joint ventures
with HBOS and 50% of Luminus NV.

Working capital

Current assets less current
liabilities, excluding net
indebtedness and Geldfish
funding amounted to a deficit
of £243 millian (2001 deficit of
£625 million), Excluding Goldfish,
growthin trade debtors and
accrued energy incomne has
givenrise to a netincrease of
£565 million in working capital.

Goldfish Bank

Goldfish Bank debtors, mainly

in respect of credit card balances
receivable, were £792 million
(2001: £ 673 million), offset

by custorner savings account
balances of £286 million

(2001: £ nil). Goldfish Bank
borrowings amounted to

£430 million {2007: £610 million}.

Net debt

Net debt (excluding the Goldfish
Bank facility of £430 miifion and
the £196 million of non-recourse
debt raised on the water heater
assets acquired with Enbridge
Services inc) increased to

£529 million at 31 December 2002
from £433 miilion at the previous
year end.

Issue of share capital

In February 2002 £426 million, net
of expenses, was raised via the
issue of 232 million ordinary shares.

Provisions and other creditors
due after more than one year
Together these increased during
the year to £1,384 million

(2001: £1.218 mitlion}. Increases

in respect of decommissioning
costs, mainly from acquisitions,
and deferred corporation tax have
more than offset the decrease

in provisions for deferred PRT.

Financial risk management

The board has established
objectives and policies for
managing financial risks, 1o enable
Centrica to achieve its long term
shareholder value growth targets
within a prudent risk management
framework. These objectives and
policies are regularly reviewed.

Currency, interest rate, liquidity
and counterparty risks are
managed centrally by a treasury
and risk managernent team, within
parameters set by the board.

This team is also responsible for
managing the relationships with
the agencies setting the company's
credit ratings and managing the
cosl of its debt capital. Energy
market price and weather risks

are managed by business led
energy and risk management teams
operating within group established
policies. Where appropriate,
financial instruments are used

to manage financial risks as
explained below and in note 28

on pages 59 to 62. Goldfish Bank
imerest rate risks are managed by
atreasury team with Lloyds TSB
Barnk pic within parameters set

by the Goldiish Bank board.

Creditrating

The company’s credit ratings from
Moody's Investors Service/Standard
& Poor's remain unchanged at A2/A
{tong term}) and P1/A-1 (short term)
and with a stable outlcok.

Currency risk

Through wholly-owned US and
Canadian subsidiaries, the group
has operational exposure in
Canadian and US dollars. Canadian
dollar translation exposure is
hedged by maintaining a portfolio

of Canadian doltar financial
liabilities, which approximate

to the net asset value of the
Canadian operations. US dollar
exposure has been hedged by
borrowing on a short term basis
through a combination of US
commercial paper programme and
currency instruments. In addition
there is an element of exposure to
the euro through the 50% interest
in Luminus, which has been
hedged by selling ewro forward

on arolling basis. Exposures lo
foreign currency movements from
operating activities are also hedged
through the use of forward foreign
exchange contracts. All debt raised
in US dollars through the LIS
commercial paper programme,
apart from that hedging the US
translation exposure, is either
swapped into sterling or another
functional currency as part of the
translation hedging operations
described above.

Interest rate risk

Throughout the year, the group's
policy has been to maintain
approximately 50% of long term
borrowings at a fixed rate of
interest. This is achieved by using
derivative financial instruments,
such as interest rate swaps, to
adjust the interest basis of the
portfolio of long term debt {see
note 29 on pages 5310 62). Atthe
year end debt has been raised on
both a fixed and floating rate basis.

Liquidity

Cash forecasts identifying the
liquidity requirements of the
group are produced frequently.
These are reviewed regularly

by the board to ensure that
sufficient financial headroom
exists for atleast a 12 month
period. The group policy includes
maintaining a minimum level of
commitled lacilities and an
objective that a proportion of debt
should be long term, spread over a
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Group financial review continued

Capital funding
31 December 2002

Net debt, excluding Goldfish Bank working
capital borrowings - £529 million

Non-recourse debt (Consumers’
Waterheater Income Trust) - E196 million

Equity including minority interest - £2,402 million

range of maturities. Details of
the maturity profile of borowings
are given in note 29 on pages 59
10 62. AL 31 December 2002,

the group had undrawn
committed facilities of £1 blilion
(2001: £935 million), which were
used as a backstop for the US
commercial paper programme.

Counterparty risk

The board's policy is to fimit
counterparty exposures by setting
credit limits for each counterparty,
where possible by reference

10 published credit ratings.
Exposures are measured in
relation to the nature, market
value and maturity of each contract
or financial instrument. Surplus
cashis invested in short term
financial instrurnents and only
deposited with counterparties
with a minimum credit rating

of A3/A- or P1/A-1 in Moody's
Investors Service/ Slandard &
Poor’s long term and short term
ratings respectively. Energy
trading aclivities are undertaken
with counterparties for whom
specific credit limits are set.

All contracted and potential
exposures are reported to the
financial risk management
committee of the board.

Commaodity price risk

The key commadity price risks
facing the group are first, natural
gas and electricity prices both
inthe short term market and in
respect of long term contracts
and, secondly, escalation indices
on long term gas contracts, of
which the most influential are

oil product prices and general
price infiation.

The group’s policy is to hedge
a proportion of the exposure
for a number of years ahead
matched 10 the underlying sale
and purchase risk profiles.

The group aims Lo raanage
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its risk by using financial
instruments such as oil and gas
swaps and gas derivatives and
bilateral agreements for gas and
power, 85 welk as asset ownership.

The financial risk management
committee regularly monitors the
extent of the group’s commodity
price exposure and the level of
hedging activity alongside the
availability of forward prices

and market liquidity.

The acquisition of the Glanford
8rigg power station tas further
contributed to the company's
target to cover argund a quarter
of its electricity requirement
from its own sources in 2002.

Weather risk

Gas sales volumes, andtoa
lesser extent electricity volumes,
are influenced by temperature and
other weather factors. in Britain,
the weather derivatives market
remains relatively immature.

We again entered into a number
of weather derivative transactions
for the winter period October 2002
to March 2003 in order to hedge

part of the group’s weather exposure.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting palicies
remain unchanged over last year
and are described in note 1 to the
financial statements on pages 35
to 37. Where appropriate, wording
has been expanded to more fully
explain policies, particularly in
relation to financial instruments,
and energy trading activities,

In keeping with many other major
companies, adoption of FRS 17
Retirerment Benefits, has been
deferred in line with the revised
timetable announced by the
Accounting Standards Board.
Accordingly, the group has

continued to report under SSAP 24

Agcounting for Pension Costs.

In accordance with FRS 17,
additional disclosures are
contained in note 26 on pages
55 and 56. if the standard had
been fully adopted in 2002,
profit would have been reduced
by £47 million (2001: £16 million)
and net assets would have

been reduced by £507 million
{2001: £117 million). Full adoption
is not mandatory until 2005, but
the group will continue to keep
this under review.

ottt

Phillip Benlley
Group Finance Director



Corporate responsibility

Centrica community investment

Older or disabled customers and their carers - 19%
Other - 6%

Support for motor related causes - 31%

Energy eflciency and fuel poverty - 16%
Educauon - 19%

Support for employees and local
community - 10%

Bruna Peek OBE, chairman of the Gokden
Jubilee Summer Panty. lest-fires the Braish Gas
Jubilee Beacon that iluminated Buckingham
Palace duwing the weekend celebrations.

Enengy Angel Eleanor Whitehead whase school,
Little Gaddesden Primary, signed on for the
next stage of British Gas's awand winning

“Think Energy’ educationsd programme.

Centfica's community spend is focused on
a number of prionty areas, linked 1o issues
relevant to our business.

Our businesses are focused on
delivering essential products and
services to millions of peopte every
day. Continued and sustainable
success requires that we accept
and respond Lo our social
responsibilities. By understanding
our impact on society, the economy
and the wider environment, we can
develop positive relationships with
stakeholders to benefit both
business and the community.

Corporate responsibility is integral
to all our activities. Our framework
is set and co-ordinated by the
Centrica corporate responsibility
commiltee that was formed

in 2002. Detailed information

about our range of corporate
responsibility activities is available at
www.centrica.com/responsibility.

The effectiveness of our
approach was illustrated by
Centrica's inclusion in the 2002
FTSE4Good Index and, for the
first time, in the Dow Jones
Suslainability Indexes for 2003,

We are aware not only of the
positive business potential of
demonstrating our commitment
to corporate responsibility. but
also of the negative impact of
poor performance in this area.

Corporate responsibility concerns
have been fully integrated into

the group’s risk management
structures. These address the
financial impact on the business

of social and environmental threats
as well as the potential impact on
the reputation of our brands.

Our corporate responsibility activities
fall into four main categories:

Environment

Our prime responsibility is
managing the impact of our
operations on the environment,
We also have a responsibility for

helping our customers make
informed decisions about using
our praducts and servicesina

way that minimises any negative
impact on the environment. British
Gas plays a leading role in helping
to achieve the government’s fuel
poverty and climate change
targets through the provision

of free or subsidised energy
efficiency products. During our
Energy Efficiency Standards of
Performance (EESoP) programme,
which finished in April 2002, Brilish
Gas pravided 14 million energy
efficient products to 585,000
households throughout Britain,

in total saving 5,250 GWh of energy.

From Aprit 2002, EESoP was
replaced by the Energy Efficiency
Cornmitment, a three year
programme with an energy saving
target of around 27,000 GWh.
British Gas is ontarget to deliver
these savings. Key lo this success
has been our ability to engage
customers through new product
innovation and groundbreaking
customer propositions. Through our
Warm-A-Life programme, more than
70.000 disadvantaged customers
have received a range of benefils
including free insulation products,
benefits assessment to ensure that
they are claiming everything that
they are entitled to and discounts
on British Gas energy bills.

In 2002, we worked hard on
delivering our environmenial
programme, Nolable improvements
included increasing the recycling

in our offices from 18% to 34% and
improving their energy efliciency by
implementing projects that saved
more than 4.5 million KWh per
annum. In terms of environmental
management, sites that were
certified Lo 1S014001 have
completed their reassessment

and the British Gas Service Centres
and AA Service Centres achieved
certification for the first time.

We published our second
environment reportin March 2002.

We also promoted environmental
good practice in the home through
our ‘Think Energy’ education
prograrnme for schools. To date,
more than 14,000 primary and
secondary schools in Britain have
signed up for the programme,
involving an estimated one million
school chitdren between the ages
of 7 to 14. The programime will be
extended o include 14 to 16 year
olds from 2003, During 2002, ‘Think
Energy’ won a British Commitment
tq the Environmert Premier Award,

Community

Our community programime
addresses issues relevant to our
business and, where possible,
we 2ls0 support our employees’
volunteering aclivities.
Communities will benefit most
from our investment if there is 8
sound business case for it, since
this provides the best foundation
for sustained involvement.

We contributed £5.66 million
to community causes in 2002
as measured by the London
Benchmarking Group model,
which includes both cash and
in-kind support.

Our UK charity of the year initiative
enables employees across the
group to raise funds for a charity
chosen by a panel of employees.
From Aprit 20071 until July 2002, our
partner was the Cyslic Fibrosis Trust
and our employees raised more
than £475,000 to fund vital research
and treatment for the UK's most
common life threatening inherited
disease. The pastnership received
an Institute of Public Relations
Sword of Excellence award in July.

We hope for similar success
with our new chosen charity,
the Meningitis Trust. Between

its launch in Seplember 2002 and
the end of the year, employees
raised more than £150,000,

In North America, we faunched
‘Direct in the Community’.

The pragramme seeks to play

a leadership role in fostering,
supporting and encouraging
charitable initiatives that provide
services related to safe and
affordable housing, especially
for adults, families, older people
and people with disabilities.

The British Gas partnership with
Help the Aged continues to support
some of Britain’s most vulnerable
older people. Since its launch in
1999, British Gas has provided
Help the Aged with more than
£5.4 million of support and to

date there have been 1.6 million
beneficiaries of partnership
initiatives. The partnership
received the Business in the
Cormmunity Excellence Award

for cause related marketing in July.

We have enjoyed a successful
association with Carers UK since
1996. In 2002 we sought to identify
‘hidden’ carers and guide them to
information, advice and support.
Promotion, including a bill message
to more than two million customers,
also generated awareness among
our employees about Centrica’s
carer friendly employment

policies. Our chief executive

is president of the charity.

The AA Accessible Hotel of the Year
Awards highlight the importance

of ensuring equal access for
people with disabilities to hotels
and guest accommodationin the
lead up to the next phase of the
Disability Discrimination Act

in 2004. During 2002, AA hotel
inspectors assessed 60 hotels

and guest houses selected from the
resulls of a detailed questionnaire
returned from more than 300 of the
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Corporate responsibility continued

Material recycled from
Centrica offices (%)
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The success of ow recycling intiatives has
meant that we have akeady exceeded our
target for 2005, initially set in 2000.
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Sir Roy Gardner is joined by menmingdis sufferer
Samuel Cloke (0 launch the ‘Every Second
Counts’ parinership - 8 yea-long partnershep with
our employea chamy of the year, Meningts Trust.

bicyche to raise funds for Cystic Fibrasis Trust.
Cenirica ernployee chanty of the year 2001
10 2002.

Rod Kanyon, director of the British Gas
Engineering Academy. is joined by a group
of rainees to launch the academy.

AA's B,000 strong list, The awards
willbe repeatedin 2003 to make
more establishments aware of the
need for improved accessibility.

The AA Foundation for Road Safety
Research published reports in 2002
on the safety of young mate and
female drivers, when and why older
drivers give up driving and on safety
in pan-European tunnels. During
the year, research continued on the
effect of surface conditions on road
safety and accidents on high speed
dual cammiageways.

In Decembey, it was announced that
OneTel would be working with the
Samaritans, the emotional health
charity, to promote its new telephone
directory enquiries service. During
2003, OneTel will donate p for
every call made to the new service
generating vital funds for the charity.

Marketplace

We try to take a responsible
approach to the marketing

and selling of our products

and services. We take care of

our customers” daily essentials and
provide the necessary access

and expertise to ensure they benefit
fully from the products and services
we offer. For example, we currently
provide over 500 communications
each day to customers who are
blind or visually impaired in the
format they require, which includes
Braille, large print and audio.

Some of our customers have
specific needs, Current services
include the Home Energy Care
Register, the password scheme,
providing information in alternative
formats and using access
technology such as text phones.
We have developed our own website
accessibility guidetines based on
internationally recognised standards
and intend that all our business
websites will meet and exceed
these standards in the near future.
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We have reviewed the needs

of hearing- and speech-impaired
customers in collaboration with

the RNID and the Royal Association
for Deaf People. Text phones have
been instalied throughout the
business and the AA has developed
a text messaging service so that
hearing and speech-impaired
members can communicate
effectively via their mobile phones.

The British Gas "here to HELP'
intiative was launched in 2002

to help tackie household poverty
inthe most deprived communities
in Britain. From a package

of £150 million, British Gas'’s
investment of more than £70 million
is supported by additional
government and social housing
provider funding. Over the next
three years, 500,000 homes will

be supported in urban, suburban
and rural areas through a netwark
of local authorities, housing
associations and charity
organisations. Households are
offered energy efficiency measures
and advice along with other services
delivered by our charity partners.

Workplace

Relationships with all cur
employees are based on trust

and respect for the individual.

We aim to atiract, develop,

reward and relain high quality
people who are motivated to
achieve our business objectives.
Our employment policies seek

1o create an environment that
motivates and engages all our
employees, rewards performance,
and satisfies material needs whilst
supporting equality of opportunity
for all. This is achieved through
poticies such as family leave.
carers, personal development
and supporting employees to find
a successfut balance between
work and personal life. A new guide
to sound business praclice was
developed in 2002, setting out

how we expecl our employees
to actin a variety of situations.
This is being disseminated in 2003.

The growing diversity amang
our customers and employees
presents us with opportunities
for change. In an increasingly
competitive environment, it is
essential that we recognise

the importance of operating as
an inciusive organisation,
through embracing diversity

in the workforce and selecting
the very best employees from
awide and varied choice of
applicants, We work with a number
of partners to achieve this goal
including the Employers’ Forum
on Disability, an organisation
chaired by our chief executive.

Diversity modules form part of
the training for all our customer
facing employees and a disability
awareness training package has
also been developed. More than
29,000 bouklets giving practical
advice on how best lo serve
disabled people have been
issued throughout the business.

We have created employment
opportunities for individuals

from disadvantaged backgrounds.
More than 180 individuals have
been employed through targeted
recruitment in our contact centres.
In July 2002 we received a Business
in the Community award for our
investment in disabted people

as ernployees and cuslomers.

British Gas has commilted to
recruiting 200 gas engineers,
targeting the long term unemployed
and those who have trouble finding
a career that fits in with their
lifestyle. The engineer training
course, developed with the Gas
and Water Industries Nalional
Training Organisation, includes

a part-time option aimed at single
parents. The initiative is part of the

government backed Ambilion
Energy pregramme, chaired by
Centrica’s chiefl executive. to
address an anticipated shortage of
skilled and qualified gas engineers.

We are delighted that, in
recognition of its commitment
1o the development and training
of its employees, the AA has
received corporate Investors

in People accreditation.

Nearty three quarters of our
employees took partin the annual
global employee satisfaction survey
in 2002, up from under two thirds in
2000, The survey measures four
key improvement drivers -
customer focus, performance

and development, management
impact and working life. Part of

the performance related element
of directors’ remuneration is linked
to this survey.

The health and safety of our
employees is of paramount
importance. Cur performance is
targeted and monitored through
key performance indicators.

in 2002, the amount of time lost
toinjuries or occupational ill health
was low. Injuries have been
attributable mainly to slips,

trips and falls, and our accident
prevention programmes focus
on the underlying causes of these
and gther near miss events.

We have also taken steps to
protect employees who may
encounter violence while they
do their jobs, for example gas
engineers, roadside patrols
and debt collectors. We have
launched an occupational
road risk programme Lo manage
the risks to employees who
drive in the course of their
employment. Good praclice
workshops share new safety
technigues and opporunities
for performance improvement.



Board of directors

FE

7 Sir Roy Gardner 8 Sir Sydney Lipworth

1 Sir Michael Perry Gee Chairman (69} A, N, R

Sir Michael Perry became chairman of Centrica plc in 1987,

He was a non-executive director of British Gas pic from June
1994 until demerger. He is a member of the supervisory board
of Royal Ahold NV, president of the Marketing Council, chairman
of the Shakespeare Globe Trust and chairman of the Oxford
University Faculty Board for Management.

2 Helen Alexander Non-executive director (46) A, C, R
Helen Alexander joined the board on 1 January 2003,
She is chief executive of The Economist Group, a trustee
of the Tate Gallery and was formerly a non-executive
director of BT Group pic and Northern Foods plc.

3 Mike Alexander Chief operating officer (553} C, E

It was announced on 4 February 2003 that. by agreement of
the company, Mike Alexander would be retiring from the board
with effect from 28 February 2003. He was managing director
of British Gas Trading from 1997 until the end of 2001 and
from 1 January 2002, chiel operating officer, Centrica pic.

4 Phillip Bentley Group finance director (44) €

Phillip Bentley joined Centrica plc in 2000 from Diageo plc,
where he was finance director of GuinnessUDVY. Prior to that, he
was group treasurer and director of risk management of Diageo
ple from 1997 and group treasurer of Grand Metropolitan plc
from 1995. He is a non-executive director of Kingfisher plc.

5 Roger Carr Non-execulive director (§6) A, R

Roger Carr was appointed Lo the board in 2001, He is the senior
non-executive director of Six Continents plc and Cadbury
Schweppes plc and a senior adviser to Kohlberg, Kravis Robens
CoLid. He was previously chief executive of Williams pic and
chairman of Thames Water pic and Chubb plc. He is a member

of the Industrial Development Advisory Board and the CB! council.

6 Mark Clare Deputy chief executive and managing director,
British Gas (45)C, E

Mark Clare joined British Gas plc in 1994 as group financial
controller and was appaointed finance director of Centrica plcin
1997. In 2000, he was appointed deputy chief executive and from
1 January 2002, managing director of British Gas. He is a non-
executive director of BAA plc and The Energy Saving Trust Lid.

10 Sir Brian Shaw 11 Robert Tobin 12 Roger Wood

7 Sir Roy Gardner Chief executive (57} E, N

Sir Roy Gardner was appointed finance director of British Gas
pic in 1994, From 1995, he had responsibility for the business
units which subsequently formed Centrica plc. Prior to joining
British Gas pic, he was managing director of GEC-Marconi Lid
and a director of GEC plc. He is non-executive chairman of
Manchester United plc, president of Carers UK and

chaimman of the Employers’ Forum on Disability.

8 Sir Sydney Lipworth Non-executive director (71) A, C, R
Sir Sydney Lipworth was appointed a director in 1999 and retired
from the board following the annual general meeting on 13 May 2002.

9 Patricia Mann ogg Senior non-executive director (65) A, C, N, R
Patricia Mann was a non-executive director of British Gas plc
from 1995 until demerger. She was vice president international
of J Waller Thompson Co Ltd and remains a director of JWT
Trustees Ltd. She is on the board of the UK Centre for Economic
and Envirgnmental Development and is a former director of

the Woolwich Building Society and Yale and Vator plc.

10 Sir Brian Shaw Non-executive director (69) A, R

Sir Brian Shaw joined the board in 1999 following the acquisition
of the Automobile Association, of which he was non-executive
chairman. He is a former chairman of Furness Withy, ANZ
Grindlays Bank and the Port of London Authority. Sir Brian is

an eider brother of Trinity House and a bencher of Gray’s Inn.

11 Robert Tobin Non-executive director, US citizen (64) A, R
Robert Tobin was appointed to the board on 1 January 2003.

He is a member of the supervisory board of Royal Ahold NV,
Until Septermber 2007, he was chairman of Aheold USA, a
subsidiary of Royal Ahcld NV, Since 2000, he has been chairman
of the board of directors of the Worldwide Retail Exchange.

12 Roger Wood Managing director, the AA (60) C,E

Roger Wood Joined British Gas ptc in 1996 as managing director
of British Gas Services. In 1999, following the acquisition of the
AA business, he became managing director, home & road
services. On 1 January 2002, he was appointed managing
director of the AA. Previously, he was director general of Matra
Marconi Space NV, group vice president of Northern Telecom
Ltd and a UK director at ICL.

Key 1o mambership of committoas
A Audit commitiee

E Execulive commitee

R Remuneragion committee

€ Customer service commiltee
N Nominations commiles
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited group
accounts of Centrica plc for the year ended 31 December 2002.

Principal activities
The principal activities during the year were:

« the'provision of gas, electricity and energy refated products
and services in Great Britaln, North America and Europe;
the operation of gas fields in Great Britain and North
America and power slalions in Great Britain;

+ energy trading in the UK, North American and
European markets: '

- roadside assistance and other motoring services
in the UK and Europe;

- the provision of financial services inthe UK; and

+ the provision of telecommunications services in the UK.

.

Business review

The chairman's statement, and the operating and financial
review featured on pages 4 to 15 report on the activities

of the group during the year, recent events and any

likety further business developments.

Financial results
The financial results of the group are discussed in the
group financial review on pages 16 to 18 of this report.

Major acquisitions and disposals

In May, the acquisition of the Toronto based home and
business services operation Enbridge Services Ing for
C%$1 billion (€438 million) was completed. The acquisition
comprised 1.75 million customer relationships and

1.3 million waterheaters which were leased to customers.
In December, the waterheater assets were transferred

to the Consurners’ Waterheater Income Fund (CWIF),
which listed units and debt securities on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, implying an enterprise value of C$1 billion.
The group retained a 41.9% equity and voling interest

in the CWIF.

In June, agreement was reached to dispose of non-core
interests in the Liverpool Bay Fields in consideration for a
package of offshore gas assets in the North Sea and a cash
batance, with a total value of approximately £88 million,

In June, Regional Power Generators Ltd, which owns
and operates the 240MW Glanford Brigg power station
in Lincolnshire. was acquired for £37 million.

In August, the acquisition of 212,000 natural gas customers
of NewPower Holdings, Inc and its subsidiaries in Ohio and
Pennsylvania was completed for US$26 million (£17 million).

In August, Electricity Direct (UK) Ltd, the UK's largest
independent commercial electricity supplier, was
acquired for £50 miliion.

In November, offshore gas storage facilities in the
North Sea and an associated onshore terminal were
acquired for a net cash consideration of E488 million.

The Secretary of State for Trade and Industry has lo
decide whether to clear the acquisition, referit to the
Competition Commission for further investigation
or accept undertakings inlieu of a reference.

In Novemnber, the group’s liquefied petroleumn gas
(LPG) business was sold for E40 miltion.

In Decernber, the group acquired the electricity supply
operations of Texas based Central Power and Light Company
and West Texas Utilities Company. for a purchase price
of approximately US$246 million (£154 mitlion).

In December, agreement was reached Lo acquire
the retail gas and eleciricity supply businesses of
ATCQ Groupin Alberta, Canada, with 988,000 customers,
for C$128.5 million (E52 miltion), payable over two years,
This acquisition is conditional on legislative changes
and regulatory consents in 2003
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Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheel events are disclosedin note 30
to the financial staterments on page 62,

Dividends : )

Aninterim dividend of 1.4 pence per ordinary share was

paid on 27 November 2002. The direclors recommend that,
subject to approval at the annual general meeting (AGM) on
12 May 2003, a final dividend of 2.6 pence per ordinary share
be paid on 18 June 2003 to those shareholders registered

“on 2 May 2003, This makes a total dividend for the year

of 4.0 pence per share {2001: 3.1 pence per share).

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions are set outin note 28 onpage §8.

Creditor payment policy
It is the group’s policy to:
- agree the terms of payment in advance with the supplier;
- ensure thal suppliers are aware of the terms of payment; and
+ payin accordance with contractual and other
legat obligations.

The number of days’ purchases outstanding as at 31 December
2002 was 34 (2001: 32} for the group (excluding Accord Energy
Trading Limited) and 41 days (2001: 42 days) for the company.

Employment policies
The group employed an average of 38,051 people during 2002.
35,563 were employed in the UK, 301 in the rest of Europe and
2187 in North America.

The group is committed to pursuing equality and diversity
in all its employment activities, wilh particular emphasis on
recruitment and selection, training and development, appraisal
and promotion. By supporting and encouraging the diversity of
our people, we aim to increase employee motivalion and provide
better service to our diverse customer base in the community
at large. This approach is reflected in our employee policies
and procedures and we are proud to offer a range of benefits
that go beyond the requirements of legislation. For example,
we have a comprehensive ‘carers policy’, which enables
employees to balance the demands of long term caring
commitments with the requirements of their job.

The group continues to support the Government's New
Deal for people with disabilities, the aim of which is lo recruit
unemployed disabled people and carers into the group’s
operations. Centrica’s experience of embracing diversity is being
shared with other UK employers through its membership of the
Employers’ Forum on Disability and the Employers’ Forum on Age.

We comply with national gendes pay policies and are
committed to implementing them through a programme
of equal pay audits.

Employee communications

Employees are regularly provided with a8 wide range

of information concerning the direction and performance

of the group by means of employee briefing arrangements
such as team briefs, intranet, CDs and company magazines.
We also actively seek employee involvement through regular
employee surveys and aclion planning forums. Employees’
views are also taken into account by means of local
consultative bedies. The group continues to be a strong
supporter of Investors in Peaple.

Employee share schemes
The group encourages employee share ownership through
the operation of tax authority approved share schemes open
Lo ali eligible employees, including execulive directors.

Each year, the company operales sharesave schemes in
the UK and Irefand which enable eligible employees to acquire



shares in the company at the end of a three or five year saving
period, A total of 17,446 employees in the UK and Ireland
participate in the schemes.

During the year, the company launched a share incentive
plan, which enables eligible UK employees to buy Centrica
shares, subject 1o monthly limits, out of pre-tax pay. In addition,
the company awards one free matching share for every
two shares an employee buys, subject to a monthly limit
of 20 matching shares. A total of 5,065 employees
participate in the plan.

Corporate responsibility

Information relating to the group's impact an society,

the economy and the wider environment is given on pages
1910 20. A comprehensive guide on these matters including
the company’s policies and procedures is available at
www.centrica.com/responsibility.

The company's reporting on such matters is being
developed having regard to the ABI's disclosure guidelines.
The system of internal control described on page 24 covers
significant risks associated with social, environmental and
health and safety matters.

Charitable and political donations

Anoutline of the group’s involvemnent in the community
appears on pages 19 to 20. Charitable donations in the UK
during the year amounted to £4.7 million (2001: £4.0 million).
In line with group policy, no donations were made for
political purposes.

Share capital

The company’s authorised and issued share capital as at
31 December 2002, together with details of shares issued
during the year. is set out in note 20 on page 48.

Material shareholdings
AL 17 February 2003, the following material shareholdings
were recorded in the register maintained in accordance

with the Companies Act 1985:

Legal & General Investment

Management Ltd 150,067,973 3.53%
Avivaplc 145,117,187 3.41%
Barclays plc 134,330,258 3.186%
Directors

The board of directors section on page 21 gives details of all
directors wha served during the period between 1 January 2002
and the date of this report. On 13 May 2002, Sir Sydney Lipworth
retired as a director of the company. It was announced on

4 February 2003 that, by agreement of the company, Mike
Alexander would be retiring from the board with effect from

28 February 2003. Helen Alexander and Robert Tobin were
appointed as non-executive directors on 1 January 2003.

On 19 February 2003, Paul Walsh agreed to become a
non-executive director of the company with effect from

1 March 2003.

In accordance with the anticles of association,

Sir Michael Perry, Sir Roy Gardner and Sir Brian Shaw will
retire by rotation at the 2003 AGM. Sir Michael and Sir Roy will
be proposed for re-election. Sir Brian will not be seeking re-
election, having by then reached the age of 70.

Il being the first AGM since their appointment, Helen
Alexander, Rabert Tobin and Paul Walsh will be proposed
for election. Allhave considerable experience of leading
consumer facing international businesses.

The biographical details of all directors being proposed
are given in the notice of AGM. Full details of directors’
service contracls, emoluments and share interests can
be found in the remuneration report on pages 25 o 30.

Auditors
Following the conversion by PricewaterhouseCoopersto a

"Limited Liability Partnership {LLP) from 1 January 2003, a
‘resolution to appoint the new firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers
‘LLP as auditors to the company will be proposed at the AGM.

Authority to purchase shares
The directors were authorised at the 2002 AGM to purchase
the company’s own shares, within certain limils and as permitted

- by the Anticles of Association. Although no such purchases have

been made to date pursuant to this authority, the directors will

seek to renew the authority at the 2003 AGM.

Corporate governance

The group is committed to high standards of corporate
governance. Following the recommendations in the
reports on the Role and Effectiveness of Non-Executive
Directors (the Higgs Report) and Audit Committees

(the Smith Report), the board is reviewing its governance
arangemnents and will consider making changes as necessary
and appropriate. Throughout the year, the company fully
complied with the provisions of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance (the Code) and applied the
principles of the Code as follows:

The board

An effective board of directors leads and controls the group.
The board, which meets at least 10 times a year, has a schedule
of matters reserved for its approval. One of its meetings each
year is substantially devoted to the development of sirategy.
During 2002, there was full attendance at board and audit,
rerunieration and nominations committee meetings, other
than by one director who missed one board meeting,

Comprehensive briefing papers including management
accounts are circulated to each director one week prior to
board meelings. A procedure is in place to enable all directors
to obtain independent professional advice in respect of their
duties. They also have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary.

The names of the directors and their biographical details
including committee memberships appear on page 21.
Throughout the year, the chairman and the other non-executive
directors were independent of management and the senior
independent director, as required by the Code, was Patricia Mann.
The non-executive directors, including the chairman, meet
independently of management on a regular basis.

All directors joining the board are required to submit
themselves for election at the next AGM. They are subject
to re-election every third year thereafter. The non-executive

" directors are initially appointed for a three year term and,

subject to review and re-election, can serve up to a maximum
of three such terms.

The board has delegated authority to a number of
committees to deal with specific aspects of the management
and control of the group. These committees have specific
terms of reference and meet on a regular basis. The minutes
of the meetings of these committees are made available
to all the directors on a timely basis.

Executive commitiee

The executive commillee, chaired by Sir Roy Gardner, meets
weekly. [t pversees the management of the group and is the
decision making body for those matters not reserved to the
board and within the limits set out in the group’s delegated
authority and expenditure control policies.

There are five sub-committees of the execulive committee:
the group risk managementcomenittee; the group financial
risk management commitlee; the corporate responsibility
committee; the health, safety and environment committee;
and the business continuity steering group.
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Directors’ report continued

Audit committee

The audit commiltee, which meets four times a year. consists
entirely of independent non-executive directors. It was chaired
throughout the year by Roger Carr,

The audit committee considers the nature and scope of the
audit process and its cost effectiveness. [Lreviews the internal
audit programme, malters brought (o ts attention by both the
internal and external auditors and the annual and interim financial
statements before submission to the board. It also reviews the
system of internal control and reports its findings to the board.

The audit committee also monitors the independence of the
external auditors. Note 4 to the financial statements on page 40,
sels out the group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all
major consultancies and advisory projects.,

From the beginning of 2002, in recognition of increasing

public concern over the effect of consulling services on auditors’

independence, this policy was strengthened such that the
external auditors’ consulting arm, PwC Consulting, would
not be invited to tender for any further generat consultancy
work unless their proprietary skill base was uniquely valuable.
In addition, the external audilors may still be used in respect
of taxation advice and financial due diligence on transactions.
All such assignments are reported to the audit committee

on a quarterly basis, along with a full breakdown of all
non-audit fees incurred during the year.

As a maltter of best practice and in accordance with auditing
standard 610, our external auditors have held discussions with
the audit committee on the subject of audit independence and
have confirmed their independence inwriting.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee, which meets four limes a year,
consists entirely of independent non-execulive directors.

It is chaired by Patricia Mann. The role of this commitlee and
details of how the company applies the principles of the Code

‘inrespectof directors’ remuneration are set out on pages 2510 30.

Nominations committee

The nominations committee, chalred by Sir Michael Perry,
makes recommendations Lo the board for appointments
of replacement or additional directors. It met formally
ontwo occasions during the year.

Customer service committee

This committee, which determines and monitors customer
service targets, is one of the key drivers of the long term
success of the group. It was Chaired by Sir Sydney Lipworth
until his retirement from the board on 13 May 2002.

From then until January 2003, it was chaired by Mark Clare.
Helen Alexander was appointed chairman of this committee
with effect from February 2003.

AA motoring policy committee

This committee, chaired by Sir Brian Shaw, acted as an
advocate on public policy issues affecting molorists. With effect
from January 2003, this committee was disbanded and its work
has been carried out by the independent AA Molaring Trust.

Relations with shareholders

The company has a programrme of communication with ils
shareholders, As well as share price information, news relgases
and the annuat report, the Centrica website includes speeches
from the AGM. presentations to the investment community

and a section for shareholder services.

The board believes that the AGM presents a useful
opportunity for dialogue with private shareholders, many of
whom are also customers. At the AGM, the chief executive
presents a review of the businesses of the group.
Representatives from the group’s brand units are available for
discussion in the exhibition area both before and after the
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meeting. Centrica also holds reguiar meetings with its major
instituticnal shareholders.

All shareholders have the opportunity 10 cast their votes
at the AGM by proxy. by post or via the internet. Shareholders
can register o receive all their communications onfine,
benefiting both themselves and the company.

Internal control

The board of directors is responsible for the group’s system
of internal controt, which is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business cbjectives
and can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Identification, assessment and management of risks

The company places great importance oninternal control

and risk management. A risk aware and control conscious
environment is fostered throughout the group. The board,
directly or through its committees, sets objectives, performance
targets and policies for management of key risks facing

the group. These include strategic planning. acquisitions,
investments, expenditure control, tréasury, environment,

health and safety, trading and customer service.

Across the group, each business has a risk management
commiltee that seeks to identify, assess and advise on the
management of operational risks. In addition, the group risk
management committee considers the risks which might
affect the company at group level.

The processes of newly acquired companies are
integrated with those of the group.

Assurance

The business assurance function undertakes internal audit
reviews according to an annual plan approved by the audit
committee. The resulls of their work is reported to the audit
committee on a quarterly basis.

The board’s review of the system of internal control

The hoard of directors, with the advice of the audit committee,
has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
operated (as described above)} throughout the period

1 January 2002 10 the date of this report and is satisfied

that the group complies with the guidance contained

in the Turnbull Committee report on Internal Control.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the board has a reasonable
expectalion thal the company has adequate resources

10 continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, we continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements, which are shown on
pages 3210 67.

By order of the board

AT AV

Grant Dawson
General Counsel and Company Secretary
20 February 2003

Registered office:

Millstream

Maidenhead Road

Windsor

Berkshire SL4 §GD

Company registered in England and Wales No. 3033654



Remuneration report

Composition and role of the remuneration committee
The board has established a remuneration committee,
which is chaired by Patricia Mann. The other members of
the committee in 2002 were Roger Carr, Sir Sydney Lipworth
{untit his retirerent on 13 May 2002}, Sir Michael Perry and
Sir Brian Shaw. Helen Alexander and Robert Tobin became
members of the committee when they joined the board

on 1 January 2003. All of the members of the committee

are independent non-executive directors.

The committee makes recornmendations to the
board, within formal terms of reference, on the policy
and framework of executive remuneration and its cost
tothe company. The committee is also responsible
for the implementation of remuneration policy and
determining specific remuneration packages for each
of the executive directors. The committee has access
to advice provided by the group head of reward
{Mike New)}, the group human resources director
(Anne Minto), the company secrelary (Grant Dawson),
the chief execulive {Sir Roy Gardner) and external
consultants. During 2002, the committee consuited,
but did not formally appaint, Towers Perrin, who provided
survey and other information on executive compensation
to assist in the formulation of the commitlee’s
recommendations. Towers Perrin also provided advice
tothe group on retirement benefits and change management
processes during the year.

This report explains how the company has applied the
principles in the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
that relate to directors’ remuneration. It will be submitted
to the forthcoming AGM for approval. No director votes
on any matter relating to his or her own remuneration.

Framework and policy on executive directors’ remuneration
The group's remuneration policy is designed to provide
competitive rewards for its executive directors and other

senior executives, Laking into account the company’s
performance, the markets in which the group operates

and pay and conditions elsewhere in the group.

{n constructing the remuneration packages, the
committee aims to achieve a balance between fixed and
variable compensation for each director. Accordingly,

a significant proportion of the remuneration package
depends on the attainment of demanding performance
objectives, both short and long term. In agreeing the level

of base salaries and the annual performance bonus scheme,
the committee takes into consideration the total remuneration
that executives could receive. The committee raviews the
packages and varies individual elements when appropriate
from year (o year.

The cument praclice is to make conditional awards each
year under both the executive share option scheme (ESOS)
and the long term incentive scheme (LTIS). These schemes
are designed to align the interests of executive directors and
other senior executives with the longer term interests of
sharehotders by rewarding them for delivering increased
sharehoider value.

As a matter of policy, all executive directors and certain
senior executives are expected to retain a minimum
shareholding in the company at least equal in value
to the executive’s base salary.

The committee believes thal these arrangements, which
are further explained below, are important in providing a
potential remuneration package that will altract, retain and
continue Lo motivate executive direclors and senior executives
in a marketplace Lhat is increasingly challenging and competitive
in both commercial and human resource terms. it is intended
that the current remuneration policy, which has previously
been approved by shareholders, will continue for 2003 and
succeeding years.

In 2002, the total compensation of the executive directors,
detailed on page 27. consisted of components in the
following proportions:
Relative proportions of components of executive directors’
remuneration 2002

a i [N, »
2 Mike Alexander  Philip Bentiey  Mark Clare S5 Roy Gardner  Roger Wood
Fixed slements: I Salary O Benefits Pension

Variable eloments: O Pericrmance bonus B ESOS « LTIS

Note: Salary and benefils are amounts received during 2002; pension is the increase
In yansfer valug kess director's contributions during 2002: performance bonus is that
paid inrespoct of 2002: and ESOS and LTS 15 the estimaloed value of the awards mada
2002 based on a Black Scholes model, pravided that all performance conditions

are met, ot the end of the relevant periormange peniods.

Components of remuneration

Base salary

The committee seeks to establish a base salary for each
executive director determined by individual performance and
external rmarket data fromindependent sources, in particular
salary levels for similar positions in comparable companies.
Base salaries are reviewed annually. Base salary is the only
element of remuneration that is pensionable,

Annual performance bonus

Torecognise performance against agreed objectives, the
committee has put in place an annual bonus scheme for
executive directors similar to that applying to other senior
executives in the group. Annual bonuses for executive
directors are determined by the achievement of demanding
individual, business and corporate objectives. The scheme
provided the potential for a maximum bonus payment of 60%
of base salary should every element of every objective be
achieved in full. Annual bonus objectives and targets are
approved by the committee and, in 2002, relaled to financiat
performance. customer and employee satisfaction and
personal performance, each at 20% of base salary.

For executive directors with business unit responsibilities,
Lhe scheme is structured to refllect the performance of their
business unit as well as that of the group. No bonus al all

is payable to anindividual if their agreed minimum

personal performance target is not met.

Executive share option scheme (ESOS)

Options granted under the ESOS only become exercisable

if and to the extent that performance conditions are satisfied
three years after the date of grant. If exercisable, they remain
50 until the tenth anniversary of grant. Performance conditions
are based on the extent to which growth in the company's
earnings per share (EPS growth} exceeds growth in the Retail
Prices Index (RP| growth) over a three year performance
period. EPS is calculated as fulty-diluted earnings per share
adjusted for exceptional charges and goodwill amortisation.
The committee believes that this method of calculating EPS
provides an independent and verifiable measure of the
company's performance.

In respect of each grant of options, the committee has
determined that, for the option to be exercisable in full, EPS
growth must exceed RPI growth by 18 percentage points or
more over the three year performance period. No part of the
option grant will be exercisable il EPS growth fails to exceed
RPI growth by at least 9 percentage points over the performance
period, The proportion of the oplion grant exercisable by the
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Remuneration report continued

executive will increase on a sliding scale between 40%
and 100% if EPS growth exceeds RP| growth by between
§ and 18 percentage points over the performance period.

The company's EPS growth may be re-measured
annually for a further two years, but always from the date
of grant of the options, with the performance conditions
increasing proportionately. The committee believes that,
inrelation to the ESOS, EPS growth in excess of RPI
growth is the most appropriate measure for determining
the increase in value delivered o shareholders by the
company’s executive directors and senior executives.
The committee reviews the appropriateness of the
performance measure and the specific targets set
when considering each new grant of options.

In April 2002, options were granted to each executive
director equal to twice his base salary and, at the same or
lower rates, to certain other senior executives. Details of
options granted lo executive directors are shown on page
30. Itis the company’s intention that new shares be issued.,
subject to institutional guidelines, 1o satisfy the exercise
of options granted under the ESOS.

Three of the executive directors hold options under
therestructured executive share option scheme (RESQS).
The RESOQS was putin place 1o replace options which
executives had previously held over British Gas pic
shares and which were cancelled at demerger. There
are no performance conditions attaching to options
under the RESOS. Further details are given on page 30.

Long term incentive scheme (LTIS}
Allocations of shares are made annually to executive directors
and other senicr executives under the LTIS, These awards are

' subject to challenging performance conditions based onthe

company’s total shareholder return (TSR} relative to the returns
of a comparator group, since this ensures that the executives
are not rewarded uniess the company has cutperformed its
peers in creating shareholder value. The committee has
determined that, in the absence of a meaningful ‘natural’
comparator group for the company, the companies comprising
the FTSE 100 at the start of the relevant performance period
{the LTIS comparator group) constitute the most appropriate
comparator group for the purpase of the LTIS. The committee
reviews the appropriateness of the pesformance measure and
the specific target set when considering each new allocation

of shares under the LTIS. In assessing the extent of salisfaction
of the performance condition, the committee uses data
provided by Hoare Govelt.

Allocations made prior to May 2001 are subject to
a performance pericd of either three or four years (at the
panicipant’s choice), followed by a retention period of two
years. Changes lo these arangements were approved at
the 2001 AGM. Allocations made from May 2001 will be
released to the participant under normal circumstances
after the three year performance period, provided the
performance conditions have been met.

The actual number of shares eventually released to the
participant depends on the company’s TSR over the entire
performance period relative Lo the LTIS comparator group.
The maximum annual allocation of shares only vests and
is released to the executive if the company’s TSR over the
performance period is ranked in 25Lh position or above
relative to the 99 other companies in the LTIS comparator
group. No shares vestif the TSR over the performance period
is ranked below 50th position in the LTIS comparator group.
Between 25th and 50th position, shares vest on a sliding
scale from 100% to 40%.

In April 2002, LTIS allocations equal to three quarters
of base salary were awarded to executive directors and,
at the same or lower rates, Lo certain other senior executives.
The maximum number of shares that could eventually be
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transferred to each execultive director upon satisfaction
of the performance crileria appears on page 29.

Prior to 2002, the trustee bought shares in the market
to match the likely fulure requirements for shares under
LTIS releases. Any shortfall will be satisfied by the issue
of new shares.

TSR: Centrica and FTSE 100: 1997 to 2002

The following table shows graphs of the company’s TSR
performance and that of the FTSE 100 index. As required by

the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, this uses
arolling definition of the FTSE 100, whereas the definition used
for the purposes of the LTS is the FTSE 100 as constituted at
the beginning of the period. In order to demonstrate the delivery
of shareholder value during the respective performance periods,
TSR graphs {or LTIS awards that vested inMarch and October
2002 are shown in the tables on page 29.

TSR indices - Centrica and FTSE 100: 1997-2002

300
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@ Centrica TSR index 8 FTSE 100 TSR index

Other employment benefits

In common with other senior management, executive directors
are entitled to arange of benefits, including a contributory, final
salary pension (see pages 27 and 28). a company car. life
assurance, private medical insurance and a financial counselling
scheme. They are also eligible, on the same basis as other
employees. to participate inthe company’s Inland Revenue-
approved sharesave and share incentive plans. These are open
to all eligible employees and provide a long term savings and
investment opportunity.

Service contracts
Itis the company’s policy for the notice period in executive
directors’ service contracts not 1o exceed one year. The
committee retains a level of flexibility in order to offer
contracts to new executive directors thal contain an initial
notice period in excess of one year, provided that after the
first such period the notice period reduces to one year.

The executive directors’ service contracts have no
fixed terrn but provide that either the director or the company

" may terminate the employment by giving one year's written

notice and that the company may pay compensation
in lieu of notice. Phillip Bentley's contract provides for
aninitial notice period of two years, which reverted in
November 2002 to one year on the same basis as the other
executive directors. The dates of the executive directors’
service contracts are disclosed in the table on page 27.
Upon Mike Alexander's retirement from the board on
28 February 2003, he will forfeit all of the options granted
to him under the ESOS {see the table on page 30) and the
conditional allocations of shares made to him under the
LTIS on 2 October 2000, 1 October 2001 and 2 April 2002
{see the table on page 29). The performance targets in
respect of the allocations of shares made to him under the
LTIS en 3 October 1998 and 7 October 1999 have previously
been achieved and those shares will be released to him at
the end of the retention periods on 30 September 2003 and
30 September 2004, respectively. Mike Alexander will not
receive any payments other than his pension, the details
of which are disclosed on pages 27 and 28.



External appointments of executive directors

The board believes that experience of other companies’ practices and chalfenges is valuable both for the personal development

of its execulive directors and for the company. it is therefore the company's policy to allow each executive director to accepl one
non-executive directorship of another company, although the board retains the discretion to vary this policy. Fees are retained by
the individual director. Details of individual directors’ external appointments are given in their biographies on page 21.

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors do not hold service contracts. The dates of their appointment are shown In the table below. Their
appointment is subject to the articles of association, Their fees are determined having regard to the need Lo atract individuals
of the right calibre and experience, the time and responsibilities entailed and the fees pald by other companies. Their fees are
approved by the board, upon the recommendation of the executive committee, whose members are the executive directors listed
in the table below, together with Grant Dawson, general counsel and company secretary. The executive committee received survey
and other information from the remuneration consultants, Towers Pemin. The non-executive directors, including the chairman,
do nol participate in any of the company's share schemes, incentive plans or pension schemes,

In addition Lo their fees as non-executive directors of the company, Sir Brian Shaw received fees for consultancy services 1o the
AA Motering Policy Unit and Sir Sydney Lipworth received fees for services as a non-executive director of Goldfish Bank Limited.

The remuneration report from page 25 1o page 27 up to this statement has not been audited. From this point until the end of the report
on page 30, the disclosures, with the exception of the two line graphs on page 29, have been audited.

Directors’ emoluments Anoual ’ Tota! Tota!
Base performance emoluments™ emoluments™
saiaryffees bomrs Benefits® 2002 2001™
£000 £000 £E0CO £000 €000
Executive direclors Date of service convact o
Mike Alexander 10 january 2002 389 199 29 T o617 506
Phillip Bentley™ 13 September 2000 400 23 16 647 536
Mark Clare 21 March 2001 418 181 27 . . 626 553
Sir Roy Gardner 21 March 2001 678 376 44 1,098 847
Roger Wood 21 March 2001 388 194 25 . 608 559
2,274 1.181 1M - 3,596 3,00
Non-executive directors Date of appoinument L
Roger Carr 1 January 2000 34 - - CapM 30
Sir Sydney Lipworth® 12 March 1939 22 - - co22 45
Patricia Mann 4 Decernber 1936 34 - - 34 30
SirMichael Perry 4 Decernber 1996 185 - - . 185 180
Sir Brian Shaw™ 23 September 1998 54 - - , 54 50
339 - - 339 335
Total emoluments 2,613 1,181 141 3,935 3,336

(i} Benefits include all taxable benefits arising from employment by the company, mainly the provision of a company car.
fiiy The following are excluded from the table above:

+ pensions - see below and page 28:

+ share options - see page 30. The aggregale of the amount of gains made by executive directors on the exercise

of share options was £305,950; and

+ longtermincentives - see pages 28 and 29. The aggregate value of shares vested to executive directors under the LTIS was £4,630,479.
(i} The totalemoluments figure for 2001 excludes £30.000 paid to Francis Mackay for his services as a director during that year.
(i) In addition to the emoluments shown above, Phillip Bentley received a payment of £200,000(2001: £250,000) as the second and

final tranche of compensation for loss of entitlement under his previous employer’s performance bonus and share option schemes.
(v) The figure for Sir Sydney Lipworth for 2002 includes fees of £8,323 in respect of services as a non-executive direclor

of Goldfish Bank Limited while a director of Cenvrica plc.
{vi) The figures for Sir Brian Shaw include fees of £20,000 per annumin respect of consullancy services Lo the AA Motoring Policy Unit,

Directors’ pensioas .
The pension arrangements for the executive directors, who are all members of the Centrica staff pension scheme, are shown below.
The staff pension scheme is a funded, Infand Revenue-approved, (inal salary, occupational pension scheme. Its rules provide for the
following main features:

+ narmal retirement at age 65;

- right to an immediate. unreduced pension on retirement at age 60;
right to animmediate. unreduced pension on leaving service after age 55, subject to 10 years' service and company consent;
right to an immediate, unreduced pension on leaving service on reorganisation or for redundancy after age 50;
life assurance cover of four imes pensionable salary:
spouse’s pension on deathin service payable at the rate of two thirds of the member's prospective pension and, ondeath after
retirement, two Lhirds of accrued pension. Children's pensions are also payable:
members’ contributions payabie at the rate of 4% of pensionable earnings;
pension payable in the event of retirement due toill health;
pensions in payment and in deferment guaranteed to increase in line with the increase in the RPI; and
no discretionary praclices are Laken into account in calculating transfer values.

.

.

-
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Remuneration report continued

All benefits are subject to Inland Revenue limits. Where such limitation is due to the earnings ‘cap’, benefits are increased to the levet
that would otherwise have been paid and are provided via the Centrica unapproved pension scheme. This scheme is unfunded but

the benefits are secured by a charge over Centrica’s assets to give security equivalent to the pensions provided to other employees.
An apprapriate provision in respect of their accrued value has been made in the company's balance sheet.

Pension benefits earned by directors (£)

Transier

vajue of the

Increasa in

Accrued Accrued Transler Transfer Difesence accrued

pensionasat  pensionas at Increase value as at valuepsat  Contributions intransfer PEASION

3 December 31 December insccrued 31 December 31 December paidin vohues sy excluding
20027 2001 pension™ 2002 2001 2002™  contributions inflation™

Mike Alexander® 176,700 160,400 16.300 2,598,800 2,328,300 ‘14,513, 255987 181,777
Phillip Bentey™ 19,600 9,500 10,100 - 196,400 93,100 . 14,513 88,787 83,410
Mark Clare™ 74,300 61,800 12,400 .. 793,000 643,200 3714,5 135,287 104,576
SirRoyGardner""’ 183,400 140,000 43,400 ,2,883,800 2,227,100 ".-‘.,.”_1{.513 642,187 619,708
Roger Wood™ 89,300 73,200 16,100 1,645,400 1325200 ":: 14,513 305687 254,634

) Accrued pension is that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 65, based on eligible service to 31 December 2002,

(il Theincrease in accrued pension during the year excludes any pension arising from additional voluntary contributions.

The increase in accrued pension adjusted Lo exclude inflation may be derived by discounting the figure in the first
column by the rate of inflation (17% - see note (iv}) and subtracting the figure in the second column.
fiii} Contributions were paid in the year by the directors under the terms of the scheme up 1o the maximurm rate of 15% of the

earnings "cap’.

(iv} The rate of inflation used was 1.7%. the annual rate to 30 September 2002, the date used for pensionincreases under

the scheme.

(v} The accrued pension shown for Mike Alexander includes a creditin relation to a transfer from a previous employer’s

pension scheme,

{vi} With effect from 1 January 1998, the pensions for Mike Alexander and Mark Clare have accrued at the rate of 2.26%
(approximately */«) and 2.28% (approximately '/} of pensionable salary respectively for each year of pensionable service.
Pensions in relation to service prior to 1 January 1998 will continue to accrue at the rate of 1.67% ('/s«) of pensionabile salary.

(vii} The pension for Phillip Bentley accrues at the rate of 2,31% (approximately */«) of pensicnable salary for each year

of pensionable service.

(vii) The pensians for Sir Roy Gardner and Roger Wood accrue at the rate of 3.33% (/%) of pensionable salary per year of service.

Directors’ interestsin shares

The directors’ beneficial interests (which include those of their families) in the ordinary shares in the company and the executive
directors’ interests in the long term incentive scheme (LTIS) are shown in the following two tables:

LTIS: total LTIS: toual
Shareholdings  Shareholdings ailocations atiocations
asat asat as st asat
31 Docomber 1January 31 December 1 January
Directors as at 31 December 2002 2002 2002 2002 2002
Executive directors '
Mike Alexander 328,194 27.849 773,614 1,129,858
Phillip Bentley ‘80,095 50,000 453,857 317,069
Mark Clare 354,625 24,539 840,895 1,187,130
Sir Roy Gardner 771,661 166,569 1,382,870 2.012,367
Roger Wood 366,011 55,197 800,876 1,208,491
Non-executive directors
Roger Carr 4,700 4,700 -
Patricia Mann 2,142 2142 - -
Sir Michael Pemry 15,200 15,800 - -
Sir Brian Shaw 1,000 1,000 - -

() Asat17 February 2003, the beneficial shareholdings of the executive directors had increased fromthe totals shown at
31 December 2002 by the following numbers of shares: Mike Alexander 93; Phitlip Bentley 20,093; Mark Clare 10.093;

Sir Roy Gardner 30,093; Roger Wood 20,000; and Sir Michaei Perry 10,000,

(i} Asal31 December 2002, 27,238,473 shares (1 January 2002: 39,361,377) were held by the rustee of the employee share
trust under the LTIS rules. As with other employees, the directors are deemed 1o have a potential interest in those shares,
being beneficiaries under the trust. These interests remained unchanged as at 17 February 2003.

fiii} From 1 January 2002 to 17 February 2003, none of the directors had any beneficial interests in the company’s securities
other than ordinary shares, nor any non-beneficial interests in any of the company's securities, or those of its subsidiary

or associated undertakings.
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The following table gives details of the LTIS allocations held by each director:

Vested during 2002 In retention period In performance period
4 March 1 October 1 October 7 October 2 October 1 October 2Apd
1997" 997" 1994 19994 2000 2001™ 2002%

Mike Alexander 282,843 205,184 178,024 142.415 185,994 135,398 131,783

Phillip Bentley - - - - 181,671 135,398 136,788

Mark Clare 282,843 205,184 181,431 151,703 221,422 144,547 141,792

Sir Roy Gardner 500,186 362,851 340,716 272,446 312,943 223,225 233.540

Roger Wood 312,616 226,782 189,949 154,799 188,947 135,388 131,783

Market price at allocation date 64.00p 94.25p 118.00p 161.50p 220.50p 214.50p 227.00p

End of qualilying perioa™ 2/3/2002 30/9/2002 30/9/2003 30/9/2004 1/110/2005 30/9/2004  1/4/2005
Market price at vesting date™ 215.88p  165.46p

() Atthe end of the respectlive performance periods (2 March 2000 and 30 September 2000), the company ranked in sixth and fourth
positions respectively in the relevant LTIS comparator groups. Accordingly, 100% of the allocations were refeased on the vesting
dates (4 March 2002 and 1 October 2002 respectively) following the expiry of the two year retention period. These shares were
subject to income tax at the individual's marginal rate, based on the market valug of the shares at the date of vesting. The income
tax liability was satisfied by the sale of sufficient shares and. accordingly, the directors only received the net number of shares
following disposal, which is reflected In the shareholdings as at 31 December 2002 in the second table on page 28.

i) Atthe end of the respective performance periods (30 September 2001 and 30 September 2002}, the company ranked fourth
in the relevant LTIS comparator groups. Accordingly, 100% of the allocations are being held in trust for a further lwo years
at the end of which lime they will be released to the directors at the trustee’s discretion.

{iii} The performance period relating to this allocation will end on 1 October 2003. If and to the extent that the performance
condition is met, the relevant number of shares will then be held in trust for two years, at the end of which time they will
be released to the directors at the trustee's discretion.

{iv} The respective performance periods relating to these allocations will end on 30 September 2004 and 1 April 2005.

If and to the extent that the performance conditions are met, the allocations will vest and the relevant number
of shares will be released to the directors, at the trustee’s discretion,

{v) The end of the qualifying period is the date on which it is judged whether or not the qualifying conditions
{see LTIS section on page 26) have been fulfilled.

{vil The vesting date was the next business day after the end of the qualifying period.

The following tables, which have not been audited. show the TSR performance of Centrica and the respective TSR comparator
groups over the qualifying periods relating to the two LTIS awards thal vested during 2002:

TSR indices - Centrica and FTSE 100: TSR indices - Centrica and FTSE 100:
March 1997 LTIS award October 1997 LTIS award
500 ' Performance penod 7 Retemtion period 500 K Performarne period 1 Retention pariod |
oo s 5 w| s e
w0 | : : w| = s
| : ‘ A T Sl
00|} . . 100 : . E

of 3 : 0 5 : :

187 1598 1989 2000 2001 2002 1997 1998 1989 2000 2001 2002

B Cenvica W FTSE 100 companies at March 1997 @ Cenvica B FTSE 100 companies at Oclober 1997
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ Interests in share options

Full details of the options over ordinary shares in the company held by executive directors who served during the year and any

movements in those options inthe year are shown below:

Options Options
hekt as a1 Options Options heid as st Exercise Date froam
1 Januacy granted exercised 31 December price which Expiry
2002 during yea during yesr™ 2002 [pence]  exercisable date
Mike Alexander o
RESOS? 86,145 - 86,145  ..° <+ 90.266 Oct1996  Qct2003
Esos® 308,269 - . "7308,269 240050 Jun2004 May2011
Esos® - 351423 - 351,423 224.800 Apr2005  Apr2012
Sharesave®™ 7.435 - 7,435 - 46,400  Jun2002 Nov 2002
Sharesave™ 14,967 . - 14,967 92.200 Jun2003 Nov 2003
Sharesave™ - 1,863 - 1,863 177.600 Jun2007 Nov 2007
416,816 353,286 93,580 676,522
Phillip Bentley )
£505% 308,269 - - 308,269 240.050 Jun2004 May2011
£505% - 364,768 - 364,768° 224800 Apr2005  Apr2012
Sharesave™ 5071 - - *5071 191.000 Jun2004  Nov2004
313,340 364,768 - :678,108
Mark Clare .
RESOS? 177,645 - - 177,645  81.060 Cct1997  Oct2004
£5S05® 329.008 - - 329,088  240.050 Jun2004 May2011
ESOS® - 3718113 - 378,113 224800 Apr2005  Apr2012
Sharesave® 37.176 - 379764 7 - 46.400 Jun2002  Nov 2002
Sharesave™ - 9,318 - -9,31B  177.600 Jun2007  Nov2007
543,919 387,431 37176 894,174
Sir Roy Gardner
RESOSH 1.336,446 - - 1,336,446 81889 Nov1937 Nov2004
ESOS® 508,227 - - 508,227 240050 Jun2004 May 2011
ESOS® - 822,775 - 622,775 224800 Apr2005 Apr2012
Sharesave™ 37.176 . 37,1767 .= 46400 Jun2002  Nov 2002
Sharesave™ - 9,318 - -.9,118 177,600  Jun 2007  Nov 2007
1,881,848 632,093 31176 2,476,766
Roger Wood 3
ESOS® 308,269 - - 308,269  240.050 Jun 2004 May 2011
ESOS® - 351423 - 351,423 224800 Apr2005  Apr2012
Sharesave®™ 37,176 - 7ier C - - 46400 Jun2002  Nov 2002
Sharesave™ - 9,318 - 9,318  177.600 Jun2007 Nov2007
345,445 360,741 37,176 669,010

(i) Restructured executive share option scheme (RESOS)
Options granted to company employees under the British Gas plc execultive share option scheme prior to February 1997 were
cancelied and replaced at demerger by non-Inland Revenue-approved options Lo acquire Centrica shares. The replacement
options were granted on the same terms as British Gas executive share oplions, wilh the same exercise date and aggregate

exercise price per share, and the number of shares placed under oplion was adjusied to take account of the demerger.
No further options have been or will be granted under this scheme.

i) Executive share option scheme (ESOS)
Options were granted to executives under the terms of the Centrica executive share oplion scheme on 31 May 2001
and 2 April 2002. For details of the operation of this scheme see page 25.

(iii) Sharesave scheme
The company operales an Inland Revenue-approved all-employee savings-related share option scheme. The scheme
is designed to provide a long term savings and investment opportunity for employees and is described on page 22.

(v} Exercise of share options
Options were exercised at the following dates and prices: {a) 5 April 2002 at 225 pence: (b) 5 June 2002 at 207.5 pence; and
{c) ¥ July 2002 at 202.75 pence.

No director's options lapsed during the year.
The closing price of a Centrica ordinary share on Lhe last trading day of 2002 (31 December) was 171 pence. The range during
the year was 239 pence (high} and 150 pence {low).

This report onremuneration has been approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

Elee R\

Grant Dawson
Generat Counsel and Company Secretary
20 February 2003
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements
The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to
prepare financial statemenits for each year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at the end of the financial year and of the profitor
loss for the financial year.

The directors consider that, in preparing the financial
statements on pages 32 to 67, the company has used appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and
that all applicable accounting standards have been followed.
The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the
company keeps accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the company
and the group and which enabla thern te ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
The directors have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the group and 1o prevent and detect fraud and other irmegularities.

Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Centrica plc

Wa have audited the financial statements which comprise
the profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the cash flow
statement, the statement of total recognised gains and losses
and the related notes which have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and the accounting policies set
out in the principal accounting policies note. We have also
audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A

to the Companies Act 1985 containedin the directors’
remuneration report (‘the auditable part').

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the annual report,
the directors' remuneration report and the financial statements
inaccordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards are set out in the statement of

diractors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the
auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and United
Kingdom Auditing Standands issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. This report including the opinion has been prepared for
and only for the company's members as & body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any cther purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or in to whose hands it may come
save whare axpressly agreed by our pricr consent in writing,

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
staternents give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration
raport have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. Wa also report to you if, In our opinion,
the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial
statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information centained in the annual repoert
and consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies
with the financial statements. The other information comprises
only the directors' report, the unaudited part of the directors’
remuneration report, the chairman's statement, the chief
executive's statement, the operating and financial review,
the group financial review, the statement of corporate
responsibility, the corporate governance statement and
the gas and liquids reserves.

We review whether the comporate governance statement
reflacts the company's compliance with the seven provisions
of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it
does not. We are not required 1o consider whether the board’s
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's

or group's comporate governance procedures or its risk
and control proceduras.

Basis of audit opinion

Wae conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standarnds issued by the Auditing Practices Boand.

An audit inctudes examination, on a test basis, of
avidenca relevant to the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements and the auditable part of

the direclors’ remuneration report. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 0 as to obtain
all the information and explanations which we consideared
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the auditable part of the directers’ remuneration report
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other imegularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
« the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and the group
at 31 Decernber 2002 and of the profit and cash flows
of the group for the year then ended;
» thae financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1885; and
* those parts of the directors’ remuneration report required
by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985
have been property prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985.

The maintenance and integrity of the Centrica plc website is
the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the
auditors does notinvolve consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements
since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdam govarning the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legistation in ather jurisdictions.

PMLMM

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
1 Embankmant Place

London WC2N 6RH

20 February 2003
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Financial statements

. 2002 2001

Results Results
for tha year {or the year
before balore
goodwill Goodwill goodwil Goocwil
amortisation  amortisation amontisation Amontisaton
and and Results and and Resuls
Group pl'Oﬁt and loss account uc:::lro;:sl “:::::‘.:l fory.lr: excec"m e:czr;::_ong:sl fot)::
Year ended 31 December Notes £m Em tm £m £ im
Turnover: oo T T o T
Continuing operations before acquisitions 14,003 = 14,0037 | 12811 - 12,611
Acquisitions 312 - 312] | L
Continuing operations 14315 - 14315 12811 : 12,611
Share of joint ventures' turnover 207 - 207 229 - 229
Group and share of joint ventures’ turnover 14522 - 14,522 12,840 - 12,840
Less share of joint ventures’ wurnover (207 - (207) (229} - {229)
Group turnover o 3 14,315 - 14,315 12,611 - 12,611
Cost of sales 4 (11,328) - (11,328) (10,224) - {10,224)
Gross profit T 2,987 - 2,987 2.387 - 2,387
Operating costs:
Exceptionai items 5 - - -1 - {80 (80)
Qther {2,108) (116) (2,224) {1,755) (86} (1.841}‘
4 {2,708 (116) (2.224) {1.755) (168) (1,921
Group operating profit: oo }
Continuing operations before acquisitions 857 (109) 753" 632 (166) 466
Acquisitions 22 {12) 10! !
Continuing operations 879 i 16) 763 632 (166) 466
Share of operating profit in joint ventures
and associates - continuing operations 3 53 7)) 45 47 {2) 45
Operating profitincluding joint ventures ’ - T ‘
and associates:
Continuing aperations before acquisitions 910 i '7"59'1 [ ‘679 168y s11!
Acquisitions 22 (12) w0 i
. Continuing operations 3 932 (23 809 679 {168) 511
Loss on disposal of business 5 - (14) (14) . . R
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 5 - {14) (14) - - -
Netinterest payable:
Group T . @) (32) : (32)
Share of joint ventures and associates (15 - (s ! (1) - an
7 {62) - 62) 43) - 43
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 870 (151} 719 636 (168) 468
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities a (243) 0] (250) {164) 9 (155)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
for the financial year 627 (158) 469 472 {159) 313
Minorily interests (equity and non-equity} 23 ] - -] 10 - 10
Profit attributable to the grou-; 636 (158) 478 482 (159 323
Dividends 9 (172) I {124
Transfer o reserves - 21 306 189
Pence Ponce Pence Pence
Earnings per ordinary share -
basic 10 11.4 8.1
diluted 10 1.3 8.0
adjusted basic 10 15.2 12.1

The notes on pages 35 to 63 {orm part of these financial statements.
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Group balance sheet 2002 2000
31 December Notes tm Em
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1 1,813 1,524
Tangible assets 17 2,763 2,058
Investments: -
Share of gross assets of joint vertures 810, 7091
Share of gross liabilities of joint ventures (736) _ (597
13 74 112
Other investments 13 28 55
4,678 3.749
Current assets
Stocks 14 180 193
Deblors: _
Goldfish Bank debtors {amounts falling due within one year} 15 781 673 §
Goldfish Bank debtors {amounts falling due after more than one year) 15 ! 1" -1
Other debtors (amounts falling due within one year) 15 I 2,598 1,923
Other debtors (amounts falling due after more than one year) 15 l_ 134; _ 130
3,524 2.726
Cument assetinvestments 16 320 454
Cash at bank and in hand 28 72
4,052 3.445
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year}
Goldfish Bank borrowings 17 (430) (610)
Other borrowings 17 (289) {361)
Other amounts falling due within one year: .
Goldfish Bank customer deposits (s v'ﬁ%"'-wi
Other creditors | (31885) __{2.87);
18 (3,441} (2,871)
(4,160) (3.842)
Net current liabilities (108) (397)
Total assets less current liabilities 4,570 3,352
Creditors {(amounts falling due after more than one year) .
Borrowings 17 (784) (598),
Other creditors 18 oz (kL)
(906) 632
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 (1,262) [1,184)
Net assets 2,402 1.536
Ea?ital and reserves -~ equity interests -
Called up share capital 20 236 223
Share premium account 21 537 62
Merger reserve 21 467 467
Profit and loss account 21 1,008 750
Shareholders’ funds 22 2,248 1,502
Minority interests (equity and non-equity) 23 154 34
Tetal capital employed 2,402 1,536

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 20 February 2003 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ckestta,

Sir Michael Perry 68e Phillip Bentley

Chairman Group Finance Director

The notes on pages 35 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements continued

Statement of total recognised gains and losses 2002 2001
Year ended 31 December Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year - o h 478 323
Exchange transiation differences {8 -
Total gains and losses recognised since last annual report 470 323

Profit for the financial year includes joint ventures’ and associates’ profil afier tax of £15 million (2001: £27 million).

Group cash flow statement 2002 2001
Year ended 31 December Notes Em tm
Cash inflow from operating activities” 25a "7 825
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 57 16
Returns oninvestments and servicing of finance 25b (25) (15}
Taxation paid 25¢ (192) (109
Capital expenditure and financial investment 25d {402) {337
Acquisitions and disposals 25e {935) (607)
Equity dividends paid {138) (115)
Cash outflow before use of liquid resources and financing (818} (342)
Management of liquid resources 251 134 (257)
Financing 259 747 686
(Decrease)/increase in net cash (37) 87

il Cashinflow from operating activities includes movements on the Goldfish Bank working capital facility.

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in debt,

net of cash and current asset investments 2002 2000
Year ended 31 December Notes £m £m
(Decrease}/increase innet cash 3N 87
Movement in Goldiish Bank working capital facility 180 (610)
Cash inflow from Increase In other debt and lease financing 1n (635)
Cash (inflow)/outflow from (decrease)/increase in liquid resources (134) 257
Change in debl, net of cash and current assetinvestments
resulting from cash flows (108) {801
Loans and finance leases acquired - (37
Exchange adjustments (4) 12
Movement in debt, net of cash and current asset investments (112) {926)
Debt, net of cash and current asset investments, at 1 January (1,043) 117
Debt, net of cash and current asset investments, at 31 December 25h {1,155) {1.043)
Ofwhich:

Goldfish Bank (430) {610

Other businesses - non-recourse debt (196) -

Other businesses - recourse debt (529) 4 ;3)
Total group (1,155) {1.043)

The notes on pages 35 to 63 form part of these financial statements,
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

Accounting principles

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
wilh applicable accounting standards and under the historical
cost converntion and the Companies Act 1985 except for the
accounting policy for energy trading activities; further details
explaining this departure are in note 2. In accordance with

the transitional arrangements of FRS 17 Retirement Benefits,
additional disclosures are contained in the notes to the
financial statements.

The accounting palicies, where applicable, are materially
in accordance with the SORP issued by the Gil Industry
Accounting Committee entitled Accounting for Qil and
Gas Exploration, Development, Production and
Decommissioning Activities.

Basis of preparation

The group financial staternents comprise a consolidation

of the accounts of the company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings and incorporate the resuits of its share of

all joint ventures and associates. The resulls of undertakings
acquired are consclidated from the date the group gains control.
No profit and loss account is presented for the company

as permitted by Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985.

An associsted undertaking (associate) is an entity in which
the group has a long term equity interest and over which it
exercises significant influence. The consolidated financial
statements include the group portion of the operating profit
or loss, exceptional items, interest, taxation and net assets
of associates (the equity methaod).

Ajoint venture is an entity in which the group has a long
term interest and shares control with one or more co-venturers.
The consolidated financial statements include the group portion
of wrnover, operating profit or loss. exceptional items, interest.
taxation, gross assels and gross liabilities of the joint venture
(the gross equity method).

Under FRS 5 Reporting the Substance of Transactions,
the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund has been
consolidated as a quasi-subsidiary.

Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the rormal course of business, net
of rade discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Energy supply: Turnover for energy supply activities
includes an assessment of energy supplies to customers
between the date of the last meter reading and the year
end {unread). Unread gas and electricity is estimated using
historical consumption patterns and is included in accrued
energy income within debtors.

Home services: Where the group has an ongoing obligation
to provide services, revenues are apportioned on a time basis,
and amounts billed in advance are treated as deferred
income and excluded from current urnover.

AA road services: Membership subscriptions are
apportioned on a time basis over the period of the membership.

Financial services: Turnover includes interest receivable, fees
and commissions receivable from financial services activities.

Telecommunications: Turnover is recognised on the
basis of telephony services actually provided to customers
in the financial period.

Cost of sales

Energy supply includes the cosl of gas and electricity produced
and purchased, and related transportation and royalty costs,
bought in materials and services, and direct labour and related
overheads ¢n installation works, repairs and service contracts.
Gas production costs include petroleum revenue taxes (PRT),
calculated on a unit of produclion basis, with changes in
estirnates deall with prospectively over the remaining lives

of gas fields. Financial services cost of sales alsoinciudes
finance charges on working capital facilities used to finance
banking receivables, and interest payabie on customer deposits.

Employee share schemes

The group has a number of employee share schemes,

detailed in the directors’ report on pages 22 and 23.

As permitted by UITF Abstract 17, the group does not
recognise the differance between market value and option
price to employees in relation to the UK sharesave

scheme within the profit and loss account, on the basis that
the scheme is UK Inland Revenue-approved. Upon vesting,
the difference between market value and the option price

is taken directly to reserves. The cost of potential share awards
under the group’s long term incentive schemes is charged

to the profit and foss account aver the period to which the
performance criteria of each allocation relates. Costis defined
as the difference between the contribution receivable from
empioyees and the market value at the date of grant, or the
aclual cost of shares where market purchases are made at, or
around, grant date. Cost also includes provision for employer's
National insurance charges expected to arise at exercise dates.

Research and development expenditure
Research and development expenditure is charged
1o the profit and loss account as incurred.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies
are translated into sterling at closing rates of exchange.
The results of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint
ventures are translated into sterling at average rates of
exchange for the relevant period. Differences resulting from
the retranstation of the opening net investment in overseas
subsidiary undentakings and from the retranslation of the
opening net assets and the resulls of these entities for

the year are laken to reserves, and are reported inthe
statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Exchange differences on monetary assets and liabilities
are taken to the profit and loss accounl, except that exchange
differences on foreign currency borrowings used to finance or
hedge foreign currency net investments in overseas subsidiary
undertakings and joint ventures are taken directly toreserves
and are reponted in the statement of total recognised gains
and losses. All other exchange movements are deall with
through the profit and loss account.

Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business acquired
after 1 January 1998 is included in the balance sheet at

cost, less accumulated amortisation and any provisions for
impairment, On the acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking
(including unincorporated businesses), joint venture or
associate, fair values are attributed to the assets and liabilities
acquired. Goodwill. which represents the difference between
the purchase consideration and the fair values of those net
assels, is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period which represents the direcltors’ estimate of its
useful economic ife. Goodwill which arose on acquisitions
after 1 January 1998 is being amortised over periods ranging
from 5 to 20 years. Goodwill which arose prior to 1998

was written off directly to the profit and loss reserve. If an
undertaking is subsequently disposed. the appropriate
unamortised goodwill or goodwill written off Lo reserves

is dealt with through the profit and loss account in the

period of disposal as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are included inthe balance sheet at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and any provisions for impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Principal accounting policies continued

In the case of investments in customer relationship
management {CRM) and other technology infrastructure, cost
includes contractors’ charges, payments on account, materials,
direct labour and directly attributable overheads. Capitalisation
begins when expenditures for the asset are beingincurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
use afe in progress.

Capitatisation ceases when substantially all the
aclivities that are necessary to prepare the asset for use
are complete. Depreciation commences at the point of
commercial depioyment.

Freeholdiand is not depreciated. Other tangible fixed assets,

except exploration and production assets, are depreciated

on a straight-fine basis al rates sufficient (o write-off the cost,
less estimated residual values, of individual assets over their
estimated useful lives. The depreciation periods for the principal
categories of assels are as follows:

Freehold and leasehold buildings up to 50 years
Plant 5to 20years
Power stations 20 years
Equipment and vehicles 3to 0 years
Storage up to 30 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated aver the
shorter of the lease term or their useful economic life.
Exploration and production assets are capitalised using
the successful efforts method and depreciated from the
commencement of production in the fields concerned, using
the unit of production method, based on all of the proven and
probable devetoped reserves of those fields. Changes inthese
eslimates are dealt with prospectively, The nel carying value
of fields in production is compared on a field-by-field basis with
the likely future net revenues to be derived from the estimaled
remaining commercial reserves. A provision is made where it
is considered that recorded amounts are unlikely to be fully
recovered from the net present value of future net revenues.

Leases

Assels held under finance leases are capitalised and included in
tangible fixed assets at cost. The obligations relating to finance
leases, net of finance charges inrespect of futlure periods, are
included within borrowings. The interest element of the rental
obligation is allocated to accounting periods during the lease
term to reflect the constant rate of interest onthe remaining
balance of the cbligation for each accounting period. Rentals
under operating leases are charged to the profit and [oss
account as incurred.

Asset impairments

Intangible and tangible fixed assets are reviewed for
impairments if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may nol be recoverable. When a review for
impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is assessed
by reference to the net present value of expected future cash
Nows of the relevant income generating unit or disposal value,

if higher. If an asset isimpaired, a provision is made to reduce
the carrying amount to its estimated recoverable amount.

Investments
Other fixed assel investments areincluded inthe balance
sheet al cost. less accumulated provisions for amortisation
and any impairment.

Current asset investments are stated at the lower
of cost and netrealisable value,

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net
realisable value.
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‘Take or Pay’ contracts

Where payments are made to external suppliers under
‘Take or Pay’ obligations for gas not taken, they are treated
as prepayments and are included within debtors.

Decommissioning costs

Provision is made for the net present value of the estimated
cost of decommissioning gas production facilities at the end

of the producing lives of fields, and decommissioning storage
facilities at the end of the useful life of storage facilities based
on price levels and technology at the balance sheet date.
Changes in these estimates are dealt with prospectively.

When this provision gives access to future economic benefits,
an asset is recegnised. Decommissioning assets are amortised
using the unit of production method, based on proven and
probable reserves, excepl for decommissioning assets relating
to storage facilities, which are amonrtised on a straight-line basis
over the useful economic life of the storage facilities. The
unwinding of the discount on the provision is included in the
profit and loss account within the net interest charge.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

Pensions and other post retirement benefits are accounted

for in accordance with SSAP 24 Pension Costs. Additional
disclosures are also made in the notes o the financial
statements as required under the transitional arrangements

set outin FRS 17 Retirement Benefits. The cost of providing
retirement pensions and other benefits is charged to the profit
and koss account over the periods benefiting from employees’
service. The difference between the charge to the profit and loss
account and the contributions paid to the pension schemes is
shown as a provision in the balance sheet. The regular pension
cosl, variations from the regular pension cost and interest are all
charged within employee costs, and the straight-fine method

is applied for amortising surpluses and interest.

Long term sales contracts

Provision is made for the net present cost, using a risk free
discount rate, of any expected losses on long term sales
contracts. The provision is based on the diference between
the contracted sales price and the expected weighted
average cost of gas.

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporalion tax and foreign Lax. is
provided at amounts expected Lo be paid {or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substanually
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences
that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where ransaciions or events thal result in an obligation to pay
more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have
occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are
differences between the group’s taxable profits and its resulls
as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion
of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from
those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised onty when, on the basis of all available evidence, it
can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits in the foreseeable future frorm which the reversal
of the undertying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred taxis not recognised when fixed assels are
revalued uniess by the balance sheet dale there is a binding
agreement to sefl the revalued assets and the gain or loss
expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the financial
statements. Neither is deferred lax recognised when fixed
assets are sold and itis more likely than not that the taxable
gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only if and when
the replacement assets are sold.



1 Principal accounting policies continued

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the retained
earnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates onlyto the
extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been
accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute
past earnings in the future has been entered into by the
subsidiary or associate.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are
expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences
are expected toreverse, based on Lax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Financial instruments
a) Debtinstruments
Debt instruments are stated al the amount of net proceeds
received after deduction of issue costs, adjusted to amortise
any discount or premium evenly over the term of the debt.
b) Derivative financial instruments
The group uses a range of derivative financial instruments
for both trading purposes and to manage (hedge} exposures
to financial risks, such as interest rate, foreign exchange and
energy price risks arising in the normal course of business.
The accounting treatment for these instruments is dependent
on whether they are entered into for rading or non-trading
{hedging) purposes. A derivative instrument is considered
1o be used for hedging purposes when it alters the risk profile
of an underlying exposure of the group in line with the group’s
risk management policies. In addition, there must be a
demonstrable link to an underlying transacticn, pool of
transactions or specified future transaction or transactions.
Specified future transactions must be reasonably certain
to arise for the derivative to be accounted for as a hedge.

A discussion on how the group manages its financial risks
isincluded in the group financial review on pages 17 and 18.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for as follows:

Energy trading activities

The group engages in swaps, futures, forwards and options in
gas, electricity and weather, for trading purposes. Open financial
and physical trading positions are marked to market using
externally derived market prices. Marked to market gains and
losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account,
within cost of sales. This is a departure from the Companies Act
1985 as disclosed within note 2. The coresponding fair value
debtors or credilors are included within the balance sheet.

Energy hedging activities

The group engages in gas, electricity, oil and weather derivatives

to hedge against price exposures arising within the energy
supply. procurement and retail operations. The derivatives are
matched to the specific exposures they are designed to reduce,
with gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss account
in the same period as the income and costs of the underlying
hedged transaclions.

Treasury hedging activites
The group uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements,
foreign currency swaps and forward exchange contracis lo
manage exposures Lo interest rates arising on underlying
debt and cash positions or probable future commitments
and foreign exchange risks arising an foreign currency assets
and borrowings, foreign currency forecasted transactions and
the retranslation of overseas net investments. All instruments
are used for hedging purposes 1o alter the risk profile on existing
undertying exposures and probable future commilments in line
with the group’s risk management policies.

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps
and forward rale agreements are recognised as adjustments
to the netinlerest charge over the term of the contracts.

Curmrency swap agreements and forward exchange
contracts are retranslated at the rates ruling in the agreements
and contracts. Resulting gains or iosses are offset against
foreign exchange gains or losses on the related borrowings
or, where the instrument is used to hedge a commilted future
rransaction, are deferred until the transaction occurs. Where
used to hedge overseas nel investments, gains or losses are
recorded in the statement of total recognised gains and losses,
with interest recorded in the profit and loss account.

Where derivatives used to manage interest rate risk or
to hedge other anticipated cash flows are terminated before
the underlying debt matures or the hedged transaction occeurs,
the resulting gain or loss is recognised on a basis thal matches
the timing and accounting treatment of the underlying debt
or hedged transaction. When an anticipated transaction
is no longer likely to occur or finance debt is terminated
before maturity, any deferred gain or loss that has arisen
cn the related derivative is recognised in the profit and loss
account, together with any gain or loss on the terminated item.

2 Accounting policy for energy trading activities

Energy trading financial derivatives and open positions on
physical energy trading contracts are marked to market using
externally derived market prices. This is not in accordance

with the general provisions of Schedule 4 of the Companies

Act 1985, which requires that these contracts be stated at

Lhe lower of cost and net realisable value or that, il revalued,

any revaluation difference be taken to a revaluation reserve.
However, the directors consider that these requirements would
fail 10 provide a true and {air view of the profit for the year since
the marketability of energy trading contracts enables decisions
1o be taken continually whether to hold or sell them. Accordingly
the measure of profit in any period is properly made by reference
to market values. The effect of the departure on the financial
staterments is an increase in profit for the year amounting to

£7 million (2001 £2 million) and anincrease in net assets at

31 December 2002 amounting to £9 million (2001: E2 million).
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Segmental analysis

The segmental analysis reflects, in the opinion of the directors, how the group’s activities were managed during the year,

The segmental analysis has changed from {ast year in order to reflect the brand unit divisions that are now utilised in the day-to-day
management of the business. These have been structured to mirror the brand focused customer relationships that are at the core
of the Centrica business model™, Al activities were continuing.

Operating prodiv/(iossh Operating profiv/{kiss)
before exceptional aites exceptional
charges and goodwil charges Brd goodwill
amartisation, including amortisation, including
share of resuks of joint share of results of joint
Turmover venras and associales ventures and associales Net assets/liabllities)
__year ended 31 December _yearended 31 December yesr ended 31 December 31 December
2002 2000 2002 2000 2002 2001 2002 2001
a} By business segment Em Em €£m £m tm £m £m Em
British Gas residential:
Continuing operations [ 5047 5'.'96'91 7248 | (48} r"”“"é'i':ﬂ @) ;347 257]
Acquisitions™ - ' _ : - ; l - !
6,047 5.509 244 {46) 243 (81) 347 257
Cenlrica Business Services:
Continuing operaticns i 883] {_58'1"] "__'616" T e 60y a3y "“2]57'; 738
Acquisitions™ . ___ BB | . Eom ] __88;
. e s e a4 e 1 TR 2
Cenftrica energy management
group (CEMG):
Continuingoperations™  ~"§160] [ 4577 | " s22, | 573 522; T Tsa3 [ Tzest [ 25
Acauisitions® Co @ ) ms
51711 4,571 520 573 520 543 04 25
The AA:
Continuingoperations  ~ 758" 689 74 ki 24 8 682° [ 746,
Acquisitions® 2 i : ! 3l !
760 689 13 72 23 8 685 746
Goldfish Bank:
Continuing operations 93 22 #0) (32) T (54 ' 3 7 181l 12
Acquisitions™ L=t oot = - ' N
93 22 {40) (32) (54) 37 181 112
OneTel: A B T
Continuing operations 1517 ' 65 5 4 1 [ § T 54 59,
Acquisitions® [ o2 @ I I (s j | m ! |
53 65 2 4 (4) 5 53 59
Centrica North America:
Continuing operations | eom, i 768 36, 68] 5] i 39 611, 652
Acquisitions™® 209; | 271 [ i 19 - _Eg]_’ N
o 1,118 768 63 68 24 3 1,192 652
Other operations: 2 [ 3 )] 2 (3 49 33
Unallocated net liabilities™ (1,162} (603}
Group 14,315 12,611 932 679 809 511 2,402 1,536
b) 8y geographical area of operation N )
UK:
Continuing operations © 13,079 "'I—féiﬂ TTTaTe T edd, T 7!5?] TTE7z T 1,794 0 143
Acquisitions™ N - L Y - R @ , 527 '
13,182 11831 874 609 796 472 2,321 1,436
Rest of Europe:
Continuing operations 15 12 (5) 2 {11) - 51 51
North America: e . e e e e
Continuing operations ) 768, TR 68) | ' g’ 11 652
Acquisitions® 209 27 £ 19’ 581
1,118 768 63 68 24 39 1,192 652
Unallocaled net iiabilities®™ (1,162) {603)
Group 14,315 12,611 932 679 809 511 2,402 1,536

§E§Bpposile for footnotes (i) - {v)
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3 Segmental analysis continued Turnover
2002 2001
¢) By geographical destination £m Em
UK:
Continuing operations l‘ 12,588 9,226 {
Acquisitions™ 103/ L
12,701 11.226
Rest of Europe:

Continuing operations 496 607
North America: e

Continuing operations 909 )

Acquisitions™ 208 ]

1,118 776
Rest of world:

Continuing operations - 2z
Group 14,315 12.611
i Turnoves includes energy trading turnover of £4,304 million (2001: £3,570 million}.

(i) Acquisitions are explained in note 24.
(i} Unallocated net liabllities comprised:
2002 200
Em Em
Fixed asset investments 26 52
Accrued interest payable mn @
Dividends payable {110) (76)
Taxation {346) (144)
Debt, net of cash and money market investrments
{except for the Goldfish Bank working capital facility) {725) 433)
(1.162) (603)
The group's share of operating losses of associates before exceptional charges and goodwill amortisation for the year ended
31 December 2002 was £1 million (2001: £nif) and after exceptional charges and goadwill amortisation for the year ended
31 December 2002 was a loss of £2 million {2001: 1oss of £1 million).
The group’s share of urnover and operating profits of joint ventures for the year ended 31 December was:
Operating profit/floss) Operating profiv(oss)
belore exceptional charges alter exceplional charges
- andgoodwilamorisation __ end goodwil amartisauon
2002 2007 2002 2001 2002 2001

. ~ _ R ___“_f.lg _ £m im im Lo “St_l'l- o _E_r:\
British Gas residential 25 24 2 2 2 2
Centrica energy management group (CEMG) b 142 40 28 40 28
The AA 63 51 16 17 16 17
Goldfish Bank - " - - - .
Other operations 42 1 (4) - (10} 1)

207 229 54 47 48 46

{iv) The effect of this change onthe 2001 segmental analysis of turnover was to split the turnover of the previously reported
UK Energy Supply segment of £10,302 million into British Gas residential, Centrica Business Services and Centrica encrgy
management group, to include British Gas home services turnover of £722 million and Telecommunications turnover
{excluding OneTel) of £37 million within British Gas residential, to combine AA road services and AA personal finance
to form the AA segment and to reallacate turnover previously reported in other businesses of E62 million to the AA,
The effect on the 2001 segmental analysis of operating profit before exceptional charges and geodwill amortisation was
1o split the operating profit of the previously reported UK Energy Supply segment of £652 million into British Gas residential,
Centrica Business Services and Centrica eneigy management group, to include British Gas home services operaling profit
of £36 million and Telecommunicalions operating loss (excluding OneTel} of £101 million within British Gas residential, to
combine AA road services and AA personal finance Lo form the AA segment and to realiocate operating losses previously
reported in other businesses to British Gas residential of £16 milion and L0 the AA of £2 million.
The effect on the 2001 segmental analysis of operating profit afler exceptional charges and goodwill amortisation was to spiit
the operating profit of the previously reported Ui Energy Supply segment of £601 million into British Gas residential, Cenlrica
Business Services and Centrica energy management group, to include British Gas home services operating profit of E30 million
and Telecommunications operating loss (excluding OneTel) of £116 million within British Gas residential, to combine AA road
services and AA personal finance (o form the AA segment, and to reallocate operating losses previously reported in other

businessas to British Gas residential of £16 million and to the AA of £2 million.

The effect on the 2001 segmental analysis of net assets was to split the net assets of the previously reported UK Energy Supply
segment of £678 million into British Gas residential, Centrica Business Services and Centrica energy management group, o
include British Gas home services net liabilities of £162 million within British Gas residential, to combine AA road services and
AA personal finance to form the AA segment, and to reaflocate net assets of £1 million previously reported in other businesses
to British Gas residential, and to reallocate net liabilities of £4 million previously reporied In other businesses tothe AA,

(v
totalled £4,142 million (2001: £4,363 million).

Inter-segment ransfers from Centrica energy management group to Brilish Gas residential and Cenlrica Business Services
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2002 2001
Goodwill Gooowl
smontisation amontisztion
& sxceptional Othor & exceptional Other
charges coms Totsd tharges Costs Total
4 Costs £Em Em Em £m £m £m
Costof sates™:
Continuing operations e . . . R .
before acquisitions JT T "11,111'_-{‘7;{1'1" - 10,224 10,224
Acquisitions e - 187 187
Continuing operations - 11,328 11,328 - 10,224 10,224
Operating costs™:
Continuing operations
before acquisitions v 104 2,005 2,109 A [ 1,755 1,827
Acquisitions 12 103 115
Continuing operations 116 2,108 2,224 166 1,755 1,921
Total costs recognised in arriving
at group operating profit 116 13,436 13,5852 166 11,979 12,145
Gross profit attributable to acquisitions amounted to £125 million, and to continuing operations before acquisitions £2,862 million.
2002 2001
Em £m
Group operating profit is stated after charging:
Amortisation of goodwill 116 86
Amortisation of fixed asset investments 7 14
Depreciation:
Owned assets™ [ 357 [7337,
Leased assels 33 | 26|
390 3517
Profit on disposal of fixed assets™ 18 13
Operaling lease rentals:
Plant and machinery ! 3 : 7]
Otner 4] L2
I E 29
Auditors’ remuneration:
Statutory audit
Company 0.2 . 02
Subsidiary undertakings 1.5 f L 14
Other audit 1.2 0.9
Other non-audit™ 6.3! A
9.2 9.6

i Gasltransportation costs of £1,459 million (2001: £1.759 million) and electricity transpontation and distribution charges of £647 million
(2001: £395 million) were included within cost of sales. Operating costs were all considered to be administrative expenses.

(i) Depreciation and amortisation of owned assets for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2002 included Enil (2007: £25 million}
of asset impairment. Of this impairment charge, Enil (2001: £20 million} has been treated as exceptlional.

{i) The profiton disposal of tangible fixed assets was £6 miltion (2001: £7 million) and profit on sale of fixed assetinvesiments
{against the previously impaired cost of the investment) was £12 million (2001: £6 million).

{iv) Itis the group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consultancy and advisory projects. Appoiniments are made
taking into account other factors including expertise and experience, The auditors have been engaged on assignments additiona!
10 their statutory audit duties where their expertise and experience with the group are particutarly important, including Lax advice
and due diligence reporting on acquisitions. Other charges comprised due diligence of £0.5 million (2001: £2,1 million}, 1axation
advice of £0.6 million (2001: £1.2 million) and consulting prajects of £5.2 million (2001: £3.8 million), including amounts
of £5 million (2007: £2 million) paid to the consulting business of the auditors prior to its sale in October 2002,

5 Exceptional items 2002 2001
a) Recognised in arriving at operating profit tm £m
Conlinuing operations:
Business integration costs - {35)
Energy rading costs - 37
Cther . _ L _ - (8)
Total recognised in arriving at operating profit - (80)
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5 Exceptional iterns continued 2002

2001
b} Recognised after operating profit £m £m
Continuing operations:

Loss on disposal of business® {14) -

_ Lossondisposal of fixed assetsh SN (149 :
Total recognised after operating profit {28) -
) During the year the group recognised a £14 million loss on disposal of the LPG business. The loss included €17 million relating

to the write-off of unamertised goodwill, further information of which is provided in note 24,

@i} The group decided toreduce the operations of Golf England Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, and recognised a £14 million

provision in respect of losses on disposal of fixed assets.

& Directors and employees 2002 2001
a} Employee costs L tm tm
Wages and salaries 805 716
Social security costs 73 59
Other pension and retirement benefits costs (note 26) 68 54
Long term incentive scheme " 14
Employee Prolit Sharing Scheme - 5]

1,057 849

Detais of directars’ remuneration, share options, long term incentive scheme interests and pension entilements on pages 25 to 30
of the remuneration repont form part of these financial statements. Details of employee share schemes are given on pages 22 (o 23
and in note 20.

2002 200

b} Average number of employees during the year Number Numbet
British Gas residenttal 19,584 17,546
Centrica Business Services 842 368
Centrica energy management group (CEMG) §85 450
The AA 11,640 9,911
Goldfish Bank 189 59
OneTel 740 638
Centrica North America 2,187 438
Other operations 2,284 2,140

38,051 31,850

Greal Britain 35,563 30,832
North America 2,187 438
Rest of Europe 301 280

38,051 31,550
2002 2001
Intsrest Interest Interest lrtenest
. payable  receivable Total payable recevable Total

7 Netinterest Em Em ] Em Em Em £m
Cost of servicing net debt {excluding Goldfish Bank) . m _
Interest receivable by the parent and subsidiary companies - 16] 16} - E ! 23 | 231
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrails (40) -1 (40} (24) - (24}
Finance lease charges (11 =] an 14 | i 04

(51) 16 (35} {38) 23 (15}

Otherinterest _ o .
Share of joint ventures' interest payable® ! (15) ! - (15} 15D [ - 4K
Netional interest arising on discounted items ; (15) - (15) 12y | - ‘ 2
Interest on supplier early payment arangements™ - 13! 13f i -t no 1
Interest on customer finance arrangements™ iyl -1 @ 1 @ | = 1)
Other L@ @ @ | S

40 13 {27) {39) 11 {28)

Interest (payable}/receivable (91) 29 {62) 77 34 (43)

Product income generated by AA personal finance and Goldfish Bank for the year ended 31 December 2002 was £100 million
(2001: £23 million}, £69 million of the increase related Lo the inclusion of Goldfish Bank as a subsidiary of the group for a full year.
Financiat services product charges were £33 miltion (2007: Enil). This related entirely to Goldfish Bank. Both financial services

income and charges have been included within group operating profit.
) The share of associates' inerest (payable)freceivable is Enil (2001: £nil).
i) Interest on supplier early payment arrangements arose on the prepayment of gas ransponiation charges.

{iiy Theinterest cosl relales to subsidised credit arrangements provided le customers purchasing central heating installation.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2002 2001
g Tax tm £m
a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
The Lax charge comprises:
Current tax .
UK corporation tax T4 [ 1571
Tax on exceptional items® @ 9
Adjustments in respect of prior years . LY L ____(5_3_)1
162 105
Foreign tax -
Foreign tax T [ 6]
Adjustments in respect of prior years s )
3
Total current tax 179 108
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences TTTTe) )
Deferred petroleum revenue tax relief 551 I a9}
Exceptional deferred tax charge® _____SJ [ —_!
Total deferred tax T ss T
Share of joint ventures tax . 16 1
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 250 155

) Thetax credit arising on exceptional items related lo those costs identified as exceptional in note 5.
fil The exceptional tax charge in 2002 comprised an increase in deferred tax provisions arising from the supplementary charge
applicable to profits on ‘ring-fenced’ offshore gas production.

b} Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The differences between the total current tax showr above and the amount caiculated by applying the standard rate of UK
corporation tax to the profit before tax is as follows:

2002 2001
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 719 468
Less: share of joint ventures’ and associates’ profit before tax {31) (34)
Group profit on ordinary activities before tax ] 688 434
Tax on group profit on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax rate ol 30% (2001: 30%) 207 . 130
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, including goodwitl amortisation 51 &1
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 7 50
Utilisation of tax losses and other short term timing differences (82) (40)
Oeferred petroleum revenue tax relief {55) (49)
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings . 6 2
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 16 {45)
Supplementary charge applicable to upstream profits 12 -
Overseaslosses or taxation not available forgreait - -
Group current tax charge for the year 179 109

c¢) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The group eams its profits primarily in the UK, thereflore the Lax rate used for tax on profit on ordinary activities is the standard rate
for UK corporation tax, currently 30%. Fair values are atiributed to fixed assets on acquisition of businesses and companies and
armortisation or depreciation is subsequently provided based upan those amounts, Were the assets to be sold at the book values

at the batance sheet date without the benefit of {ax planning arrangements, the amount of tax that would be payable is estimated

in aggregate to be £168 million of which £146 million is provided in the balance sheet as deferred tax. There is, however, no intention
to sell any of these assets in the foreseeable future and therefore the crystallisation of the above tax charge is considered to be remote.
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2002 2001

9 Dividends tm Em
2001 final dividend in respect of share issues after the balance sheet date 3 -
Interim dividend of 1.4p (2001: 1.2p} per ordinary share 59 48
Proposed final dividend of 2.6p (2001: 1:9p} per ordinary share 1o 76

' T T T Tz T 124

The interim dividend was paid on 27 Novernber 2002 and the proposed final dividend is payable on 18 June 2003 to sharehoiders
on the register at the close of business on 2 May 2003.

10 Earnings per ordinary share .
Earnings per ordinary share has been caicwlated by dividing the eamings for the financial year of £478 mitlion (2007 £323 miliion) by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares In issue during the year of 4,181 million (2001: 3,984 miillion). The number of shares
excluded 27 million ordinary shares (2001: 34 million), being the weighted average number of the company's own shares recorded
on the group balance sheet during the year in accordance with UITF Abstract 13 ESOP Trusts.

The directors believe that the presentation of an adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share, being the basic earnings per
ordinary share adjusted for exceptional charges and goodwill amortisation, assists with understanding the underlying
performance of the group. The reconciliation of basic to adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share is as follows:

2002 200t

Pance per Pence per

ordinary ordinary

) e Em N shlrg £m shae

Earnings- basic 478 1.4 323 8.1
Exceptional items net of tax 35 0.9 kA 1.8
Goodwillamaortisation 123 2.9 as 2.2
Earnings - adjusted basic 636 15.2 482 121
Earnings - dilnted 478 1.3 323 8.0

In addition to basic and adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share, information is presented for diluted earnings per ordinary share.
Under this presentation, there are no adjustments to the reported earnings for either 2002 or 2001, but the weighted average number
of shares used as the denominator is adjusted. The adjustrments relate mainly to notional share awards made to employees under the
long term incentive scheme and the share options granted to employees under the savings-related share option scheme, as follows:

2002 2001
million milfion
shares shares

Weighted average number of shares in issue 4,181 3.984
Estimated vesting of long term incentive scheme shares 35 34
Dilutive effect of shares to be issued at a discount to market value

‘under the savings-related share option scheme 10 43
Polentially dilutive shares issuable under the executive share option scheme 1 1
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings

per ordinary share 4,227 4,062
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Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Intangible fixed assets ~ goodwill Em

Cost

1 January 2002 1.684

Acquisitions" 466

Disposals {17}
Exchange adjustrments (56}
31 December 2002 2,077

Amaortisation

1 January 2002 160
Charge for the year 116

Disposals (6)
Exchange adjustments {6)
31 December 2002 264

Net book value

31 December 2002% 1,813

31 December 2001 1,524

i Acquisitions included £8 million for the revision of provisional fair values relating to the recoverability of certain receivables on the

Enron Direct acquisition made in 2001,

{i} The net book value of goodwill at 31 December refated to the following acquisitions:

Amertisation
2002 2001 period
Em £m yenrs.
The AA 823 879 15-20
Goldfish Bank 124 138 10
Direct £nergy 279 332 15
Energy America 41 52 15
Enron Direct 53 49 15
OneTel 49 53 15
Enbridge Services Inc 167 - 15
Electricity Direct 78 - 15
WTU and CPL 167 - 15
NewPower 8 - 5
British Gas LPG - 11 20
Other o N 18 10 5-20
1,813 1.524
Swxage,
Plant, exploration
Land and equipment™ Power and
buildings®  andvehicles™  generation®  production™ Total
12 Tangible fixed assets £m Em £m Em im
Cost
1 January 2002 123 73 169 3,324 4,329
Additions 2 395 4 69 470
Acquisitions - 234 46 544 824
Disposals (12) (96) (2) - (11Q)
Disposal of subsidiary (2 {77 - 179) (258)
Revision of abandonment asset - - - ] 6
Exchange adjustments - (25) - (19) (44)
31 December 2002 m 1,144 217 3,745 5217
Depreciation and amortisation T
1 January 2002 28 318 2 1.923 2,21
Charge for the year 6 130 12 242 390
Disposals (8) 78) (P] - (88}
Disposal of subsidiary - (40) - (79} {119)
31 December 2002 26 330 127 T 2,086 2,454
Net book value
31 December 2002 as 814 205 1,659 2,763
31 December 2001 95 395 167 1,401 2.058

(i} The net book value of the group’s land and buildings at 31 December 2002 comprised freehold of £44 million (2001 £48 million),
long leasehoid of £23 million (2001: £26 million) and short leasehotd of £18 million (2001: £21 million).

{i) The net book value of the group’s tangible fixed assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2002 within plant, equipment
and vehicles was £8 million (2001: £8 million), power generation £73 million (2001: £167 million} and within storage, exploration
and production was £120 miliion (2001: £136 million). The depreciation and amortisation charge for the year in respect of finance
teased assets included £4 million (2001: £nil) on plant, equipment and vehicles. £10 miltion (2001: £6 million) on power generation
and £19 million (2001: £20 million) on storage. exploration and production assets,

See opposite for footnotes (i) - (v}
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12 Tangible fixed assets continued

i} The amounts capitalised in the year in respect of customer refationship management (CRM,) infrastructure included within plant,
equipment and vehicles at 31 December 2002 amounted to £180 million (2001: E60 million).

(iv} The net book value of the fixed assets of the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund {the Fund) within piant, equiprment and
vehicles was £182 million (2001: Enil}. Debtissved by a subsidiary of the Fund, without recourse to the group, is secured
on the assets, as set out innote 32.

{v} Included within the group’s exploration and production assets at 31 December 2002 were costs of £60 million pending
determination (2001: £16 million}). The net book value of the group’s decommissioning costs at 31 December 2002 were
£17 million (2007: £11 mitlion).

Joint ventures and assoclates

Shares? Loans.  Ownsharas™ invesuno;:z Touwl
13 Fixed asset investments Em Em Em £m Em
Share ofnetassets/cost
1 January 2002 57 23 65 5 150
Disposals and transfers™ Meedi 2 (9) (14) - (31
Dividends receivable (59} - - - (59)
Share of profits less losses for the year 22 - - - 22
31 December 2002 22 4 51 5 82
Goodwill
1 January 2002 70 - - - 70
Disposals {11) - - - (11}
Goodwill amartisation N - - . W]
Exchange adjustments 3 - - - 3
31 December 2002 55 - - - 55
Amounts written off
1 January 2002 12) 2) (36) 3 (53)
Amaortisation undef long term incentive schemes - - (7 - (¢}
Disposals ™ o 11 - 14 - 25
31 December 2002 (1 2 (29) 3 {35)
Net book value
31 December 2002 76 2 22 2 102
31 December 2001 . 115 21 29 2 167

 The group's share of net assets of associates was £2 million (2001: £3 million). The group’s share of joint ventures’ gross assets and
gross liabilities principally comprised its interests in Humber Power Limited (a power station), Centrica Personal Finance Limited
(AA and British Gas persanal loans activities), AA Financial Services (AA credit card activities) and Luminus NV (gnergy supply).
The group's share of joint venlures’ gross liabilities included loans payable to the group amounting to £4 million (2001: £12 million),
The share of Humber Power Limited's gross liabilities includes £269 million {2001: £270 million) of lease finance, of which
£254 million (2001: £258 million} is repayable after more than five years. Although the group holds a majority of the voting rights
in Humber Power Limited, itis restricted in its ability to exercise these rights under an agreement with the other shareholder.
Consequently the investment has not been consolidated but has been accounted for as a joint venture,

2002 2001
Centrica )
Humber Personal AA
Power Finance Financial
Limited Lirmnited Services Luminus NV Otheer Total
Investments in joint ventures o £m £m Em Em £m Em &m
Share of gross assets 346 349 45 62 8 810 109
Share of gross liabllites (327) (345) (45) {13 (6) (736) (597)
19 4 - 49 2 74 112
Share of net assets of associates 2 3
76 115
Net (debt)/cash included in above (257) (333 43) 2 (2) 627} (675)

(i The Centrica Employees Share Trust held 27 million (2601: 39 million) shares in the company. This represented 0.64% of the
called up ordinary share capital {2001: 1%), which had a market value at 31 December 2002 of £47 million and a nominal value
of £2 million {2007: £88 million and E2 million respectively). During the year 12,213,398 shares (2001: 1,272,944 shares) were
transfemmed from trust in respect of awards held by employees. All other invesiments were unlisted.

{ily On 22 November 2002, Humber Power Limited repaid a £15 million loan (o the group. Since the acquisition the group

has entered into tolling agreements with Humber Power Limited for 750 MWh of capacity through to 2014.

The group’s 42% interest in the Spalding Energy Company Limited was disposed of during the year for consideration

of £16 million. The group recognised a profit on disposal of £12 million, against the previously impaired cost of investment.

(v} Transfers comprised AA Buyacar which became a 100% subsidiary of the group on 28 November 2002 when the 30%
interest not previously owned by the group was acquired.

{iv]

The principal undertakings of the group are listed in note 31 on page 62.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2002 2001
14 Stocks &m “Em
Gasin storage 67 140
Other raw materials and consumables 96 44
Finished goods and goods for re-sale 17 9
180 193
. 2002 e 2o
Within After Within Alfter
15 Debtors one year one year one year one year
Amounts falling due . im Em £m £m
a} Goldfish Bank debtors:
Trade debtors: loans and advances to customers 761 10 652 -
Prepayments and accrued incame 1 1 2 -
Other 19 - 19 -
781 1" 673 -
b) Otherbusinesses’ debtors:
Trade debtors 785 44 479 -
Accrued energy income 1,427 - 1,168 -
Deferred corporation tax - 36 - a1
Other debtors 246 5 186 2
Prepayments and other accrued income: e
"Take of Pay’ i 13 -—I '| 7 21
Other | 127 491 73 351
140 49 80 37
2,598 134 1,923 130
2002 2001
16 Current assel investments ) Em £m
Money market investments ) 320 454
Current assetinvestrnents included £159 million (2001: £142 million) held by the group’s insurance subsidiary undertakings and
£10 miltion (20071: £9 miltion) held by the Law Debenture Trust, on behalf of the company, as security to cover unfunded pension
liabilities. These amounts were not readily available to be used for other purposes within the group.
2002 2001
" Within Afior Within After
17 Borrowings one yeur oneyear one year one year
Amounts falling due em £m £m £m
a) Goldfish Bank borrowings
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 29d) 430 - 610 -
b} Gther businesses’ borrowings
Bank loans and overdrafts 13 - 16 -
Steriing bonds® - 518 - 483
Canadian dollar bonds® - 196 - -
Commercial paper 237 - 307 -
Loannotes ] 3 - 5 -
Obligations under finance leases™ 36 70 33 105
289 784 361 598

@ Steriing bands are repayable as foliows: between one and two years Enil (2001 : Enill; between two and five years £125 million
(2001: £10Q million); and after five years £400 million (2001: £400 million). The bonds bear interest at fixed rates between 5.375%
and 5.875% (2001: 5.375% and 5.875%). The bonds have a face value of £525 rnillion (2001: £500 million) and are stated net

of £7 million (2001; £7 milkon} of issuance discount.

(i)

(i}

Canadian dollar bonds are repayable between four and five years bearing interest at a floating rate. The bonds were issued

by the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Trust, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Consumers’ Waterheater Income Fund,
which is trealed as a quasi-subsidiary and consolidated into the group accounts. The debl is secured solely on the assets

of the Fund and its subsidiaries, withaut recourse to the group. Summary financial information for the Fund is given in note 32.
Group obligations under finance leases after more than one year at 31 December 2002 were repayable as follows: between
one and two years £39 million (2001: £37 million): between 1wo and five years £31 million (2007: £68 million). and after five

years Enil (2001: Enil).
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18 Other creditors oayem  onoyes oy onoyes
Amounts falling due £m £m £m Em
Goldfish Bank customer deposits 286 - - -
Trade creditors 1,343 - 1,141 -
Taxation and social security 137 - 127 -
Other creditors 715 23 659 2
Accruals and deferred income: }
Transportation® 18 - 183 -1
Other accruals and deferred income 832 99; 683 329
850 98 868 32
Dividend payable (nate 9) 110 - 76 -
3,441 122 2.8M 34

{d The group has the option to either prepay or accrue its gas transportation charges in Great Britain. For much of the year, the group
prepaid these charges.The group prepaid most of these charges for December 2002, but did not prepay them in December 2001,

Transiers.
1 January Foreign acquisitions Profit and Udlised 31 December
2002 exchange  and disposals Revisions loss charge inthe year 2002
19 Provisions for liabilities and charges £m Em Em tm £m £m £m
Decommissioning costs 129 - 67 6 4 - 206
Deferred petroleum revenue tax 519 - - - 75 (199) 395
Deferred corporation tax? 134 1) 145 - - - 278
Pension and other retirement benefits (note 26) 116 - {2) - 68 (107) 75
Restructuring costs 13 - - - 18 {10) 21
Sales contract foss and renegotiation provisions 227 - - - 14 (23) 218
Other 45 - 20 - 23 20} 69
1,184 (1) 230 6 202 (359) 1,262
) Group deferred tax (assets)liabilities comprised:
Polential assels
Amounts peovided unrecognised
2002 2001 2002 2001
_ £m im Em Em
Accelerated capital allowances 416 230 (56) (83)
Deferred petraleum revenue tax {158) 156} - -
Other timing differences including losses camiedfoward @& __ @1 oon (09
242 43 (163) {198)
Deferred corporation tax liability 278 134
Deferred corporation tax asset included in debtors (note 15) (36) ) 91) )

242 43

Decommissioning costs

Provision has been made for the estimated net present cost of decommissiaoning gas production facllities at the end of their
producing lives. The estimale as been based on proven and probable reserves, price levels and technolegy at the hatance
sheet date. The timing of decommissioning payments are dependent on the lives of a number of fields but are anticipated
to occur between 2005 and 2042. The revision In the year is due to an increase in the estimate for gas field abandonment
costs. The profit and loss charge represents £4 million of notional interest (2001: £3 mitlion).

Deferred petroleum revenue tax
The provisien for tax on gas and off activilies has been calculated on a unit of production basis.

Deferred corporation tax
A deferred tax provision has been made in respect of accelerated capital allowances and other liming differences,
net of recognised deferred tax assets.

Pension and other retirement benefits
This provision included the difference between charges to the profit and loss account and the contributions paid
to the pension schemes in respect of retirement pensions and other refated benefits.

Restructuring costs

The provision represented costs relating 10 surplus properties, redundancy and other costs relating to reorganisations.
Surplus properties arose mainly foliowing the closure of retail operations in both British Gas Energy Centres and in the AA,
The provision relating to surplus properties was calculated as the lower of the difference between rental costs and sublet
income over the remainder of the leases and the potential cost to surrender those leases. The provision for redundancy costs
reflected announced restructuring plans. The majority of these sums were expected to be spent between 2004 and 2005.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

19 Provisions for liabilities and charges continued
Sales contract loss and renegotiation provisions
The sales contract loss provision represented the net present cost, using a risk free discount rate, of expected losses on oherous leng term
sales contracts, based on the difference between the contracted sales price and the expected weighted average cost of gas. These
contracts terminate between 2005 and 2006. The profit and loss charge included £14 million of notional interest (2001: £15 million}.

In previous years, the group renegotiated certain fong term ‘Take or Pay’ contracts which would have resulled in commitments
to pay for gas that wouid be excess to requirements and/or at prices above likely market rates. The provision represented the net
present cost of estimated payments due to suppliers as consideration for the renegotiations, which are due for settlement
between 2003 and 2008.

Other

Other provisions principally cover estimated liabitities in respect of claims reflected in the group’s insurance subsidiaries, Goldfish
credit card loyalty points, outstanding litigation, and provision for National Insurance payable in respect of long term incentive scheme
fabilities. The National Insurance provision was based on a share price of 171 pence at 31 December 2002 {2001 222 pence).

woz 2001
20 Called up share capital Em £m
Authorised share capital of the company
4,950.000.000 ordinary shares of 5% pence each
{2001: 4,950,000,000 ordinary shares of 5% pence each) 275 275
100,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each - -
Allatted and fully paid share capital of the company
4,252,856,414 ordinary shares of 5% pence each
(2001: 4,020,931,056 ordinary shares of 5% pence each) 236 223

During 2002, 231,925,358 ordinary shares were aliolted and issued pursuant to a cash placing in February and, throughout the year,
Lo satisfy the exercise of share options and the matching element of the share incentive plan as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2002 2001.
Number N - - - 231,825,358 7,512,180
Nominal value (Em} 12.8 0.4
Consideration {net of issue costs 2002: £6 million; 2001: £nil) (Em} 488" 17

(} Consideration of £488 million included £44 million in respect of emplayee share schemes and £444 million received from
third parties.

Options outstanding over
otd:nary shares Latest
2002 001 exerclse Exercise
million miltion date prices
RESQS® 21 2.2 November 2004 81.060p o 90.266p
ESOSW 13.5 5.6 April 2002 240.050p and 224.600p
UK sharesave™™ 61.6 78.0 November 2007 92.200p to 202.600p
Irish sharesave™ 0.3 0.3 May2008  132.800pto 168.700p
Total 31 December 71.5 86.1

(i} Details of the RESOS appear on page 30 in note (i) to the Lable of directors’ interests in share oplions.

(i} Details of the ESOS appear on pages 25 and 26.

(i)} Details of the UK and irish sharesave schemes appear on pages 22 and 23.

{iv) As permitted by UITF 17 {revised 2000), the group does not recognise the cost of awards to employees in the profit and loss
account for the year, on the basis thal it operates a UK Inland Revenue-approved sharesave scheme,

The closing price of a Centrica ordinary share on 31 December 2002 was 171 pence (2001: 222 pence).

Long term incentive scheme

At 31 December 2002, 34 miliion shares (2001: 40 million) were outstanding in respect of allocations made under the long term
incentive scheme, which includes allocations of 23 million shares (2001: 23 million) that are subject to performance conditions
and allocations of 11 million shares (2001; 17 million) that have reached the conclusion of the performance period but are subject
Lo a twao year retention period. Detaits of the operation of the Jong term incentive scheme, in which the executive directors
participate, can be found in the remuneration report on page 26.

The Centrica Employees Share Trusts were established to acquire erdinary shares in the company, by subscription or purchase,
with funds provided by way of interest free loans from the company Lo satisfy rights to shares on the vesting of allocations made
under the company's long terrm incentive arrangements.

Since the beginning of 2002, no further shares have been acquired by the trust. Any future shortfall will be satisfied by the
allotment and issue of new shares,

Al 31 Decernber 2002, the trusts held 27 million (2001: 39 million) ordinary shares in the company which had a market value
of £47 million (2001: 39 million ordinary shares with a market vatue of £88 miilion). Dividends due on shares held in trust are waived
in accordance with the trust deeds. All administration costs are borne by the group.

48 Centrica ptc report 2002



Share Profit

premium Merges and loss

account reserve account® Total
21 Reserves Em £m £m £m
1 January 2002 62 467 750 1,279
Retained profit for the year - - 306 306
Exchange translation differences® - - (8 [t}
Issue of ordinary share capital™ 475 - (44) 431
Shares to be issued under long term Incentive scheme™ - - 4 4
31 December 2002 537 487 1,008 2012

i Cumulative goodwill taken directly to the profit and loss reserve at 31 December 2002 amounted to £85 million (2001: £85 million),
This goodwill had been taken to reserves as a matter of accounting policy and will be charged in the profit and loss account
should there be a subsequent dispasal of the business to which it related.

(il Exchange gains of £84 million (2001: £18 million) on foreign curency borrowings have been offset in full in reserves against
exchange losses of E92 rnillion (2007: £18 million) on the net investment in overseas undertakings.

@i} The share issue movement in the group profit and loss account represented the difference between the share issue prices
{being the market prices on the date of exercise of options) and the share option prices. This difference was funded by the
company and its subsidiaries. Shares were allotted to a qualifying share ownership trust, for subsequent transfer to eligible

employees, who have exercised options.

(iv) Centrica intends to fund certain of its long term incentive schemes through the issue of new shares when these schemes vest.
The am